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Chapter I Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

In 2023, the global economy continued to face severe challenges, including the Russia-Ukraine

conflict, inflation threats, geopolitical risks, the direction of the Chinese economy, US-China

tensions, and uncertainties such as climate change. Many industries were constrained by weak

end-market demand and adjustments in industrial inventories, resulting in sluggish economic

growth and less than ideal performance. Consequently, revenue for the year decreased

compared to the previous year ,and net losses has widened . In the future, our company aims to

strengthen its core capabilities, develop diversified products, and provide high-quality customer

service to elevate the overall operational performance of the group.

I. 2023 Business Operating Results

@

(1)

For 2023, the Company’s consolidated revenue totaled NT$3,642.58 million, a
13% decrease from NT$4,166.65 million for 2022; net loss after tax was
NT$36.26 million and loss per share was NT$4.14, both of which decreased from
the net income after tax of NT$24.63 million and losses per share of NT$0.26 for
2022, respectively. The global economy in 2023 continued to be affected by the
Russia-Ukraine war, and high inflation, the excess inventory of customers has not
yet been sold. In addition, most countries were trying to curb inflation and
expected to continue to take measures to raise interest rates, which will make the
global economic outlook turn bleak. Though the economy in China recovered due
to the relaxation of containment measures, the recover was modest, and the
domestic market showed signs of deflation, affecting the Company's production
costs and inventory management. Faced with these severe challenges, the
Company undertook the consolidation of factory in 2023 to stabilize its
competitiveness in the market. This resulted in significant one-time relocation and
layoff-related expenses, leading to a considerable decline in profits compared to

the previous year.

Budget implementation status
Not applicable because the Company has not disclosed a financial forecast for

2023 according to the current laws and regulations.



II.

(ITI) Financial income, expenditure, and profitability analysis (based on consolidated
financial statements)
Unit: NT$ thousand

Type Item 2023 2022
Financial income |Net operating revenue 3,642,580 4,166,649
& expenditure |Net loss after tax (362,607) (24,634)

Return on assets (%) (7.48) 0.08
. Return on equity (%) (21.14) (1.27)
Profitability ;
Net loss margin (%) (9.95) (0.59)
Loss per share (4.14) (0.26)

2. R&D Status
The Company’s R&D expenses in 2023 were NT$146.02 million, which accounted
for about 4% of the annual revenue. The R&D strategy primarily aimed to meet
clients’ new product design demands, optimize the existing products and processes,
and develop high-end products in various application fields. We will continue to
develop related cables and cable groups for automobiles, industrial automation,
medical, servers, high-end industrial cameras, etc., to increase the breadth of the

company’s product applications and expand our product and market shares.

Impact of the external competitive environment, regulatory environment, and
overall business environment

The company's main production sites are located in Taiwan and mainland China.
Therefore, either changes in Taiwan’s or China’s government policies or laws or changes
in the international situation will affect the Company’s operating costs. In 2024, the issue
of debt under the economic boom in the United States is poised to face the challenge of
high interest rates. The lack of confidence in the Chinese real estate market may continue
to stagnate. Both major economies are troubled by adverse factors affecting consumption
and investment. Although other major economies such as Europe are expected to show
signs of recovery, the economic performance of emerging markets and developing
economies in Southeast Asia, South Asia, Africa, and Latin America is better than in
2023, but still insufficient to support the sluggish situation in the US and China, leading
to a third consecutive year of global economic growth decline. Overall, the lagging
effects of rising interest rates restrict global economic activity in 2024. Therefore, major
international forecasting agencies believe that the global economy and trade growth rate
during 2024 will slow down compared with 2023. This may cause an impact on the
Company’s production costs and inventory management. Facing this daunting challenge,
the Company, to stabilize our competitiveness in the market, will continue to disperse
production sites, integrate resources, control inventories, change order acceptance

strategies, develop more product lines, and expand applications, thereby increasing our



overall profit.

The 2024 business plan and future development strategies

Looking ahead to 2024, though global inflation is easing and the tightening cycles of
central banks are gradually nearing completion, the global economic recovery still
appears somewhat uncertain. However, demand for electronic-related products is picking
up, driven by emerging technologies such as HPC and Al. The Company is closely
monitoring these developments, actively investing and consolidating factories and
enhancing manufacturing competitiveness that keep pace with the times, to lay a solid
foundation for our basic skills to root down. Meanwhile, the Company will continue to
develop the applications in the fields of high-value-added products to increase the
proportion of our niche products. All of this aims to lay a solid foundation for the

Company’s sustainable development and profitability.

Over the past 30 years, the Company has continued to advance, but our core values,
namely technological innovation, client first, integrity and pragmatism, and sustainable
development, have remained unchanged. The Company promises to all our shareholders
with great trust in us that we will strive to develop innovative products, optimize
business models, enhance production technology, and improve the cost structure in the
future; as such, the Company can continue to maintain our competitive advantages in the

industry and ensure stable growth in profitability.

Finally, I, on behalf of all employees of the Company, would like to thank all our shareholders
for your support and motivation over the years. I believe that the Company, with all
employees’ collective endeavors, will create a new chapter and cope with various challenges
in the future. I hope that you will continue to support and provide your precious guidance to

the Company.
I wish all of you

good health and all the best!

Copartner Technology Corp.
Chairman: Ho, Chun-Hsien
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Chapter II

Company Profile

Date of Establishment: April 30, 1987

Company history

April 1987

March 1991
September 1992
August 1993
September 1995

November 1996

December 1996
February 1998
January 1999
March 1999
August 1999

September 1999

June 2001
September 2001

April 2002
May 2002

October 2002
November 2002

July 2003
October 2003

November 2003
December 2003
February 2004
April 2004

July 2004

Founded Copartner Electric Wire Corp. Had paid-in capital of NT$15
million; engaged in the manufacturing of electronic wires
Obtained the U.S. UL Certification

Obtain Canadian CSA Certification
Established subsidiary, Copartner Wire And Cable ShenZhen Co., Ltd.

Subsidiaries in Taiwan and Shenzhen, China, obtained Japan Quality
Assurance- (JQA-) F Certification

Conducted a cash capital increase by NT$29 million, with the paid-in
capital increasing to NT$44 million

Established subsidiary, Cablex Wire ShenZhen Mfg Co., Ltd.

Invested in Copartner Wire And Cable (KunShan) Co., Ltd.
Shenzhen subsidiary obtained UL ISO9002 Certification
Kunshan subsidiary obtained UL ISO9002 Certification

Conducted a cash capital increase by NT$14 million, with the paid-in
capital increasing to NT$58 million

Purchased and moved into an office (where the Company is currently
located) in Zhonghe District, New Taipei City (formerly known as
Zhonghe City, Taipei County)

Conducted a cash capital increase by NT$42 million, with the paid-in
capital increasing to NT$100 million

Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. invested in subsidiary,
ShenZhen Copartner Communication Co., Ltd.

Kunshan subsidiary obtained UL ISO9001: 2000 Certification

Copartner Wire And Cable (KunShan) Co., Ltd. invested in subsidiary,
United Electric Wire (KunShan) Co., Ltd.

Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. passed U.S. UL’s
ISO9001: 2000 quality management system certification

Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. passed Sony’s Green
Partner (GP) certification

Established subsidiary, Sunagaru International Inc. (SAMOA)

Conducted a cash capital increase by NT$200 million, with the paid-in
capital increasing to NT$300 million

Established subsidiary, Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing
Limited, in Hong Kong

December 2003 Copartner Wire And Cable (KunShan) Co., Ltd. passed
Sony’s GP certification

Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. passed U.S. UI’sISO:
14001: 2004 environmental management system certification
Copartner Wire And Cable (KunShan) Co., Ltd. invested in its
subsidiary, Cablex Wire And Cable (KunShan) Mfg.

Conducted a cash capital increase by NT$50 million, with the paid-in
capital increasing to NT$350 million



August 2004

November 2004

November 2004

January 2005
January 2005
January 2005

July 2005

August 2005

December 2005
December 2005

June 2006

June 2006

September 2006

December 2006
June 2007

July 2007
September 2007
June 2008

December 2009

Approved for being renamed Copartner Technology Corporation in the
business registration

Established subsidiary, Hotek Technology Corporation (SAMOA) by
exchanging shares with Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing
Limited

Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited invested in its
subsidiaries, Huisheng Plastic (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. and Wanfu Plastic
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited invested in its
subsidiary, Copartner Technology (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Copartner Wire And Cable (KunShan) Co., Ltd. and United Electric
Wire (KunShan) Co., Ltd. passed TUV QS9000 certification
Copartner Technology (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. invested in its subsidiary,
Cablex Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Mfg.

Shut down Huilian Plastic Hardware Factory (ShenZhen) and had
Huisheng Plastic (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. take over its facilities and
business

Conducted a cash capital increase by NT$68 million and capitalization
of earnings to increase the capital by NT$21 million with the paid-in
capital increasing to NT$439 million

Copartner Technology (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. invested in its subsidiary,
Cablex Wire And Cable (WuJiang) Mfg.

Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. invested in its
subsidiary, Shin Ya Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Shut down Dongguan Mingdian Electronics Factory, a processing
factory, and had Cablex Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Mfg. take over its
facilities and business

Cablex Wire And Cable (KunShan) Mfg., United Electric Wire
(KunShan) Co., Ltd., and Cablex Wire And Cable (KunShan) Mfg.
passed WIT Assessment’s ISO 14001: 2004 certification

Conducted a cash capital increase by NT$101 million and capitalization
of earnings to increase the capital by NT$60 million with the paid-in
capital increasing to NT$600 million

Launched the initial public offering

Copartner Technology Corporation conducted a cash capital increase in
Hotek Technology Corporation (SAMOA) and Sunagaru International
Inc. (SAMOA)

Conducted capitalization of earnings to increase the capital by NT$136
million with the paid-in capital increasing to NT$736 million
Approved by Taipei Exchange to be listed on the emerging stock market
for trading

Conducted capitalization of earnings to increase the capital by NT$44.8
million with the paid-in capital increasing to NT$780.8 million
Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. held 74% equity in
Shin Ya Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. and sold 69% to
Copartner Technology (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. And 5% to Copartner Wire
& Cable Manufacturing Limited



November 2010

January 2011
September 2011

December 2011

July 2012
January 2015

January 2015
July 2015
January 2016
June 2017
January 2019

February 2019

May 2019
May 2020
October 2020

January 2021
January 2021

April 2021
August 2022

December 2022

November 2023
January 2024

Conducted a cash capital increase by NT$99.2 million before the stock
was listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange for trading with the paid-in
capital increasing to NT$880 million; had the stock listed on Taiwan
Stock Exchange for trading

Copartner Technology (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. invested in its subsidiary,
Wujiang Wanfeng Plastic Cement Co., Ltd.

Copartner Technology (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. . invested in its subsidiary,
Jia Xin Plastic (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Repurchased and canceled treasury shares of NT$30 million and
completed the registration of capital reduction, with the paid-in capital
reduced to NT$850 million

Copartner Technology (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. invested in its subsidiary,
Shenzhen Qingying Precision Components Co., Ltd.

Renamed Shenzhen Qingying Precision Components Co., Ltd.
Shenzhen Xiechang Trading Co., Ltd.

Obtained IEC 60332 certification

Shut down Cablex Wire And Cable (Wuliang) Mfg.
Shut down Cablex Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Mfg.
Established the Poland Office

Copartner Wire And Cable (KunShan) Co., Ltd. invested in its
subsidiary, Copartner Technology (DongTai) Co., Ltd.
Copartner Technology (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. obtained UL 9990
Certification

Established the Shulin Plant in Taipei

Shut down Shenzhen Xiechang Trading Co., Ltd.

Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. invested in its
subsidiary, Jia Xin New Materials (Anfu) CO., LTD.

Copartner Wire And Cable (KunShan) Co., Ltd. invested in its
subsidiary, Cablex Metal Tech (Anfu) Co., Ltd.

Copartner Wire And Cable (KunShan) Co., Ltd. invested in its
subsidiary, Copartner Technology (Anfu) Co., Ltd.

Copartner Technology Corp. obtained HDMI 2.1 certification
Conducted capitalization of retained earnings to increase the capital by
NT$25.5 million with the paid-in capital increasing to NT$875.5
million

Liquidated and canceled the business registration of subsidiary,
Sunagaru International Inc. (SAMOA)

Shut down the Shulin Plant in Taipei

Established Joint venture subsidiary, Copartner Technology (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.
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(IT) Main business by each major department

Department Business affairs
Formulating business strategies, business plans, and business goals and
policies; managing business performance; managing the Company’s various
CEO and General |business administration systems; planning, evaluating, and executing the

manager’s Office

establishment of investment business; planning and implementation of
coordination of production and sales; launching various corporate social
responsibility initiatives.

Audit Division

Auditing and evaluating the correctness, reliability, efficiency, and
effectiveness of the Company’s operating records and internal management
control; in turn, providing improvement suggestions to ensure the security
of the Company’s operations, thereby reducing risks and malpractice and
ensuring the effective implementation of internal control; evaluating and
auditing the management system; drawing up internal audit plans.

The Cable
Assembly Business
Group

Planning and executing business objectives; planning and managing market
development, customer service, product sales, and receivables collection;
surveying global clients and markets and collecting and analyzing business
information; executing product marketing plans and developing major
overseas sales markets; researching and developing (R&D) and designing
new products, technologies, and new manufacturing processes; handling
product problems and client complaints; planning and implementing the
quality audit and certification business and providing after-sales services.

The Cable Business
Group

Responsible for market development, client credit investigation, product
marketing; providing client service and handling customer complaints;
setting goals, implementing plans, and surveying and analyzing markets;
transferring orders to other supply chains and collecting overdue
receivables; offering quotes; formulating product specifications; R&D and
designing new products and new processes; planning and implementing the
quality audit and certification business.

The Raw Material
Business Group

Responsible for market development as well as planning and execution of
business goals; surveying markets and collecting and analyzing business
information; executing product marketing plans and developing sales
markets; planning and implementing the quality audit and certification
business; planning and managing client service, product sales, and
receivable collection; handling product problems and client complaints and
providing after-sales services.

Administration
Division

Establishing and implementing human resources, personnel, benefit,
education, and general affairs management systems, policies, and
procedures. Establishing and implementing administrative and general
affairs systems; handling public relations, safety, health, environmental
protection, and legal affairs; purchasing and managing major goods,
equipment, and general items; collecting overdue receivables and handling
triangular trade affairs.




Department

Business affairs

Finance Division

Planning and managing budgets as well as accounting, finance, taxation, and
stock affairs; managing funds and capital movements; drawing up and
executing financing and fundraising plans; handling accounting business
and financial reports; planning the operations of shareholders’ meetings and
board meetings and executing the plans.

Planning, establishing, and operating the Company’s management

I\I/lfafr?;meaggﬁt information systems; planning, establishing, and operating the ERP system,
age data warehousing centers, OA, VPN, and LAN environments; purchasing,
Division . .o
using, and maintaining hardware and system software.
Business Responsible for the Company’s new business launch and implementation as
Development . .
o well as client support and services.
Division
Advanced Cable |Responsible for developing domestic and overseas high-end wire (QSFP,
Division CMP, CL2P, etc.) clients.
Poland Office  |[Responsible for promoting business in Europe.
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2. Major shareholders of institutional shareholders: None.

3. Major shareholders of institutional shareholders who are juridical persons: None.

4. Information on directors

Name

Qualification

Professional qualification and experience

Independence
criteria
(Note 1)

Number of
positions as an
Independent
Director in
other public
listed
companies

Chairman

Ho,
Chun-Hsien

Has experience in founding and
operating publicly listed companies
and the ability to manage
multinational companies; is familiar
with business development and has
industry knowledge; possesses
leadership, decision-making ability,
and the ability to formulate business
strategies. See the above table:
Information on directors.

Does not meet any descriptions
stated in Article 30 of the Company
Act.

(1), (4), (5),
(6), (8), (9),
(10), (11)

Director

Wang,
Shih-Tsung

Has experience in founding and
operating publicly listed companies
and the ability to manage
multinational companies, has the
knowledge of the industry’s
upstream, midstream, and
downstream business, and possesses
expertise in finance, business
operations, and governance. See the
above table: Information on
directors.

Does not meet any descriptions
stated in Article 30 of the Company
Act.

(5), (6), (8),
(9), (10), (11)

Director

Chen,
Hung-Yao

Has experience in founding and
operating publicly listed companies
and the ability to manage
multinational companies; is familiar
with the international market
business, marketing, and industry
technology. See the above table:
Information on directors.

Does not meet any descriptions
stated in Article 30 of the Company
Act.

(5), (6), (3),
9), (10), (11)
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Name

Qualification

Professional qualification and experience

Independence
criteria
(Note 1)

Number of
positions as an
Independent
Director in
other public
listed
companies

Director

Cheng,
Chin-Hung

Has experience in business
administration; can provide timely
advice on operations to diversify the
Company’s strategic thinking in
business. See the above table:
Information on directors.

Does not meet any descriptions
stated in Article 30 of the Company
Act.

(1),(2), 3,
4, (6), (7),
9), (10), (11)

Independent
Director

Wu,
Li-Ching

Has expertise in financial
accounting and governance; can
improve the quality of the
governance by the Board of
Directors and the supervisory
function of the Audit Committee.
See the above table: Information on
directors.

Does not meet any descriptions
stated in Article 30 of the Company
Act.

(1), (2), 3),

4, (5), (6),

(7, (8), (9),
(10), (11)

Independent Li,

Director

Chien-Jan

Has expertise in financial
accounting and governance; can
improve the quality of the
governance by the Board of
Directors and the supervisory
function of the Audit Committee.
See the above table: Information on
directors.

Does not meet any descriptions
stated in Article 30 of the Company
Act.

(1), (2), (3),

(4), (5), (6),

(7), (8), (9),
(10), (11)

Independent
Director

Hsu,
Yung-Chen

Has relevant knowledge of industry
technology and expertise in industry
application development; can
improve the quality of the
governance by the Board of
Directors and the supervisory
function of the Audit Committee.
See the above table: Information on
directors.

Does not meet any descriptions
stated in Article 30 of the Company
Act.

(1), (2), (3),

(4), (3) (6),

(7), (8), (9),
(10), (11)

Note 1: Each director who has met the independence criteria during the two
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election and during the term of office is disclosed in the above table:

years before the



(1)
(2)

€)

4)
)

(6)

(7)

(8)

)

(10)
(11)

Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

Not a director or supervisor of the company or any of its affiliates. The same does not
apply, however, in case where the person is an independent director of the company, its
parent company or any subsidiary, as appointed in accordance with the laws of Taiwan or
with the laws of the country of the parent company or subsidiary.

Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the
person’s spouse, minor children or held by the person under others’ names, in an
aggregate amount of 1% or more of the total number of issued shares of the company or
ranks as one of its top ten shareholders.

Not a manager of (1) or spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal
relative within the third degree of kinship, of any of (2) or (3).

Not a director, supervisor or employee of an institutional shareholder that directly holds
5% or more of the total number of issued shares of the Company or ranks as one of its top
five shareholders or was appointed pursuant to Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the
Company Act. (The same does not apply, however, in case where the person is an
independent director of the company, its parent company, or any subsidiary, as appointed
in accordance with the laws of Taiwan or with the laws of the country of the parent
company or subsidiary.)

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company where a majority of the
Company’s directorships or voting shares and those of another company are controlled by
the same person (except for an independent director engaged concurrently by the
Company, its parent company, and its subsidiary or a subsidiary under the same parent
company in accordance with the Act or local laws and regulations).

Not the same person as the Company’s Chairman, President or person with equivalent
position or the director (managing director), supervisor or employee of company or
institution of the spouse thereof. (The same does not apply, however, in cases where the
person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, or any subsidiary
as appointed in accordance with the laws of Taiwan or with the laws of the country of the
parent company or subsidiary.)

Not a director (managing director), supervisor, manager, or shareholder holding 5% or
more of the shares of a specific company or institution which has a financial or business
relationship with the Company (except for a specific company or institution holding more
than 20% and no more than 50% of the total issued shares of the Company and for an
independent director engaged concurrently by the Company, its parent company, and its
subsidiary or a subsidiary under the same parent company in accordance with the Act or
local laws and regulations).

Not a professional individual who or an owner, partner, director (managing director),
supervisor or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company or institution that,
provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting services or consultation to the
Company or to any affiliate of the Company in the most recent 2 years with an
accumulated service compensation of less than NT$500 thousand or a spouse thereof.
This restriction does not apply to any member of the Compensation Committee, public
tender offers Audit Committee or mergers and acquisition special committee, who
exercises powers pursuant to relative regulations of the Securities and Exchange Act and
Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act.

Not having a marital relationship or a relative within the second degree of kinship to any
other director of the Company.

Not a governmental, juridical person or its representative as defined in Article 27 of the
Company Act.
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(IIT) An analysis of the total remuneration paid to the Company’s directors, the President, and
Vice Presidents by the Company and all companies in the consolidated financial statements
as a percentage of the net income after tax in the parent company-only financial statements
for the last two years, and a description of the remuneration policy, standard, and package,
the procedure for determining the remuneration, and the association between business
performance and future risks.

1. Remuneration payment to the directors, the President, and Vice Presidents of the
Company as a % of the net income (loss) after tax for 2022 and 2023:

Remuneration as a % of the net income (loss) after tax
Title 2022 2023
All companies All companies
The Company | shown inthe | The Company | shown in the
financial report financial report
Director -52.27% -73.91% -2.85% -4.22%
Presidents
and the Vice -44.48% -68.73% -2.76% -4.27%
Presidents

2. Remuneration policy, standard, and package, the procedure for determining the
remuneration, and the association between business performance and future risks:

(1)

(2)

Remuneration to Directors

The Company has established a Compensation Committee in accordance with the
competent authority’s regulations. Directors’ remuneration is distributed in
accordance with Article 19 of the Articles of Incorporation. The Compensation
Committee refers to the general payment standard in the industry in accordance
with the law and evaluates each director’s participation in and contribution to the
Company’s operations, and the reasonability of the association between the
Company’s business performance and future risks. After the individual board
member performance evaluation results have come out, the committee will
submit remuneration suggestions to the Board of Directors for discussion and
approval.

President’s ~ Vice Presidents and managers’ remuneration

The Company has established a Compensation Committee in accordance with the
competent authority’s regulations. The remuneration to the President and Vice
Presidents (including salary and pay raise) is handled in accordance with the
Human Resources Management Regulations formulated by the Company, and the
committee submits its suggestions to the Board of Directors for discussion and
approval. The salary and remuneration package includes three parts: base salary,
year-end bonus, and performance bonus/employee remuneration, among which
the salary is determined according to the general standards for the positions held
in the market; the year-end bonus is based on the Company’s annual policy; the
performance bonus/employee remuneration is determined based on the
Company’s profitability and individual performance.

The Company will review the remuneration system at all times depending on the
operating performance and applicable laws and regulations, to achieve a balance
between the Company’s sustainable development and risk control.
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III. Corporate governance

(I) Facts about performance by the board of directors:

The Board of Directors held six (A) meetings during 2023, and directors’ attendance is as

follows:
Actual
) Actual Proxy
Title Name attendance (%) | Remark
attendance (B) Attendance
(B/A)
Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien 6 0 100
Director Wang, Shih-Tsung 6 0 100
Director Chen, Hung-Yao 6 0 100
Director Liao, Wen-Hung 2 0 100 Note 1
Director Cheng, Chin-Hung 4 0 100 Note 2
Independent | o0 Chung-Chiu 2 0 100 Note 3
Director
Independent |y 'y ;i Ching 4 0 100 Note 4
Director
Independent |y ; "cpien Jan 6 0 100 Note 5
Director
Independent | 1y Siing-Chen 6 0 100
Director

Note 1: Mr. Liao, Wen-Hung resigned as a director after the shareholders' meeting on June 30, 2023.

Note 2: Mr. Cheng, Chin-Hung was appointed as a director after the shareholders' meeting on June 30, 2023.

Note 3: Mr. Chang, Chung-Chiu resigned as an independent director after the shareholders' meeting on June 30, 2023.

Note 4: Mrs. Wu, Li-Ching was appointed as an independent director after the shareholders' meeting on June 30, 2023.

Note 5: Mr. Li, Chien-Jan resigned from the position of independent director on March 1, 2024 due to personal reasons.

Other remarks:

I.  For the operation of the Board of Directors in any of the following circumstances, please specify
the date, session, the contents of the proposals, the opinions of all independent directors, and the
process of the opinions proposed by the independent directors:
(I)  Issues required under Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

Date of Response to
) . Independent :
board Discussion . y independent
. Directors’ opinions | . y e
meeting directors’ opinions
Proposal for the Company’s 2022 Approved as
March 29, . . , i .
2023 employee remuneration and directors proposed without Not applicable
remuneration objection
March 29 Proposal to issue the Company’s 2022 Approved as
2023 > | Statement of the Internal Control proposed without Not applicable
System objection
March 29 Amend to the Company‘s “Procedures Approved as
2023 > | for the Selection and Appointment of proposed without Not applicable
Directors” objection
March 29, | Amend to the Company‘s "Code of Approved as Not applicable
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2023 Conduct for Financial Business among | proposed without
Relationships” objection
March 29, | Amend to the Company’s “Code of rApprc()lve(iitES ¢ Not applicabl
2023 Practice on Sustainable Development” proposed withou ot appiicable
objection
March 29, | Amend to the Company’s “Code of Approvegi as .
. ” proposed without Not applicable
2023 Practice on Corporate Governance .
objection
March 29 Amend to the Company‘s "Standard Approved as
> | Operating Procedure for Handling proposed without Not applicable
2023 . ] EL) 1 1
Directors' Requests objection
March 29 Amend to the Company‘s Approved as
2023 > | "Implementation Points for Director proposed without Not applicable
Training” objection
March 29 Amend to the Company‘s "Scope of Approved as
2023 > | Responsibility Rule for Independent proposed without Not applicable
Directors” objection
Proposal for the Company’s 2022 Approved as
March 29, s . i .
2023 annual business report and financial proposed without Not applicable
report objection
March 29, | Proposal for the Company’s 2022 Approvegl as .
. . proposed without Not applicable
2023 earnings distribution ..
objection
March 29, | Proposal for the Company‘s cash Approvegi as .
S : proposed without Not applicable
2023 distribution from capital surplus .
objection
Proposal to evaluate the independence, Approved as
March 29, . i .
2023 fitness assessment and compensation of | proposed without Not applicable
the Company’s certified CPA objection
March 29, | Proposal to general reelect the directors rAppr(zive(iitEs ¢ Not anplicabl
2023 and independent directors proposed withou ot applicable
objection
March 29 Proposal to remove the non-compete Approved as
2023 > | restrictions for the new director of the proposed without Not applicable
Company objection
Proposal to nominate director Approved as
March 29, | candidates and candidature examination o %F;e dV thout Not anplicable
2023 by the Board of Directors of the proposed withou PP
C objection
ompany
The 1% shareholder nomination Approved as
May 10, . . L . .
director nominee examination and proposed without Not applicable
2023 . . i . o
director candidate list confirmation objection
The company's 2022 director and Approved as
May 10, . . .
2023 manager remuneration assessment proposed without Not applicable
proposal objection
August 9 Proposal to apply to the First Approved as
EUS 7> | Commercial Bank for credit line proposed without Not applicable
2023 . o
renewal and guarantee business based objection
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on operational needs
November | Proposal to amend the Company’s Approveq as .
10,2023 | Internal Control System propose d Wlthom Not applicable
’ objection
November | Proposal to Establish Joint venture Approvegi as .
10,2023 | subsidiary in Thailand proposed without | Not applicable
' objection
November | Proposal to Establish subsidiary in prC)AI)%I;re%V\?v(iitiiu ¢ Not applicable
10, 2023 Vietnam objection
December | Proposal to purchase directors liability Approvegi as .
192023 | insurance proposed without Not applicable
’ objection
December Proposal for the Company’s 2024 Approved as
19. 2023 Business Plan and consolidated proposed without Not applicable
’ financial budget objection
(I) ~ Other than the aforementioned issues, the issue objected by an independent director or

where an independent director maintain a qualified opinion with record or documented
declaration in a decision resolved by the Board of Directors: None.
II.  With respect to the avoidance of conflicting interest agendas, describe the names of directors,
details of the relevant agendas, reasons for avoiding conflicting interest, and the voting
decisions: None

III. Details of the implementation of board evaluation:

Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Evaluation .
. Evaluation content
cycle period scope method
Evaluation | January 1, Board of 1. Internal board | Performance aspect and
performed | 2023 - Directors self-evaluation | weighting factor:
once a year | December 2. Peer 1. Level of participation in the
31,2023 evaluation Company’s operations:28%
2. Improvement of the quality of
the board of directors’
decision making: 28%
3. Composition and structure of
the board of directors: 16%
4. Election and continuing
education of the directors:
14%
5. Internal control: 14%
Evaluation | January 1, Individual | Board member Performance aspect and
performed | 2023 - board self-evaluation weighting factor:
once a year | December | members 1. Alignment of the company’s
31,2023 goals and mission: 14%
2. Awareness of responsibilities
as a director: 14%
3. Level of participation in the
Company’s operations:34%
4. Internal relations management
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and communication: 10%
5. Director’ s professional and

continuing education: 14%
6. Internal control: 14%

Evaluation | January 1, Functional | Audit Performance aspect and

performed | 2023 - committees | Committee’s weighting factor:

once a year | December self-evaluation 1. Level of participation in the
31,2023 Company’s operations:18%

2. Awareness of responsibilities
as a functional committee
member: 22%

3. Improvement to the quality of
the functional committee’s
decision-making: 32%

4. The composition and election
of functional committee
members: 14%

5. Internal control: 14%

Compensation Performance aspect and
Committee’s weighting factor:
self-evaluation 1. Level of participation in the

Company’s operations:22%

2. Awareness of responsibilities
as a functional committee
member: 22%

3. Improvement to the quality of
the functional committee’s
decision-making: 39%

4. The composition and election
of functional committee
members: 17%

IV. Targets for strengthening of the functions of the board during the current and immediately
preceding fiscal years

Q)

The objectives of enhancing the functions of the Board of Directors

The Company has established the Rules of the Procedure for Board of Directors
Meetings, and the board meetings thereafter are all handled in accordance with the rules.
The Company arranges for the board members, during their term of office, to attend the
courses on corporate governance offered the institutions designated under the Directions
for the Implementation of Continuing Education for Directors and Supervisors of TWSE
Listed and TPEx Listed Companies or appoint instructors to offer training at the
Company to reinforce their expertise in corporate governance. A total of seven directors
received a total of 54 hours of training during 2023. In addition, the Company established
the Compensation Committee on December 16, 2011 and the Audit Committee on June
20, 2014. Each of the two functional committees is formed by three independent
directors to assist he board in fulfilling its supervisory duties, and they submit their
proposals to the board to duly implement corporate governance. Our independent
directors’ attendance at board meetings are in good condition, and they provide useful
suggestions to the board about the implementation of the Company’s internal control
system, business, finance, among other relevant proposals using their industry
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(111)

knowledge, accounting and financial analysis, and other professional skills. To enhance
the board functions and the effectiveness of the committees, the Company established the
Board of Directors Self-evaluation or Peer Evaluation Procedure on August 12, 2019, and
the Board of Directors approved the amendments to the Board of Directors
Self-evaluation or Peer Evaluation Procedure on May 10, 2021 and renamed it Rules of
the Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors. The 2023 board, board members,
Audit Committee, and Compensation Committee performance results were all positive
and reported to the Board of Directors on March 13, 2024. The performance evaluation
results will be adopted as a reference for determining the remuneration of individual
directors or members of functional committees and nominating candidates for directors.
Improve information transparency

The Company’s financial statements are regularly audited by Deloitte & Touche, and we
timely and accurately disclose all information required by laws and regulations to be
disclosed on the Market Observation Post System (MOPS). The Company has also
designated personnel to be dedicated to collecting and disclosing company information
and established a spokesperson system to ensure that all material information can be
disclosed in a timely and appropriate manner for the reference of shareholders and
stakeholders.

Proactively engage with stakeholders:

The Company has a spokesperson and an acting spokesperson in place. Stakeholders can
use this as a means of communication with us or ask questions and make suggestions
online through the Stakeholders section of our official website. The Company accepts
shareholder proposals before the annual shareholders’ meeting is held according to the
schedule. Shareholders who have the right to make proposals can submit applications to
the Company during the acceptance period, and the Company will convene a board
meeting to review such applications in accordance with rules. Moreover, the Company
regularly holds investor conferences to disclose the Company’s operating performance
and our views on future industry prospects to our investors in a timely manner, thereby
increasing the means for investors to communicate with the Company.
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(IT) Operations of the Audit Committee

1.

Composition of the Audit Committee and scope of duties

Three independent directors are elected at the Annual Shareholders Meeting, and they,

in turn, form the Audit Committee, which meets at least once per quarter and is

responsible for reviewing the Company’s financial statements, appointing (dismissing)

CPAs, evaluating their independence and performance, ensuring the effective

implementation of the Company’s internal control, and reviewing the Company’s

compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Its main duties are as follows:

(1) Establishing or modifying the internal control system in accordance with Article
14-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

(2) Assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system.

(3) Formulating or amending the procedures for handling material financial or
business activities, such as asset acquisition and disposal, derivative trading,
loans to others, and provision of endorsements/guarantees to others as per Article
36-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

(4) Handling matters involving directors’ personal interest.

(5) Handling material asset or derivative trading.

(6) Handling material loans to others or provision of endorsements/guarantees to
others.

(7) Handling matters related to the offering, issuance, or private placement of equity
securities.

(8) Appointing or dismissing CPAs or determining their remuneration.

(9) Appointing or dismissing financial supervisor, chief accountant, or chief internal
auditor.

(10) Reviewing the annual financial statements signed or sealed by the Chairman,
manager, and chief accountant, and the financial statements for Q2 that should be
audited by a CPA.

(11) Handling other major matters stipulated by the Company or competent
authorities.

Major tasks during 2023

(1) Completed the assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system.

(2) Modified the internal control system, including the Audit Committee Charter, in
accordance with Article 14-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

(3) Reviewed the matters involving directors’ personal interest submitted to the
committee in accordance with the law.

(4) Reviewed the major guarantees provided.

(5) Appointed 2023 CPAs and reviewed audit fees.

(6) Reviewed the 2022 Business Report and financial statements.

(7) Obtained the statement of independence issued by the accounting firm appointed
as the basis for the assessment of the independent of CPAs.

(8) Handling other major matters stipulated by the Company or competent authorities.
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The Audit Committee held five (A) meetings during 2023, and the independent directors’
attendance is as follows:

Actual Prox Actual
Title Name 4 ‘ attendance (%) Remark
attendance (B) Attendance
(B/A)
Independent Chang,
Director | Chung-Chiu 2 0 100 Note 1
Independent Wu,
Director Li-Ching 3 0 100 Note 2
Independent Li,
Director Chien-Jan > 0 100 Note 3
Independent Hsu,
Director | Yung-Chen > 0 100

Note 1:Mr. Chang, Chung-Chiu resigned as an independent director after annual shareholders’ meeting on
June 30, 2023.

Note 2: Mrs. Wu, Li-Ching was appointed as an independent director after annual shareholders’ meeting
on June 30, 2023.

Note 3: Mr. Li, Chien-Jan resigned as an independent director on March 1, 2024, due to personal factor.

Other remarks:

I.  If the operations of the Audit Committee fall under any of the circumstances below, the date of the
Audit Committee meeting, the session, the content of the proposal, any objection, reservation, or
major suggestion made by independent directors, the committee’s resolution results, and the
Company’s response to the committee’s opinions shall be specified:

(D Issues required under Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

oy Audic | e
Comlrlni . Discussion Committee’s dirg ctors’
. resolution results e
meeting opinions
March 29, | Proposal for the Company’s 2022 employee Appr?iveqtﬁs ¢ Not
2023 remuneration and directors’ remuneration prop(?bsjitct\;voln ou applicable
March 29, | Proposal to issue the Company’s 2022 Statement of Appr?iveqtﬁs ¢ Not
2023 the Internal Control System propc?t;eect\;voln ou applicable
March 29, | Amend to the Company‘s "Code of Conduct for roAIZ)I;E:?iV\?v(iitiiu ¢ Not
2023 Financial Business among Relationships” P pobjection applicable
March 29, | Amend to the Company’s “Code of Practice on roAIZ)I;E:?iV\?v(iitiiu ¢ Not
2023 Sustainable Development” P pobjection applicable
March 29, | Amend to the Company’s “Code of Practice on Appr(zlveq ES Not
2023 Corporate Governance” proposed without applicable
objection
March 29, | Proposal for the Company’s 2022 annual business Appr(zlveq ES Not
2023 report and financial report proposed wit out applicable
objection
March 29, | Proposal for the Company’s 2022 earnings Approved as Not
2023 distribution proposed without | applicable

- 28 -




objection
March 29, | Proposal for the Company*‘s cash distribution from Approvegi as Not
2023 capital surplus proposed without applicable
objection pp
March 29 Proposal to evaluate the infiependence, fitness Approvegi as Not
2023 > | assessment and compensation of the Company’s proposed without licabl
certified CPA objection apphicable
March 29, | Proposal to general re-elect the directors and rAppr(zlve(iitis ¢ Not
2023 independent directors P Opc?l:je;ct\;;)n ou applicable
March 29, | Proposal to remove the non-compete restrictions rAppr(zlve(iitEs ¢ Not
2023 for the new director of the Company P Op:bsje(:ecti\t)n ou applicable
May 10, | The company's 2022 director and manager roAIZ)I;E:?iVG(iitEZ ¢ Not
2023 remuneration assessment proposal P pobj ecti“;n 4 applicable
August 9, | The appointment of Deloitte Taiwan as the provider r?%ig:;;iﬁiu ¢ Not
2023 of non-assurance services p pobjec tion applicable
August 9 Proposal to apply to the First Commercial Bank for Approved as Not
2023 > | credit line renewal and guarantee business based on | proposed without applicable
operational needs objection pp
November | Proposal to Establish Joint venture subsidiary in r?rc))zg()iv\?v(iitﬁiu ¢ Not
10,2023 | Thailand P pobj ection applicable
Approved as
November . e e . Not
10, 2023 Proposal to Establish subsidiary in Vietnam prop;bsjee(i t\;volflhout applicable
November | Proposal to amend the Company’s Internal Control Approvegl as Not
proposed without .
10,2023 | System .. applicable
objection
Approved as
December . e . Not
19, 2023 Proposal to purchase directors liability insurance propos.ed Wlthout applicable
objection
December | Proposal for the Company’s 2024 Business Plan roAIZ)I;E:?iV\?v(iitiiu ¢ Not
19,2023 | and consolidated financial budget proposed ¥ applicable
objection
(I) ~ Except the aforementioned issue, other issue not yet resolved in the Audit Committee but has

been duly resolved by two-thirds majority of the total number of director seats: None
II.  With respect to the avoidance of conflicting interest agendas, describe the names of independent
directors, details of the relevant agendas, reasons for avoiding conflicting interest, and the voting
decisions: None

III. Communication between independent directors and the chief internal auditor/CPAs:

There are means for independent directors to directly communicate with the chief internal

auditor/CPAs, and the communication is smooth.

(D The Company regularly emails an audit report on the previous month or a follow-up report to
independent directors for review, and independent directors provide feedback or opinions as
necessary. The chief internal auditor regularly participates in the Audit Committee meeting
convened quarterly and reports to the independent directors on the audits performed and the
audit results. The communication between the independent directors and the chief internal
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auditor during 2023 is briefly stated below:

Date Communication Matters communicated, independent directors’ opinions, and
method subsequent response
The chief internal auditor reported on the items audited, results, and
March 29 16th meeting of | improvement follow-up, while issuing the Company’s 2022 Statement
2003 > | the 3rd Audit of the Internal Control System and stating the risk and internal control
Committee self-assessment results. None of the independent directors expressed
objection.
Mav 10 17th meeting of | The chief internal auditor reported on the items audited, results, and
) g23 ’ the 3rd Audit improvement follow-up, and the independent directors agreed with the
Committee content of the report.
August 9 1st meeting of The chief internal auditor reported on the items audited, results, and
2%112 3 > | the 4th Audit improvement follow-up, and the independent directors agreed with the
Committee content of the report.
November 2nd meeting of | The chief internal auditor reported on the items audited, results, and
the 4th Audit improvement follow-up, and the independent directors agreed with the
10, 2023 .
Committee content of the report.
November | S osium The chief internal auditor communicated the internal audit business
ymp with the independent directors, who expressed their awareness of the
10,2023 | (alone) . i }
content without making other suggestions.
December 3th meeting of | The chief internal auditor reported on the items audited, results, and
19. 2023 the 4th Audit improvement follow-up, and submitted the 2024 audit plan. The

’ Committee independent directors agreed with the content of the report.

(I)  In addition to reporting to the independent directors on the audit or review of the financial
statements, the CPAs appointed by the Company held at least one event to raise awareness of
laws in the Company per year to update our employees’ knowledge of financial and tax laws
and countermeasures against relevant impacts. Independent directors and CPAs usually
communicate with each other by email or phone at any time when necessary. Their
communication during 2023 is briefly stated below:

Date Communication Matters communicated Result
method
March 29 16th meeting of | CPAs’ 2022 audit report
2003 > | the 3rd Audit The 2023 audit plan and update of laws and Understood
Committee regulations
May 10, 17th meetmg of CPAs’ review report on the financial statements
the 3rd Audit . Understood
2023 . for 2023 Q1 and update of laws and regulations
Committee
August 9, Ist meetlng of CPAs’ review report on the financial statements
the4th Audit . Understood
2023 . for 2023 Q2 and update of laws and regulations
Committee
November 2nd meetmg of CPAs’ review report on the financial statements
the 4th Audit . Understood
10, 2023 . for 2023 Q3 and update of laws and regulations
Committee
The independent directors communicated the
November | Symposium audit work with the CPAs, and the independent Understood
10,2023 | (alone) directors expressed their awareness of the
content without making other suggestions.
3th meeting of .
December the 4th Audit The 2023 gudlt plan report and update of laws Understood
19, 2023 . and regulations
Committee
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(IIT) The operations of corporate governance and the deviation from the Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor

Assessment Items

Actual governance

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Yes | No Summary description Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies
I.  Will the Company v The Company has formulated the Corporate None
based on the Governance Best Practice Principles as per the
Corporate Corporate Governance Best Practice
Governance Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies
Best-Practice and published it on the Corporate Governance
Principles for section of our official website and the MOPS
TWSE/TPEx Listed for reference of stakeholders.
Companies set up and
disclose the
Company’s corporate
governance
best-practice
principles?
II.  Shareholding None
structure and
shareholders’ equity
(D)  Will the Company | v The Company has set up a spokesperson and
have the internal acting spokesperson mechanism to
procedures communicate with external parties and set up
regulated to handle a section dedicated to stakeholders on our
shareholders’ official website, so we can properly handle
proposals, doubts, shareholders’ suggestions, questions, and
disputes, and disputes, thereby ensuring their rights and
litigation matters; interest. In addition, we have appointed a
also, have the professional shareholder service agency,
procedures which sends shareholder service personnel to
implemented deal with relevant rights and interest issues.
accordingly?
(I) Wil the Company | v/ Our insiders (directors, managers, and major

possess the list of
the Company’s
major shareholders
and the list of the

ultimate controllers

of the major
shareholders?

shareholders, each holding at least 10% of the
total issued shares) report the changes in their
shareholdings to the Company in accordance
with regulations per month. The Company
also appoints a professional shareholder
service agency to handle stock affairs as per
law; as such, we can effectively keep abreast
of major shareholders’ shareholdings and
disclose them in accordance with the
regulations.
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Yes | No Summary description Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies
(III) Will the Company | v The Company has established the Subsidiary
establish and Monitoring and Management Operating
implement the risk Procedures in the internal control system as
control and firewall per laws and regulations, and each
mechanisms with subsidiary’s assets, finance, and business
the related parties? operate independently. We have established an
appropriate risk control mechanism and
firewall , and our auditors regularly monitor
the operation.
(IV) Will the Company | v The Company has formulated the Procedures

set up internal
norms to prohibit
insiders from
utilizing the
undisclosed
information to trade
securities?

for Handling Material Inside Information and
proceed in accordance with Article 157-1 of
the Securities and Exchange Act. We prohibit
company insiders from using undisclosed
information on the market to trade stocks, and
the Company also passes out the publicly
listed company insiders’ trading of equity
FAQ brochure to new directors and managers
when they take office for them to follow
applicable rules. We also send emails to raise
their awareness of applicable laws and
regulations from time to time. Furthermore,
we added “Stock trading control measures for
insiders from the day they learn about the
Company’s financial statements or relevant
performance information include the
restriction that directors must not trade their
shares during the closed periods of 30 days
prior to the publication of the annual financial
statements and 15 days prior to the publication
of quarterly financial statement.” to Article 15
of the Procedures for Ethical Management and
Guidelines for Conduct.
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Yes | No Summary description Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies
III. The constitution and None
obligations of the
board of directors
(I)  Has the Board of 4 The Company has specified the diversity
Directors policy for the composition of the Board of
formulated a Directors in the Corporate Governance Best
diversity policy and Practice Principles. the Company have
specific considered the issue of diversity for the board
management members and elected outstanding talents who

objectives and
implemented them
accordingly?

have the knowledge, skills, and competencies
required to perform duties based on the
Company’s business model and development
needs. Therefore, among the seven board
members, four directors are outstanding
talents in the industry; of the three
independent directors, there are a professor at
the Department of Accountancy of the
National Taipei University, a professor at the
Department of Electrical Engineering and
Institute of Electronics Engineering of the
National Tsin Hua University, and former
CFO of Copartner Technology Co., Ltd. with
professional backgrounds and industry
experience. (See Note 1 and Information on
directors on pages 10-16 of this annual
report). The Company still pays attention to
gender equality in the composition of the
Board of Directors. We have already added
one female director in 2023 annual
shareholders’ meeting. Also under
consideration that the gender ratio of directors
at the next board election reaches 1/3. Also,
directors who are also employees account for
28% of all directors, independent directors of
account for 43% of all directors, directors
under the age of sixty account for 14%, and
independent directors with the length of
service of fewer than nine years is 100%, to
duly implement the Company’s diversity
policy for the composition of the Board of
Directors. The Company has already disclosed
the diversity policy for the board members on
the official website.
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Yes | No Summary description Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies
(I) Wil the Company, | v The Company has established the
in addition to Compensation Committee and the Audit
setting the Committee, both of which are formed by all
Compensation independent directors, and has established
Committee and operating procedures for them to follow. The
Audit Committee Company has also established a Business
lawfully, have other Administration Committee, which is formed
functional by three directors and CEO. It regularly
committee set up analyzes and discusses materials issues, such
voluntarily? as company strategies, operations, and
organization, as a reference for the Board of
Directors and execution units to make
decisions and implement plans. In the future,
we will assess if there is a need to set up other
functional committees.
(II) Does the company | v/ At present, the Compensation Committee

establish a method
to evaluate board
performance and
evaluate board
performance every
year? Are the
performance
evaluation results
reported to the
board and used as a
reference for the
remuneration and
nomination for
re-clection of
directors?

formulates and regularly reviews the director
performance evaluation and remuneration
policies, systems, standards, and structures
and submits its suggestions to the Board of
Directors for discussion. To improve the
corporate governance system, the Company
established the Board of Directors
Self-evaluation or Peer Evaluation Procedure
on August 12, 2019 and amended and
renamed it Rules of the Performance
Evaluation of the Board of Directors on May
10, 2021. We conduct internal performance
self-evaluation after the end of each year and
distribute questionnaires to board members,
directors, as well as the Audit Committee and
Compensation Committee members. After
compiling the survey results, we submit them
to the Board of Directors for review and
improvement and also adopt the results as a
reference for determining individual directors’
remuneration and nominating candidates for
directors. The Company completed the 2023
internal board, directors, and functional
committee members performance
self-evaluation in February 2024 and

_34 -




Assessment Items

Actual governance

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Best-Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies

(IV) Will the Company
have the
independence of
the public
accountant
evaluated
regularly?

submitted the results to the Board of Directors
on March 13, 2024, while disclosing them on
our official website and annual report. As per
the self-evaluation results, the overall
operations of the Board of Directors and each
functional committee were considered to be in
good condition, and the directors had positive
reviews of the efficiency and effectiveness of
various indicators, thereby effectively
enhancing the board functions and
safeguarding shareholders’ rights and interest.

To duly implement corporate governance, the
Company evaluates the independence of each
CPA before signing the annual appointment
contract with each of them. The Company has
confirmed that Deloitte & Touche is not
involved in other financial and business
relations with the Company except for the
financial statements and taxation audit cases.
The CPAs have met the Company’s
independence criteria (see Note 2) and are
eligible to serve as the Company’s CPAs for
2023. The Company also requires CPAs to
provide a statement of independence, and their
family members have also met the
independence criteria. The Company also
compiled the two CPAs’ statements of
independence and the audit quality indicators
(AQI) (Please refer to details of Note 2)
provided by Deloitte & Touche and submitted
them to the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors as a reference for evaluating their
independence. We appointed them for 2024
after they were approved by the Audit
Committee on March 13, 2024 and by the
resolution of the Board of Directors on the
same day. In addition, the CPAs go through
job rotation in accordance with the regulations
and adhere to the impartiality, rigor, integrity,

and independence principles.
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Yes | No Summary description Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies
IV. Has the Company has| v’ The Company appointed Cheng, Shu-Ching, None

appointed an
appropriate number
of competent
corporate governance
personnel and
designated a
corporate governance
officer to be
responsible for
corporate governance
affairs (including but
not limited to
providing directors
and supervisors with
the materials required
for performance of
their duties, assisting
directors and
supervisors with
compliance, handling
matters related to
board meetings and
the shareholders’
meetings, and
preparing minutes of
board meetings and
shareholders’
meetings)?

Director of the Finance Division, as the
corporate governance officer on December 23,
2022, and the Board of Directors, on March
29, 2023, resolved a decision to amend the
Standard Operating Procedures for Handling
Directors’ Requests and designated the
Finance Division to handle directors’ requests
and corporate governance matters and to
appointed the Registrar and Transfer Agency
Department of Mega Securities to handle the
shareholder service business.

The tasks completed during 2023 are as

follows:

1. Notified the directors to convene a board
meeting seven days before a board meeting
agenda was set out, provided meeting
materials, reminded directors to recuse
themselves from certain proposals in
advance, if any, and sent the minutes of the
board meetings to the directors within 20
days after the conclusion of each board
meeting.

2. Evaluated and purchased directors liability
insurance for directors.

3. Provided board members with the
information on training courses, allowing
all board members to complete at least six
hours of training courses.

4. Provided the Company’s business or
financial information to directors upon
their request, maintained smooth
communication between directors and
various managers, and provided board
members with the information on new or
amended laws related to their duties,
corporate governance, or business
administration from time to time.

5. Convened at least a communication
meeting between independent directors and
CPAs/auditors/financial supervisor per
quarter.

6. Completed the registration of the date of a
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Best-Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies

shareholders’ meeting beforehand
according to law, prepared meeting
notices, a meeting handbook, and meeting
minutes prior to a deadline stipulated in
law, and completed the change registration
after the Articles of Incorporation were
amended or new directors were elected.

. Held an investor conference on business

performance per year to establish a variety
of means for communication with
investors.

. Reviewed the achievement of corporate

governance evaluation indicators one by
one per year and discussed the indicators,
for which the Company failed to obtain
scores.

Has the Company
established a
communication
channel with the
stakeholders
(including but not
limited to the
shareholders,
employees,
customers, and
suppliers), set up a
stakeholder section
on the Company’s
website, and
responded
appropriately to the
important corporate
social responsibilities
concerned by the
stakeholders?

The Company instructs the President’s
Office to communicate with stakeholders
depending on the situation and has a
spokesperson and an acting spokesperson
in place to communicate with external
parties.

The Company has set up a section
dedicated to stakeholders on our official
website (www.copartner.com.tw) and
clearly state the detailed contact
information (phone number and email), to
provide stakeholders a means to
communicate with the Company
depending on their needs.

Various stakeholders’ issues and the
methods of the Company’s response and
communication are as follows:

(1) Shareholders:

Departments to respond: Finance
Division and the spokesperson.

Issues of concern: Company operating
performance, dividend distribution,
corporate governance, and R&D
direction.

Communication means, frequency, and
response:

We hold a shareholders’ meeting per

None
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Best-Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies

)

3)

year, and shareholders can fully exercise
their voting rights by electronic means.
The Company also holds an investor
conference per year, publishes the
annual report for the shareholders’
meeting, and discloses monthly revenue
among other information, to keep
shareholders informed of the Company’s
operating performance.

Employees:

Departments to respond: Human
Resources Department and Employee
Welfare Committee.

Issues of concern: Workplace safety,
employee benefits, labor-management
relations, and opinion expression
methods.

Communication means, frequency, and
response:

We can communicate the issues of
workplace safety, employee benefits,
and labor-management relations with
employees through quarterly
labor-management meetings.

Suppliers:

Departments to respond: Management
Department and procurement units.
Issue of concern: Supplier management
evaluation.

Communication means, frequency, and
response:

The Company lives up to the spirit of
sustainable development and abide by
the principle of fair trade, require
suppliers to comply with applicable laws
and regulations on safety and
environmental protection. Our
procurement contact points
communicate relevant requirements with
suppliers from time to time. Suppliers
can also ask questions at any time to
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Yes | No Summary description Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies
strive to achieve the goal of information
symmetry.
(4) Clients
Departments to respond: Management
Department and procurement units.
Issue of concern: Supplier management
evaluation.
Communication means, frequency, and
response:
We visit clients and participate in
exhibitions to respond to issues of
product quality and sales services that
clients emphasize. In addition, we have
set up a section on the official website
for clients to ask questions about each
product, and there are personnel
dedicated to responding to their
questions in a timely manner.
VI. Has the Company v The Company has appointed the Registrar and None
commissioned a Transfer Agency Department of Mega
professional stock Securities to handle various shareholder
service agent to services.
handle shareholders
affairs?
VIIL. Disclosure of None
information
(I) Does the Company | v/ The Company has set up an official website
have a website (http://www.copartner.com.tw) to disclose
setup and the various financial business and corporate
financial business governance information, while reporting and
and corporate disclosing it on the MOPS at the same time
governance according to law.
information
disclosed?
(I) Has the Company | v The official website is in both Chinese and
adopted other English languages, and the Company has
information designated personnel to be responsible for
disclosure methods collecting company information and
(such as, publishing and disclosing material
establishing an information, and there are a spokesperson and
English website, an acting spokesperson in place to respond to

designating a

investors’ questions. The company also hold
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Actual governance

Assessment Items

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Best-Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies

(I11)

responsible person
for collecting and
disclosing
information of the
Company,
substantiating the
spokesman system,
placing the juristic
person seminar
program on the
Company’s
website, etc.)?

Does the company
announce and
report its financial
statements within
two months after
the end of a fiscal
year, and publish
and declare in
advance the
financial statements
of Q1, Q2 and Q3
as well as status of

an investor conference at least once a year,
and disclose the time, information and the
conference recording on the official website or
the MOPS.

The Company announces and discloses the
annual financial statements, quarterly financial
statements, and monthly operating
performance on the MOPS before the deadline
required by law and on the Company’s
website simultaneously.

monthly
operations?
VIIIL. Are there any other v 1. Employee rights and employee care: None
important The Company believes that human
information capital is one of our precious assets and

(including but not
limited to the
interests of
employees, employee
care, investor
relations, supplier
relations, the rights of]
stakeholders, the
advanced study of
directors and
supervisors, the
implementation of

risk management

have been committed to providing them
with a safe and comfortable work
environment with reasonable rewards,
while constantly planning various
employee benefits. In addition to
safeguard employees’ legitimate rights
and interest in accordance with the Labor
Standards Act, we provide domestic and
overseas travel and health examination
subsidies and hold Labor Day activities.
2. Investors’ and stakeholders’ rights and
interest:
The Company has a spokesperson and an
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate

Governance

Best-Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies

policies and risk
measurement
standards, the
execution of
customer policy, the
purchase of liability
insurance for the
Company’s directors
and supervisors) that
are helpful in
understanding the
corporate governance
operation of the
Company?

acting spokesperson in place to maintain
investor relations. In addition, we appoint
a professional shareholder service agency
to handle issues related to shareholders’
rights and interest.
Implementation of supplier relations and
client policies:
The Company has long maintained stable
and positive relations with clients and
suppliers with adequate bilateral
communication and has personnel
dedicated to responding to clients’
complaints.
Directors’ training:
Our directors not only have professional
industry expertise and practical
experience in business administration but
also receive training per year depending
on their individual needs.
Directors liability insurance:
The company annually purchases
director's liability insurance and reports
to the Board of Directors after signing a
new insurance policy per year.
Recent BOD resolution:19/12/2023
Recent BOD report:13/03/2024
Insurance coverage:
Insured: All directors
Insurance Company: MSIG Co., Ltd.
Coverage Amount: USD 10,000,000
Insurance Period: 26/12/2023-26/12/2024
Functional committees established and
board meetings convened:
(1) The Company holds at least a board
meeting per quarter, and all directors’
attendance at the board meetings is in
good condition, thereby duly
monitoring the Company’s operations
and managing relevant risks.
Six board meetings were held in 2023
The Company has three independent
directorships in place and have
established the Audit Committee and

2)
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Actual governance Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate
Governance
Yes | No Summary description Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies

Assessment Items

the Compensation Committee.

7. Implementation of the risk management
policy and the risk measurement
standards: The Company has formulated
internal rules and regulations according
to law and conduct various risk
management and assessments
accordingly.

IX. Please describe the improvement performed according to the corporate governance evaluation
results published by the Governance Center of Taiwan Stock Exchange in last year, and propose the
matters with priority for improvement and the respective measures and Corporate:

(I)  The Company reviews the corporate governance evaluation results and the corporate governance
evaluation indicators, for which the Company failed to obtain scores, released in the last year one
by one per year. The indicators, for which we have completed the improvements, are as follows:
1. The English version of an annual report is uploaded 16 days before an Annual Shareholders
Meeting is held.

2. The English version of the annual financial reports is disclosed.

3. The board of directors include at least one female member.

4. The company’s information security risk management framework is disclosed on the official
website, and an information security policy and specific management plans are formulated.

5. Disclosing Succession planning for members of the board of directors and key management on
the official website.

6. Recording shareholders’ questions and company responses on minutes of the annual
shareholders' meeting, and disclose the full video recording of the shareholders' meeting .

(IT)  Prioritized indicators to improve and improvement measures:
1. Evaluation of Establishing Functional Committees Beyond Statutory Committees.
2. External evaluation for board performance.
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Note 1: The implementation of the diversity policy for each board member is as follows.

Core diversity indicator
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Note 2: Standards for assessing the independence of CPA and Audit Quality Index (AQI)

evaluation procedure
Standards for assessing the independence:

Assessment Qualify for
Assessment Items Result Independence

Has the CPA or spouse or a dependent relative thereof is involved in direct or

L s o . No Yes
significant indirect financial interest with the Company?
Has the CPA or spouse or a dependent relative thereof is involved in any commercial No Yes
relations with the Company’s directors and managers that affects the independence?
Is the CPA or spouse or a dependent relative thereof the Company’s director,
manager, or a position with a direct and significant impact on the audit work during No Yes
the audit period?
Is the CPA the spouse, lineal relative by blood, direct relative by marriage, or relative

o L . No Yes

within second degree of kinship of any of the Company’s directors or managers?
Has the CPA has provided this service for more than seven years? Yes Yes

-43 -




Audit Quality Index (AQI) evaluation procedure:
The accounting year of the firm was non-calendar year, so the information period was 2022 (from
June 1, 2022 to May 31, 2023).

Aspect 1: Professional Index

With 10 years of checking experience, certified CPA performed well in checking experience,
training hours, turnover rate and professional support. The turnover rate index 7.9% was much
lower than the industry average 13.2%.

Aspect 2: Quality Control Index
Maintain a certain level with CPA load, check input, Case Quality Control Review (EQCR)
situation and quality control support capability.

Aspect 3: Independence

The proportion of non-audit services at public expense is low, accounting for only 12-16% in the
past two years, which did not affect the professional judgment and independence of accountants. In
addition, although the company and DELOITTE & TOUCHE had visaed annual financial reports
for 17 years, the internal certified CPA of the firm made regular internal transfer to prevent
independence from being affected by the long audit service period for the same visa client.

Aspect 4: Supervision
As for the performance of missing external check of the firm, the punishment index and competent
authorities issue letters for improvement sent by the competent authority were within the range of
the same industry, the firm had checked that the company had no competent authority to issue a
letter of improvement.

Aspect 5: Innovation Ability
The firm had planned to introduce audit innovation tools, expand the audit support center, import to
the cloud audit platform and application of digital technology in order to improve audit quality.

The results of the latest annual evaluation were discussed and approved by the Audit Committee on

March 13, 2024, and then submitted to the Board of Directors on March 13, 2024 for the approval
of the independence and suitability evaluation of CPA.
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(IV) The composition, responsibility, and operations of the Compensation Committee: (provided
by Human Resources personnel)

The Company has set up the Compensation Committee on December 16, 2011, formed
by all independent directors, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act, and it
operates in accordance with the Company’s Compensation Committee Charter. The
committee holds at least two meetings per year and held four meetings during 2023.

1. Information on the members of the Compensation Committee:
May 15, 2024

Qualification Number of other public
companies where the

Professional | Compliance of members are also the

Identity qualification and| independence members of the
experience (Note 1) Compensation Committee
Name of these companies.
Independent Director
(Convener, Chang, Chung-Chiu -
Resign on 23/06/2023)

Independent Director
(Convener, Re-election
and be appointed as a
convener on
09/08/2023,
Resign on 01/03/2024)

Li, Chien-Jan See Information on directors, Data 2
of Directors, President, Vice

President, Assistant Manager, and
heads of various departments and

Independent Director
(Re-election)

branches (I), Chapter III.
Hsu, Yung-Chen Corporate Governance (II) (pages )

Independent Director 10-14 of this annual report).

(Newly appointed on
09/08/2023, and
be appointed as a
convener on
13/03/2024)

Wu, Li-Ching -

2. Responsibility of the Compensation Committee:

The Compensation Committee shall fulfill its duty of care as a good manager,

faithfully perform the following responsibilities, and submit suggestions to the Board

of Directors for discussion:

(1) Establish and regularly review the directors and managers’ performance
evaluation standards, annual and long-term performance targets, and
remuneration policies, systems, standards, and structures, as well as disclose the
performance evaluation standards in the annual report.

(2) Regularly evaluate the achievement of the performance goals of the Company’s

directors and managers, and determine the content and amount of individual
remuneration based on the evaluation obtained from the performance evaluation
standards.
The individual board and manager performance evaluation results, the content of
individual remuneration, the association between the amount of remuneration and
evaluation results, and the reasonability shall be disclosed in the annual report
and reported to the shareholders’ meeting.
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Operations of the Compensation Committee:

(1) The Compensation Committee consists of three members. The term of office of
the committee members is from August 9, 2023 through June 29, 2026.
(2) The Compensation Committee held four meetings (A) during the last year. The

qualifications and attendance of the members are as follows:

Actual
Title Name attendance Proxy Actual attendance Remark
(B) Attendance (%) (B/A) (Note)
Chang, Resign on
Convener | (- i 2 0 100% 231002003
Convener,
Li, Re-election and be

Convener | . ") 4 0 100% appointed Convener

on 09/08/2023

Committee | ., 1150 4 0 100% Re-election

Yung-Chen
. Wu, Newly appointed on

Committee | y; cpino 2 0 100% 09/08/2023

Other remarks:

. Where the board of directors does not adopt or amend the proposal(s) posed by the
Compensation Committee: The Company shall expressly elaborate on the date, session while
the board of directors meeting was convened, contents of the issues, outcome of decisions
resolved in the board of directors and the Company’s response to the opinions posed by the
Compensation Committee(For instance, if the salary pay resolved by the board of directors is
higher than that proposed by the Compensation Committee, the Company should elaborate on
the fact of differential gap and the cause thereof): None.

II.  Where a decision resolved in the Compensation Committee is found in contravention of rules

or in qualified opinion as verified with records or documented declaration, the Company shall
expressly elaborate on the date, sessions of the meeting convened by the Compensation
Committee, contents of agenda, opinions of all members and acts taken in response to such
opinions: None.

Note: The attendance (%) is calculated with the number of meetings attended by each member

divided by the number of committee meetings held during their term of office.
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4. The dates of the committee meetings during 2023, the contents of the proposals,
resolution results, and the Company’s response to the committee members’ opinions:
Date of . . Resolution .RGSPOHSG to
) Discussion independent
meeting result . y e
directors’ opinions
Approved as | Submitted to the
March 29, |I.  Proposal for the Company’s 2022 employee proposed Board of Directors
2023 remuneration and directors’ remuneration without and approved by all
objection. directors present.
1. Proposal to adjust managers’ remuneration.
2. Proposal to distribute the Company’s 2022
managers’ remuneration and performance bonus. | Approved as | Submitted to the
May 10, |3. Proposal to evaluation the Company’s 2022 proposed Board of Directors
2023 directors’ and managers’ remuneration. without and approved by all
4.  Proposal to regularly review the board objection. directors present.
performance evaluation indicators and make
suggestions.
1. The remuneration, compensation, and attendance
fees for new directors, independent directors and | Approved as
August 9, members of functional committees of the proposed Execute by.
: . . Compensation
2023 company remain the original system. without Committee result
2. Nomination of the convener of the fifth objection.
Compensation committee of the company
Approved as | Submitted to the
November |1. Proposal to Recognize Severance Pay for the proposed Board of Directors
10, 2023 manager without and approved by all
objection. directors present.
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(V) Implementation of the promotion of sustainable development and the deviation and causes of
deviation from the Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed

Companies
Implementation Deviation and
causes of
deviation
from the
Sustainable
Item L Development
Yes|No Summary description Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed
Companies
I. Does the Company v To fulfill our corporate social responsibility and None
have a specific (or facilitate economic, environmental, and social progress
part-time) unit set up to to achieve sustainable development, we amended the
promote the sustainable Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles with
development the approval of the Board of Directors in March 2022.
governance framework, The General managers’ Office is responsible for putting
and the Board of forth and implementing sustainable development
Directors authorizing policies, systems or relevant management approaches,
the management to and specific implementation plans, while reporting to
handle matters and the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors and
report the supervision senior management should supervise the relevant units
results to the Board of responsible for promoting sustainable development at
Directors? any time and pay attention to the development of
relevant domestic and overseas sustainable
development guidelines and changes in the business
environment, with a view to reviewing and improving
our sustainable development system. We disclose the
above rules on our official website to enhance the
effectiveness of our sustainable development endeavors.
II. Does the company v Based on the materiality principle under corporate None

assess the risk of
environmental, social,
and governance (ESG)
issues in relation to
corporate operations
based on the
materiality principles
and establish policies
or strategies in relation
to risk management?

social responsibility, the Company conducts relevant
risk assessments of critical issues and have formulated
relevant risk management policies based on the risks
assessed. The details are as follows:

Material issue | Risk Risk management policy
assessment
indicator
As a citizen on Earth, the
Waste .
Company is deeply aware of
Management .
the importance of
. Water . e
Environmental environmental sustainability
Resources . .
E and strive to minimizes the
ner . .
gy risk of environmental
Management L .
violations by adopting waste
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Item

Implementation

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of
deviation
from the

Sustainable

Development

Best Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx

Listed
Companies

gas collection systems and
water circulation systems,
while proactively
implementing energy-saving
and carbon reduction
projects in a long term to
increase employee’
awareness of environmental
protection, to increase the
resource use efficiency.

Social

labor-
management
relation

The company regularly
holds labor-management
meetings and establishes a
employee welfare
committee to promote
interaction and
communication among all
employees. The Company
complies with the Labor
Standards Act and
applicable laws and
regulations to formulate
various salary and benefit
measures for employees,
provide a leave of absence
and flextime system that are
better than legal
requirements, various
insurance, and subsidies,
and proactively implement
diverse employee activities
to attract and retain
outstanding employees.

Workplace
safety

The Company’s office
entrances and exits are
equipped with an access
control, monitoring, and
security control system to
ensure employee security.
We appoint a professional
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Implementation Deviation and
causes of
deviation
from the

Sustainable

Item . Development

Yes|No Summary description Best Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx

Listed
Companies

company inspect public
security and have obtained
the building public security
independent inspection
certificate of approval. We
regularly appoint
professional companies to
repair or maintain various
mechanical and electrical or
firefighting equipment,air
condition and Water
dispenser. Office are strictly
smoke-free as per
regulations to prevent the
occurrence of fire incidents.
No occupational accidents
occurred in 2023.

The company implements a
privacy policy and
protection mechanism to
ensure the protection of
customer privacy. Any
Customer . .
. suspected incidents or issues
privacy )
regarding customer data
security will be promptly
reported to minimize the
risks associated with such

occurrences.

The Company has
formulated the Ethical
Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles, the
Procedures for Ethical

Anti- Management and Guidelines
Governance ) .
corruption for Conduct, an internal
control system, a delegation
system, division of labor,
and other anti-fraud
measures; carry out internal
audits and internal control
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Implementation Deviation and
causes of
deviation
from the

Sustainable

Item . Development

Yes|No Summary description Best Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx

Listed
Companies

self-assessments; and
provides channels for
reporting violations of
business ethics to duly
implement anti-corruption
measures.

The Company keeps trade
secrets strictly confidential.
Employees are not allowed
to inquire about or collect
suppliers’ and clients’ trade
secrets, trademarks, patents,
and other intellectual
property rights not related to
their jobs. We signed the
non-disclosure agreements
(NDA) to protect their trade
secrets. Information security
measures adopted include
anti-virus software installed
on personal computers used
Information by all employees, and
security anti-virus software used to
detect viruses in external
storage media, and the latest
version of virus patterns
automatically updated, and
emails and attached files
thereto scanned to confirm
virus-free before being sent
or received by the
Company’s email server, all
illegal intrusions into the
Company’s network
detected and blocked around
the clock, as well as a
defense mechanism adjusted
in a timely manner.

Socioeconomic | The Company complies

compliance with laws and regulations,
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Item

Implementation

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of
deviation
from the

Sustainable

Development

Best Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx

Listed
Companies

III. Environmental issues
(I) Does the company

have an appropriate
environmental
management
system established
in accordance with
its industrial
characteristics?

(IT) Is the company
committed to

such as the trade laws in
Taiwan and China and
international standards, to
ensure that our business
operations are eco-friendly
and in alignment with
ethical conduct.

The environmental management of the Company’s
domestic and overseas plants is handled in accordance
with local government laws and regulations. United
Electric Wire (KunShan) Co., Ltd., Cablex Wire And
Cable (KunShan) Mfg., Copartner Technology
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd., and ShenZhen Copartner
Communication Co., Ltd. in China have all obtained
ISO 14001 environmental management system
certification to effectively prevent and control
environmental pollution and improve the resource and
energy efficiency, while we adopt RoHS as our
production target in line with clients’ requirements and
the international environmental protection trends.

The latest certificate of United Electric Wire (KunShan)
Co., Ltd. 1s valid from November 25, 2021 through
November 24, 2024, that of Copartner Technology
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. is valid from February 22, 2022
through March 23, 2025, and that of ShenZhen
Copartner Communication Co., Ltd. is valid from
January 13, 2022 through January 23, 2025. and that of
Cablex Wire And Cable (KunShan) Mfg. is valid from
February 14, 2022 through February 13, 2025.Relevant
information is available on our official website:
http://www.copartner.com.tw/front/bin/ptlist.phtml?Cat

egory=101774

In recent years, energy shortages and global
carbonization have exacerbated. To respond to and

None
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Implementation

Deviation and

(IV) Has the Company

counted the
greenhouse gas
emissions, water
consumption, and
total weight of
waste over the past

Due to the characteristics of the industry, the Company
only uses a small amount of water to cool the wires
during the manufacturing process and have a water
circulation system in place to recycle water. In addition,
no gas is generated from the wire manufacturing
process, and our PVC pellet plant is equipped with
VOCs treatment facilities collect and treat the waste gas

causes of
deviation
from the
Sustainable
Item . Development
Yes|No Summary description Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed
Companies
enhancing the reduce the impact of environmental changes, we
power efficiency continue to implement energy conservation and carbon
and using reduction measures. Such measures are stated below:
renewable 1. Adopting energy-saving equipment in offices
materials that are We have adopted energy-saving energy-efficiency
with low impact on LED lights in our offices in compliance with the
the environmental energy-saving and carbon reduction policy.
impacts? 2. Raising awareness of energy conservation and carbon
reduction
Putting up energy-saving slogans at lighting and
air-conditioning switches and continuing to hold
activities to raise awareness of greenhouse gas
reduction.
3. Resource use and recycling
We recycle copper and PVC pellets, print paper, and
water, to increase the resource use rate and reduce our
impact on the environment, thereby enabling the
sustainable use of resources on Earth.
(IIT) Has the Company | v/ The Company is a manufacturer. In response to climate
assessed its current change issues, we recycle and reuse materials and have
and future potential VOCs treatment facilities in place, so that the waste gas
risks and from the PVC pellet production process can be
opportunities of collected and treated to meet the emission standards, to
climate change and greatly reduce the emissions. In addition, we have taken
taken measures to update equipment, replace old lamps with
countermeasures LED ones, save water, turn off lights, and controlling
against the air conditioning temperature to cope with climate
climate-related change issues. The Company also continues to assess
issues? the potential risks and opportunities caused by climate
change to ensure the stability of our operations and
maintain our competitiveness.
v
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Implementation

Deviation and

reasonable employee
welfare measures
(including
remuneration, leave,
and other benefits)
and appropriately
reflected business
performance and

employees. The company complies with the Labor
Standards Act and applicable laws and regulations to
formulate various salary and benefit measures for
employees, provide a leave of absence and flextime
system that are better than legal requirements, various
insurance, and subsidies, and proactively implement
diverse employee activities to attract and retain
outstanding employees. Our excellent talents are from

causes of
deviation
from the
Sustainable
Item . Development
Yes|No Summary description Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
Listed
Companies
two years and from the production process and discharge it only after
formulated policies meeting the emission standards. With the facilities, the
on greenhouse gas discharge volume can be reduced by up to 65%. We are
reduction, water committed to minimizing the impact of operations on
consumption the environment. In addition, we adopt energy-saving
reduction, or other and carbon reduction measures, implement
waste management? energy-saving management plans for offices, factories,
and public areas, adopt energy-saving lamps
comprehensively, and raise employees’ awareness of
saving water, turning off lights when necessary,
controlling the air-conditioning temperature, taking the
stairs more and the elevator less, as well as recycling
print paper and copper and other materials, to reduce
the impact of our operations on the environment.
IV. Social issues
(I)Does the Company | v/ The Company has established an internal control None
have the relevant system and formulated human resources management
management policies rules in accordance with Labor Standards Act,
and procedures Employment Services Act, Gender Equality in
stipulated in Employment Act, and other applicable laws and the
accordance with the International Bill of Human Rights to ensure that
relevant laws and employees are not treated differently due to race,
regulations and gender, age, or religion, or party affiliation in the
international recruitment, assessment, and promotion process.
conventions on The company prohibits workplace bullying and
human rights? provides channels for complaints, ensuring that each
employee is treated with due respect and fairness.
(IT) Has the company 4 The company regularly holds labor-management
established and meetings and establishes a employee welfare committee
implemented to promote interaction and communication among all

-54 -




Implementation Deviation and
causes of
deviation
from the

Sustainable

Item . Development

Yes|No Summary description Best Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx

Listed
Companies

achievements in the diverse backgrounds. As of May 15, 2024, 88.89% of
remuneration for our employees have a bachelor’s degree or above;
employees? female employees account for 42.86% of the total
employees; and female managers account for 33.33% of
all managers. The Company upholds the principle of
profit sharing and raises employees’ salary
appropriately and distributes employee remuneration
through employee evaluations and annual operating
results, to reflect our operating performance in
employee remuneration.

(IIT) Does the Company | v/ The Company’s office entrances and exits are equipped

provide employees with an access control, monitoring, and security control
with a safe and system to ensure employee security. We appoint a
healthy work professional company inspect public security every two
environment, and years and have obtained the building public security
provide safety and independent inspection certificate of approval. We
health education to regularly appoint professional companies to repair or
employees maintain various mechanical and electrical or
regularly? firefighting equipment and report to the competent

authority. We regularly repair or maintain the
air-conditioning equipment per year; the water
dispenser equipment every two months. We conduct
self-defense fire exercises every six months and
prohibit smoking at business premises in accordance
with laws. We hire cleaners to clean the office
environment every day to ensure a clean and healthy
work environment. We provide hygiene products, such
as alcohol and masks, to employees in the offices,
organize health examination for employees per year,
and continue to care for employees’ physical and
psychological health. We hold labor-management
meetings every three months to reinforce
labor-employment collaboration. We prohibits
workplace bullying and have the regulations for
establishing Measures of Prevention, Correction,
Complaint and Punishment of Sexual Harassment at
Workplace in place to protect employees’ rights,
ensuring that each employee is treated with respect and
fairness. We organize health examination for employees
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Implementation Deviation and
causes of
deviation
from the

Sustainable

Item . Development

Yes|No Summary description Best Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx

Listed
Companies

and provide subsidies per year; have full-time health
administrators in place to provide health consultation
service and advice. Each office has an emergency
response contact point to provide effective emergency
response guidance in case of any emergency. We invite
doctors to the Company to provide medical consultation
services on-site and hold relevant health seminars from
time to time to enhance employees’ medical knowledge.
We have blood pressure monitors set up at designated
locations in each workplace to ensure employees’
health. In addition to alleviating employees’ concern at
work, we pay equal attention to their family members
and provide them and their family members with health
examination discounts. We purchase group insurance
for each employee and travel insurance additionally for
those on a business trip. We also purchase commercial
fire insurance, plus theft insurance, for offices and
plants, to provide employees with a safe and healthy
work environment. The company has no fire incidents

in 2023.

(IV)Does the Company | v The company has internal job rotation and arranges
have an effective training programs according to organizational needs,
career capacity employees' daily performance, personality traits, and
development career aspirations to enrich job content. These enable
training program employees to acquire new knowledge and skills,
established for the thereby enhancing their professional standards.
employees? Additionally, we encourage employees to cultivate a

spirit of self-learning and continuous improvement to
achieve personal growth goals and increase
competitiveness in future careers.

(V) Does the company | v The Company’s products are not directly sold to

comply with the consumers. We attach great importance to clients’
related laws and opinions. In addition to visiting them, we provide them
regulations and with means to ask questions, file complaints, or make
international suggestions on the Company’s website. Based on the
standards regarding principle of good faith, we properly respond and give
the customer health feedback to protect their rights.
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Item

Implementation

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of
deviation
from the

Sustainable

Development

Best Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx

Listed
Companies

and safety, customer
privacy, marking
communication, and
labeling of its
products and
services and
establish policies to
protect the rights and
interests of
customers and
procedures for
grievances?

(VI)Has the company

established policies
for management to
request suppliers to
comply with the
relevant laws and
regulations of
environmental
protection,
occupational safety
and health, and labor
human rights? Does
the company keep
track on the
implementation of
such policies?

V. Has the Company

referred to the
internationally
accepted reporting
standards or
guidelines to prepare
reports, such as ESG
reports that discloses
the Company’s
non-financial

The Company has the Supplier Evaluation Management
Regulations in place, attach great importance to the
protection of the environment and society, and select
honest suppliers, and visit suppliers from time to time to
assess their suitability. All suppliers should live up to
the same philosophy as the Company, and should not be
involved in violations of environmental protection,
occupational safety and health, and labor rights. In the
case of a violation, the Company will terminate and
cancel the contract at any time and blacklist the
supplier.

The Company has not yet prepared an ESG Report, but
to achieve sustainable development, the Company has
formulated the Sustainable Development Best Practice
Principles and implemented relevant policies, strategies,
and measures in accordance with the principles. In the
future, we will implement measures accordingly and
fulfill our corporate social responsibility.

None

At present,
the company
does not need
tio prepare an

ESG report

yet
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Implementation Deviation and
causes of
deviation
from the

Sustainable

Item . Development

Yes|No Summary description Best Practice

Principles for

TWSE/TPEx

Listed
Companies

information? Did the
Company apply for
assurance or guarantee
of such reports to a
third-party
certification body?

VI. If the Company has established the corporate social responsibility principles based on “the Corporate
Social Responsibility Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies,” please describe
any discrepancy between the principles and their implementation:

The Company has formulated the Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles to fulfill our
various social responsibilities. There is no major difference between our implementation and the
principles.

VII. Other important information for the implementation of sustainable development:

(D

(I

Social charity: Fulfilling corporate social responsibility and promoting sustainable development
is the Group’s commitment to maximizing the values for shareholders. Recently, we have held
social charity activities such as serving as environmental volunteers at the Wugu Wetland
Ecological Park magazine, donating materials to child asylums, cleaning the environment,
working with social welfare groups to recruit visually impaired masseurs to provide massage
services to all employees at the company and participating in the Mother’s Day Cake
Fundraising Project organized by the Children Are Us Foundation and donated Mother’s Day
cakes to contribute our share and give back to disadvantaged groups.

After the COVID-19 pandemic, life returns to normal in 2023, the company encourages
employees to actively participate in social welfare activities. At the end of November, we
organized a beach cleaning event in Waimushan, Keelung. Through this beach cleaning activity,
we realized the importance of reducing plastic usage and environmental protection, contributing
our efforts to maintaining a clean environment.

Stakeholders: The Company attaches great importance to stakeholders’ rights and interest and
have set up the Stakeholders section on our official website as a communication platform,
thereby learning about stakeholders’ reasonable expectations and needs, either economically or
environmentally, complaints, or suggestions. The Company upholds the principle of good faith to
properly respond and provide feedback or improvement plans to facilitate effective
communication.
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V1. Climate-related information for listed and over-the-counter companies

1. Implementation status of climate-related information

Items Execution status

I. Describe the board of The governance of climate-related risks and opportunities is a
directors and management | Sustainability-related issue, overseen by the General Manager's Office of
oversee and govern the company, responsible for proposing and implementing relevant

limate-related risks and policies, systems, management guidelines, and specific action plans. It is
climate-teated Tisks an anticipated that an annual report will be submitted to the Board of
opportunities th‘rough Directors. The board of directors serves as the highest decision-making
several mechanisms: body for climate change risk management. The board of directors, along
with senior management, should continuously supervise the relevant units
responsible for implementation and pay attention to the impact of
domestic and international climate-related risks on the company's

operations.

II. Describe how identified Risk issues for climate change Risk level Terms
climate r1.s!<s qnd Enhanced emission disclosure Medium | short-term
opportunities impact the .
business, strategies, and Increased severity of extreme weather : short-term,

Medium | medium-term,
finances of the company events long-term
(short-term, medium-term, short-term
long-term). Rising raw material costs High medium-term,

long-term
Changes in customer behavior Medium | Short-term,
medium-term,
Transition costs for low-carbon . short-term,
. Medium .
technologies medium-term,
Opportunity issues for climate change Op}:ig\r]tel:llmty Terms
short-term,
Reduce water usage and consumption Low medium-term,
long-term
Optimize production Medium {nedlum-term,
ong-term
Use low-carbon energy Medium {nedlum-term,
ong-term
Participate in carbon trading markets Medium | long-term

Terms scope explanation: Short-term refers to 1-3 years, medium-term
refers to 3-10 years, and long-term refers to 10 years or more.

ITII. Describe the financial Due to the increasing frequency of extreme weather events caused by
impact of extreme weather | global warming, and as our company's main production facilities are
events and transition located in mainland China, there is a higher occurrence of typhoons,
actions. heavy rain, and even snowstorms. This may lead to operational

disruptions such as flooding, snow accumulation, and inability of
personnel to report to work, which could result in financial losses upon
assessment. Our company's response measures include routine
maintenance of drainage systems in the facilities and establishment of
emergency response plans for heavy rainfall to mitigate risks. Each
facility is equipped with waterproofing engineering and natural disaster
insurance, hence the impact of such risks on overall operations is
relatively minor.

Furthermore, in response to climate change and to facilitate transition, our
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Items

Execution status

IV. Describe how the
identification, assessment,
and management processes
of climate risks are
integrated into the overall
risk management system.

V.If using scenario analysis
to assess resilience to
climate change risks, it
should describe the
scenarios, parameters,
assumptions, analytical
factors, and major
financial impacts involved.

company is actively implementing measures. Due to the nature of our
industry, water usage in our production process is minimal, and we have
installed water recycling systems to reuse water efficiently. Through
employee energy-saving advocacy, we promote water conservation. We
also reduce energy usage through equipment upgrades, replacement of
LED lighting, energy management in public areas, and recycling of
materials in production. Facility optimization plans are underway to
provide the best production configuration, and we are evaluating
participation in carbon trading markets. These transition measures
currently have minimal impact on the company's finances and operations.

Our company's process for identifying and assessing climate-related risks
and opportunities is as follows:

1. Collection of climate-related risk and opportunity issues
Collecting climate-related risk and opportunity issues generated by
the industries to which our company belongs.

2. Inventory and analysis of risk items.
Analyze based on the time interval of risk occurrence, likelihood of
occurrence, and degree of impact.

3. Inventory and analysis of opportunity items
Assess based on the time interval of opportunity occurrence and
likelihood of occurrence.

4. Assessment of financial impacts of risks and opportunities.

Assess the potential financial impact and extent of risk/opportunity
based on the likelihood of occurrence and the level of operational
impact.

5. Assessment and discussion by senior management.

The relevant plans and identifications proposed by the General
Manager's Office are evaluated and discussed by senior
management.

6. Planning and reporting of response strategies.
Assess and plan response strategies based on risks and opportunities,
considering financial impacts

The company has not yet employed scenario analysis to further assess the
resilience to climate change risks. We plan to develop considerations
based on legal requirements or the extent of climate change impact on the
company when deemed necessary.
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Items

Execution status

VI. Ifthereisa
transformation plan to
address and manage
climate-related risks,
describe the content of the
plan, as well as the
indicators and objectives
used to identify and
manage physical risks and
transition risks.

VII. If using internal carbon
pricing as a planning tool,
the basis for price
determination should be
explained.

VIILIf climate-related targets
are set, the covered
activities, scope of
greenhouse gas emissions,
planning timeframe,
annual progress, etc.,
should be specified. If
carbon offsetting or
Renewable Energy
Certificates (RECs) are
used to achieve the targets,
the source and quantity of
offset carbon credits or the
number of RECs should be
explained.

IX. Inventory and assurance
of greenhouse gas
emissions, along with
reduction targets,
strategies, and specific
action plans (to be filled in
sections 1-1 and 1-2)

The company has not yet established a transition plan for managing
climate-related risks. We anticipate developing relevant standards based
on legal requirements and referencing recommendations from the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) as well as
considering climate change-related financial disclosures.

The company has not yet utilized internal carbon pricing as a planning
tool. We plan to establish relevant standards based on legal requirements
and reference recommendations from the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) regarding climate change-related financial
disclosures.

The company has not yet established climate-related goals. In the future,
we will conduct research and deliberation on developing relevant plans
focusing on comprehensive climate risk and opportunity considerations.

The company has not conducted a greenhouse gas inventory. We plan to
comply with legal requirements and complete the inventory and
verification by December 2028.
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(VII) Performance in ethical corporate management inconsistency with the “Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”

Actual governance Variation from
the Ethical
Corporate

Management

Best Practice

Yes|No Summary description Principles for
TWSE/TPEx

-Listed

Companies and

the reasons

Assessment Items

I. Business Integrity Policy and v The Company has formulated the Ethical None

action plans Corporate Management Best Practice

(I) Has the Company established Principles as approved by the Board of
policies for ethical corporate Directors, which then approved the
management approved by the amendments thereto according to the latest
board of directors and stated law in 2019. In December 2022, the Board
such policies and practices in of Directors resolved a decision to formulate
its regulations and external the Procedures for Ethical Management and
documents and in the Guidelines for Conduct, which is disclosed
commitment made by the on our official website as a statement of our
board of directors and senior ethical management policy and practice,
management to actively while the Company required our directors
implement such policies? and senior managers to issue a statement of

ethical management to declare their
commitment to actively implementing the
ethical management policy.

(I1) Has the Company established | v* The Company has the code of ethical

an assessment mechanism of conduct for directors and managers and a
risk from unethical behavior code of ethical conduct for employees in

to regularly analyze and assess place to guide our directors, managers at all
business activities with higher levels, and all employees to comply with the
risk of involvement in ethical standards and allow our stakeholders
unethical behavior and to better understand our ethical standards.
preventive programs for The code can also be adopted as a code of
unethical behaviors containing conduct followed by all our employees. In
at least the preventive addition to incorporating the code into the
measures stated in Paragraph training materials for new employees, we

2, Article 7 of the “Ethical require managers at all levels to lead by
Corporate Management Best example and put it into practice in daily
Practice Principles for management. We have formulated
TWSE/TPEx-Listed prevention plans, analyzed business
Companies™? activities with a higher risks of unethical

conduct, and strengthened relevant
preventive measures.
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Variation from
the Ethical
Corporate

Management
Best Practice

(IIT) Has the Company established
in the preventive programs the
operating procedures for
unethical behavior prevention,
penalties and grievance
systems of breaching the
guidelines for conduct, and
implemented and periodically
review them?

Yes|No Summary description Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
-Listed
Companies and
the reasons
v Under the framework of the Ethical

Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles, the code of ethical conduct for
directors and managers, and the code of
ethical conduct for employees, the Company
has clearly formulated the Procedures for
Ethical Management and Guidelines for
Conduct to specifically regulate our
personnel when performing duties at work,
including specifying the operating
procedures and guidelines for conduct, a
punishment and complaint system for
violations, and the scope of application that
applies to the Company, our subsidiaries,
and other organizations or juridical persons
with substantive control over the Company.
We increase new employees’ awareness and
put such regulations into practice. Our
internal audit department also plays a crucial
role in ensuring compliance with
professional ethics and laws and regulations.
To ensure that our employees’ behavior is in
compliance with applicable rules and
regulations, standards, procedures, and laws,
our internal audit department performs
various audits in accordance with the annual
audit plan approved by the Board of
Directors and reports the relevant audit
results and improvement plan follow-up to
the Board of Directors and the management
team, to ensure the implementation of
various management rules to prevent
unethical conduct. At the end of each year,
when the Board of Directors submits an
annual report on the implementation of
ethical corporate management to reexamine
if the Company’s Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles need
to be amended.
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Actual governance Variation from
the Ethical
Corporate

Management

Best Practice

Yes|No Summary description Principles for
TWSE/TPEx

-Listed

Companies and

the reasons

Assessment Items

II. Proper enforcement of business None
integrity
(I) Does the Company have the | v Before forming a business tie with another
integrity of the trade party, the Company will first evaluate its
counterparty assessed and legitimacy, ethical management policy, and
with the code of integrity if it has ever been involved in unethical
expressed in the contract conduct, to ensure that its business
signed? operations are fair and transparent and will

not require, provide, or accept bribe.

(II) Has the Company established | v* The Company has designated the General

a dedicated (concurrent) unit managers’ Office as a unit dedicated to

to implement ethical corporate promoting ethical corporate management,
management under Board of including ethical management policy
Directors and report regularly awareness raising, the formulation,

(at least once a year) to BOD implementation, and monitoring of the

the status of implementation implementation of the ethical management
and supervision of ethical policy and preventive measures, to ensure
management policy and proper implementation of the Ethical
preventive programs of Corporate Management Best Practice
unethical behavior? Principles. The Company regularly reports

to the Board of Directors per year on the

ethical management policy and the

monitoring of the prevention of unethical
conduct during the prior year and assist the

Board of Directors in evaluating if our

ethical management prevention measures are

effective. The implementation during 2023

is as follows:

1. We sent an email irregularly to raise
employees’ awareness of the type of
insider shareholding change reporting in
violation of the Securities and Exchange
Act.

2. We sent an email to all employees
regarding the Company’s rules of ethical
management and professional ethics.

3. We sent an email to inform employees of
the self-regulatory regulations on M&A
information disclosures and the laws and
regulations on the procedures for
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Yes

No

Summary description

Variation from
the Ethical
Corporate

Management
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
-Listed

Companies and

the reasons

(IIT)Does the Company have
developed policies to prevent
conflicts of interest, provided
adequate channel for
communication, and
substantiated the policies?

(IV) Has the Company established
an effective accounting system
and an internal control system
for the internal audit unit to
establish related audit
programs based on the results

handling material inside information.

4. We reiterated the relevant rules that
prohibit insiders, such as directors or
employees, from profiting using the
undisclosed information in the market in
the Stakeholders section on our official
website.

5. We have disclosed the whistleblowing
channels in the Stakeholders section on
our official website, including phone
number and email, to help stakeholder
identify issues and increase their
communication means.

The Company’s Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles,
Procedures for Ethical Management and
Guidelines for Conduct, the code of ethical
conduct for directors and managers, and the
code of ethical conduct for employees have
clearly defined a policy to prevent conflicts
of interest, and we have required all units to
follow accordingly. Moreover, our personnel
present at the board meetings who have
personal interest involved in the proposals
listed on the board meeting agenda
proceeded in accordance with Article 16 of
the company’s Rules of the Procedure for
Board of Directors Meetings on directors’
recusal due to conflicts of interest. Also, the
contact numbers and emails on the official
website are available for internal and
external personnel to report unethical
conduct or misconduct.

The Company has established and followed
an effective accounting system and an
internal control system, and our internal
auditors regularly check on the compliance
with the accounting system, the internal
control system, and relevant rules and report
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Actual governance Variation from
the Ethical
Corporate

Management

Best Practice

Yes|No Summary description Principles for
TWSE/TPEx

-Listed

Companies and

the reasons

Assessment Items

of risk assessment of the audit results to the Board of Directors at
involvement in unethical each board meeting. Moreover, the

behavior to audit and prevent Company conducts the annual internal

the compliance with the control self-assessment per year, each of our
preventive programs of departments should examine its internal
unethical behavior or hire a control system to ensure the effectiveness of
CPA to perform the audit? the system design and implementation.

(V) Has the Company organized | v’ The Company discloses the Ethical

corporate management Corporate Management Best Practice
internal and external education Principles and the Procedures for Ethical
and training programs on a Management and Guidelines for Conduct in
regular basis? the Corporate Governance section on the

official website and informs all employees,
directors, or insiders of the applicable
regulations on ethical management by email
from time to time, while raising their
awareness of ethical management through
education and training and managers’

meetings.
III. The operations of the None
Company’s Report System
(I) Does the Company have a 4 As per the regulations on the whistleblowing
specific report and reward system under Article 23 of the Ethical
system stipulated, a convenient Corporate Management Best Practice
report channel established and Principles, Article 21 of the Procedures for
a responsible staff designated Ethical Management and Guidelines for
to handle the individual being Conduct, Article 13 of the code of ethical
reported? conduct for directors and managers, and

Article 24 of the code of ethical conduct for
employees, any violation of the ethical
conduct rules in the Group should be
reported to independent directors, immediate
managers, the President, the human
resources officer, the chief internal auditor,
or other appropriate personnel. In addition,
there is a channel for reporting violations of
professional ethics by relevant personnel
disclosed on the official website. During
2023, no major violation was reported by
internal or external personnel. After
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Assessment Items

Actual governance

Variation from
the Ethical
Corporate

Management
Best Practice

(IT) Has the Company established
standard operating procedures
for investigating reported
events, follow-up measures to
be taken after the investigation
was completed, and related
confidentiality mechanisms?

Yes|No Summary description Principles for
TWSE/TPEx
-Listed
Companies and
the reasons
investigation and confirmation, internal
whistleblowers will be rewarded as
appropriate in accordance with the human
resources management regulations.
v

As per Article 23 of the Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles and
Article 21 of the Procedures for Ethical
Management and Guidelines for Conduct,
report acceptance and investigation process
and results should be recorded and stored,
and relevant personnel should issue a written
statement to keep whistleblowers’ identity
and the content of the reports confidential. If
it is confirmed that the person being reported
has violated the applicable laws or the
Company’s ethical management policy and
regulations, we will immediately ask the
violator to stop the relevant conduct and
handle it appropriately, while reporting the
handling method and subsequent review and
improvement measures to the Board of
Directors. No such a thing occurred during
2023.

(II1) Has the Company taken proper| v As per Article 23 of the Ethical Corporate
measures to protect the Management Best Practice Principles and
whistle-blowers from suffering Article 21 of the Procedures for Ethical
any consequence of reporting Management and Guidelines for Conduct,
an incident? the relevant personnel handling

whistleblowing should issue a written
statement to keep whistleblowers’ identity
and the content of the reports confidential
and promise to protect whistleblowers from
being improperly treated due to
whistleblowing.
IV. Enhanced information None
disclosure
v

Does the Company have the
contents of corporate
management and its

The Company has disclosed the principles
and related information on the official
website, the MOPS, and annual reports in
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Actual governance Variation from
the Ethical
Corporate

Management

Best Practice

Yes|No Summary description Principles for
TWSE/TPEx

-Listed

Companies and

the reasons

Assessment Items

implementation disclosed on the accordance with Article 25 of the Ethical
website and MOPS? Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles. We have the Corporate
Governance section on the official website
to discloses the Procedures for Ethical
Management and Guidelines for Conduct,
the code of ethical conduct for directors and
managers, and the code of ethical conduct
for employees, as well as the internal
awareness-raising events held during the
year.

If the Company has formulated its own Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles as per
the Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies,
please specify the difference between its operation and the principles: The Company has formulated
the Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles to establish and develop a corporate
culture of ethical management. There is no difference between the implementation and the principles.

VL

Other important information that facilitates the understanding of the Company’s ethical management
(e.g., reviewing and amending the Company’s corporate governance best practice principles): The
amendments to the Company’s Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct have
been approved by the Board of Directors on December 23, 2022 in response to the amended law.
Moreover, the Company timely arranges for directors and managers to receive corporate governance
education and training and conveys the importance of integrity to them, thereby improving the
effectiveness of corporate governance and duly implementing ethical management.

(VIII) If the Company has formulated the corporate governance best practice principles or relevant
regulations, it shall disclose where to access it: The Company has the Corporate Governance section in
place under the Investors section under the Stakeholders section for investors to check rules and
regulations on corporate governance.
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(IX) Other important information that may facilitate the understanding of the operation of corporate
governance: The information on the operation of corporate governance is available in the Investors
section on the official website.

Directors continuing education during 2023:

Title Name Training Organizer Course name Training
date hours
Ho, Chun-Hsien;
Wang, Shih-Tsung;
Chen, Hung-Yao; Securities and Corporate governance and
Director | Cheng, Chin-Hung; | 09/08/2023 . P g 3 hours
. Futures Institute management-BI&OKR
Hsu, Yung-Chen,;
Li, Chien-Jan
Wu, Li-Ching
Ho, Chun-Hsien;
Wang, Shih-Tsung;
Chen, Hung-Yao; o
Director | Cheng, Chin-Hung; | 09/08/2023 | Securities and Response to the new global |54 )
. Futures Institute situation
Hsu, Yung-Chen,;
Li, Chien-Jan
Wu, Li-Ching
Financial o
Director | Wu, Li-Ching 04/09/2023 | Supervisory é4th Taipei Corporate 6 hours
- overnance Forum
Commission
Corporate
Director | Cheng, Chin-Hung 12/09/2023 Gover.napce. Corporate grqwth strategy 3 hours
Association in and external innovation
Taiwan
Corporate
. . Governance Applications, Law, and
Director | Cheng, Chin-Hung 24/10/2023 Association in Audit of A 3 hours
Taiwan
Managers’ continuing education during 2023:
Title Name Training date Organizer Course name T}rlez)l;l;;lg
CEO;
Corporate | Liao, Wen-Hung Securities and Corporate governance and
Governance | Cheng, Shu-Ching 09/08/2023 Futures Institute management-BI&OKR 3 hours
officer
CEO;
Corporate | Liao, Wen-Hung Securities and Response to the new global
Governance | Cheng, Shu-Ching 09/08/2023 Futures Institute situation 3 hours
officer
Corporate Sustainable Development
Governance | Cheng, Shu-Ching | 27/04/2023 | TWSE Acslfl)};,g larlig fordTWSE— 3 hours
officer an x-Liste
Companies (2023)
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Title

Name

Training date

Organizer

Course name

Training

hours
Corporate Ministry of .
Governance | Cheng, Shu-Ching | 26/05/2023 | Environment, (C}reen Chemlstry o 3 hours
. o-creating Sustainability
officer Executive Yuan
Corporate 2023 CATHAY
Governance | Cheng, Shu-Ching | 04/07/2023 | TWSE Sustainable Finance and 3 hours
officer Climate Change Summit
Internal Personnel Stock
Corporate . Securities and Ownership Transaction
Governance | Cheng, Shu-Ching | 22/11/2023 . . 3 hours
Futures Institute Legal Compliance
officer :
Advocacy Seminar
From Accounting . .
Corporate ' 16/03/2023 | Research and The inaugural training ‘
Governance | Cheng, Shu-Ching program for the accounting | 30 hours
officer to Development supervisors
24/03/2023 | Foundation
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(X) Implementation of the internal control system

1. Declaration of Internal Control Policies

Copartner Technology Corp.
Declaration of Internal Control Policies
Date: March 13, 2024

The following declaration is based on the 2023 self-audit over the Company’s internal control
policies:

L

II.

I11.

IV.

VL

The Company is aware that the establishment, execution, and maintenance of its internal
control policies are the responsibilities the Company’s board of directors and managers. These
policies were implemented throughout the Company. The purpose is to provide a reasonable
assurance on the achievement of the goals, including the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations (including profitability, performance and security of assets, etc.) and the report
with effectiveness, timeliness, transparency, and compliance with the relevant requirements
and regulations and laws.

Internal control policies are prone to limitations. No matter how robustly designed, effective
internal control policies merely provide reasonable assurance to the achievements of the three
goals above. Furthermore, environmental and situational changes may affect the effectiveness
of internal control policies. However, self-supervision measures were implemented within
The Company’s internal control policies to facilitate immediate rectification once procedural
flaws have been identified.

Pursuant to the “Regulations Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by
Listed Company” (hereinafter referred to as “Governing Regulations”), the Company should
study and judge whether the Company's internal control system is effective in design and
implementation. The criteria introduced by “The Governing Principles” consisted of five
major elements, each representing a different stage of internal control: 1. Control environment,
2. Risk evaluation and response, 3. Procedural control, 4. Information and communication, 5.
Supervision. Each element further contains several items. Please refer to “The Governing
Principles” for details.

The Company has adopted the aforementioned judgment items for the internal control system
to evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system in both design and
implementation.

On the grounds of the outcome of evaluation mentioned in the preceding Paragraph, the
Company firmly holds that the Company’s internal control system as of December 31, 2023
(including supervisory control and management over subsidiaries), notably the effect of the
business operation, extent of accomplishment of the target where the report proves
trustworthy, transparent in real time, the design and implementation of the Company’s internal
control system proves effective, capable of assuring accomplishment of the aforementioned
targets.

This declaration forms part of the main contents of the Company’s annual report and
prospectus, and shall be disclosed to the public. Any illegal misrepresentation or
non-disclosure relating to the public statement above are subject to the legal consequences
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VIL

under Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

The present Internal Control Statement was approved in the Board of Directors meeting
convened on March 13, 2024 which was attended by all directors among whom 0 director
objected. All present directors unanimously responded with consent to the contents of the
Statement. This is another point duly clarified herewith.

Copartner Tech Corp.
Chairman: Ho, Chun-Hsien

CEO: Liao, Wen-Hung

-72 -



For those who appointed a CPA to conduct an ad-hoc review of the internal control
system, the CPA’s review report shall be disclosed: The Company did not appoint a
CPA to conduct an ad-hoc review of the internal control system, so no review report is

available.

(XI) If there has been any legal penalty against the Company and its internal personnel, or any
disciplinary penalty by the Company against its internal personnel for violation of the
internal control system, during the last year and up to the publication date of this annual
report, where the result of such penalty could have a material effect on shareholders’ equity
or securities prices, the penalty, the main defects, and the improvements made shall be
disclosed: None.

(XII) The important resolutions by the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors
adopted and implementation during 2023 and up to May 15, 2024

Date of
shareholders’
meeting

Important resolution

Implementation

June 30, 2023
Annual
Sharcholders
Meeting

Ratified the proposal for the Company’s 2022
Business Report and financial Report

Announced prior to the deadline

Ratified the Company’s 2022 earnings distribution
Table proposal

Announced prior to the deadline

Proposal for general re-election of directors and
independent directors.

Re-election 7 directors:
Including 4 general directors and 3
independent directors

Proposal to amend the ”Rules of Procedure for
Shareholders Meetings”

Uploaded and reported

Approved the proposal to remove the non-compete
restrictions for the company’s new directors

Announced prior to the deadline

-73 -




Date of board
meeting

Important resolution

Implementation

March 29, 2023
Board meetings
(1st 2023)

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
2022 employee remuneration and directors’
remuneration

Reported to the 2023 Annual
Shareholders Meeting.

Approved the proposal to issue the
Company’s 2022 Statement of the Internal
Control System

Proceeded as approved

Approve the Company‘s “Procedures for the
Selection and Appointment of Directors”

Submitted to the 2023 Annual
Shareholders Meeting for resolution

Approve the Company‘s "Code of Conduct
for Financial Business among Relationships”

Proceeded as approved

Approve the Company’s “Code of Practice on
Sustainable Development”

Reported to the 2023 Annual
Shareholders Meeting.

Approve the Company’s “Code of Practice on
Corporate Governance”

Proceeded as approved

Approve the Company‘s "Standard Operating
Procedure for Handling Directors' Requests”

Proceeded as approved

Approve the Company‘s "Implementation
Points for Director Training”

Proceeded as approved

Approve the Company*s "Scope of
Responsibility Rule for Independent
Directors”

Proceeded as approved

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
2022 annual business report and financial
report

Submitted to the 2023 Annual
Shareholders Meeting for ratification

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
2022 earnings distribution

Earnings distribution table is submitted
to the 2023 Annual Shareholders
Meeting for ratification

Approve the Company*s cash distribution
from capital surplus

Reported to the 2023 Annual
Shareholders Meeting

Approve the proposal to evaluate the
independence, fitness assessment and
compensation of the Company’s certified
CPA

Proceeded as approved

Approve the proposal to general reelect the
directors and independent directors

Already awaiting submission for the
election at the 2023 Annual
Shareholders Meeting.

Approved the proposal to remove the
non-compete restrictions for the Company’s
managers

Proceeded as approved

Approve the proposal to remove the
non-compete restrictions for the new director
of the Company

Submitted to the 2023 Annual
Shareholders Meeting for resolution

Approved the proposal to convene the
Company’s 2023 Annual Shareholders
Meeting

Convened the 2023 Annual
Shareholders Meeting as per law

Approved the proposal to accept shareholder
proposals and handle related matters

Proceeded as approved
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Date of board

Important resolution

Implementation

meeting
Approve the proposal to accept shareholder
director nominations related to the operational | Proceeded as approved
issues
Approve the proposal to nominate director
candidates and candidature examination by Proceeded as approved
the Board of Directors of the Company
5 -
Approved thg 17 share.hol(.ier nomlgatlon Has already elected of the 2023 Annual
director nominee examination and director ! s
. . . Shareholders Meeting for election
candidate list confirmation
Approved the proposal for the Company’s
financial statements for 2023Q1 Proceeded as approved
Approved the proposal to regularly review the
May 10, 2023 | board performance evaluation indicators and | Proceeded as approved
Board meetings | make suggestions.
2nd 2023 i
( ) Approved the proposal for the remuneration Proceeded as approved
adjustment to managers.
Approved the proposal to distribute the
Company’s 2022 managers’ performance Proceeded as approved
bonus.
Approved the company's 2022 director and Proceeded as approved
manager remuneration assessment proposal
June 30,2Q23
?gﬁg‘ﬁzﬁ;‘gs Approved the proposal for the Company’s Ho, Chun-Hsien was elected
meeting) Y| chairman election (Re-election)
(3rd 2023)

August 9, 2023
Board meetings
(4th 2023)

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
financial statements for 2023 Q2

Proceeded as approved

Appointment of Compensation Committee
Members

Proceeded as approved

Approved the proposal to apply to the First
Commercial Bank for credit line renewal and
guarantee business based on operational needs

Proceeded as approved

November 10,
2023
Board meetings
(5th 2023)

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
financial statements for 2023 Q3

Proceeded as approved

Approved the proposal to Establish Joint
venture subsidiary in Thailand

Proceeded as approved

Approved the proposal to Establish subsidiary
in Vietnam

Proceeded as approved

Approve the Company’s “Internal Control
System”

Proceeded as approved

December 19,
2023
Board meetings
(6th 2023)

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
2024 annual audit plan

Proceeded as approved

Approved the proposal to purchase directors
liability insurance

Proceeded as approved
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Date of board
meeting

Important resolution

Implementation

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
2024 Business Plan and 2024 consolidated
financial budget

Proceeded as approved

March 13, 2024
Board meetings

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
2023 employee remuneration and directors’
remuneration

Pending a report to the 2024 Annual
Shareholders Meeting

Approved the proposal to issue the
Company’s 2023 Statement of the Internal
Control System

Proceeded as approved

Approve to amend the Company's “Rules of
the Procedure for Board of Directors
Meetings”

Pending a report to the 2024 Annual
Shareholders Meeting

Approve to amendment to the ”Rules of
Procedure for Shareholders Meetings”

Pending application of the 2024
Annual Shareholders Meeting for
resolution

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
2023 annual business report and financial
report

Pending application of 2024 Annual
Shareholders Meeting for ratification

Approved the proposal for the Company’s
2023 Deficit compensation proposal

Deficit compensation Table is pending
application of 2023 Annual
Shareholders Meeting for ratification

Approve the proposal to evaluate the
independence, fitness assessment and
compensation of the Company’s certified
CPA

Proceeded as approved

(1st 2029) Approve the proposal for by-election of Pending application of the .2024
Independent Director Annl}al Shareholders Meeting for
election

Approved the proposal to remove the
non-compete restrictions for the Company’s Proceeded as approved
managers
Approve the proposal to remove the Pending application of the 2024
non-compete restrictions for the new director | Annual Shareholders Meeting for
of the Company resolution
Approved the proposal to convene the Pending convening of the 2024 Annual
Company’s 2024 Annual Shareholders Shareholders Meeting in accordance
Meeting with the law
Approved the proposal to accept shareholder
prE))FI))osals and Iljlanrzile related mr;tters Proceeded as approved
Approve the proposal to accept shareholder
director nominations related to the operational | Proceeded as approved
issues
Approve the proposal to nominate
independent director candidates and p ded d
candidature examination by the Board of roceeded as approve
Directors of the Company

May 14, 2024 Appointment of Compensation Committee Proceeded as approved

Board meetings | Members
(2nd 2024) Approved the proposal for the Company’s Proceeded as approved

-76 -




Date of board

. Important resolution Implementation
meeting

financial statements for 2024 Q1

Approve to amendment to the ” Authorization

table” Proceeded as approved

Approved the proposal to distribute the
Company’s 2023 managers’ performance Proceeded as approved
bonus.

Approved the company's 2023 director and

. Proceeded as approved
manager remuneration assessment proposal

Approved the proposal to regularly review the
board performance evaluation indicators and | Proceeded as approved
make suggestions.

(XIII) During the last year and up to the publication date of this annual report, if the directors had
different opinions on important resolutions approved by the Board of Directors with records
or written statements, the main content of the opinions: None.

(XIV)In the last year and up to the publication date of the annual report, the assembled
information of discharge or resignation by the Company for the Company’s Chairman,
President, chief accountant, financial supervisor, internal audit officer, governance officer
and research & development officer: None.

IV. Information in public fees of the Certified Public Accountant Association

Ranges of CPAs’ audit fees

Unit: NT$ thousand

o .\ . Non-audit
Auditor’s Name of CPA CPA aqdltlng Audit . remuneration | Total | Remark
firm period remuneration
(Note)
Tsai, January 1
Deloitte & | Mel-Chen | )53 hecember | 6,800 689 7,189 | None
Touche Huang,
31,2023
Yu-Feng

Note: The non-audit fees included NT$180 thousand for a transfer pricing report; NT$128
thousand for filing a report to the Investment Commission; NT$65 thousand for the
audit service for a dual-status business entity applying the direct deduction method; and
NT$16 thousand for business registration.

(I)  Where the non-audit fees paid to the CPAs, the accounting firm at which the CPAs work,
and the accounting firm’s affiliates account for 25% or more of the audit fees, the amount
of audit and non-audit fees and the content of non-audit services shall be disclosed: The
non-audit fees paid by the Company to the CPAs and the accounting firm, to which the
CPAs belong, do not reach 25% of the audit fee.

(IT) Where the accounting firm is replaced and the audit fees paid during the year in which the
replacement occurs are less than those paid in the prior year, the amount of the decrease in
the audit fees and the reason thereof shall be disclosed: None.

(ITII) Where the audit fees paid for the year are lower than those paid for the prior year by 10%
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or more, the amount and percentage of the decrease and the reason therefor shall be
disclosed: None.

V. Information on the replacement of CPAs during the last two years and the period thereafter:
Tsai, Mei-Chen and Chen, Ming Hui, CPAs at Deloitte & Touche, were responsible for
auditing the Company’s financial statements. Due to the accounting firm’s internal job
adjustment, the CPAS, Tsai, Mei-Chen and Huang, Yu-Feng have been responsible for the
audit work since 2022.

(I) Former CPAs

Date of replacement  |January 1, 2022

Reason for replacement|To cooperate the accounting firm’s internal job adjustment

Participants

o CPA Client
Situation
Client’s termination of

or CPA’s refusal to the Termination of the
appointment appointment
Refusal to the

(continuous)
appointment

The opinion of the
audit report other than
the unqualified opinion
issued within the latest
two years and the

None

reasons
Accounting principles or practices
Disclosures in financial statements
. . Yes Auditi n
Different opinions from uditing SCope or sieps
the issuer’s Other
None v
Description

Other disclosures
(matters that should be
disclosed under Article
10, subparagraph 6,
items 1-4 - 1-7 of the
Regulations)

None
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(IT) Successors

CPA firm Deloitte & Touche
Name of CPA Tsai, Mei-Chen; Huang, Yu-Feng
Date of appointment January 1, 2022

Consultation regarding accounting
treatment methods or accounting principles
for specific transactions and possible Not applicable
opinions issued for financial statements
and results before appointment

Successors’ different written opinions from
the predecessors’

Not applicable

(III) Reply from the former CPAs to the matters under Article 10, subparagraph 6, items 1 and
2-3 of the Regulations: None.

VI. Where the Chairman, the President, chief financial officer, or chief accounting officer has been
employed by the accounting firm or its affiliates during the most recent year, the name, job
title, and period of working at the firm or affiliate shall be disclosed: There is no such a
situation, so it is not applicable.
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VIL In the last year and up to the publication date of the annual report, the fact regarding transfer or
pledge stock equity by the Company’s directors, managerial officers and key shareholders
holding over 10% in shareholding

(I) The status of changes that directors, supervisors and major shareholders had transferred and

pledged their shares
Unit: shares
2024 up to May 15,
2023 2024
Title Name Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) | (decrease) in| (decrease) | (decrease) in
in shares shares in shares shares
held collateralized|  held collateralized
Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien
Director-cum- President of Wang,
the Cable Business Group Shih-Tsung
(Note 1)
D}rector-cum-Executlve Chen, Hung-Yao
Director
Cheng,
Director Ching-Hung
(Note 2)
Chang,
[ndependent Director Chung-Chiu
(Note 3)
. Wu, Li-Ching
[ndependent Director (Note 4)
) Li, Chien-Jan
[ndependent Director (Note 5)
[Independent Director Hsu, Yung-Chen
Liao, Wen-Hung
(EO (Note 6)
President of the Raw R
Material Business Group L1, Yi-Ta
Vice President of the Su

Business Development

Division Chun-Hsiung

Chen,Chiu-Hsiu

Director of the Product

L ng
Development Division (Note 7)
Director of the Finance Cheng,
Division Shu-Ching

Note 1: Wang, Shih-Tsung resigned the President of the Cable Business Group on January 1,2024

Note 2:Cheng, Chin-Hung was appointed as a director after the shareholders' meeting on June 30,
2023.

Note 3:Chang, Chung-Chiu resigned as an independent director after the shareholders' meeting on
June 30, 2023.

Note 4: Wu, Li-Ching was appointed as an independent director after the shareholders' meeting on
June 30, 2023.
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Note 5: Li, Chien-Jan resigned from the position of independent director on March 1, 2024, due to
personal reasons.

Note 6: Liao, Wen-Hong, the CEO, resigned as a director after the shareholders' meeting on June 30,
2023.

Note 7: Chen, Chiu-Hsiung ,Director of the Product Development Division, resigned on October 31,
2023.

(I) Information on the counterparty, to which the equity is transferred by directors, managers, or
shareholders, each holding more than 10% of the total shares issued by the Company: None.

(IIT) Information on the counterparty, for whom equity is pledged by directors, managers, or
shareholders, each holding more than 10% of the total shares issued by the Company: None.
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VIII. Relationship information, if among the company’s 10 largest shareholders any one is a related
party or a relative within the second degree of kinship of another

April 16, 2024

The name and
relationship
information, if among
the 10 largest

Shares held in own Shareholdmgs of Shares held in the |shareholders any one is
spouse and minor : Remark
name . names of others |a related party, or is the
Name children .
spouse or a relative
within the second
degree of kinship of
another.
. Ratio of . Ratio of . Ratio of .
Quantity Shareholding Quantity ShareholdingQuantltyShareholding Name Relation i
Ou |5 774,000 6.60% ; ; - - Non Non. -
Shu-Ching| >>" '™ OT one one
Cheng, o
Chin-Hung 4,715,079 5.39% - - None None -
Ho, 3,827,443 4.37% - - - - None None -
Chun-Hsien| =~ oo
Relative
within
Wang, o 0 Wang, the first
Shih-Tsung 3,712,811 4.24% | 883,147 1.01% Ying-Kai | degree
of
kinship
Spouse
and
Lai, Relative
Chen, o o Chiu-Lan within
Hung-Yao 2,965,107 3.39% | 1,315,213 1.50% Chen, the first -
In-Wen degrees
of
kinship
Lin,
2,768,000 3.16% - - - - None None -
Gao-Huang
Yeh, 11 766,193 2.02% - - - - None None | -
Fang-Yu
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Spouse
and
Chen, Relative
Lai, Hung-Yao | within
Chiu-Lan 1,315,213 1.50% | 2,965,107 3.39% - - C}?en, the first
In-Wen degrees
of
kinship
Relative
within
Wang, N Wang, the first
Ying-Kai 1,272,359 1.45% i ) ) Shih-Tsung | degrees
of
kinship
Relative
Chen, within
Chen, N Hung-Yao | the first
In-Wen 1,188,987 1.36% i ) ) Lai, degrees
Chiu-Lan of
kinship

IX. The total number of shares held and the consolidated shareholdings in any single investee by
the Company, its directors, managers, or any companies controlled either directly or indirectly

by the Company
Unit: thousand shares; %
Investment held by
Invested by the directors, managers, and Agoreoate investment
Investees Company directly or indirectly £8reg
(Note) controlled enterprises
Quantit Ratio of Quantit Ratio of Quantit Ratio of
Y Shareholding Y Shareholding Y Shareholding
Copartner Wire And Cable . 100% . _ . 100%
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg B 100% . . B 100%
Co., Ltd.
Hotek Technology Corporation| 20,000 100% -- -- 20,000 100%
HPC Technology Inc. 2,057 48.98% -- -- 2,057 48.98%

Note: It is a long-term investment made by the Company using the equity method.
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Chapter IV Capitals and Shares
I.  Capital and shares
(I)  Sources of share capital
1. Share category
May 15, 2024
Authorized capital
Share category Outstanding Unissued shares Total Remark
shares (Note)
Registered common | 87,550 thousand |32,450 thousand 120,000 T.he Comp any's stock is
listed on Taiwan Stock
stock shares shares thousand shares .
Exchange for trading.

Note: The Company’s stock has been listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange since November 10, 2010
and traded at securities firms.

2. Share capital formation process
May 15, 2024
Authorized capital Paid-up capital Remark
Issue Number Number Paid i
Year/ price of shares | Amount | of shares | Amount Sources of share proapleriis
month (NTD) (m (1n NT$ (m (m NT$ capital other than Other
millions | million) | millions | million) cash
of shares) of shares)

1987.04| 10 15 15 1.5 15 ;‘;ﬁ‘iﬁng capital of IS} (0o INote 1

1996.11| 10 44 44| a4 44| cash capitalincreasel (o I\
by 29 million

1999.08| 10 5.8 58 5.8 sg|/A cash capital increase] o g 3
by 14 million

2001.07| 10 20 200 10 10| cash capitalincrease| o Inge 4
by 42 million

2003.11| 10 30 300 30/ 300|/casheapitalincrease) o Noge s
by 200 million

2004.08| 12 50 500 35| 350[/cashcapitalinerease) (N g
by 50 million
A cash capital increase
by 68 million
Capitalization of

2005.10 | 24 50 500 43.9 439 . ) None  |Note 7
earnings to increase
the capital by 21
million
A cash capital increase
by 101 million

2006.10| 30 70 700 60|  6oo|C@pitalization of None  |Note 8
earnings to increase
the capital by 60
million
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2007.08| 10

80

800

73.6

736

Capitalization of
earnings to increase
the capital by 136
million

None Note 9

2008.07| 10

120

1,200

78.08

780.8

Capitalization of
earnings to increase
the capital by 44.8
million

Note

None 10

2010.11| 10

120

1,200

88

880

A cash capital increase
by 99.2 million before
the stock was listed on
Taiwan Stock
Exchange

Note

None 1

2012.01| 10

120

1,200

85

850

Repurchase and
cancellation of
treasury shares to
reduce capital

Note

None 12

2022.09| 10

120

1,200

87.55

875.5

Capitalization of
earnings to increase
the capital by 25.5
million

Note

None 13

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:
Note 8:
Note 9:

Note 10: Per Letter Jing-Shou-Shang No
Note 11: Per Letter Jing-Shou-Shang No
Note 12: Per Letter Jing-Shou-Shang No
Note 13: Per Letter Jing-Shou-Shang No

(IT) Shareholders structure

Per Letter Jian-III No. 173699 dated April 30, 1987.
Per Letter 1996-Jian-I11-C No. 705972 dated November 2, 1996.
Per Letter Jing-(1999)-Zhong No. 657914 dated August 4, 1999.
Per Letter 2001-Shang No. 09001270970, July 18, 2001.
Per Letter Jing-Shou-Zhong No. 09232948350 dated November 13, 2003.
Per Letter Jing-Shou-Zhong No. 09332617840 dated August 24, 2004.

Per Letter Jing-Shou-Zhong No. 09432920840 dated October 4, 2005.

Per Letter Jing-Shou-Shang No. 09501236890 dated October 23, 2006.
Per Letter Jing-Shou-Shang No. 09601199250 dated August 16, 2007.

. 09701163250 dated July 10, 2008.

. 09901263140 dated November 25, 2010.
. 10101003320 dated January 10, 2012.

. 11101170840 dated September 2, 2022.

April 16,2024

Shareholders
tructure
Quantities

Government
institutions

Financial
Institution

Other
s|corporations

Foreign
Individuals
foreigners

institutions and

Total

Number of people
(person)

165

26,322 30

26,520

Number of shares
held

26,000

1,308,925

85,261,052 954,023

87,550,000

Shareholding ratio
(%)

0.03

1.50

97.39 1.09

100.00

Note: The Company dost not belong to a primary listing on TWSE or TPEx of Republic of China
nor is not listed on the emerging stock market.
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(IIT) Equity dispersion (NT$10 per share)

April 16, 2024

Class of Shareholding sharelljo lidnel;:r(;grson) Numbe}fecl)(tl“ shares Shareholding ratio (%)
1 to 999 21,413 146,482 0.17
1,000 to 5,000 3,389 6,545,784 7.48
5,001 to 10,000 762 4,891,004 5.59
10,001 to 15,000 383 4,315,042 4.93
15,001 to 20,000 116 1,984,436 2.27
20,001 to 30,000 152 3,528,327 4.03
30,001 to 40,000 73 2,456,352 2.81
40,001 to 50,000 45 1,992,834 2.28
50,001 to 100,000 108 7,041,609 8.04
100,001 to 200,000 31 4,253,079 4.86
200,001 to 400,000 13 3,678,903 4.20
400,001 to 600,000 12 6,074,296 6.94
600,001 to 800,000 5 3,527,760 4.03
800,001 to 1,000,000 5 4,441,838 5.07
1,000,001 or more 13 32,672,254 37.30
Total 26,520 87,550,000 100.00
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(IV) List of major shareholders

April 16, 2024

Shares

Number of shares

Shareholding ratio (%)

held
Name of major shareholders
Ou, Shu-Ching 5,774,000 6.60%
Cheng, Chin-Hung 4,715,079 5.39%
Ho, Chun-Hsien 3,827,443 4.37%
'Wang, Shih-Tsung 3,712,811 4.24%
Chen, Hung-Yao 2,965,107 3.39%
Lin, Gao-Huang 2,768,000 3.16%
'Yeh, Fang-Yu 1,766,193 2.02%
Lai, Chiu-Lan 1,315,213 1.50%
Wang, Ying-Kai 1,272,359 1.45%
Chen, In-Wen 1,188,987 1.36%
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(V) Market price and net asset value per share, earnings, dividends, and relevant information in
the last two years and up to the publication date of this annual report

Unit: NT$
Year 2024 up to May 15,
Item 2022 2023 2024 (Note 8)
Mark ) Highest 19.4 17.5 16.4
arket price per
share (Note 1) Lowest 12.65 13.65 14.3
Average 15.97 15.53 15.12
Net worth per  |Before dividend distribution 22.04 16.92 17.97
share (note 2) | After dividend distribution 21.54 16.92 -

Weighted average outstanding| ¢ se¢ 603 chares|87.550,000 shares| 87,550,000 shares

shares
Earnings per Before
&SP Earnings [retrospective (0.26) (4.14) (0.19)
share !
per share |adjustment
(Note 3) |After retrospective
adjustment (0.26) (4.14) i
Cash dividends - - -
From earnings - - -
. Stock
Dividends per .. From Capital
share dividends reserves - - -
Cumulative undistributed i i .
dividends (Note 4)
Analvsis of P/E ratio (Note 5) (58) (59) -
MAlysIs 0 Price to dividends ratio (Note
investment - - -
6)
returns — -
Cash dividend yield (Note 7) - - -
Note 1: The highest and lowest market prices of ordinary shares in each year shall be listed, and

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

the average market price for each year calculated as per the transaction value and
volume for each year.

The number of issued shares at the end of each year shall prevail, and fill out the table
as per the resolutions adopted by board meetings or the shareholders’ meeting in the
following year.

If retrospective adjustment is required due to stock dividends paid out, the earnings per
share before and after the adjustment shall be listed.

If the undistributed dividends for a year may be accumulated and not be distributed
until a year with earnings available as stipulated in the equity securities regulations, the
cumulative unpaid dividends up to the current year shall be disclosed separately.

P/E ratio = Average closing price per share for the year / earnings per share.

Price to dividend ratio = Average closing price per share for the year / cash dividends
per share.

Cash dividend yield = Cash dividend per share / average closing price per share for the
current year.

The book value per share and earnings per share audited (reviewed) by the CPAs up to
the most recent quarter prior to the publication date of this annual report shall be
entered; the information for other fields up to the year, in which this annual report is
published, shall be entered.
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(VI) The Company’s dividend policy and fact of implementation thereof.
1. Dividend policy under the Articles of Incorporation

Where the Company makes a profit for a fiscal year, the profit shall be first used for
offsetting a cumulative deficit, providing 10% of the remaining profit as a legal
reserve unless it has reached the total amount of the Company’s paid-in capital,
providing an amount for or reversing a special reserve in accordance with the laws and
regulations or the competent authority’s rules, and then any remaining profit, together
with any undistributed retained earnings from the prior year, shall be adopted by the
Company’s Board of Directors as the basis for making a distribution proposal. The
proposal shall then be resolved at the shareholders’ meeting for the distribution of
shareholder dividends.

If the preceding shareholders dividend, statutory surplus reserve, and capital surplus
are distributed in cash; the proposal shall be authorized by a board of directors meeting
with over two-thirds of the entire board members attending and approved by over half
of those present at the meeting, and then reported the case to a shareholders meeting.

The cash and stock combination method shall be adopted as the dividend distribution
policy to improve the financial structure and protect the rights and interests of
shareholders. Cash dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total dividends.

2. The distribution of dividends proposed at this shareholders’ meeting

The 2023 deficit compensation table as per the resolution by the Board of Directors on
March 13, 2024 are as follows:

Copartner Technology Corp.
2023 Deficit compensation Table

Unit: NT$
Item Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings at the beginning of the term 357,689,496

Current net income (362,508,940)

Retained earnings due to investment adjustments using the

equity method 131,024

Actuarial (loss) gains are included in retained earnings (347,614)
Plus: Current period net profit (362,725,530)
Distributable surplus for the current period (5,036,034)
Ending made up for the losses (5,036,034)

(VII) The influence of the stock dividend proposed at this shareholders’ meeting on the
Company’s operating performance and earnings per share: The Company did not disclose
the financial forecast for 2024, so it is not applicable.
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IL.
II1.
IV.
V.
VL

VIIL

(VIII) Remuneration to the employees and directors

1.

The percentage of the profit for or scope of employee remuneration and directors’

remuneration as stated in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation:

As per Article 19 of the Articles of Incorporation, the Company shall provide no lower
than 1% and no more higher than 3% of its annual pre-tax income (before employee
remuneration and director’s remuneration are deducted) for employee remuneration and
director’s remuneration.

The basis for the estimation of employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration for this

period, basis for the calculation of the number of shares for stock dividends to employees,

and accounting treatment if the amount paid out is different from the estimated amount:
The Company suffered net loss after tax for 2023, so we did not estimate employee
remuneration and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration.

Remuneration to be distributed as resolved in the board of directors:

(1) Where there is a difference between the estimated amounts of employee remuneration
and directors’ remuneration paid out in cash or stock and the amounts recognized, the
amount of difference, reason, and accounting treatment shall be disclosed: None.

(2) The amount of employee remuneration paid out in stock and as a % of the sum of the
total after-tax net income in the year’s parent company-only financial statements and
the total amount of employee remuneration: There is no such a situation, so it is not
applicable.

In the case of the distribution of employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration for the

prior year (including the number of shares paid out, amount, and stock price), where there

is any difference between the amounts of employee remuneration and directors’
remuneration and the recognized amounts, the difference, reason, and accounting treatment
shall be disclosed:

There was no difference between the amounts of 2022 employee remuneration and

directors’ remuneration paid out and the proposed amounts approved by the Board of

Directors.

(IX) The repurchase of the Company’ shares: None.

Corporate bond application: None.

Issuance of preference shares: None.

Issuance of depository receipts: None.

Issuance of employee stock warrants: None.

Issuance of restricted stock awards: None.

Issuance of new shares due to M&A or transfer of shares of another company: None.
VIIIL. Progress on the use of funds: None.
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Chapter V Business performance

I.  Content of business

(I)  Scope of business operation

1.

2.

Details of the Company’s main business scope

(1) CC01020 Electric Wires and Cables Manufacturing.

(2) CC01060 Wired Communication Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing.

(3) (CC01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing.

(4) CDO01030 Motor Vehicles and Parts Manufacturing.

(5) F113020 Wholesale of Electrical Appliances.

(6) F113030 Wholesale of Precision Instruments.

(7) F113060 Wholesale of Measuring Instruments.

(8) F114030 Wholesale of Motor Vehicle Parts and Motorcycle Parts, Accessories.

(9) F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials

(10) F213010 Retail Sale of Electrical Appliances.

(11) F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials.

(12) F401010 International Trade.

(13) 1301030 Electronic Information Supply Services.

(14) 7799999 All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by law,
except those that are subject to special approval.

Proportion (as per the consolidated statements)

Unit: NT$ thousand

2022 2023
Product category Proportion of Proportion of
Revenue business (%) Revenue business (%)

Signal transmission line 2,628,930 63.09 | 2,141,349 58.79
and wire harness
Plastic pellets 768,180 18.44 593,186 16.28
Other 769,539 18.47 908,045 24.93
Total 4,166,649 100.00 3,642,580 100.00

Note: Others refer to products, such as raw materials, PVC powder, copper materials, as well as machine parts and
accessories.

The Company’s existing products

Since the Company was established, we have mainly sold signal transmission lines
and wire harness. Signal transmission lines and wire harness are channels for
exchange of information between various equipment. As their prices are lower and
transmission quality is more stable and faster than wireless transmission, they occupy
a critical position in the market. The main existing products are as follows:

Computer peripheral wires, low-voltage computer wires, audio-visual signal cables,
high-resolution high-fax multimedia interface cables, PC power cables,
communication cables, integrated wiring system wires, automotive cables, industrial
control transmission cables, transmission cables for the medical industry,
communication network transmission cables, AR, VR, UAYV lines, automotive foam
PP 50 Ohm RF coaxial cables, nitrogen foam PTFE RF coaxial cables, and
photoelectric composite cables.
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4.  New products planned to be developed

(1) Wireharness for charging pile of electric vehicle

(2) Wireharness for medical equipment testing equipments

(3) Photoelectric composite cables for 8K high-definition equipment
(4) Photoelectric composite cables for industrial vision systems

(5) Storage data transmission server cables

(6) Ethernet cables for autonomous cars

(7) In-car audio and video device automotive transmission cables
(8) Industrial automation and industrial control cable drag chains

(9) High-frequency data cables for aviation

(IT) Industrial profiles:

1. The status quo and development of the industry

According to the industry value chain platform and relevant materials, we analyzed the
trend of Taiwan’s electronic connector (wire) manufacturing industry. In 2023,
although the prices of international raw materials remain stable. Despite the
stabilization of international raw material prices and the gradual return to normal life
in most countries in 2023, the inventory surplus from the peak demand during the
pandemic has not been completely cleared. The cycle of the largest volume consumer
connector industry remains at a peak, as demand for consumer electronics such as
laptops (NB) has yet to recover. This slowdown in demand for consumer electronics
(PCs, NBs, smartphones) has affected the sales momentum of Taiwan's 3C connector
(cable) products, despite the increasing penetration of USB Type-C ports and Intel's
new server platforms since 2021.

Additionally, the post-Covid 19 pandemic recovery in China has been slower than
expected, affecting the speed of consumption and leading Chinese automakers to
engage in price wars to attract customers, sacrificing product margins. The progress of
the 14th Five-Year Plan's new infrastructure policy has also been slower than
anticipated, delaying significant demand for local new energy vehicles, industrial
automation, 5G infrastructure, and thus slowing down the sales momentum of
Taiwan's high-speed, high-frequency, miniaturized connector components.

However, in the first half of 2024, with international copper prices stabilizing and
consumer electronics starting a new wave of demand after a year of clearance, China's
local economy is gradually returning to normal, driving increased demand for
domestically produced high-value-added products in areas such as domestic network
communications (e.g., servers, data centers), automotive electronics (e.g., advanced
driver-assistance systems ADAS, electric vehicles), industrial applications (e.g.,
semiconductor equipment), green energy (e.g., solar energy), and medical care (e.g.,
telemedicine). The adoption of USB Type-C ports in Apple's new iPhones this year has
made Type-C cables mainstream, and this year's focus on Al explosive growth is
expected to drive a new wave of Al PC upgrades. As laptops continue to trend towards
slimming down and reducing port slots, there is a surge in demand for peripheral
expansion bases and docking stations, thereby boosting global demand for high-speed,
high-frequency, miniaturized 3C connector (cable) products and CPU sockets.
Moreover, Taiwan's manufacturers that continue to actively enter niche applications
such as electric vehicles and automotive electronics, 5G infrastructure, industrial
control and smart manufacturing, green energy, and medical care are expected to
benefit significantly from the "contactless" and "energy-saving" opportunities, leading
to an anticipated recovery of the electronics connector (cable) manufacturing industry
in Taiwan in the first half of 2024.
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2. Association among the up-, mid- and down streams

(1) Signal transmission cables

Bare copper
processing industry

PVC and PE

manufacturing industry

weansdn

Imported electrolytic
copper plates/ copper bars

Imported/ domestic PVC
and PE

WeANSpIA
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Copper rolling/
stretching factories

Bare copper processing

PVC and PE manufacturing
factories

Other insulation

materials
Imported MYLAR Domestu; cotton
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Domestic Cotton and linen

aluminum foil

thread manufacturing

ALMYLAR
processing

Filler factories

Electronic manufacturers of power cords, networking
cables, communication cables, low-voltage computer
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cables, and photoelectric composite cables.
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(2) Signal transmission cable set

Metallic
materials

weansdn

Imported/ Domestic
copper and iron plates

Plating materials

Plastic materials

Imported/ Domestic
nickel, gold, tin, copper,
and silver materials

Imported/ Domestic
plastic pellets

Wire materials

Other materials

Imported/
Domestic wires

Imported/ Domestic
rubber and plastic
sheaths, sleeves, and

WeANSPIA

weansumo

various tapes.
Rolled copper and iron Metal plating material
plates molding
. . .. . . . Other material
Metal plate processing Electroplating Injection molding | | Wire manufacturing manufacturers
Connectors

Information and communications and automobile connecting wires assembly/processing industry
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3.

Product Development Trends and Market Competition

(1) Various product development trends

As

the Company’s products are mainly used in consumer electronics,

communications, transportation, industrial, and medical industries, they need to be
adjusted with different product development trends of clients in various industries.

A.

The make-to-order model will be more common

Although there are standard international electrical specifications for signal
transmission cables, the related manufacturing processes, such as twisting,
twining, wrapping, coating, coloring, and printing, and the connector
manufacturers entrusted vary depending on each manufacturer’s needs. There
are not many electrical specifications, it is impossible to produce a certain type
of product in large quantities as the industry mainly operates under the
make-to-order production model. With the emergence of various transmission
specifications and the development of different application fields, the
client-oriented trend will become more obvious.

Continuous launch of new high-frequency cables

In response to the need for higher transmission speed, higher-speed
transmission cables are launched constantly.

(2) Product competition

A.

Clients’ request for a wider range of services

The signal transmission cables and wire harness are diverse in variety, and
there are many requirements for specifications, and clients are increasingly
requiring outsourcers to provide a wider range of services, including product
design, manufacturing, quality control, and after-sales service. Therefore, only
outsourcers who can provide comprehensive services can stand out.

The Company’s signal transmission cables and wire harness are high-quality,
complete in variety, and fast in sample providing, which can meet clients’
urgent needs for orders or various needs and the need for timely delivery for
large orders. Thus, the Company has been trusted and recognized by clients.
Meanwhile, the Company has established partnerships with major international
manufacturers in Taiwan, Japan, Europe, and the United States, to obtain new
product sources and support, improve our product technology, and produce
different products to meet market needs, all of which are our biggest
competitive advantages compared with our competitors.

Fierce competition in the industry

As the life cycle of electronic products has become shorter, the competition
between existing and new competitors in the industry has intensified, and the
pressure on product prices is increasing day by day. Under the pressure of such
fierce market competition, we need to constantly adjust the production process
and maintain the product quality.

Due to the pressure of competition from our competitors in recent years, the
prices of some information and communication signal transmission cables and
wire harness have been reduced. The Company actively adjusts the business
strategy to respond to market changes and provides clients with technical
support and consulting services as a professional manufacturer and marketer,
to fully keep abreast of the market development trends and meet clients’ orders
for different products in small quantities and their planned production
schedules, thereby shortening the delivery time to meet their needs.
Particularly in terms of new products with higher unit prices, we stay
up-to-date with the know-how of various products, to maintain the Company’s
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corporate image that our information and communication signal transmission
cables and wire harness are high-quality, high-efficiency, and satisfactory for
clients.

(III) Technology & know-how and research & development in summary:

1. R&D expenses spent during the last year and up to the publication date of this annual

report
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year
2023 2024 up to May 15, 2024
Item
R&D expenses 146,019 35,710

2. Successfully developed technology or product

Year R&D achievements

VGA cables, LCD TV internal cables, HDMI 1.3 miniaturized cables,
automotive wiring harness (automotive transmission cables and

2007 transmission bases), and micro USB wiring harness, which passed
high-standard EMI tests
HDMI 1.3a (inner sheath), USB3.0, halogen-free RF cables, and mini
2008 i
displayport cables
2009 HDMI 1.4 , E-SATA cables, and flame retardant halogen-free wires
2010 Mini HDMI raw cables & HDMI A to D type assembly (with Ethernet)
that passed the association’s test and USB flat cables
Low-capacitance HDMI cables, low-impedance HDMI cables (used
2011 with IC), ultra-thin USB3.0 cables, and micro-HDMI cables (38#, 40#,

and 42#)

Charge cables (charging cables for i-phone), wiring harness for
reducing exhaust emissions, sports device wiring harness (whole

2012 machine), which passed the certification of UL 1581 Section 1200 for
anti-UV PVC outdoor cables, USB 3.0 AM to BM, which passed the
association’s certification, MHL cables, and SFP cables

Research and development of a full range of USB 3.1 and TYPE-C
products

USB 3.1, which passed the association’s certification, industrial camera
USB 3.0, camera link cables, HDMI photoelectric composite cables,
inspection camera cables, vehicle camera harness, robot arm cables,
among other customized products

Vibration cables, 50 Ohm RF coaxial cables: XL-PE, RG174,
CSL-100;

Nitrogen foam PE: CSL-195, CSL200, CSL-240, and 50 Ohm nitrogen
foam PTFE RF coaxial cables

Smart track crossing cables, AOC USB AM to Mirco-B, AOC HDMI
2.0 cables, industrial network cables, cable drag chain servo motor
power cables and encoder cables, HSD cables, HDMI 2.1 cables,
electric control cabinet wire harness, and brain tumor wire harness

2014-2016

2017-2018

2019

2020
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2021 multi-axis robot arm cables, automotive audio and video transmission

HD video recorders, AR, VR, UAV industrial control equipment HDMI
2.1 and TYPE C coaxial cables, robot vision system industrial cables,

cables, medical equipment display audio and video signal transmission
cables, and medical blood oxygen signal transmission cables

2022

Automotive 4P+8C composite cables, AOC HDMI 2.1 and 3.1, CMP
HDMLI, industrial control camera wire harness, USB 4.0 40G,
consumer electronics cables: USB 4 and DP 2.1, industrial camera
cables, TC-ER photovoltaic energy storage cables, industrial cable drag
chain network cables, automotive autohold cables, and RF signal
cables

2023 automotive RG174-6G and SAE automotive Ethernet, SAE power

Medical endoscope handles and physiological monitoring equipment
cables, new energy charging pile cables, electric cabinet cables,

cords, DVI HD data transmission cables, underwater robot power
cords, and data transmission cables.

(IV) Long- and short-term business development programs

1. Short-term business development programs

(1

)

Marketing strategy

A. Consolidate the partnerships with existing long-term clients and then work
with new well-known domestic and overseas clients.

B. Reinforce communication with clients through the internet to fully keep
abreast of clients’ needs and provide them with global services in real time.

C. Improve the quality image by passing world-class institutions’ certification

D. Proactively participate in major exhibitions at home and abroad to increase
brand exposure and enhance the international image.

E. Setup overseas offices to develop local markets in-depth.

Production strategy

A. The Company’s production strategy is mainly based on the make-to-order
production model. The Company usually does not keep an full inventory of
products. However, we may have an appropriate quantity of materials in stock
for our long-term clients with stable orders to shorten the delivery time to them,
but the safety and reliability are still our top concerns.

B. Continue to implement the ISO 9002 quality system and train quality control
personnel to improve the quality of our and our subsidiaries’ products.

2. Long-term business development programs

(1

)

Consolidate the position as a leading manufacturer of computer and communication
products and actively expand cable and wire products in other industrial chains
Expand into medical, cloud server, automotive industry, industrial control, and
communication network transmission cables and wire harness in addition to
developing a variety of audio-visual transmission and information and
communication-related connection wires; strive to strengthen the vertical
integration of upstream and downstream industries within the Group, with a view to
becoming a leading manufacturer in the industry.

Expand the business scale and reduce operational risk

Strengthen international division of labor, diversify production sites, and expand
production scale, to obtain long-term competitive advantages and achieve
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economies of scale; plan to expand sites in other parts of the world in addition to
the existing production sites in China to reinforce the operating foundation.
(3) Enhance personnel training and establish a corporate culture
Continue to train international talents to meet the Company’s future goal of
business diversification; cultivate employees’ identification with our corporate
culture to ensure future continuous growth, thereby ensuring everyone is on the
same page; develop a learning-based organization to enhance the Company’s
international competitiveness, thereby achieving our vision of sustainable
development.
II. Markets, production and marketing in summary

() Market analyses
1. Regions where the main products are sold

The company’s client group’s can be divided into:

(1) Direct client base (Asia-Pacific region, Europe, and the Americas): Mainland
China, Taiwan, Hong Kong, Korea, Vietnam, India, Thailand, Germany, Poland,
Norway, France, Switzerland, Mexico, Honduras, and the United States.

(2) Indirect client base (other regions): Oceania and Africa.

The regions where the main products are sold are show in the table below:

Unit: NT$ thousand

Region 2022 2023

Domestic sales $ 97,685 $ 85,918
Export

Asia 3,834,299 3,340,511

The Americas 107,077 124,824

Europe 117,086 81,946

Middle East and Near East 8,844 9,256

Africa 1,621 -

Oceania 37 125

$ 4,166,649 $ 3,642,580

2. Market share

The Company has been operating the business of signal transmission cables and wire
harness for 30 years or so and are highly recognized in the industry. The Company’s
consolidated revenue dropped slightly from NT$4.17 billion for 2022 to NT$3.64
billion for 2023, The global economic situation in 2023 continued to be impacted by
the Ukraine-Russia conflict and high inflation, with high customer inventory levels yet
to be cleared. Additionally, with most countries expected to implement interest rate
hikes to curb inflation expectations, the global economic outlook has become subdued.
While the Chinese economy rebounded due to relaxed control measures, the rebound
was limited, and there was a contraction in domestic demand, affecting the company's
production costs and inventory management. In the future, the company will
strengthen its product supply capabilities to introduce products into the market more
quickly and with higher quality, aiming to expand revenue and market share
continuously.
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5.

The future market supply and demand and growth potential

As the demand for end products has decrease due to the rise of handheld devices and
the innovation of cloud-based products, the demand for signal transmission cables for
consumer information and communication purposes has been continuously reduced.
However, the rise of industrial and cloud-based products and 5G technology has
caused the transmission cables to be applied in areas with a higher technical threshold.
With this market change, the product differentiation and technical threshold will be
further raised. Therefore, the opportunities for developing new products arising from
this the will have a positive effect on the Company’s future development and profits.

Competitive niche

(1)

2)

3)

(4)

Excellent R&D capabilities to stay ahead in product development in line with
market trends

Due to the rapid development of the electronic industry (4C), the Company has
attached great importance to the development of new products since the Company
was established. To meet downstream clients’ needs, the Company has launched
products constantly. With many years of R&D experience and excellent R&D
talents, and the Company strategically works with downstream clients at home and
abroad in the product development stage to fully understand their needs and market
trends. Therefore, we launch products before competitors in the industry. Also, the
Company adopts high-tech, high-frequency instruments testing instruments with
high transmission efficiency, such as a computer automated signal cable
measurement system, an optical time domain reflectometer, an impedance
gain-phase analyzer, and fatigue testing machine, to strengthen our R&D
capabilities.

Good quality control and stable product quality

The Company has very strict requirements for product quality. In addition to
improving quality through automated production equipment, the Company has
electrical testing laboratories and physical testing laboratories to ensure that the
quality of our products is stable during the production process. In addition, the
Company adopts various quality control tools (such as SPC methods) to improve
product quality to meet or even exceed clients’ requirements.

Diverse products with high added values

The Company’s products include consumer market wires, transportation cables,
industrial control cables, communication transmission cables, and medical wires. To
meet market demand, the Company continues to develop high-end,
high-value-added products. The wide variety of products will contribute to the
flexibility of the Company’s operations and enhance our response to business
headwinds.

A global layout

By establishing sites around the world, we will stay closer to the market and clients.

Advantages and disadvantages of development and countermeasures

(1

Advantages
A. Continuously expanding scope of application of connectors (wires)

The scope of application of connectors (wires) covers many fields, such as
consumer electronic products, communication networks, automotive industry,
industrial solutions, medical care, cloud servers, and peripherals thereof, and
market opportunities can be anticipated.
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An excellent management team

The Company has been manufacturing signal transmission cables and wire
harness for 30 years or so. Our management team and R&D Department have
many years of experience, which contributes to the promotion of the
Company’s business and product applications.

Close collaboration with major international businesses

With the solid R&D and service foundation, we are deeply trusted by
international major businesses and work with them to jointly develop new
products, which is conducive to increasing the Company’s visibility in the
international market.

(2) Disadvantages and countermeasures

A.

The structure of raw material costs is mainly dominated by copper and
plasticized raw materials, which are commodity. The raw material costs
fluctuate with the prices in the international market, making it difficult to
predict.

Countermeasures: Keep abreast of the future development trend of commodity,
sign long-term supply contracts with upstream suppliers in a timely manner to
stabilize material supply sources and purchase prices, and seek new sources of
supplies near where production lines are located.

Fierce competition in the electronics and information industries with product
prices under great pressure

Countermeasures: Develop differentiated, high-value-added application
products to raise the technical threshold and promote them to European and
American markets to avoid low price competition.

Upward pressure of the minimum wages in China and increase in operating
costs

Countermeasures: Improve production efficiency, reduce idle working hours,
while developing high value-added products to ensure that there are more
abundant resources to cope with the movements in operating costs.

(IT)y Manufacturing process and key purposes of our principal products

1. Key purposes of our principal products:

(1) Signal transmission cables

The Company’s main products are SFP cables, waterproof cables, EV cables, LVDS
cables, anti-winding cables, HDMI cables, display port cables, SATA cables,
IEEE-1394 cables, Lan cables, DVI cables, VGA cables, USB cables, RF cables,
DC power cables, camera link cables, HDMI 2.1 cables, HSD cables, low-loss
high-frequency coaxial cables, smart rail transit cables, among other signal cables,
in the fields of cloud servers, ships, electric vehicles, automotive, industrial control,
medical care, solar energy, communication, and consumer electronics. The main
functions:

A.

Consumer electronic products: Monitors, LCD displays, FDD/HDD, printers,
DVD players, TV games, digital TVs (HDTV), digital cameras, digital video
cameras (HDV), digital audio-visual systems, and video game consoles.

Communication network products: Local area network (LAN), telephone
switching systems, and set-top boxes.

Automotive industry products: Automotive navigation systems (GPS),
surround-view camera systems, in-vehicle data transmission systems, and
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in-vehicle infotainment systems.

D. Others: Medical care, cloud servers, and peripherals, electric vehicles, marine
and outdoor applications, and robot arms.

Main products

Important functions

Display Port Cable, VGA Cable, DVI
Cable

Monitors and LCD displays

SATA Cable

FDD/HDD

SFP Cable

Cloud servers and peripherals

USB Cable(USB 4), IEEE-1394 Cable

Printers, keyboards, mouses, digital cameras,
digital camcorders, mobile phones, game
consoles, tablets, and hard disk drives

DC Power Cable

Solar energy

Lan Cable

LAN, switching systems, and set-top boxes

RF cables and 50 Ohm RF coaxial cables:
XL-PE, RG174, CSL-100; nitrogen foam
PE: CSL-195, CSL200, CSL-240, and 50
Ohm nitrogen foam PTFE RF coaxial
cables

Automotive navigation systems (GPS), small 5G
base station antenna, underground pipeline
locator coaxial cables, and in-vehicle electronic
5G high-frequency coaxial cables

Digital TV (HDTV), CD players, digital

HDMI Cable camcorders (HDV), TV game consoles, mobile
phones, and tablets

EV Cable Electric vehicles

LVDS Cable Rear parking assist system

USB HOLDER, RTK-031/Fakra, HSD Automotive autohold cables and RF signal cables

Waterproof cables Ships and outdoor applications

Flex cables

Robot arms

Industrial camera USB3.0 and camera link
cables
AOC CAMERA LINK CABLE

High-end industrial cameras (resistant to cable
drag chains)

Inspection camera cables
Inspection Camera Cable

Pipeline inspection instruments, vision cables for
robots, or industrial endoscope cables for other
special environment

Vibration Cable

Fence cables

Intelligent rail cables

Metro ticket vending machine

Industrial network cables, cable drag chain
servo motor power cables, and encoder
cables

Industrial automation equipment, such as surface
mount systems and robotic arms.

AOC HDMI 2.0/2.1 /3.1 Cable

4K HD devices, such as 4K TVs, 4K monitors,
and 4K projectors

AOC USB AM to Mirco-B

Industrial vision systems, such as industrial
cameras, and high-definition cameras

Medical blood oxygen signal cables and
audio and video signal transmission cables

Medical devices and medical device displays

TC-ER solar energy storage cables

Cables for solar power supply, instrumentation,
and control cabinets.

Multi-mode fiber floating cables

underwater robot power cords, and data
transmission cables.
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(2) Signal transmission cable set

The Company’s main products are transmitter wire harness, signal and DC power
cables, in the fields of consumer electronics, communications, automotive, cloud,
medical care, and industrial control

According to the places where cables are used, there are the categories below:

A. Video transmission wire harness, such as display port cables, DVI cables, and
HDMI cables.
B. Network communication transmission cables, such as Lan cables.
C. Internal transmission cables include cable harness and wire harness.
D. Other types of transmission cables, such as USB cables, Type C, SFP cables,
medical device cables, and wire harness.
The main functions are shown in the table below (classified based on how
products are used):
Category Main products Important functions
Cable hamess (LVDS Monitors and internal computer cables
cables)
DVI Cable Monitors and LCD displays
Display Port Cable LCD displays
Digital TV, digital camcorders, digital
HDMI Cable audio-visual systems, and video game
Consumer
electronic products cqnsoles —
USB Cable Printers, keyboards, mouses, digital cameras,

digital camcorders, and monitors

AOC HDMI 2.0/2.1/3.1
Cable

4K HD equipment

HDMI 2.1, Type C

HD camcorders, AR, VR, and UAYV industrial
control equipment

Communication
products

LAN Cable

LAN communication switching systems,
computer network jumpers, and game
consoles

Automotive cables

Automotive electronic
connection cables
New energy electric
control cabinet wiring
harness

Automotive audio-video systems, automotive
electronic 5G transmission, automotive
mobile phone chargers, satellite navigation,
parking sensors, extended audio-video
peripherals, adapters, and car lights, New
energy charging pile cable.

Server products SFP Cable, SAS Cable  |Cloud servers and peripherals
Wire harness, medical
device cables, and cable
Medical products for Endoscope Medical device and electronic equipment

handle,brain tumor and
Neuroelectrophysiological
detection equipment

Industrial control

Wire Harness,
Electric control cabinet
wiring harness

Industrial control (resistant to cable drag
chains) and gambling or machine tool control
centers

Industrial cameras

USB 3.0, Camera Link
Cable, AOC USB AM to

High-end industrial cameras (resistant to
cable drag chains), Yamaha high-speed
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Category

Main products

Important functions

Mirco-B

AQOC Camera link cable

motion camera wire harness, and industrial
vision systems
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The manufacturing process of key products:

Transmission cables and transmission wire harness manufacturing process

A. Information and communication transmission cables

Copper
wire
input

Copper
wire
input

l l l

Twining Inner shealh Weaving
extruding
Inner sheath Further |_ g | Copper Cable A . i i nspection —_ae| Cuttingand [ W .
R ‘arehouse-in
extending extending twisting extruding Cabling Outer sheath wrapping refiouset

Aluminum
case
materials

Insulation

materials

B. Information and communication signal transmission wire harness

Access
Terminal Housing ;Z:;;rly
input input input
Cutting/ |——gue Terminal | __ | . N — .
Stripping crimping PIN inserting Knot tying
‘ !
L
Cable . .
welding Forming Packaging |——| Warchouse-in
Socket Outer film Packaging
. i material
input material ot

input
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(II) Supply status of major raw materials

Copper materials, PVC powder, plasticizer, aluminum foil, and PE are the main raw
materials of the Company (including subsidiaries). Our raw material suppliers are
domestic and overseas agents or manufacturers. The main copper material suppliers are
Sci Copper (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd., Rongxing High Conductivity Technology (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd., and Jiangxi Copper Corp.; PVC powder suppliers include Taizhou Union;
plasticizer suppliers include Zhongshan Union. As the supply of main raw materials
changes with the international market trends, the Company uses the main raw materials
timely and appropriately at affordable prices and keep abreast of the sources of the most
stable suppliers’ supply. Due to long-term close partnerships, their supply is quite stable.

(IV) The names of suppliers (clients) with purchases (sales) accounting for at least 10% of the
total in any of the last two years, the amount and percentage of the purchases (sales), and
reason for increase/ decrease

1. Information on major suppliers in the last two years (based on the consolidated
financial statements)
Unit: NT$ thousand

Item Name Amount Ratip to net pu.rchases Relatiqnship to
(Note 1) During the period (%) the issuer

1 A 809,194 30.89 None
Year 2022 2 Other 1,810,076 69.11
3  |Netpurchase | 2,619,270 100.00

1 A 765,916 32.69 None
Year 2023 2 Other 1,577,076 67.31
3 Net purchase | 2,342,992 100.00

2024 up to 1 A 124,969 22.68 None
March 31,2024| 2 |Other 426,122 77.32
(Note 2) 3 |Netpurchase | 551,091 100.00

Note 1: If the name of a supplier cannot be disclosed due to the contractual agreement or as a
transaction counterparty is an individual and not a related party, it may be indicated with a
code.

Note 2: The consolidated financial statements for 2024 Q1 were reviewed by CPA.
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2. Major clients in the last two years (based on the consolidated financial statements)
Unit: NTS$ thousand

Ttem Name Amount Ratio to net'sale Relatignship to
During the period (%) the issuer

1 None
Year 2022 Other 4,166,649 100
Net sales 4,166,649 100

1 None
Year 2023 Other 3,642,580 100
Net sales 3,642,580 100

2024 up to 1 None
March 31, 2024 Other 751,232 100
(Note ) Net sales 751,232 100

Note: The consolidated financial statements for 2024 Q1 were reviewed by CPA.

(V) Production value for the last two years

Unit: In thousands of pieces/ NT$ thousand

2022 2023

Unit
Output
value

Output

Capacity | Output value

Capacity | Output

Key Products
Information and

communication transmission M 335,509( 176,367 1,751,370 282,761| 136,734 1,420,086
cables

Information and

communication signal PCS 5,653 4,900 297,981 6,381 5,010 287,325
transmission wire harness

Plastic pellets KG 36,357 28,855| 849,920 34,004 25,519 417,390
Other 3,444 713,586 7,686 912,481
Total 3,612,857 3,037,282

Note: Others refer to products, such as raw materials, PVC powder, copper materials, as well as
machine parts and accessories.
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(VI) Sales in the last two years

Unit: In thousands of pieces/ NT$ thousand

Year
Sales 2022 2023
volume
and value Unit| Domestic sales Export Domestic sales Export
Key Products Volume| Value |Volume| Value | Volume | Value |Volume| Value
Information and
communication M 2,676 38,293| 187,921| 2,047,066 2,383 24,397 180,272 1,606,509
transmission cables
Information and
communication signal | b | 639l 53005|  5322| 490476 2384 59.973| 4086 450470
transmission wire
harness
Plastic pellets KG 786 6,297 27,618 761,883 159 1,548 28,197 591,638
Other 3,372 769,539 7,559 908,045
Total 97,685 4,068,964 85,918 3,556,662

Note: Others refer to products, such as raw materials, PVC powder, copper materials, as well as
machine parts and accessories.
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III. Information on employees during the last two years and up to the publication date of this
annual report (provided by the Human Resources Department)

May 15, 2024; unit: person

Year 2022 2023 As of May 15, 2024
General employees
(including team 36 21 19
leaders)
Managers at the
Number of | e tion manager 10 8 8
employees level
(Note) Managers at the
assistant Manager 44 37 36
level or above
Total 90 66 63
Average age 43.82 47.37 48.08
Average years of service 10.01 12.72 13.29
Doctoral Degree 0 0 0
Academic Master’s Degree 7.78 9.09 9.52
qualification | Bachelor’s Degree 71.11 80.30 79.37
(%) High school 18.89 7.58 7.94
Below high school 2.22 3.03 3.17

Note: The number of employees includes Taiwanese managers.

IV. Environmental Spending

Any losses (including compensation and environmental protection audit results in violation
of environmental laws and regulations; the date of penalty, penalty document number,
applicable law violated, content of the law, and content of penalty shall be disclosed)
incurred due to environmental pollution during the last year and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the currently estimated amount and future potential amount, and future
countermeasures. If such amounts cannot be reasonably estimated, the fact that they cannot
be estimated shall be explained: None.

V. Employee-employer relationship:

() The Company’s various employee benefit measures, continuing education, training,
pension system, and implementation thereof, as well as labor-management agreements and
various employee rights protection measures: Great

1. Employee benefits

(1) The Company has established the Employee Welfare Committee since January 1,
2005 and allocates funds to it on a monthly basis to regularly organize employee
welfare events and activities. It draws up detailed benefit plans and prepares a
budget per year.

(2) Year-end bonus and remuneration payout regulations.
(3) Wedding and funeral cash gifts and condolence money.
(4) Labor health insurance and group insurance.

(5) Domestic and overseas travel subsidies.
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(6)
(7
(8)
)

Cash gifts and gifts upon major holidays.
Birthday cash gifts and parties.
Year-end and spring parties.

Regular health examination.

Training system

(1

2)

Pre-employment training: It is to enable new recruits to have a comprehensive
understanding of the Company’s organizational structure, business approaches,
entrepreneurship, and systems and rules on their first day of work.

On-the-job training: It 1s to improve employees’ work skills, professional
knowledge, and familiarity with new laws and regulations.

The certificates and licenses designated by competent authorities obtained our

personnel related to financial transparency are as follows:

Certificates and licenses Number of people

Certified internal auditor (CIA) 2

The code of conduct and ethics for employees:

(1)

)

)

The Company’s Human Resources Management Regulations require that
employees help each other wholeheartedly and be modest and diligent; the code of
ethical conduct for employees regulates that employees should abide by
professional ethics standards, to gain the trust of the public and enhance the
corporate image.

Employees should respect the Company’s reputation and must not deceive others or
use their powers to seek personal gain or be involved in fraud in the name of the
Company; that they should be modest in interacting external parties and must not
be arrogant and insulting them to tarnish the Company’s reputation; that they must
not accept gifts from clients, competitors, or suppliers or borrow money from the
above parties; that they should not use or spend the Company’s funds for purposes
not related to work.

Employees should be dedicated to their duties and not disclose all the secrets of the
Company’s business and production technology to the outside world; unless
specifically approved, they should not concurrently hold positions outside the
Company or be involved in affairs other than work in the name of the Company.

Work environment and personal safety protection measures:

(1)

2)

©)

Employee safety protection is regarded as the top priority for the Company’s office
environment. Each entrance and exit is equipped with an access control system,
with a strict around-the-clock access control monitoring system installed to ensure
employees’ personal safety.

The entrance and exit of the Company’s office building are controlled by security
personnel at night and on holidays to maintain the public security of the building.

The Company entrusts a professional company to inspect public security every two
years in accordance with the building public security inspection certification and
reporting regulations and obtains the building public security independent
management inspection mark.
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4

)

(6)

(7

(8)

©)

The Company’s various electromechanical or fire-fighting equipment (such as fire
alarms or fire extinguishers) are in accordance with the Fire Services Act; the
Company outsources the repair or maintenance work to a professional agency from
April to June per year and report to the competent authority, while inspecting and
maintaining the air-conditioning equipment between June and August per year and
water dispensers every two months and organizing fire exercises every six months.

The Company prohibits smoking at all our business premises in accordance with
regulations and hire cleaning personnel to clean the office environment every day to
ensure that the work environment is clean and hygienic.

The Company provides hygiene products, such as alcohol and masks, to employees
at the offices. If employees have cold symptoms, they need to wear a mask to
prevent other colleagues from being infected with a cold.

The Company regards safety and health as the management team’s most important
responsibility and firmly believe that employees are the Company’s most valuable
assets. We organize employee health examination per year and continue to care for
employees’ physical and psychological health, to build a healthy enterprise full of
vitality.

The Company attaches great importance to the harmony and growth of
labor-management relations and hold a labor-management meeting every three
months to enhance labor-employment collaboration.

The Company has formulated the Regulations for Establishing Measures of
Prevention, Correction, Complaint and Punishment of Sexual Harassment at
Workplace to protect employees’ rights.

(10) In addition to purchasing labor and health insurance according to the law, the

Company purchases group insurance for each employee. If employees are on a
business trip, we also purchase additional travel insurance to protect them.

(11) The Company also purchases commercial fire insurance, plus theft insurance for the

Company’s offices and plants.

Pension system: It is handled as per the Labor Standards Act and the Labor Pension
Act.

(1

)

Those who retire under the Labor Standards Act:

A. The Company makes a monthly contribution, equal to 2% of all employees’
total monthly salaries, and has established a Supervisory Committee of Labor
Retirement Reserve.

Each employee is granted two base points for each full year of work according
to the number of working years. However, those who have worked for 15
years or above will be granted a base point for each full year of work, and the
maximum total number of the base points is 45. The length of work less than
half a year is counted as half a year; half a year or above is counted as one
year.

B. For those who retire mandatorily with their physical and psychological
disabilities caused during the performance of duties, an additional 20% of the
pension shall be paid in accordance with the provisions of the preceding
paragraph.

C. The standard for the pension amount is subject to the average monthly salary
when the retirement is approved.

Those who retire under the Labor Pension Act;:
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A. The Company makes monthly contributions, equal to 6% of the total monthly
salaries of employees, to their pension accounts with the Bureau of Labor
Insurance.

B. Employees who have reached the age of 60 and have worked for 15 years or
above may apply for the monthly pension scheme. However, those who have
worked for fewer than 15 years shall only apply for pension in a lump sum.

C. The number of years of work in the preceding paragraph shall be based on the
number of years of contribution to the pension funds. If there is an interruption
in the number of years of work, the number of years of work before and after
the interruption shall be counted together.

Employees who have adopted the pension scheme under the Labor Standards Act
before the implementation of the Labor Pension Act, still served at the same
business after the Labor Pension Act took effect, and chose to adopt the pension
scheme under the Labor Pension Act, the number of years of their work before said
act took effect, should be retained.

7. Labor-management agreements and various employee rights protection measures:

Positive.

(1) We regularly hold labor-management meetings to establish a labor-management
negotiation mechanism.

(2) We have an employee grievance system in place to improve labor-management
relations and gender equality at work.

(3) We have the work rules and the Human Resources Management Regulations in
place to clearly define both employer and employees’ rights, obligations, and
management tasks, to enable employees to fully understand and protect their rights
and interest.

(I) Any losses (including labor inspection results in violation of the Labor Standards Act; the
date of penalty, penalty document number, applicable law violated, content of the law, and
content of penalty shall be disclosed) incurred due to labor disputes during the last year and
up to the publication date of this annual report, the currently estimated amount and future
potential amount, and future countermeasures. If such amounts cannot be reasonably
estimated, the fact that they cannot be estimated shall be explained:

Since the Company was established, the labor-management relations have been
harmonious, and no loss has be incurred due to labor disputes. It is estimated that the
possibility of losses due to labor disputes in the future is extremely low.

VI. ICT security management

(I) Describe the ICT security risk management framework, the ICT security policy, specific
management plan and the resources invested in the ICT security management, etc.

(1) Cyber security risk management framework

The Company’s information security unit is the Information Management Division,
which is equipped with an information security supervisor and dedicated
personnelis and be responsible for formulating the Company’s information security
system, establishing a secure and reliable business operating environment, and
ensuring the security of data, systems, and network environments. Additionally,
they regularly review the company's information security management framework
and policies to ensure appropriateness and report to the CEO.

The Audit Division is an information security supervisory unit and conducts annual
audits and assessments to ensure its suitability and security.
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(2) Cyber security policy

A.

K.

The login account and password are required to use the Company’s system
resources within the scope of access permissions to maintain system security
and controllability.

User passwords can be updated at any time. The Information Department
regularly reminds users of changing their passwords and the information
security policy and rules.

Various network services are handled in accordance with the information
security policy, and different departments are given different access
permissions based on their attributes.

We regularly review the settings of firewalls and email gateways and timely
reinforce their security mechanisms to ensure the security of the Company’s
network environment and email delivery.

We carry out the virus detection and scanning tasks in real time automatically
for the operating systems, network environments, and emails.

We regularly update the anti-virus software version and update the latest virus
pattern at any time.

We back up system data automatically per day.

The Information Management Division stores the external storage media for
important backups in the security boxes of public or private banks with good
reputation and updates the above media at least once per week.

We have established a remote backup mechanism for important system data
and store the data in a remote backup service provider’s IDC.

The ICT supervisors and employees receive training related to information
security.

Join a cybersecurity information sharing organization to obtain cybersecurity
threat intelligence, cybersecurity threats, and vulnerability information.

(3) Specific management plans

A.

Hardware equipment and data center management

a.  Without information personnel’s permission, it is not allowed to move or
disassemble computers, hosts, monitors, among other computer
peripherals.

b. It is not allowed to change the relevant settings of the computer system
without consent, and if necessary, it should be handled with information
personnel’s assistance.

c. The data center is equipped with an independent air-conditioning and a
backup air-conditioning, a security surveillance, an access control, and
uninterruptible power supply systems, and firefighting equipment; we
regularly repair or maintain the equipment, to allow the center to
continue to operate normally and securely.

d. When a person enters and leaves the data center, they should be escorted
by the Company’s information personnel and need to fill out the data
center access control form.

e. When a service provider is to maintain software or hardware, they should
be escorted and supervised by the Company’s information personnel.

Software version management

a. Any software system not obtained through legal procedures is strictly
prohibited in the Company.
b. Software that has not been confirmed by the information unit, regardless
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of whether it is legal or not, may not be installed on the Company’s
computers.

c. Public software and documents are stored in a safe place of the
Information Management Division and properly kept.

Virus and illegal intrusion and email management

a. The personal computers and servers used by all our employees are
equipped with anti-virus software, and anti-virus software is also used to
detect viruses in external storage media. The latest version of the virus
pattern is automatically updated. The Company has an anti-spam system
in place, and each email sent or received through our email server and
files attached thereto will be sent or received after being scanned.

b. We detect and block all illegal intrusion into the Company’s network
around the clock and adjust the defense mechanism in a timely manner.

Major disaster emergency response and recovery plan management

In response to unexpected accidents that cause a system to fail to operate
normally, the Company has formulated a disaster emergency response and
recovery plan, tests the plan with simulated scenarios, records the test
procedures and results, and analyzes the improvement procedures to minimize
the impact of disasters on the Company’s information operations.

(4) Resources put in information security management

A.

We prepare a budget for information operations per year to maintain and
reinforce information security protection, such as renewal of software and
hardware repair and maintenance contracts and replacement of relevant data
center equipment.

The company has two dedicated personnel for ICT, including one supervisor
and one specialist.

Supervisor and specialist have 5 discussion for ICT security management in
2023.

(IT) List the losses, possible impacts, and countermeasures from major ICT security incidents in
the last year and up to the publication date of the annual report. If a reasonable estimate
cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be made shall be provided:

The Company did not encounter any major information security incidents that would
affect the operations during 2023.

VII. Important contract

Contract Participants Contract start and Main contents Restrictive clauses
nature end dates
During the duration of the
November 21, 2022- current rato, deb o, and
Chang Hwa Bank |November 21, 2027 . . ’ .
. A syndicated loan |interest coverage ratio in the
Loan |and other five Five years from the s \
NP of NT$ 1 billion or {Company’s Q2 and annual
contract [participating date of first . . . .
equivalent in USD |consolidated financial
banks drawdown
. . statements should meet the
(revolving credit) . .
requirements in the loan
contract.
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Chapter VI

Financial status

I.  Condensed balance sheet, statement of comprehensive income, names and audit
opinions of the CPAs for the last five years

(I) Condensed balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income

Condensed balance sheet

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year Financial information for the last 5 years Financial data for
2024 up to March
Item 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 | 31,2024 (Note )
Current assets 3.207,729| 3,440,796 3,325,198 3.193,018| 2,736,368 2,777,741
Property, plant and 446,243| 414,498| 570,804| 701,327| 964,076 1,029,818
equipment
Intangible assets 5,718 4,566 4,446 5,067 4,950 5,281
Other assets 242,953 245284] 494229] 549.812] 530,889 493,018
Total assets 3.902.643| 4,105,144 4,394.677| 4,449,224 4.236,283 4,305,858
Before dividend| | 539 0911 1 647.160| 1,684,735 1,585.921| 2,341,467 1,540,010
Current distribution
liabilities |After dividend 1,581,591 1,689,660| 1,710,235| 1,629.696| 2,341,467 1,540,010
distribution
Non-current liabilities 527.151| 543393 767,720 923.530| 403,899 1,169,435
Before dividend| , ¢ 5151 5100553 2.452.455 2.509.451| 2,745366 2,709,445
Total distribution
liabilities |After dividend | ) ¢ 7051 5 533 053] 2.477.955| 2.553.226| 2.745.366 2,709,445
distribution
Equity attributable to
owners of the parent 1,822,712| 1,903,215| 1,930,630| 1,930,024 1,481,416 1,573,645
company
Share capital 850,000 850,000 850,000] 875,500 875,500 875,500
. Before dividend) 13 he7l  424030|  424230| 424230] 380.455 380,455
Capital distribution
surplus \After dividend | )5 hel 424930 424230] 380455 380455 380,455
distribution
. Before dividend) -0 7011 916268|  955.118]  883.636| 520911 503,855
Retained |distribution
camings \After dividend | o35 7011 ¢73 768] 929618 883,636 520911 503,855
distribution
Other equity interests (328,576)] (287,283)] (298,718)| (253,342)] (290,450) (186,165)
Treasury stock - - - - - -
Non-controlling interests 13,689 11,376 11,592 9,749 9,501 22,768
Before dividend| | ¢3¢ 1011 1.914.501| 1.942,222] 1.939.773] 1,490,917 1,596,413
Total distribution
equity \After dividend | 793 o011 | 872 091| 1.916,722| 1,895.998| 1,490,917 1,596,413
distribution

Note : The consolidated financial statements for 2024 Q1 were reviewed by a CPA.
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Condensed consolidated statements of comprehensive income
Unit: NT§ thousand

Year

Item

Financial information for the last 5 years

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Financial data
for 2024 up to
March 31, 2024

(Note 1)

Revenue

3,529,149

3,597,629

4,849,634

4,166,649

3,642,580

751,232

Gross profit (Note 2)

658,122

714,789

799,868

617,607

363,559

102,368

Operating income
(loss)

93,375

122,233

127,465

(54,321)

(360,820)

(39,959)

Non-operating income
and expenses

12,929

19,045

14,435

38,448

5,882

24,883

Net income (loss)
before tax

106,304

141,278

141,900

(15,873)

(354,938)

(15,076)

Current net income
from continuous
operations

51,106

81,408

82,084

(24,634)

(362,607)

(17,174)

Gain(loss) from
discontinued
operations

Current net income
(loss)

51,106

81,408

82,084

(24,634)

(362,907)

(17,174)

Other comprehensive
income in the current
period (net amount
after tax)

(115,509)

42,188

(11,953)

47,685

(42,474)

109,654

Total comprehensive
income

(64,403)

123,596

70,131

23,051

(405,081)

92,480

Net income (loss)
attributable to parent
owner

49,211

79,942

81,823

(22,606)

(362,509)

(17,056)

Net income (loss)
attributable to
non-controlling
interests

1,895

1,466

261

(2,028)

(98)

(118)

Total comprehensive
income attributable to
owners of the parent
company

(65,694)

121,860

69,915

24,894

(404,833)

92,229

Total comprehensive
income attributable to
non-controlling
interests

1,291

1,736

216

(1,843)

(248)

251

Earnings (loss) per
share (NTD) (NT$)

(Note 3)

0.58

0.94

0.93

(0.26)

(4.14)

(0.19)

Note 1: The consolidated financial statements for 2024 Q1 were reviewed by a CPA.
Note 2: It includes the profit on sales that have been (un)realized.
Note 3: It is the earnings per share adjusted based on the weighted average number

of ordinary shares.
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(I) Condensed parent company-only balance sheets and parent company-only
statement of comprehensive income - [IFRS

Condensed Parent Company-Only Balance Sheet - [IFRS
Unit: NTS thousand

Year Financial information for the last 5 years
Item 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Current assets 641,162] 666,143] 639.840] 697.546] 826,637
Property, plant and 187.423|  177.868] 171,657| 160.177] 133,819
equipment
Intangible assets 80 51 22 - -
Other assets 3421971| 3.667.765| 3.807,024] 3.912.547| 3.557.773
Total assets 4249.636] 4.511,827| 4.618.521| 4.770.270| 4,518,229
Before dividend | ) 119 9ol | 562,850 1.636.996| 1,651,657 2.419.129
Current distribution
liabilities |After dividend | ) 7 46>l | 065350| 1.662.496| 1.695.432| 2.419,129
distribution
Non-current liabilities 996,962| 1,045.762| 1,050,895 1,188.589| 617.684
Before dividend |5 1) ¢ 974 2 608.612| 2.687.891| 2.840.246| 3.036.813
Total distribution
liabilities |After dividend | ) ) oo 14l 5 651.112| 2.713.391] 2.884.021| 3.036.813
distribution
Equity attributable to
owners of the parent - - - - -
company
Share capital 850,000] 850,000] 850,000] 875.500] 875,500
. Before dividend | 13 ool 4pa030]  424230] 424230 380,455
Capital distribution
surplus - JAfterdividend | 15 o5l 44030 424230] 380455 380455
distribution
. Before dividend | ¢-0 0011 916268  955.118|  883.636| 520,911
Retained |distribution
carnings | After dividend 835.701| 873,768| 929.618| 883.636| 520911
distribution
Other equity interests (328,576)] (287,283)] (298,718)] (253,342)] (295,450)
Treasury stock - - - - -
Non-controlling interests - - - - -
Before dividend
clore d 1,822.712| 1,903,215 1,930,630 1,930,024| 1,481,416
Total distribution
equity |Afterdividend | o5 101 1 960,715 1.005.130| 1.886.249| 1.481.416
distribution
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Condensed Parent Company-Only Statement of Comprehensive Income - IFRS
Unit: NT$ thousand

Year

[tem

Financial information for the last 5 years

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Revenue

410,598

305,892

310,027

255,558

283,389

Gross profit (Note 1)

53,308

27,094

42,004

28,922

27,415

Operating income (loss)

(60,195)

(111,844)

(60,660)

(77,810)

(91,906)

Non-operating income and
expenses

96,646

171,071

129,654

40,951

(283,736)

Net income (loss) before
tax

36,451

59,227

68,994

(36,859)

(375,642)

Current net income from
continuous operations

49,211

79,942

81,823

(22,606)

(362,509)

Gain(loss) from
discontinued operations

Current net income (loss)

49,211

79,942

81,823

(22,606)

(362,509)

Other comprehensive
income in the current
period (net amount after
tax)

(114,905)

41,918

(11,908)

47,500

(42,324)

Total comprehensive
income

(65,694)

121,860

69,915

24,894

(404,833)

Net income attributable to
owners of the parent
company

Net income attributable to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive
income attributable to
owners of the parent
company

Total comprehensive
income attributable to
non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share
(NTD)
(Note 2)

0.58

0.94

0.93

(0.26)

(4.14)

Note 1: It includes the profit on sales that have been (un)realized.
Note 2: It is the earnings per share adjusted based on the weighted average number

of ordinary shares.
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(ITI) Names and audit opinions of the CPAs for the last five years

Year Auditor’s firm CPA Opinion
2019 Deloitte & Touche Tsai, Mei-Chen, Unqualified opinion
Chen, Ming-Hui q p
. Tsai, Mei-Chen,; . ..
2020 Deloitte & Touche Chen, Ming-Hui Unqualified opinion
. Tsai, Mei-Chen,; . .
2021 Deloitte & Touche Chen, Ming-Hui Unqualified opinion
. Tsai, Mei-Chen; . ..
2022 Deloitte & Touche Huang, Yu-Feng Unqualified opinion
2023 Deloitte & Touche Tsai, Mei-Chen, Unqualified opinion

Huang, Yu-Feng
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II.  Financial analysis for the last 5 years

(I) Consolidation Financial Analysis - [FRS

Year

Financial analysis for the last 5 years 2024 up to
March 31,
Analysis item (Note 2) 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 | 2024 (Note 1)
: . . |Debt to assets ratio 52.94 53.36 55.81 56.40 64.81 62.92
Financial
structure |Ratio of long-term
(%) capital to property, 529.66| 593.00{ 474.76] 408.27| 196.54 268.58
plant and equipment
Current ratio 208.42| 208.89| 197.37| 201.34| 116.87 180.37
Solvency Liquid ratio 182.49| 179.35| 164.44| 173.50 98.38 150.46
(%)
Interest coverage 582 812|725 056]  (6.54) (0.19)
ratio
Turnover rate of
accounts receivable 2.17 2.19 2.65 2.45 2.71 2.35
(times)
Number of days in 168 167|138 149 135 155
average cashing.
Rate of stock 932 869 10.10]  9.29| 10.86 7.92
turnover (times)
. Rate of payable
Operating : 10.07 8.78 13.24 14.18 15.13 11.32
ability turnover (times)
Average number of 39 42 36 39| 33.61 46
days in sales.
Rate of real estate,
plant buildings and 7.93 8.36 9.84 6.55 4.37 3.19
equipment (times)
Rate of turnover rate
for total assets 0.91 0.90 1.14 0.94 0.84 0.68
(times)
Return on assets (%) 1.78 2.43 2.36 0.09] (7.48) (0.16)
i/et)“m on equity 267|434 426 (1.27)] (@1.14) (0.98)
o
Ratio of net income
gy [0S beforetax tothe |y g4y o ool 16.69|  (1.81)] (40.54) ;
Profitability | .4 in capital (%) ' ' ' ' '
(Note7)
Net income (loss) rate
%) 1.45 2.26 1.69 (0.59) (9.95) (2.29)
Earnings (loss) per
share (NTD) 0.58 0.94 0.96 (0.26) (4.14) (0.19)
Cash flow ratio (%) 21.11 - - 42.26 3.07 (0.48)
Cash flow adequacy
Cash flow |ratio (%) 113.40 83.65 50.02| 102.88 74.13 54.74
Cash reinvestment 8.39 ] 12027 136 (0.24)

ratio (%)
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Business operation

Leverage leverage

920 691 7.77| (1422)|  (1.39)

Financial leverage 1.31 1.19 1.22 0.60 0.88

Please specify the reasons for the movements in various financial ratios in the last two years (if the
movement does not reach 20%, an analysis is not required)

1. Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment  Current ratio, Liquid ratio:
The classification of long-term borrowings for 2023 syndicated loan as current liabilities
resulted in a decrease in the ratio..

2. Interest coverage ratio: The increase in pre-tax losses for 2023 fiscal year compared to
the 2022 led to a decrease in the interest coverage ratio..

3. Turnover of real estate, plant and equipment: The decrease in real estate, plant and
equipment turnover is mainly due to lower revenue in 2023 compared to 2022.

4. Profitability: All ratios decreased primarily due to the increase in after-tax losses for the
fiscal year 2023 compared to 2022.

5. Cash flow: All ratios decreased mainly due to increase in capital expenditure in Jiangxi
and Dongtai area.

Note 1: The consolidated financial statements for 2024Q1 were reviewed by a CPA.

Note 2: The calculation formulas are as follows:
1. Financial structure

(1) The ratio of total liabilities to total assets = Total liabilities / Total assets

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment = (Total equities +
noncurrent liabilities) / Property, plant and equipment.

2. Solvency

(1) Current ratio = Current assets / Current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventories - Prepaid expense) / current liabilities.

(3) Interest coverage ratio = Net profit before interest and tax / Interest expenses for
the current period.

3. Operating ability

(1) Accounts receivable turnover (including accounts receivable and notes receivable
from operating activities) = Net sales / Balance of average accounts receivable in
each period (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from operating
activities).

(2) Number of days in averaged cashing = 365 / Turnover rate of account receivable.

(3) Inventory turnover rate = Sales cost / Averaged inventory amount.

(4) Turnover rate of the payables (Including accounts payable and the notes payable
incurred by business operation) = Sales cost / Balance of the payables averaged in
various term (Including accounts payable and the notes payable incurred by
business operation).

(5) Number of days on averaged sales = 365 / Inventory turnover rate.

(6) Turnover rate of real estate, plants and equipment = Net amount of sales / Averaged
net amount for the real estate, plants and equipment.

(7) Overall asset turnover rate = Net amount of sales / Total of average assets.

4.  Profitability

(1) Return on assets = (After tax net profit + Interest expenses x ( 1- tax rate)) /
Average asset balance.

(2) Return on shareholders’ equity = After tax net profit / Total average equity.

(3) Profit margin = Profit or loss after tax / Net sales.

(4) Earnings per share = (Profits or loss attributable to owners of the parent company -
Preferred stock dividend) / Weighted average stock shares issued.

5. Cash flow

(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities / current liabilities.

(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio= Net cash flow from operating activities within five
years / (Capital expenditure + Inventory increase + Cash dividend) within five
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years.

(3) Cash re-investment ratio= (Net cash flow from operating activity - Cash dividend) /
gross property, Plant, and equipment + Long-term investment + Other non-current
assets + Working capital).

Leverage:

(1) Operation leverage = (Net amount of operating revenues - Variable operating costs
and expenses) / Operating profit.

(2) Financial leverage = Operating profit / (Operating profit - Interest expenses).
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(IT) Parent Company-Only Financial Analysis - IFRS

Year(Note 1)

Analysis item (Note 2)

Financial analysis for the last 5 years

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Financial
structure
(%)

Debt to assets ratio

57.11

57.82

58.20

59.54

67.21

Ratio of long-term
capital to property,
plant and equipment

1,504.44

1,657.96

1,736.91

1,946.98

1,568.61

Solvency
(%0)

Current ratio

44.84

42.62

39.09

42.23

34.17

Liquid ratio

44.43

41.92

37.91

41.12

33.75

Interest coverage ratio

3.76

5.31

6.30

Operating
ability

Turnover rate of
accounts receivable
(times)

2.98

3.01

4.46

4.68

5.37

Number of days in
average cashing.

122

121

82

78

68

Rate of stock turnover
(times)

629.95

203.74

36.35

22.52

54.92

Rate of payable
turnover (times)

9.05

7.49

8.54

7.49

8.54

Average number of
days in sales.

1

2

10

16

Rate of real estate,
plant buildings and
equipment (times)

2.45

1.67

1.77

1.54

1.93

Rate of turnover rate
for total assets (times)

0.10

0.07

0.07

0.05

0.06

Profitability

Return on assets (%)

1.40

2.08

2.02

(0.16)

(7.30)

Return on equity (%)

2.59

4.29

4.27

(1.17)

(21.25)

Ratio of net income
(loss) before tax to the
paid-in capital (%)
(Note6)

4.29

6.97

8.12

4.21)

(42.91)

Net income (loss) rate
(%)

11.99

26.13

26.39

(8.85)

(127.92)

Earnings (loss) per share
(NTD)

0.58

0.94

0.96

(0.26)

(4.14)

Cash flow

Cash flow ratio (%)

Cash flow adequacy
ratio (%)

4.93

3.16

3.26

3.96

Cash reinvestment
ratio (%)

Leverage

Business operation
leverage

Financial leverage
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Please specify the reasons for the movements in various financial ratios in the last two years (if the

movement does not reach 20%, an analysis is not required)

1. Inventory turnover ratio, average days of sales: The closure of the Sulin plant in October
2023 resulted in reduced inventory.

2. Rate of real estate, plant buildings and equipment: The increase in this ratio is mainly
due to higher revenue in 2023 compared to 2022.

3. Profitability:A Il ratios decreased primarily due to the increase in after-tax losses for the
fiscal year 2023 compared to 2022.

Note 1: The above financial data from 2019 through 2023 has been certified by CPAs.
Note 2: The formulas in this table are the same at those in the above consolidated financial
analysis.

II. Audit Committee’s Review Report on the Last Year’s Financial Statements

Auditing Committee’s audit report

The Board of directors of the company delivers the 2023 business report,
financial statements and consolidated financial statements and surplus
distribution, etc., the financial statements and consolidated financial
statements have been DELOITTE & TOUCHE and issued an unreserved

opinion audit report.

The above-mentioned business report, financial statements and consolidated
financial statements and surplus distribution has been audited by the board
and found to be correct, therefore, report according to Section 14-4 of the

Securities Trading Act and section 219 of the Companies Act.

Copartner Technology Corp.

Convener of Audit Committee: Yung-Jane, Hsu

March 13, 2024
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IV. The last year’s financial statements and tables

The affiliates that are required to be included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of
Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of
Affiliated Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements
prepared in conformity with the IFRS 10. In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the
combined financial statements of affiliates is included in said consolidated financial statements.
Consequently, a separate set of combined financial statements of affiliates will not be prepared.

It is hereby declared that the above information is true and correct.

Name of company: Copartner Technology Corp.

Person in charge: Ho, Chun-Hsien

March 13, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Copartner Technology Corporation:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Copartner Technology Corporation and
its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets for the year ended December 31,
2023 and 2022, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the consolidated statements of changes in equity and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the consolidated notes to the financial statements (including a summary of
significant accounting policies).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations
(SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors, Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with the Norm of
Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. These
matters were addressed in the context of our Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.
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Key audit matters for the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended December 31, 2023 are stated as follows:

Revenue Recognition

1. Copartner Technology Corporation and its subsidiaries’ main source of income is R&D,
manufacturing and sales of signal transmission wires and wire sets for information,
communication and consumer electronics products, automobiles, medical equipment, industrial
equipment, automation equipment and servers; R&D, manufacturing and sales of plastic
products. Net revenue in 2023 is NT$3,642,580 thousands, please refer to Note IV, XIII and
XX in the financial statements for policies related to revenue recognition.

2. The revenue of Copartner Technology Corporation and it’s subsidiary decline 13% compare to
the previous year due to weak demand. However, some subsidiaries had a higher gross profit
margin. Therefore, the CPA compared the sales revenue of these subsidiaries with the sales
revenue in 2022 to identify any positive growth in sales to their customers compared to the
overall sales trend. Subsequently, any differences were considered as potential sources of fraud
risk. As a result, this assessment was deemed a critical auditing matter.

3. The accountant performs the following procedures for the above key audit matter:

(1) Identify revenue recognition of Copartner Technology Corporation’s subsidiary, and
perform relevant control tests.

(2) Check the sales transactions where the subsidiary’s gross profit margin is higher than the
consolidated before write-off and the sales to customers show a positive growth
compared to the previous year's sales and exhibit differences from the overall sales trend,
and review documents such as customer orders, customer receipts or freight receipts, and
invoices to verify whether the transaction occurred, to identify whether the purchasers
are consistent with the cash payers as well.

Other Matters

We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of Copartner Technology

Corporation as year of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 on which we have

issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial

statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by

Securities Issuers and the IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the
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Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

Company and its subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company and its subsidiaries or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible for

overseeing the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to

issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement contained in
the consolidated financial statements. Misstatements may be a result of fraud or error.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company and its subsidiaries’ internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company and its
subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and its subsidiaries to cease to
continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidences concerning the financial information of the
entities in the Company and its subsidiaries, to express opinions on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for guiding, supervising, and performing the audit and forming
an audit opinion on the Company and its subsidiaries.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company

and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Deloitte & Touche

CPA: Tsai, Mei-Chen CPA: Huang, Yu-Feng

Financial Supervisory Commission R.O.C. Securities and Futures Commission Approval
Approval Document No. Document No.

Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No.1010028123 Tai-Zai-Zheng-Liu-Zi No0.0920123784

March 13, 2024

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position,
financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the
Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such
consolidated financial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors' report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China If there is
any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two
versions, the Chinese- language independent auditors' report and consolidated financial statements shall prevail.

-129 -



Suy)-nys ‘Susy) JuLIUNOdIE JOIYD)

Sunpy-uop ‘oery :1eSeurjy

*sy1oda [erouruIy pojepIjosuoo ) Jo 1red [eidojur ue oe sojou Jurkueduwioode ay |,

USISH-UNY)) ‘oY :uBWLIRYD)

00T vicoryy 00T €8T 9EC T Aymbo pue soniiqer| [e10], 00T vTorry 0or £8T9EC $I0ssE [B10], XXX
22 €LL6E6'T 43 LT6067T Aymbo [er01, XXX€
B 6¥L6 B 1056 §1s010)ul SUI[JONUOO-UON  XX9€¢
a4 ¥20°0€6°1 93 91T I8H°1 Aueduroo yuared ay) jo s19uMm0 jo Ajnba 10, XXT1€
9 ) (TFese ) L) (0s¥Fs6r ) sjsazejut A)mba 1oy10 00¥€
0T 9¢9°¢88 4] 1167025 SsSuIUIES paulelal [elo], 00€€
L [ B (9€0°S ) sSuluIes paurejal
payeridorddeun) (sassof ayy 10} dn apejA) 0S€E
L 81L°86T 9 TreestT 9A10801 [e102dg 0zee
9 S09°CLT 9 S09°CLT QAI0S0X B8] oreg
s3urures paureloy
01 0cCrey 6 SSH08¢ snjduns [ende) 002€
0T 00558 14 00558 soreys AreurpiQ orre 8T 90T 9STT 43 ST6°667 1 $JOSSE JUDLINO-UOU [EJO], XXS1
(XIX % Al S210N) B LELT B B
Kuedwoos juared ot Jo s1oUMO 03 d[qenqunie A3nbyg $10SSE JUILIND-UOU IOYIQ 0661
- T€9°0C - 159°61 (ITAXX % Al s90N) pred sysodop ojqepunjay 0Z61
9 TS760ST 9 99€SHLT SONIIqEI] [eI0L, XXX 4 STIT8 4 85756 (ITXX % A ‘Al S9I0N) SIOSSE X} OUOdUI POLIGJO(] 0¥81
- €LL - 69 (AX 79 Al $OI10N) S10sse d[qI3ueiu] 1281
T 0€S°ET6 01 6687€0F SONI[IQEI] JUSLINO-UOU [2}0], XXST - Y6Tt - 95Ty (AIX ® Al SII0N) [[IMPOOD S081
B 9%CE B 6L0°9 PAALL0RI suISIews pue s)sodap djuerens S¥9T 6 817°66€ 6 verTLe (X % Al S3ION) $19sse asn-§0-1ySry SSLT
I $69°7€ I 9L0°1€ 91 LTETOL (%4 9L0'796 (IMAXX
(IIIAX 29 Al S2I0N) AV[Iqe1] J1Jouq poulap JoN 09T 2 11X ‘Al $910N) Juouwrdmba pue yuejd ‘Auadorg 0091
9 81518 L 076°89T (IITX % AI S9ION) JUSLINO-UOU - SINI[IqRI] IS8T 08ST I 18Ty I S08°0% (X ® Al
mouozv poyjamx \nts_uQ wEm: J0J pPajunodde SJUIUIISIAUT 0SST
- 680°€ - 170°€ (ITA % AT S910N)
JUALIMJ-UouU - dWodul m>mwﬁo£u‘_n_500
Pl TLOP09 T $08°L6 (ITAXX % [AX $9I0N) $3UIM0110q WId)-5u0T] 8294 19430 YSNOIY) ON[eA JIEJ JE SIASSE [eIdURUL] L[S
mmﬁd:n_.m: H:mtzunr_oz 1 Ssjosse ucvbﬁonzoz
93 T26°S8S°T S LOVTHET SONIIQEI] JUALIND €10, XX1T [ 810°€61°E S9 89€9€LC $1OSSE JUOLIND [EJO], XXI1
3 TOL'SEE 6 TLEE9E (ITAX P10N) SOII[IQeI[ JUaLIND 1oY)0 66€T - €I8CI - €90°8 (IIXX SOION) SIOSSE JULIND 130 0Lp1
- S66°L1 81 8LOTLL 4 YLV V6 4 SOp°sS1 sworfddns 0) soouUBApY 011
(IMAXX % IAX 8 6LIYEE 9 0St°69T
SOJON]) 189K QUO UIIM np SFUIMOLIO] WLIL)-FUOT 07€T (XA 2 A ‘Al S9ION) SOLIOJUSAU] XO0€1
I 80S°L9 I 918°6S (IIIX % AI $9ION) JUSLINO - SANI[IQEI] 5L 08¢ - LETTL - €851 (ITIA % AT S9I0N) 10U ‘SO[EAIOI0T 10YIO 00C1
I TSL'8T - STY11 - 918 - 8€€°l (IAXX % XX ‘A ‘Al S210N)
A:xx 2 Al wmuozv nm::—ew: Xey mEOoﬁ_ juaun) 0€TT Jjou nmvﬁ\_mm @m«ﬁmu EO\@ o:—u Enﬂ>m®o®u SUNOIY 0811
- LET - Sov'l (IAXX 0¢ LS9TIET ST 9€L°TSO°T (XX % TIIA ‘A ‘Al S91ON)
EOZV mozpwa Paje[al woly anp o-@m\ﬂag SIUNOIY 08I¢C Jou nozmiuooh SUNOIY OLTT
S T98°LET S 17161 o[qeded sjunosoy 0L1T - - - 9T (IAXX % ‘A ‘Al $210N)
- uwm,h - Nmm.h Cmvm BOZV SANIIqeI] JoeNUOD JUALIND) 0€IT Ju ,mo_ﬁca Paje[al WOty anp I[qRAIIAL SAJON 0911
I 000°0% - - (IAX 210N) o]qeAed sojou uLd)-1I0YS 011z 14 120°191 14 160°191 (IIIA % A ‘Al SRION) JoU 9[qEAI2IAI SOJON 0S11
61 000°0S8  $ 44 6LY1€6 $ (IAX 910N) S3UIMO1I0] ULIA)-LI0YS 0012 8T 128°Y9T°1$ 9T 9L9'SLOTS (AP AI SA10N) SJUd[eAINbD Ysed pue yse)) 0011
SANI[IqeI] Judliny $3Jasse jua.Lmny)
% junoury % junowry %.:Svm— pue saniiqery ApoD % junowry % junowry S)assy ApoD

20T 1€ 240
puesnoy $IN 3up

£20C 1€ 19quaoag

TTOT 1€ 1oquidoaq

TT0T ANV €202 ‘1€ ¥99WdDdd
SI1AdHS dONVIVE d4d1vVAITOSNOD

SANVIAISENS ANV 'dd0D ADOTONHIIL YANLIVAOD

£20C ‘1€ 1qudaosg

- 130 -



COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings (loss) per share)

Code

4100 Sales of revenue (Notes IV, XX &

XXVI)

5110 Sales cost (Notes 1V, IX, XXI &

XXVI)

5900 Gross profit

Operating expenses

6100 Selling expenses (Note XXI)

6200 Administrative expenses (Note
XXI)

6300 R&D expenses (Note XXI)

6450 Expected credit impairment
loss (Notes IV & VIII)

6000 Total operating expenses

6900 Net operating loss

Non-operating income and expenses

7100 Interest income (Note XXI)

7010 Other income (Note XXI)

7020 Other gains and losses (Notes
IV & XXI)

7050 Finance costs (Notes IV &
XXI)

7060 Share of profit on associates
accounted for using equity
method (Notes IV & XI)

7000 Total non-operating

(Carried forward)

income and expenses

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
$ 3,642,580 100 $ 4,166,649 100
3.279.021 90 3.549.042 85
363,559 10 617.607 15
205,669 6 206,790 5
365,970 10 295,179 7
146,019 4 150,540 4
6.721 - 19.419 -
724.379 20 671,928 16
( 360,820) (__10) ( 54.321) ( 1)
16,894 - 14,628 -
37,346 1 36,853 1
702 - 15,411 1
( 47,054) ( 1) ( 35,968) ( 1)
( 2.006) - 7.524 -
5.882 - 38.448 1
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(Brought forward)

Code

7900
7950

8200

8310

8311

8360

8361

8300

8500

8610
8620
8600

8710
8720
8700

9710
9810

Chairman: Ho, Chun-Hsien

Net loss before tax
Income tax expenses (Notes IV, V &
XXII)

Current net loss

Other comprehensive income

Items not reclassified to profit
or loss:

Remeasurement of
defined benefit
obligation (Notes [V &
XVIII)

Components of other
comprehensive income (loss)
that will be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
financial statements
(Notes IV & XIX)

Other comprehensive
income for the current
year

Total comprehensive income for the
current year

Current net income (loss)
attributable to:
Owners of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to:
Owners of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share (Note XXIII)
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial reports.

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
($ 354,938) 10) ($ 15,873) -
7.669 - 8,761 -
( 362.,607) 10) «( 24.634) -
( 216) - 2,124 -
( 42,258) 1) 45.561 1
( 42.,474) 1) 47,685 1
($__ 405,081) 11) $ 23,051 1
($ 362,509) 10) ($ 22,606) -
( 98) - 2.028) -
($_ 362,607) 10) ($ 24.634) -
($ 404,833) 11) $ 24,894 1
( 248) - ( 1,843) -
($__ 405,081) 11) $ 23,051 1
(. 4.14) (8 0.26)
(. 4.14) (. 0.26)

Manager: Liao, Wen-Hung
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COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
Unit: NT$ thousand

Code 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities
A10000 Current net loss before tax ($ 354,938) ($ 15,873)
A20000 Adjustments to reconcile:
A20100 Depreciation expense 174,261 187,843
A20200 Amortization expense 327 132
A20300 Expected credit impairment loss 6,721 19,419
A20900 Finance costs 47,054 35,968
A21200 Interest income ( 16,894) ( 14,628)
A22300 Share of profit or loss on associates
accounted for using equity method 2,006 ( 7,524)
A22500 Net gains from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 23,863 ( 2,743)
A23700 Impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment 18,102 -
A24100 (Gain) Loss on foreign exchange, net 18,117 ( 1,752)
A29900 Lease modification actuarial losses ( 314) ( 571)
A30000 Net changes in operating assets and
liabilities
A31130 Note receivable 50 35,396
A31140 Note receivable due from
related parties ( 26) -
A31150 Accounts receivable 252,361 397,925
A31160 Accounts receivable due from
related parties ( 522) 1,929
A31180 Other receivables 802 ( 1,315)
A31200 Inventories 64,729 95,672
A31230 Advances to suppliers ( 38,434) 18,052
A31240 Other current assets 4,750 ( 311)
A32125 Contract liabilities ( 413) 585
A32150 Accounts payable ( 43,609) ( 24,340)
A32160 Accounts payable due from
related parties 1,268 ( 130)
A32990 Accrued employees’
compensation and directors’
remuneration - ( 4,482)
A32230 Other current liabilities 815 21,056
A32240 Net defined benefit liabilities ( 3.834) ( 1,935)
A33000 Net cash inflow generated from operations 156,242 738,373
A33300 Interest paid ( 46,415) ( 36,761)

(Carried forward)
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(Brought forward)

Code
A33500 Income taxes paid
AAAA Net cash inflow from operating
activities
Cash flows from investing activities
B02700 Purchase of property, plant and equipment
B02800 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment
B03700 Increase in refundable deposits paid
B04500 Purchase of intangible assets
B06700 Decrease (increase) in other non-current
assets
B07500 Interest received
BBBB Net cash outflow from investing
activities
Cash flows from financing activities
C00100 Increase in short-term borrowings
C00200 Decrease in short-term borrowings
C00500 Increase in short-term notes payable
C00600 Decrease in short-term notes payable
C01600 New long-term borrowings
C01700 Repay long-term borrowings
C01800 Decrease in long-term notes payable
C03000 Increase in guarantee deposits and
margins received
C04020 Repayment of lease liabilities principal
C04500 Cash dividends paid
CccccC Net cash outflow from financing
activities

DDDD  Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash
held

EEEE  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents for the year

E00100 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
period

E00200 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

2023 2022

(§__37.929) ($  31.341)
71,898 670,271

( 401,763) ( 249.436)
6,977 4,117

981 ( 1,975)

( 258) ( 717)
1,737 411

15,736

(_ 376.590)
5,150,867

( 5,069,388)
80,000

( 120,000)
846,680

( 599,187)
2,833

(  86,519)

(__ 43.775)

161,511

(__ 45964)

( 189,145)

1,264.821

$ 1,075,676

14,531

(_ 233.069)

6,150,052
( 6,227,732)

1,114,463
( 751,500)
( 200,000)
1,134
( 105,612)
(__ 25500)

(___44.695)

42,533
435,040

829781

$ 1,264,821

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial reports.

Chairman: Ho, Chun-Hsien
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II.

I11.

COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in NTD)

Company history

Copartner Technology Corporation (the “Copartner Company”) was established and

registered in April 1987 in accordance with the Company Act and other relevant laws

and regulations and started the business. The original name was Copartner Electric Wire

Co., Ltd. The Ministry of Economic Affairs approved the change of the Company name

to Copartner Technology Corporation on August 24, 2004. The Copartner Company's

main operating items are R&D, manufacturing and sales of signal transmission wires

and wire sets for information, communication and consumer electronics products,

automobiles, medical equipment, industrial equipment, automation equipment and

servers; R&D, manufacturing and sales of plastic products.

The Copartner Company's stock has been listed and traded on the Taiwan Stock

Exchange since November 10, 2010.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, Copartner

Technology Corp.’s functional currency.

Dates and procedures for the financial statement approval

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of

Directors on March 13, 2024

Application of new and revised standards, amendments, and interpretations

(I)  Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS),
IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) (collectively, the
“IFRSs”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory
Commission (FSC)
The application of the amendments to the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect
by the FSC will not have a material impact on the accounting policies of the
Copartner Company and its subsidiaries (the “Company”).

(I)  TFRSs endorsed by FSC that are applicable from 2024 onwards
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Effective date by
International Accounting

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Standards Board (IASB)

Interpretations (Note 1)

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease liability in a sale ~ January 1, 2024 (Note 2)
and leaseback”

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of January 1, 2024
Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current liabilities January 1, 2024
with covenants”

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 “Supplier January 1, 2024 (Note 3)

finace arrangements”

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Unless otherwise stated, the above new, revised or amended standards
and interpretations shall take effect for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after those dates.

The seller-lessee shall apply retrospectively the amendments to IFRS 16

for sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the initial

application of IFRS 16.

Exemptions from certain disclosure requirements upon initial application

of this amendment.

1. Amendments to IAS 1 "Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current" (2020 revised) and "Non-current Liabilities with
covenants " (2022 revised).

The amendment in 2020 clarifies that when determining whether a

liability should be classified as non-current, an entity should assess

whether it has the right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the end of the reporting period. If the entity has this right as

of the end of the reporting period, regardless of whether it intends to
exercise that right, the liability is classified as non-current.

Additionally, the amendment 2020 specifies that if an entity is required

to meet certain conditions to have the right to defer settlement of the

liability, the entity must have met those conditions as of the end of the
reporting period, even if the lender tests whether the entity has met those
conditions at a later date. The amendment in 2022 further clarifies that
only contractual terms existing as of the end of the reporting period affect
the classification of liabilities. While contractual terms that must be met

within 12 months after the reporting period do not affect the
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(1)

classification of liabilities, relevant information must be disclosed to
enable users of the financial statements to understand the risk that the
entity may be required to repay the liability within 12 months after the
reporting period.
For the purpose of liability classification, the amendment in 2020 defines
settlement as the transfer of cash, other financial assets, or the entity's
own equity instruments to the counterparty to extinguish the liability.
However, if the terms of the liability permit settlement by the transfer of
the entity's own equity instruments at the counterparty's discretion, and if
that right to choose is required to be separately recognized as equity
under IAS 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation," then those terms do
not affect the classification of the liability.

Apart from the above-mentioned impacts, as of the date the consolidated

financial statements were approved for release, the amendments to the

above-mentioned standards and interpretations will not have a significant impact

on the Company’s financial position and financial performance based on the

assessment.
IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Effective Date Issued by
Interpretations IASB (Note 1)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or To be determined by IASB

contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture”
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 “Initial Application of January 1, 2023
IFRS 17 and IFRS 9- Comparative
Information”
Amendments to IAS 21 “Lack of January 1, 2025 (Note 2)
exchangeability”

Note 1: Unless otherwise specified, the above-mentioned new/ revised/ amended
standards or interpretations will take effect during the annual reporting
period beginning on or after each date.

Note 2: Applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2025. When first applied, the effects shall be recognized in retained
earnings as of the date of initial application. When the Company uses a

non-functional currency as the reporting currency, the effects shall adjust
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the exchange differences of foreign operations under equity as of the
date of initial application.
As of the date the consolidated financial statements were approved for release,
the Company continued to assess the possible impact of the application of the
above standards and interpretations on its financial position and financial

performance, and will disclose the relevant impact when the assessment is

completed.

IV. Summary of significant accounting policies
() Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the

Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers,

and [FRSs as endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC.

(I) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial reports have been prepared on the historical cost basis

except for the financial instruments at fair value and net defined benefit liabilities

recognized from the present value of defined benefit obligation deducting defined
benefit plans at fair value.

The fair value measurement is classified into three levels based on the

observability and significance of relevant inputs:

1.  Level 1 inputs: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities on the measurement date.

2. Level 2 inputs: Inputs, other than quoted market prices within level 1 that
are observable, either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices) for assets or liabilities.

3. Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities.

(II) Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

Current assets include:

1.  Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;

2. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the balance sheet
date; and

3. Cash or cash equivalents (excluding assets restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date).

Current liabilities include:
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V)

V)

1. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading;

2. Liabilities due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date;
and

3.  Liabilities with a repayment deadline that cannot be unconditionally
deferred for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are classified as

non-current.

Consolidation basis

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the

Copartner Company and the entities (subsidiaries) controlled by the Copartner

Company. Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during

the period are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income

from the effective dates of acquisition up to the effective dates of disposal. The

financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted to ensure consistency

between their accounting policies and the Copartner Company’s. All intra-group

transactions, balances, income, and expenses are eliminated in full upon

consolidation. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the

owners of the Copartner Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result

in the Company losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity

transactions. The carrying amounts of the Company and non-controlling interests

have been adjusted to reflect the changes in its relative interests in the

subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling

interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognized directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Copartner

Company.

See Note X and Tables 6 and 7 for the detailed information on subsidiaries

(including the percentage of ownership and main business).

Foreign currencies

When the financial statements of each individual entity in the Group are prepared,

transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (i.e. foreign

currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing on the transaction

dates.
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(VD)

(VID)

At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing on that date. Exchange differences on monetary
items arising from settlement or translation are recognized in profit or loss for the
year in which they arise.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. The resulting exchange difference is recognized in profit or loss
for the year. For items whose changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income, the resulting exchange difference is recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the transaction
dates and are not retranslated.

When the consolidated financial statements are prepared, the assets and liabilities
of the Company’s foreign operations (including subsidiaries that operate in
countries or adopt the functional currencies different from the Copartner
Company) are translated into New Taiwan dollars at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. The resulting currency exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income (and attributed to the
owners of the Copartner Company and non-controlling interests).

Inventories

Inventories include raw materials, goods-in-process, semi-finished goods,
finished goods, and merchandise. The value of inventories is determined based
on the cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The comparison of the
cost and the realizable value is based on individual items except for inventories
of the same category. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories is calculated
using the weighted average method.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity on which the Company has significant influence and is

not a subsidiary or joint venture.
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The Company adopts the equity method to account for its investments in
associates.
Under the equity method, investments in an associate are initially recognized at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associates. In addition, the changes in
other equity of the associates are recognized according to the shareholding ratio.
The excess of the acquisition cost over the Company's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates on the acquisition date is
listed as goodwill, which is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and cannot be amortized.
When assessing impairment, the Company regards the overall carrying amount of
the investment( including goodwill) as a single asset and compares the
recoverable amount with the carrying amount for impairment testing. The
recognized impairment loss is also part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of the impairment loss is recognized to the extent of subsequent
increases in the recoverable amount of the investment.
Profit or loss on downstream and lateral transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries is recognized in the consolidated financial reports only to the
extent that it does not affect the Company’s interests in the subsidiaries.

(VIII) Property, plant and equipment
Except for private land, which is not subject to depreciation, other property, plant
and equipment are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss.
Each significant component of the remaining property, plant and equipment is
depreciated separately on a straight-line basis within their useful lives. The
Company conducts at least one annual review at the end of each year to assess
the estimated useful life, residual value, and depreciation methods, and applies
the effect of changes in applicable accounting estimates prospectively.
When derecognizing property, plant and equipment, the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset shall be recognized in
the current profit and loss.

(IX) Goodwill
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X)

(XT)

The cost of goodwill from business combination is the amount of goodwill
recognized at the acquisition date. It is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.
To measure impairment, goodwill is allocated to the Company among cash
generating units (the “CGUSs”) or a group of CGUs, which are expected to benefit
from the synergy.
The carrying amount and recoverable amount of the CGUs to which goodwill is
allocated will be compared every year (and whenever there are signs of
impairment) as impairment testing on the units. If the goodwill allocated to the
CGUs was obtained through business combination during the year, the CGUs
shall undergo the impairment testing before the end of the year. If the recoverable
amount of CGUs to which goodwill is allocated is lower than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is first deducted from the carrying amount of the goodwill of
said CGUs. Next, the carrying amount of other assets within said CGUs is
deducted from the carrying amount of the goodwill of said CGUs in proportion to
the carrying amount of each asset. Any impairment loss is recognized in loss for
the year. Impairment loss of goodwill shall not be reversed subsequently.
Intangible assets
1. Acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment loss. Intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis within their useful lives. The Company
conducts at least one annual review at the end of each year to assess the
estimated useful life, residual value, and amortization methods, and applies
the effect of changes in applicable accounting estimates prospectively.
2. Derecognition
When investment property is derecognized, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
profit or loss.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets (excluding goodwill)
The Company assesses if there are any signs of possible impairment in property,

plant, and equipment as well as right-of-use and intangible assets (excluding
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(XID)

goodwill) at each balance sheet date. If there is any sign of impairment, an
estimate is made of its recoverable amount. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
The recoverable amount is the fair value less cost of sales or its value in use,
whichever is higher. If the recoverable amount of an individual asset or a CGU is
lower than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable
amount, and the impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.
When the impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the
asset or the CGU is increased to the revised recoverable amount, provided that
the increased carrying amount shall not exceed the carrying amount (less
amortization or depreciation) of the asset or the CGU, which was not recognized
in impairment loss in prior years. The reversal of the impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss.
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities shall be recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.
When initially recognizing financial assets and financial liabilities, if the
financial assets or financial liabilities are not measured at fair value through
profit or loss, but measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or financial liabilities.
The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognized in profit or loss.
1.  Financial assets
Regular trading of financial assets shall be recognized and derecognized in
accordance with trade date accounting.
(1) Measurement types
Financial assets held by the Company are those measured at
amortized cost and investments in equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

A. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
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When the Company’s investments in financial assets meet the
following two conditions simultaneously, they are classified as
financial assets measured at amortized cost:

(A) Held under a certain business model, of which the
objective is to collect contractual cash flows by holding
the financial assets; and

(B) The cash flows on specific dates specified in the
contractual terms are solely payments of the principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, such assets (including cash and cash
equivalents, and notes receivable, accounts receivable at
amortized cost, accounts receivable due from related parties,
other receivables due from related parties, refundable deposits,
and refundable fixed deposits) are measured at the amortized
cost of the total carrying amount determined by the effective
interest method less any impairment loss, and any foreign
currency exchange gains or losses are recognized in profit or
loss.

Except for the following two cases, interest revenue is

calculated by multiplying the effective interest rate by the total

carrying amount of financial assets:

(A) For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
asset, interest revenue is calculated by multiplying the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate by the amortized
cost of the financial asset.

(B) For a financial asset that is not purchased or originated
credit-impaired but subsequently becomes credit
impaired, interest income is calculated by multiplying
the effective interest rate from the next reporting period
after the credit impairment by the amortized cost of the
financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets refer to a situation in which the

issuer or debtor has experienced significant financial difficulties

or defaulted, the debtor is likely to apply for bankruptcy or
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2)

other financial restructuring, or the active market for such
financial assets disappears due to financial difficulties.

Cash equivalents include time deposits that are highly liquid
and readily convertible into a fixed amount of cash at any time
within 3 months from the date of acquisition while featuring
little risk of value changes, which are used to meet short-term
cash commitments.

Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The Company may, upon initial recognition, make an
irrevocable election to designate as at fair value through other
comprehensive income the investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading and the ones that are not recognized
by an acquirer in a business combination or with the contingent
consideration.

Investments in an equity instrument measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value, and any subsequent fair value changes are recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in other equity.
At the time of disposal of such investments, the accumulated
gains and losses are directly reclassified to retained earnings
and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends of investments in equity instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are recognized in
profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive dividends is
established unless such dividends clearly represent the recovery

of a part of the investment cost.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses the impairment loss of financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including accounts receivable and lease
payments receivable) based on the expected credit loss at each
balance sheet date.

Accounts receivable and lease payments receivable are both

recognized in loss allowance based on the lifetime expected credit

- 146 -



3)

losses (ECLs). Other financial assets are first assessed based on
whether the credit risk has increased significantly since the initial
recognition. If there is no significant increase in the risk, a loss
allowance is recognized at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs. If
the risks have increased significantly, a loss allowance is recognized
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The ECLs refer to the weighted average credit loss with the risk of

default as the weight. The 12-month ECLs represent the ECLs from

possible defaults of a financial instrument within 12 months after the
reporting date. The lifetime ECLs represent the ECLs from all

possible defaults in a financial instrument over the expected life of a

financial instrument.

For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Company,

without considering the collateral held, determines that the following

situations represent defaults in the financial assets:

A. Internal or external information indicates that it is impossible
for the debtor to settle the debt.

B. It is overdue for more than 90 days, unless there is reasonable
and corroborative information showing that a default date
postponed is more appropriate.

Impairment losses of all financial assets are achieved by reducing

their carrying amounts through the use of an allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual

rights to the cash inflow from the financial asset expire or when it

transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortized cost in its entirety,

the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the

consideration received is recognized in profit or loss. When
derecognizing an investment in equity instrument at fair value
through other comprehensive income in its entirety, the cumulative
profit or loss is transferred directly to retained earnings and is not

reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of equity instruments.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of the cost of direct issue.
The repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized in
and deducted directly from equity. The purchase, sale, issuance, or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments is not recognized in
profit or loss.
3.  Financial liabilities
(1)  Subsequent measurement
The Company’s all financial liabilities are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.
(2)  Derecognition of financial liabilities
When financial liabilities are derecognized, the difference between
the carrying amount and the consideration paid (including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in
profit or loss.
(XIIT) Revenue recognition
After the performance obligations are identified in a customer contract, the
Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation, and
recognizes it in revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied.

Sales revenue of goods

The sales of goods revenue comes from the R&D, manufacturing and sales of
signal transmission wires and wire sets for information, communication and
consumer electronics products, automobiles, medical equipment, industrial
equipment, automation equipment and servers; the R&D, manufacturing and
sales of plastic products. When the products are delivered to the location
designated by customers, customers have the right to determine the price and the
way the products are used while bearing the main responsibility for resale and the
risk of obsolescence, upon which revenue and account receivable are recognized

by the Company.
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When processing consigned material, the control of the ownership of the

processed products has not been transferred, so revenue is not recognized when

consigned material.
(XIV)Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or

contains, a lease.

1.

The Company as lessor

Where almost all the risks and rewards attached to the ownership of an
asset are transferred to the lessee in lease terms, such leases are classified
as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

While subleasing right-of-use assets, our company classifies the sublease
based on the right-of-use asset (rather than the underlying asset). However,
if the head lease qualifies as a short-term lease for which our company
applies the exemption from recognition, the sublease is classified as an
operating lease.

Under operating leases, lease payments less lease incentives are recognized
in income on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease terms. The
original direct cost incurred in obtaining an operating lease is added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized in expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease negotiations with the lessee
are treated as new leases from the effective date of the lease modification.
The Company as lessee

The Company recognizes all leases as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities on the commencement date of the lease, except for payment for
low-value asset leases and short-term leases which are exempted from
recognition and recognized as costs on a straight-line basis during the lease
term.

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (including the initial
measured amount of lease liabilities, the amount of lease payments made to
the lessor less lease incentives received prior to the inception of a lease,
initial direct costs, and the estimated costs of restoring underlying assets),
and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease
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liabilities. Right-of-use assets are presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Depreciation is withdrawn for right-of-use assets by using straight-line
method from the commencement dates of lease to the earlier of the
expiration of the service lives or lease terms.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payment. If the interest rate implicit in a lease can be easily determined,
the lease payment is discounted at such an interest rate. If the interest rate
cannot be easily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applies.

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, with interest expense recognized over the lease
terms. If changes in the lease term lead to changes in future lease
payments, the Company remeasures the lease liabilities with a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use assets. However, if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets has been reduced to zero, the
remaining re-measurement amount is recognized in profit or loss. Lease
liabilities are presented on a separate line in the consolidated balance

sheets.

(XV) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to an acquisition, construction, or

production of qualifying assets are added to the cost of said assets, until such

time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

For specific borrowings, if the investment income earned by making a temporary

investment before the capital expenditure that meets the requirements is incurred,

it is deducted from the borrowing costs that meet the capitalization conditions.

Other than that which is stated above, all other borrowing costs are recognized in

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(XVI)Employee benefits

1.

Short-term employee benefits

Relevant liabilities for short-term employee benefits are measured by the
non-discounted amount expected to be paid in exchange for employee
services.

Post-employment benefits
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For pension under the defined contribution plan, the amount of pension
contributed is recognized in expenses during employees’ service period.
The defined benefit cost under the defined benefit pension plan (including
service cost, net interest, and re-measurement) is calculated based on the
projected unit credit method. The service cost (including the service costs
for the current period) and the net interest on the net defined benefit
liabilities are recognized in employee benefit expenses as they occur. The
re-measurement (including actuarial gains and losses, and the return on
plan assets, net of interest) is recognized in other comprehensive income
and listed in retained earnings when it occurs, and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss subsequently.

The net defined benefit liabilities are the deficit of the defined benefit

pension plan.

(XVII)Income tax

The income tax expense represents the sum of the current income tax and

deferred tax.

1.

Current income tax

The Company determines the income (loss) of the current year in
accordance with the laws and regulations in each jurisdiction for income
tax declaration, and calculates the income tax payable (recoverable)
accordingly.

A surtax imposed on the undistributed earnings pursuant to the Income Tax
Act of R.O.C. is recognized in the year in which it is resolved by the
annual shareholders’ meeting.

Adjustments to income tax payable from prior years are recognized in the
income tax for the year.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated based on the temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognized when there is likely to
be taxable income to deduct temporary differences and the deduction of

losses generate income tax credit.
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All taxable temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries and
equity in associates are recognized as deferred tax liabilities, except where
the Company is able to control the time of reversal of the temporary
differences and it is very likely that such temporary differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. The deductible temporary differences
related to said investments are recognized in deferred income tax only if it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable income against which to
utilize the benefits of the temporary differences, and they are expected to
be reversed in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferred tax asset is also
reviewed at each balance sheet date and recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable income will allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates of the
current year in which the liabilities are expected to be settled or assets
realized, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. The measurement of
deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the balance
sheet date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred income tax

Current and deferred income taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, the current and deferred taxes are recognized

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Major sources of uncertainty in significant accounting judgments, estimations, and

assumptions

When the Company adopts accounting policies, the management must make relevant

judgments, estimates, and assumptions based on historical experience and other relevant
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factors for those not easy to obtain relevant information from other sources. Actual
results may differ from estimates.

The company take the inflation, the volatility of interest and exchange rate into
consideration of major accounting estimates related to cash flow estimation, growth rate,
discount rate, profitability, etc., and the management will continue to review the
estimates and basic assumptions. If a change in an accounting estimate may affect the
current and future period, it shall be recognized in the current and future period.

Significant accounting judgments

Lease term

When determining the lease term of the leased asset, the Company considers all
relevant facts and circumstances that will create economic incentives to exercise (or not
exercise) the option, including the expected change of all facts and circumstances from
the lease commencement date to the option exercise date. Key factors considered
include the terms and conditions of the contract for the period covered by the option,
significant leasehold improvements made during the contract period, and the
importance of the underlying asset to the lessee's operations. Reevaluate the lease term
when changes occur in substantial matters or circumstances within the control scope of
the Company.

Major sources of uncertainty in estimations and assumptions

(I)  Income tax
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of deferred income tax
assets related to unused tax losses were NT$ 95,258 thousand and NT$ 82,125
thousand, respectively. Due to the unpredictability of future profits, the Company
had tax losses of NT$ 284,850 thousand and NT$ 293,547 thousand as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which have not been recognized as
deferred income tax assets. The realizability of deferred income tax assets mainly
depends on whether there will be sufficient profits or taxable temporary
differences in the future. If the actual profit generated in the future is less than
expected, there may be a reversal of significant deferred income tax assets, and
such reversals are recognized as profit or loss during the occurrence.

(IT)  Estimated impairment on receivables
The estimated impairment on notes and accounts receivable is based on the
Company's assumptions about the default probability and the loss given default.

The Company considers historical experience, current market conditions, and
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VIL

forward-looking information to formulate assumptions and select inputs for
impairment assessments. Please refer to Note VIII for important assumptions
adopted and input values. If the actual cash flow in the future is less than the
Company's expectation, significant impairment loss may occur.
(ITII) Impairment on inventories

The inventories net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the normal
operations, less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical sales experience assessment of similar products, and
the changes in market conditions may significantly impact these estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Checking accounts and demand

deposits $ 809,729 $ 823,375
Cash on hand and revolving funds 453 829
Cash equivalents (investment with

original maturities within three

months)

Bank fixed deposits 265,494 440,617

$ 1,075,676 $1.264.821

The interest rate range of bank deposits on the balance sheet date is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Bank deposits 0%~5.30% 0%~2.10%

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Non-current
Foreign investment
Unlisted stocks
Ordinary shares of Yisite
Precision Instrument
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. $ 3,041 $ 3,089

The Company has invested ordinary shares of the above company according to the
long-term strategy purpose and expects profits through long-term investment. The
Company's management believes that, if the short-term fluctuations in the fair value of

these investments are recognized as profits or losses, it would be inconsistent with the
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aforementioned long-term investment plan, so these investments are measured at fair

value through other comprehensive income as designated.

Notes receivable, accounts receivable, and other receivable, net

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Note receivable
Measured at amortized cost
Total carrying amount $ 182,741 $ 182,904
Less: Loss allowances ( 21,650) ( 21,883)
$ 161,091 $ 161,021
Accounts receivable
Measured at amortized cost
Total carrying amount $1,102,852 $ 1,365,258
Less: Loss allowances ( 50,116) ( 52,601)
$ 1,052,736 $1,312,657
Other receivables
Measured at amortized cost
Total carrying amount $ 12,583 $ 12,237
Less: Loss allowances - -
$ 12,583 $ 12,237

Accounts receivable measured at amortized cost

The Company’s average credit period for sales is 60 days to 120 days monthly
settlement No interest will be accrued for accounts receivable. In order to mitigate
credit risk, the management of the Company assigns a special team to be responsible for
the determination of credit lines, credit approval, and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that appropriate actions have been taken in the recovery of past-due accounts
receivable. In addition, the Company will review the recoverable amounts of
receivables one by one at the balance sheet date to ensure that the unrecoverable
receivables have been properly recognized in impairment losses. Accordingly, the
Company’s management believes that its credit risk has been significantly reduced.

The Company recognizes the loss allowance for accounts receivable based on the
lifetime ECLs. The lifetime ECLs are calculated using a provision matrix based on the
consideration for customers’ past default records, current financial position, and
industrial economic situation. As the Company’s historical experience in credit loss

shows that there is no significant difference in the loss patterns among different
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customer groups, the customer groups are not further differentiated in the provision
matrix, and only the ECLs based on the age of the accounts receivable are set.

If there is evidence that a counterparty is facing serious financial difficulties and the
Company cannot reasonably expect to recover the amount, for instance, the
counterparty is engaging in the settlement. The Company will directly write off the
relevant accounts receivable but will continue to try to collect the receivable. The
recovered amount is recognized in profit or loss.

The loss allowance for accounts receivable measured by the Company based on the
provision matrix as follows:

December 31, 2023

181 to 365
1t090days 91 to 180 days days Over 365 days Total
ECLs - 1% 25%~75% 100%
Total carrying amount $ 752,608 $ 294,781 $ 12384 $ 43,079 $1,102,852
Allowance for losses (lifetime
ECLs) - ( 2.732) ( 4.305) ( 43.079) ( 50.116)
Amortized cost § 752,608 $§ 292,049 $ 8,079 $ - $1,052,736

December 31, 2022

181 to 365
1t090days 91 to 180 days days Over 365 days Total
ECLs - 1% 25%~75% 100%
Total carrying amount $ 963,111 $ 341,694 $ 21,266 $ 39,187 $ 1,365,258
Allowance for losses (lifetime
ECLs) - 3.459) ( 9.955) (__ 39.187) (__ 52.601)
Amortized cost $ 963,111 $ 338,235 $ 11,311 $ - $1,312,657

The information on changes in the loss allowance for notes receivable is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the year $ 21,883 $ 19,708
Add: Impairment loss recognized
for the year - 2,175
Less: Impairment loss reversal for
the year ( 233) -
Balance at end of the year $ 21,650 $ 21,883

The information on changes in the loss allowance for accounts receivable is as follows:

2023 2022

Balance at beginning of the year $ 52,601 $ 35,279
Add: Impairment loss recognized

for the year 6,954 17,244
Less: Actual write-off for the year ( 8,761) ( 272)
Foreign currency translation
difference ( 678) 350
Balance at end of the year $ 50,116 $ 52,601
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Inventories

Finished goods

Goods-in-process and
semi-finished goods

Raw material

Goods

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
$ 76,691 $ 86,238
68,644 88,165
122,543 154,015

1,572

$269.450

__5.761

$334,179

The components of operating costs related to inventories are as follows:

(Reversal) Allowance for
inventory valuation and
obsolescence loss

Unamortized production
overheads

Revenue from scrap

Costs of sales

Subsidiary

2023

2022

(S 2.563)

$ 74984
$ 18,015
$ 3,279,021

$ 6,457

§ 70,189
$ 21,563
$ 3,549,042

The main entities in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Ownership (%)

December December
Investment company Name of subsidiary Nature of business 31,2023 31,2022 Description
Copartner Technology Hotek Technology Corporation  Investment 100% 100% -
Corp.
Copartner Wire And Cable Investment 100% 100% -
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Production and sales of copper 100% 100% -
Co., Ltd. wires
Sunagaru International Inc. General international trade - 100% Note
(Sunagaru) business
Hotek Technology Corp.  Copartner Wire & Cable General international trade and 100% 100% -
Manufacturing Limited general investment business
Copartner Wire & Cable  Huisheng Plastic (ShenZhen) Production and sales of plastic 100% 100% -
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. pellets
Limited
Copartner Technology Production and sales of wires, 100% 100% -
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. cables, and computer cables
Copartner Wire And Cable Investment 100% 100% -
(KunShan) Co., Ltd.
Wanfu Plastic (ShenZhen) Co.,  Production and sales of plastic 64.09% 64.09% -
Ltd. pellets
Shin Ya Wire And Cable Production and sales of wires, 26% 26% -
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. cables, and computer cables
United Electric Wire Production and sales of wires, 26% 26% -
(KunShan) Co., Ltd. cables, and computer cables
Cablex Wire And Cable Production and sales of wires, 26% 26% -
(KunShan) Mfg. cables, and computer wire
harness
ShenZhen Copartner Production and sales of wires, 26% 26% -
Communication Co., Ltd. cables, and computer cables
Copartner Technology R&D, production, and sales of 26% 26% -
(DongTai) Co., Ltd. high-end communication
signal transmission cables
and copper conductors
Jia Xin New Materials (Anfu) Production and sales of plastic 26% 26% -
CO., LTD. pellets
Cablex Metal Tech (Anfu) Co.,  Production and sales of copper 26% 26%
Ltd. wires
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Copartner Wire And
Cable (KunShan) Co.,
Ltd.

Copartner Technology
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Copartner Wire And
Cable (ShenZhen) Co.,
Ltd.

COPARTNER
TECHNOLOGY (Anfu) Co.,
Ltd.

United Electric Wire
(KunShan) Co., Ltd.

Cablex Wire And Cable
(KunShan) Mfg.

Copartner Technology
(DongTai) Co., Ltd.

Cablex Metal Tech (Anfu) Co.,
Ltd.

COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY
(Anfu) Co., Ltd.

Shin Ya Wire And Cable
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Wujiang Wanfeng Plastic
Cement Co., Ltd.

Jia Xin Plastic(ShenZhen) Co.,
Ltd.

ShenZhen Copartner
Communication Co., Ltd.

Wanfu Plastic (ShenZhen) Co.,
Ltd.

Jia Xin New Materials (Anfu)
CO., LTD.

Production and sales of wires, 26%
cables, and computer cables

Production and sales of wires, 74%
cables, and computer cables

Production and sales of wires, 74%
cables, and computer wire
harness

R&D, production, and sales of 74%
high-end communication
signal transmission cables
and copper conductors

Production and sales of copper 74%
wires

Production and sales of wires, 74%
cables, and computer cables

Production and sales of wires, 74%
cables, and computer cables

Production and sales of plastic 82.4%
pellets

Production and sales of plastic 100%
pellets

Production and sales of wires, 74%
cables, and computer cables

26%

74%

74%

74%

74%

74%

74%

82.4%

100%

74%

Production and sales of plastic 3591% 3591%

pellets
Production and sales of plastic 74%,
pellets

Note :  Sunagaru Company has been liquidated in December 2022.

74%

As of the end of December 2023, the Company’s investment relation and ownership

percentage are as follows chats:

Copartner Technology Corp.

100% v [00% l 100%
. Copartner Wire And
Hotek Technology Corp. Cablef\‘d\fwceo(sifgz}’en) Cable (ShenZhen) Co.,
&0, LI Ltd.
100%
\ 4
Copartner Wire & Cable
Manufacturing Limited
26% | 26% 26% | 26% | 100% | 26% [64.09% 100% 100% 26% 26% 26%
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Investments accounted for using equity method

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Investments in associates
Associates that are not
individually material
HPC Technology Inc. $ 40.805 $ 42,811
Percentage of ownership interests and
voting rights
Company Name December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
HPC Technology Inc. 48.98% 48.98%

Aggregate information on associates that are not individually material as follows:

2023 2022
The Company’s share
Current net income (loss) ($_2.006) $ 7.524

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amount of goodwill generated by the
Company's investment in HPC Technology Inc. was NT$ 14,462 thousand, including
the cost of investing in associates.

Please refer to Table 6 Information on Investee for the information on the above
associates' business nature, the main place of business, and country of company
registration.

The Company’s share of profit or loss of the associates under the equity method in 2023
and 2022 was recognized based on the associates’ financial statements that have been
audited by CPAs for the same period.

Property, plant and equipment

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Owner-occupied $950,895 $687,648
Operating lease rent 13,181 13,679
() Owner-occupied
Property and Machinery and Instrument and Transport Office Other Property under
Land building i i i construction Total
Cost
Balance as of January
1,2023 $ 97,644 $ 186,396 $ 690,484 $ 87,424 $ 46,996 $ 54,563 $ 60,045 $ 280,566 $ 1,504,118
Additions - - 44,889 3,150 10,945 6,223 8,150 349,381 422,738
Disposals - 300)  ( 225564) ( 24270)  ( 16,565)  ( 18,749)  ( 17,349)) - (0 302,797)
Reclassification - 295,995 1,125 - - - 542 ( 297,662 ) -
Foreign currency
translation
difference - 7.286)  ( 6.733) ( 920)  ( 551)  ( 273) 751)  ( 5302)  ( 21.816)
Balance as of
December 31, 2023 $ 97,644 474,805 $ 504,201 65,384 S 40,825 $ 41,764 0,63 326,983 1,602,24
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
Balance as of January
1,2023 $ - S 141,358 $ 496,573 S 61,784 S 30,131 $ 44853 S 41771 N S 816,470

Depreciation expense - 5,004 65,012 8,225 7,471 3.462 7,509 - 96,683
Impairment loss - - 18,102 - - - - 18,102
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Disposals - 297)  ( 206,142) ( 21,607)  ( 12,598)  ( 15574)  ( 15,739) ( 271957)
Foreign currency

translation

difference - ( 1,630)  ( 4.746)  ( 653) ( 301) 147)  ( 473) ( 7.950)
Balance as of

December 31, 2023 $ - S 1444 $ 68,799 s 47,749 s 24,703 $ 32,594 S 33,068 S $ 651,348
Net amount as of

December 31, 2023 $ 97,644 $ 330,370 $ 135402 s 17,63 s 16,122 $ 9.170 S 17,569 $ 326983 S 950,89
Cost
Balance as of January

1,2022 $ 97,644 S 184,574 $ 656,648 S 75488 S 49,019 $ 53,625 $ 51,991 $ 123,798 $ 1,292,787
Additions - - 55,720 13,739 1,278 1,450 8,111 155,698 235,996
Disposals - - ( 30,716)  ( 2,776)  ( 3,934)  ( 961) ( 729) ( 39,116 )
Foreign currency

translation

difference 1.822 8.832 973 633 449 672 1,070 14,451
Balance as of

December 31, 2022 $  97.644 ] 86,396 $  690.484 ] 87,424 8§ 46,996 $ 54,563 ] 60,045 § 280,566 § 1,504,118
Accumulated

depreciation and

impairment
Balance as of January

1,2022 $ - $ 135119 $ 445,661 $ 53,583 $ 24,561 $ 41,982 $ 35,255 $ $ 736,161
Depreciation expense - 4,837 75,188 10,213 8,377 3,479 6,754 108,848
Disposals - ( 30.311)  ( 2,745)  ( 3,088) ( 906)  ( 692) ( 37,742)
Foreign currency

translation

difference 1.402 6.035 733 281 298 454 9.203
Balance as of

December 31, 2022 $ - S 141,358 $ 496,573 s 61,784 S 30,131 $ 44,853 S 41,771 S S 16,470
Net amount as of

December 31, 2022 $ 97,644 S 45,038 $ 193911 s 25,640 s 16,865 $ 9,710 s 18,274 $ 280,566 $ 687,648

Depreciation expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis based on the

number of useful lives below:

Property and building
Office main buildings
Renovation projects and others
Machinery and equipment
Instrument and equipment
Transport equipment
Office equipment
Other equipment

50 years
2-10 years
2-10 years
3-10 years
3-10 years
3-15 years
2-10 years

The Company recognized an impairment loss of NT$18,102 thousands for
machinery and equipment expected to generate reduced future cash inflows,
resulting in the recoverable amount being less than the carrying amount (using
the value in use) in 2023. This impairment loss has been included in the cost of
goods sold in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For the amount of property, plant, and equipment pledged by the Company as

collateral for borrowings, please refer to Note XX VII.

- 160 -



(1)

Operating lease rent

Property and

building
Cost
Balance for the year ended December 31, 2023 $ 25.446
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2023 $ 11,767
Depreciation expense 498
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 12,265
Net amount as of December 31, 2023 $ 13,181
Cost
Balance for the year ended December 31, 2022 $ 25.446
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 11,268
Depreciation expense 499
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 11,767
Net amount as of December 31, 2022 $ 13,679

The Company rents offices by operating lease of 2 to 3 years lease term. At the
end of the lease term, the lessee will not have a bargain purchase option for the
asset.

The total amount of lease payments that will be received in the future under

operating leases is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
First year $ 3,037 $ 1,985
Second year 293 1,279
$ 3.330 $ 3264

Depreciation expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis based on the
number of useful lives below:

Property and building 50 years
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XIII. Lease arrangements

@

(1)

(I11)

Right-of-use assets

Carrying amount of
right-of-use assets
Land
Property and building
Transport equipment

Additions to right-of-use
assets
Depreciation expenses of
right-of-use assets
Land
Property and building
Transport equipment

Revenue from subleasing of
operating lease assets
(recognized as other
income)

Lease liabilities

Carrying amount of lease
liabilities
Current
Non-current

Range of discount rate for lease liabilities is as follows:

December 31, 2022

Property and building
Transport equipment

December 31, 2023

$ 55,820
314,836
1.478

$372,134

2023

December 31, 2022

$ 60,332

$ 1,288
74,750
1,042

$ 77,080

($_1,325)

December 31, 2023

§ 57,986
338,912
2,520

$399.418

2022

$ 59.816
$268.940

$ 98,877

§ 903
76,985
608

§ 78,496

December 31, 2022

1.8%~4.9%
1.8%

Material lease-in activities and terms

The Company leases several buildings for plants, offices, and dormitories for a 2

to 9 years lease term.

The Company also leases a certificate of the right of land use of the mainland for

50 years lease term.

§ 67,508
$281,518

December 31, 2021

1.8%~4.9%
1.8%



XIV.

(IV) Subleasing

Apart from the disclosures made in Note XII, the company has the following
subleasing transactions:
The company subleased the right to use a building under an operating lease for 2

years.
The total future lease payments to be received from the subleasing of the

operating lease are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
First year $ 15,904 $ -
Second year 11,928 -
$ 27,832 $ -
(V) Other leasing information
2023 2022
Expense on short-term lease $ 20,325 $ 16,560
Lease expenses of low-value
assets $ - s -
Variable lease payments not
included in the
measurement of lease
liabilities $ - $ -
Total cash outflow from lease ($123.611) ($138,088)
The Company has leased certain office equipment which qualifies for short-term
leases and transportation equipment which qualifies for low-value asset leases.
The Group has elected to apply the recognition exemption for said equipment and,
thus, did not recognize the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of said leases.
Goodwill
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year $ 4,294 $ 4,258
Foreign currency translation
difference ( 38) 36
Balance at end of the year $ 4256 $ 4294
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Intangible assets

Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2023
Additions

Net exchange differences
Balance as of December 31, 2023

Accumulated amortization
Balance as of January 1, 2023
Amortization expense

Net exchange differences
Balance as of December 31, 2023

Net amount as of December 31,
2023

Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2022
Additions

Net exchange differences
Balance as of December 31, 2022

Accumulated amortization
Balance as of January 1, 2022
Amortization expense

Net exchange differences
Balance as of December 31, 2022

Net amount as of December 31,
2022

Computer software costs

$ 4,525
258
(____73)
$ 4710
$ 3,752
327
(____63)
$ 4,016
S 694
$ 3,756
717
52
$ 4,525
$ 3,568
132
52
$ 3,752
$ 773

Amortization expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis based on the number of

useful lives below:

Computer software costs

Borrowings

(I)  Short-term borrowings

Unsecured borrowings
Credit borrowings
- Interest rate: 1.85%~3.60%
in 2023, due before the end
of December 2024;
1.59%~2.10% in 2022, due
before the end of June 2023
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(IT)  Short-term notes payable

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Commercial paper payable $ - $ 40,000

The short-term bills payable that has not yet expired is as follows:
December 31, 2022

Guarantee / Carrying
acceptance Discount Carrying  Interest rate Collateral amount of
institution Face value amount amount range item collateral
Commercial paper
payable
Mega Bills
Finance Co.,
Ltd. $ 40,000 $ - $ 40,000 2.10% - $ -

(ITII) Long-term borrowings

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Secured borrowings (1)
Joint credit loan - interest rate:

2.11% for 2023 and1.80%

for 2022 $160,000 $550,000
Syndication sponsor fee (  1,150) ( 1,450)
Mortgage Loan - interest rate:

4.20% for 2023 61.680 -

Subtotal 220,530 548,550

Unsecured borrowings
Credit borrowings-interest rate:

0.50%~ 2.10% in 2023, due

before the end of December

2028 ; 0.48%~6.70% in

2022, due before the end of

January 2027 49,352 73,517
Less: Current portion within

one year (_172,078) (__17.995)
Long-term borrowings $ 97.804 $604.072

1. In October 2022, the Copartner Company entered into joint credit
agreements of NT$ 1,000,000 thousand or equivalent US dollars with 6
banks such as Chang Hwa Bank Chilin Branch and Land Bank of Taiwan
Chengdong Branch. The agreement period is 5 years, of which Item A-
medium-term loans of NT$ 1,000,000 thousand; Item B - medium-term

loans of NT$ 1,000,000 thousand equivalent in US dollars, and Item C -
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guaranteed-commercial paper issuance of NT$ 600,000 thousand, make all
revolving loan facilities.

Items A - The relevant terms, interest rate, and amount used on 2023 and
December 31, 2022 , for the medium-term loans are as follows:

December 31, 2023

Interest
Line of credit Amount used Credit term rate Repayment method
NT$ 1,000,000 $ 160,000  Five years from the 2.11%  The borrower shall pay
thousand or date of first off the outstanding
equivalent in drawdown principal balance of
US dollars (revolving credit) each usage in the
currency of each
usage on the due
date of the usage
December 31, 2022
Interest
Line of credit Amount used Credit term rate Repayment method
NT$ 1,000,000 $ 550,000  Five years from the 1.80%  The borrower shall pay
thousand or date of first off the outstanding
equivalent in drawdown principal balance of
US dollars (revolving credit) each usage in the

currency of each
usage on the due
date of the usage

During the duration of agreements with the Chang Hwa Bank, a syndicated
loan with a joint credit line, the current ratio, debt ratio, and EBIT in the
Copartner Company’s Q2 and annual consolidated financial statements
should meet the requirements in the agreements. As of December 31, 2022
and June 30, 2022 all financial ratios of the Copartner Company were in
compliance with the regulations, but As of December 31, 2023 and June
30, 2023, a portion of financial ratios of the Copartner Company were not
in compliance with the regulations. Therefore, as of December 31, 2023,
the borrowed and discounted funds of NT$758,850 million already utilized
were reclassified as current liabilities due within one year. However, on
November 14, 2023, the Company applied to six banks, including Chang
Hwa Bank (the syndicated credit banks), for an exemption from reviewing
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2023, for the financial covenant. Subsequently, on February 16, 2024,
the majority of the syndicated credit banks provided written consent to
exempt and revise the financial covenant ratios for the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. This
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exemption and revision will not have a significant impact on the operations
or finances of Copartner Company.
The above financial ratios and requirements should be based on the
audited/ reviewed annual and semi-annual consolidated financial
statements by the accountants. If the Company fails to meet the above
financial ratios and requirements, it shall pay compensation fees monthly.
However, if the next period's financial report, after being audited or
reviewed by the accountants, meets all the financial ratios and covenant
requirements, it shall not constitute a default under this agreement.
For the above long-term borrowings, the Copartner Company provided part
of the land, houses, and buildings in Zhonghe District, New Taipei City as
collateral for the loan (please refer to Note XX VII).

(IV) Long-term notes payable

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Joint credit
agreement-guaranteed-co
mmercial paper issuance
Interest rate: 2.02% in

2023 $600,000 $ -

Minus: Classify a portion
of long-term notes payable
as current liabilities due

within one year. (_600,000 -
5 - 5§ -
The joint credit agreement as described in (3) is Item C - line of

guaranteed-commercial paper issuance.

Other current liabilities

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Salary and bonus payable $ 81,070 $ 95412
Payables to equipment suppliers 6,053 19,168
Payables to engineering 56,587 -
Other 219,661 221,121
$363,371 $335,701

Post-employment benefits plans

(I)  Determined appropriation plans
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(1)

The Copartner Company and Hotek Technology Corporation has adopted a
pension plan under the Labor Pension Act (LPA), which is a state-managed
defined contribution plan. Under the LPA, the companies make monthly
contributions to employees’ individual pension accounts of the Bureau of Labor
Insurance at 6% of monthly salaries and wages. The rest of the mainland
subsidiaries listed in the consolidated financial report are the basic pension
insurance premiums paid to the pension plan managed by the mainland
government recognized as current-year expenses when appropriated.

Defined benefit plans

The pension system adopted by Copartner Company and Hotek Technology
Corporation in the Group in accordance with the Labor Standards Act of R.O.C.
is a state-managed defined benefit pension plan. The payment for employee
pensions is calculated based on the length of service and the average salary in the
6 months prior to the approved retirement date. The Copartner Company and
Hotek Technology Corporation contributes pensions at 2% of the total monthly
employee salaries, which are deposited by the Pension Fund Monitoring
Committee in the pension account with the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the
committee. Before the end of each year, if the balance in the pension account
assessed is inadequate to pay for the retirement benefits for employees who meet
the retirement requirements in the following year, the Company will contribute
an amount to make up for the difference in a lump sum by the end of March of
the following year. The pension account is managed by the Bureau of Labor
Funds, Ministry of Labor; the Company has no right to influence the investment
management strategy.

The amount of defined benefit plans listed in the consolidated balance sheet is as

follows:
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Present value of defined
benefit obligation $ 45,649 $ 49,665
Fair value of plan assets (__14,573) (__14971)
Net defined benefit liabilities $ 31,076 $ 34,694

Changes in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit liabilities
January 1, 2022 § 50,509 ($ 11,756) $§ 38,753
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Service cost
Current service cost
Interest (income)
expense
Recognized in profit or
loss
Remeasurement
Return on plan asset
(except for the
amount included
in the net interest)
Actuarial gains -
changes in
financial
assumptions
Actuarial losses -
experience
adjustments
Recognized in other
comprehensive
income
Contributions from the
employer
December 31, 2022
Service cost
Current service cost
Interest (income)
expense
Recognized in profit or
loss
Remeasurement
Return on plan asset
(except for the
amount included
in the net interest)
Actuarial gains -
changes in
financial
assumptions
Actuarial losses -
experience
adjustments
Recognized in other
comprehensive
income
Contributions from the
employer
Paid for planning asset
Paid for Company
December 31, 2023

136
234

370

( 2,774)
1,560

( 1.214)

49,665
$ 140
644

784

263
39
302

( 3584)
( 1.518)

§  45.649
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(_____ 65)
(_____ 65)
( 910)
( 910)
( 2.240)
( 14.971)
$ -
( 207)
( 207)
( 86)
(____ 86)
( 2.893)
3,584
($ 14!573_)

136
169
305

( 910)

( 2,774)

1,560

( 2.124)

( 2,240)
34,694

$ 140
437

577

( 86)

263
39

216

( 2.893)

( 1,518)
$ 31076



Due to the pension plans under the Labor Standards Act, the Company is exposed

to the following risks:

1. Investment risk: The Bureau invests labor pension funds in domestic
(foreign) equity securities, debt securities, and bank deposits on its own use
and through agencies entrusted. However, the income from the Company’s
amount allocated to plan assets is calculated based on the interest rate not
lower than the local bank’s interest rate for 2-year time deposits.

2.  Interest risk: A decrease in the interest rate in the government bonds/
corporate bonds will increase the present value of the defined benefit
obligation; however, the return on the debt investment through the plan
assets will also increase, and the increases will partially offset the effect of
the net defined benefit liability.

3. Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated
with reference to the future salaries of the participants in the plan. As such,
an increase in the salary of the participants in the plan will increase the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

The actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligation of

the Company were carried out by qualified actuaries. The critical assumptions

made on the measurement date are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Discount rate 1.125%~1.25% 1.125%~1.38%
Expected salary increase rate 2.00% 2.00%

If each of the critical actuarial assumptions is subject to reasonably possible
changes, when all other assumptions remain unchanged, the amounts by which

the present value of the defined benefit obligation would increase (decrease) are

as follows:
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Discount rate

Increase by 0.25% (S 647) (S 764)

Decrease by 0.25% $ 665 $ 787
Expected salary increase rate

Increase by 0.25% $ 651 $ 771

Decrease by 0.25% ($ 637) (S 752)
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As actuarial assumptions may be correlated, it is unlikely that only a single
assumption would occur in isolation of one another, so the sensitivity analysis
above may not reflect the actual changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

The expected appropriate

amount within 1 year $ 197 $ 242
The weighted average

duration of the defined

benefit obligation 3.7~6.7 Year 4.2~7.2 Year
XIX.  Equity
() Ordinary shares
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Authorized shares (in
thousands) 120,000 120,000
Authorized share capital $ 1,200,000 $ 1,200,000
Issued and paid shares (in
thousands) 87,550 87,550
Issued share capital $ 875,500 $ 875.500
The ordinary shares issued, with a par value of NT$10 per share, are entitled to
one voting right per share and to the right to receive dividends.
The change in the Company's share capital is mainly due to the distribution of
stock dividends.
(I)  Capital surplus

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

May be used to compensate
losses, distribute cash, or
replenish capital (1)
Share premium $366,770 $410,545
May only be used to
compensate losses
Recognition of changes in
ownership interests of

subsidiaries (2) 13,685 13,685
$380.455 $424.,230

1.  This type of capital surplus attributed to the income derived from the
issuance of new shares at a premium can be used to make up for losses, and

can also be used to pay cash or to replenish capital when the Company
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does not suffer losses, but when capital is replenished, it is limited to a
certain percentage of the paid-in capital each year.
2. This type of capital surplus is the amount of adjustments to capital surplus
of subsidiaries recognized by the Company using the equity method.
(ITII) Retained earnings and dividends policy
According to the surplus distribution policy stipulated in the Copartner
Company's Articles of Incorporation before the amendment, the Copartner
Company's earnings after the annual final accounts, in addition to paying income
tax according to law, shall first make up for previous year's losses, and then
withdraw 10% of the balance as a legal reserve, and then follow relevant laws
and regulations or the competent authority stipulates that the special reserves
shall be appropriated or reversed. After adding up the undistributed surplus of the
previous years, the board of directors will formulate a surplus distribution
proposal and submit a resolution to the shareholders meeting to distribute
dividends to shareholders. For the employee compensation and directors’
remuneration distribution policy stipulated in the Copartner Company’s Articles
of Incorporation, please refer to Note XXII(VII) regarding employee
compensation and directors’ remuneration.
On June 29, 2022, the Copartner Company's shareholders' meeting approved a
resolution to amend the Articles of Incorporation, stipulating the distribution of
dividends for shareholders and the distribution of legal reserve and capital
surplus in cash. The board of directors is authorized, two-thirds of the board of
directors shall attend, and more than half of the directors present agree, which
shall be distributed after approval and reported to the shareholders’ meeting.
The cash and stock combination method shall be adopted as the dividend
distribution policy to improve the financial structure and protect the rights and
interests of shareholders. Cash dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total
dividends.
The legal reserve shall not be appropriated when its balance reaches the amount
of the Company’s total paid-in capital. The legal reserve may be used to make up
for losses. When the Company does not suffer losses, the part of the legal reserve
in excess of 25% of the total paid-in capital can be distributed in cash in addition

to being used to replenish the capital.
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(Iv)

The Copartner company’s 2022 and 2021 earnings distribution proposals

respectively as follows:

2022 2021
Legal reserve $ - $ 8,135
Appropriate (reverse) special ($.45.376) $ 11435
reserves
Cash dividends $ - § 25.500
Stock dividends $ - $ 25,500
Cash dividends per share (in $ - $ 0.3
dollars)
Stock dividends per share (in $ - $ 0.3
dollars)

In addition, the Copartner Company's board of directors, on March 29, 2023,
proposed to distribute cash from capital surplus at NT$ 0.5 per share in cash, and
the distribution amount is NT$ 43,775 thousand. Other distribution item were
also approved at the Annual Shareholders' Meetings held on June 30, 2023 and
June 29, 2022, respectively.

The 2023 Deficit compensation proposal will be resolved by the board of director
on March 13, 2024 and general shareholders’ meeting held on June 14, 2024.

Special reserve

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the
year $298,718 $287,283
Appropriate (reverse) special
reserves
Less amount of
appropriate (reverse)
other equity items (__45.376) 11,435
Balance at end of the year $253.342 $298,718

According to the regulations of the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC),
when distributing distributable profits, the Company shall include in the current
undistributed earnings the net amount of reductions in other shareholders' equity
recorded during the current year, in addition to the net profit after tax for the
period plus items other than net profit after tax for the period. These amounts are
then added to the current undistributed earnings and the appropriation of from
retained earnings of previous years. The accumulated amount of reductions in
other shareholders' equity from previous periods cannot be distributed and must

be appropriated to the special reserve from retained earnings of previous years.
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However, if there is a reversal in the amount of reductions in other shareholders

1

equity, the Company may distribute profits based on the reversed portion.

(V) Other equity interests

Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements

2023

Balance at beginning of the
year ($253,342)
Generated in the current year
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign

financial statements (__42,108)
Balance at end of the year ($295.450)

(VI) Non-controlling interests

2023
Balance at beginning of the
year $ 9,749
Current net loss ( 98)
Other comprehensive income
for the current year
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
financial statements ( 150)
Balance at end of the year $ 9,501
XX. Revenue
2023
Revenue from customer contracts
Revenue from sale of goods $ 3,642,580
(I)  Balance of contracts
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

2022

($298,718)

45376
($253,342)

2022

$ 11,592
( 2,028)

185
§ 9,749

2022

$ 4,166,649

January 1, 2022

Accounts receivable

(Note VIII) $ 1,052,736 $ 1,312,657
Accounts receivable

due from related

$ 1,728,276

parties (Note XXVI) 1,338 816 2,745
$ 1,054,074 $ 1.313.473 $ 1.731.021
Contract liabilities $ 7,552 $ 7,966 $ 7.381

-174 -



Changes in contract liabilities are primarily attributable to differences in the
timing of satisfaction of contract obligations and the timing of payment by
customers.

The amount of contract liabilities from the beginning of the year and
performance obligations fulfilled in the previous period recognized in revenue in

the current period is as follows:

2023 2022
Contract liabilities from the
beginning of the year
Merchandise sales $ 7,363 $ 6,203

(I)  Breakdown of revenue from customer contracts

Segment by geographical

location 2023 2022

Taiwan (Location of
Company) $ 85918 $ 97,685
Asia 3,340,511 3,834,299
Europe 124,824 107,077
The Americas 81,946 117,086
Other 9.381 10,502
$ 3,642,580 $4.166,649

XXI. Netloss from continuing operations

Net loss from continuing operations includes the following items:

()  Interest income

2023 2022

Bank deposits $ 16,894 $ 14,628
(IT)  Other income
2023 2022
Rental income (operating

lease) $ 20,375 $ 14,335
Other 16,971 22,518
$ 37.346 $ 36,853

-175 -



(ITI)  Other gains and losses

2023

Gain on foreign exchange,
net

Lease modification
actuarial gains

Other

(IV) Finance costs

$ 2,222
314

(__1.834)
$ 702

2023

2022

Bank loans interest
Interest on lease liabilities

(V) Depreciation and amortization

$ 30,287
16,767

$ 47,054

2023

$ 17,280

571
(__2.440)
$ 15411

2022

Property, plant and
equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

An analysis of depreciation
expenses by function
Costs of sales
Operating expenses

An analysis of amortization
expenses by function
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
R&D expenses

-176 -

$ 97,181
77,080
327

$174,588

$119,587
54.674

$174,261

68
259
$ 327

$ 20,052
15916

$ 35,968

2022

$109,347
78,496
132

$187,975

$133,813
54,030

$187,843

57
69
$ 132



(VD) Employee benefits expenses

2023 2022
Post-employment benefits
Determined appropriation
plans $ 32,665 $ 34,353
Defined benefit plans (Note
XVII) 577 305
33,242 34,658
Other employee benefits 653.427 604.256
$686,669 $638.914
An analysis by function
Costs of sales $337,309 $327,479
Operating expenses 349,360 311,435
$686,669 $638.914

(VII) Remuneration to the employees and directors

The Copartner Company shall allocate no less than 1% and no more than 3% of
the pre-tax income before the employee and directors’ remunerations distributed
are deducted for employee and directors’ remuneration, respectively. The
Company suffered net loss before tax in 2022 and 2023, so we did not estimate
employee and directors’ remunerations.

If there is a change in the amount after the annual consolidated financial
statements are approved for release, it shall be treated as a change in accounting
estimates and adjusted and accounted for in the next year.

There was no difference between the actual amount of employee compensation
and directors’ remuneration distributed for 2021 and the amount recognized in
the 2021 consolidated financial reports.

For information on employee compensation and directors’ remuneration decided
by the Copartner Company’s board of directors, please visit the Market
Observatory Post System (MOPS) of Taiwan Stock Exchange.

XXII. Income tax

@

Major components of income tax expense recognized in profit or loss

2023 2022
Current income tax
Incurred in the current
year $ 14,056 $ 23,014
Withholding earning 6,746 -
Tax on undistributed
surplus earnings - 539

Deferred income tax
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2023 2022

Incurred in the current
year (__13.,133) (__14,792)

Income tax expense
recognized in profit or

loss $ 7,669 $ 8761

The reconciliation between the accounting income and the current income tax

expense is as follows:

2023 2022

Net loss before tax ($354,938) ($ _15,873)
Income tax expenses

calculated based on

statutory tax rate of each

country for pre-tax

income ($ 72,247) ($ 1,132)
Non-deductible expenses 57,093 3,145
Tax on undistributed

surplus earnings 16,077 6,209
Withholding earning 6,746 -

Unrecognized loss

carryforwards and

deductible temporary

differences - 539
Income tax expense

recognized in profit or

loss $ 7,669 § 8.761
(IT)  Current income tax assets and liabilities
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current income tax assets

Tax refund receivable $ 547 $ 13
Current income tax

liabilities

Income tax payable $ 11,625 $ 28,752

(ITII) Deferred income tax assets

The changes in deferred tax assets are as follows:

2023
Balance at
Deferred income tax ~ beginning of the  Recognized in Balance at end
assets year profit or loss of the year
Temporary differences $ 570 ($ 67) $ 503
Loss carryforward 81,555 13.200 94,755

§ 82,125 $ 13,133 $ 95258
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2022

Balance at
Deferred income tax ~ beginning of the  Recognized in Balance at end
assets year profit or loss of the year
Temporary differences $ 657 ($ 87) $ 570
Loss carryforward 66,676 14.879 81,555

§ 67333 $ 14,792 $ 82,125

(IV) Deductible temporary differences and unused loss carryforward from deferred tax

assets not recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Loss carryforward
Due to 2023 $ - $ 81,183
Due to 2024 30,714 30,714
Due to 2025 7,531 7,531
Due to 2026 66,305 66,305
Due to 2027 45,826 45,826
Due to 2028 76,738 -
$227,114 $231,559
Deductible temporary
differences $ 57,736 $ 61,988

(V) Unused loss carryforwards relevant information

As of December 31, 2023, the relevant information of the loss carryforwards are

as follows:
Balance has not been The last year of
carried forward carried forward
$ 43,721 2024
7,531 2025
115,445 2026
45,826 2027
109,058 2028
61,672 2029
102,554 2030
74,534 2031
74,368 2032
66,178 2033
$700,887

(VI) Income tax examination
The profit-seeking enterprise income tax returns filed by the Copartner Company

up to 2021 have been approved by the tax collection authority.
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XXIII.

Earnings (loss) per share

Unit: NTS$ per share

2023 2022
Loss per share - basic ($_4.14) (8 0.26)
Loss per share - diluted ($__4.14) ($__0.26)

The net earnings (net losses) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
adopted to calculate the earnings (losses) per share are as follows:

Current net loss

2023 2022

Net loss attributable to owners of

the parent company ($362,509) ($.22,606)

Net loss used in the computation
of the basic and diluted losses

per share ($362,509) ($.22,606)
Quantity

Unit: thousand shares

2023 2022

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in computation

of basic losses per share 87,550 87,550
Effect of potential dilutive

common shares:

Remuneration to employees - -
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares used in the

computation of diluted losses

per share 87,550 87,550

If the Company can settle the compensation to employees in cash or shares, the Group
assumes the entire amount of the compensation would be settled in shares and the
resulting potential shares are included in the weighted average number of shares
outstanding used in the computation of diluted earnings per share if the effect is dilutive.
Such a dilutive effect of the potential shares is included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share until the shareholders resolve the number of shares to be distributed

to employees at their meeting in the following year.
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XXIV. Capital risk management

The Company manages capital to ensure enterprises within the Company can maximize
shareholder returns by optimizing the balance of debt and equity before continuing to
operate. There has been no material change in the Company's overall strategy.

The Company's capital structure consists of net debt (ie, borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents) and equity (ie, common stock, capital surplus, retained earnings, other
equity, and other non-controlling interests).

The Company is not subject to other external capital requirements.

The Company’s main management reviews its capital structure quarterly, including
considering the costs of various types of capital and relevant risks while investing in
financial products to increase the Company’s income and manage the capital structure.
Based on the recommendations of main management, the Company will balance its
overall capital structure by paying dividends, issuing new shares, repurchasing shares,
and issuing new debts or repaying old debts.

XXV. Financial instruments

(I)  Fair value - financial instruments not at fair value
The Company’s management believes that the carrying amount of financial assets
and financial liabilities not measured at fair value approximates their fair value.
(IT)  Fair value - financial instruments at fair value on a recurring basis
1. Fair value hierarchy

December 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income
Investment in equity
instruments
- Foreign unlisted
stocks $ - $ - $ 3,041 $ 3,041

December 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income
Investment in equity
instruments
- Foreign unlisted
stocks $ - $ - $ 3,089 $ 3,089

- 181 -



No transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values in 2023 and 2022.

2. Valuation techniques and inputs applied for Level 3 fair value measurement
Foreign unlisted equity investment adopts the asset-based approach to
evaluate the total value of individual assets and individual liabilities
covered by the target to reflect the overall value of the enterprise or
business. If the liquidity discount of significant unobservable input value
decreases, the fair value of these investments will increase.

(IIT)  Categories of financial instruments

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,075,676 $ 1,264,821
Notes receivable, net 161,091 161,021
Notes receivable due from
related parties, net 26 -
Accounts receivable, net 1,052,736 1,312,657
Accounts receivable due
from related parties, net 1,338 816
Other receivables, net 12,583 12,237
Refundable deposits 19,651 20,632
Investments in equity
instruments of financial
assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 3,041 3,089
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortized cost
Short-term borrowings 931,479 850,000
Short-term notes payable - 40,000
Accounts payable 194,141 237,862
Accounts payable due
from related parties 1,405 137
Long-term borrowings
due within one year 772,078 17,995
Long-term borrowings 97,804 604,072
Deposits received 6,079 3,246

(IV) Financial risk management objective and policies
The Company’s main financial instruments include equity investments, Notes
and accounts receivable, accounts payable, short-term notes payable, lease
liabilities, and borrowings. The Company’s financial management department

provides services to various business units, coordinates the operations in the
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domestic and international financial markets, and supervises and manages the

financial risks related to the Company’s operations through the internal reports

on risk exposure analyses based on the degree and breadth of risks. These risks

include market risk (including exchange rate risk and interest rate risk), credit

risk, and liquidity risk.
Market risk

1.

The main financial risks borne by the Company due to its operating

activities are the fluctuation of foreign exchange rate (refer to below (1))

and interest rate (refer to below (2)).

There has been no change to the Company's exposures to financial

instrument market risk and the way it manages and measures these

exposures.

(1

Exchange rate risk

Part of the Company's main operating activities are sales and
purchases in foreign currencies, so there is a natural risk hedging
effect; the Company's exchange rate risk management is for hedging,
not profit. To avoid the value drop and future cash flow fluctuations
caused by exchange rate changes, the Company has signed a foreign
exchange hedging line with the bank and will consider the
Company's foreign currency position at any time and take hedging
measures in response to exchange rate fluctuations, to reduce the
impact of exchange rate changes on the Company's operations.

For the carrying amount of the Company’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies at the
balance sheet date (including monetary items denominated in
non-functional currencies that have been written off in the
consolidated financial statements), please refer to Note XXIX.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly affected by fluctuations in the exchange
rates of USD, HKD and RMB.

The sensitivity rate of 3% is used by the Company when reporting
exchange rate risk to main management and also represents
management's assessment of the range of reasonably possible

changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Sensitivity analysis only
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includes monetary items in foreign currencies in circulation, and the
year-end translation is adjusted by a 3% exchange rate change. The
table below shows the amount of increase or decrease in net profit
before tax when each functional currency appreciates/depreciates by

3% relative to the relevant currencies.

Effect on USD Effect on HKD Effect on RMB

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Gains (losses) ($ 5.279) (S 6,629) ($ 1,106) (S 1,666) $ 41§ 1,908

2)

Management believes that the sensitivity analysis can not represent
the risk inherent in exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s entities holds assets and borrowing capital by
adopting fixed and floating interest rates at the same time, thus,
interest rate risk exposure arises. The Company regularly evaluates
hedging activities to make them consistent with interest rate views
and existing risk preferences to ensure the most cost-effective
hedging strategies are adopted.

The carrying amount of the Company’s financial assets and financial
liabilities exposed to the interest rate risk at the balance sheet date is
as follows:

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Interest rate risk at
fair value
Financial assets $ 265,494 $ 440,617
Financial
liabilities 928,756 389,026
Cash flow interest
rate risk
Financial assets 809,415 822,265
Financial
liabilities 1,201,361 1,472,067

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is based on the interest rate exposure
of non-derivative instruments as of the balance sheet date. For
floating rate assets and liabilities, the analysis method assumes that
the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding on the balance sheet

date is outstanding during the reporting period.
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If the interest rate increased by 1% and all other variables remain
unchanged, the Company’s net income for 2023 and 2022 would
have decreased by NT$ 3,919 thousand and increased by NT$ 6,498
thousand respectively, mainly because of the Company’s deposits
and borrowings at floating interest rates exposed to the cash flow
interest rate risk.
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpart will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Company. As of
the balance sheet date, the Company's maximum credit risk exposure that
may cause financial losses due to the counterparty's failure to perform its
obligations mainly comes from the carrying amount of financial assets
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet.
In order to mitigate credit risk, the management of the company assigns a
dedicated team to be responsible for the determination of credit line, credit
approval and other monitoring procedures to ensure that appropriate
actions have been taken for the recovery of overdue receivables. In
addition, the Company will review the recoverable amounts of receivables
one by one at the balance sheet date to ensure that the unrecoverable
receivables have been properly recognized in impairment losses.
Accordingly, the Company’s management believes that its credit risk has
been significantly reduced.
The Company continuously evaluates the financial situation of accounts
receivable customers. Accounts receivable cover many customers and are
not related to each other, so the concentration of credit risk is not high.
The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit to enhance the
hedge the credit risk of financial assets.
Liquidity risk
The Company manages and maintains sufficient cash to support the
Company's operations and mitigate the impact of cash flow fluctuations.
The management of the Company supervises the use of bank financing
lines and ensures compliance with the terms of the loan agreement.
(1) Table of liquidity and interest rate risks of non-derivative financial

liabilities

- 185 -



The remaining contractual maturity analysis of non-derivative
financial liabilities was based on the earliest date at which the
Company might be required to repay and was compiled based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities. Therefore, the bank
borrowings with repayment on demand clause were included in the
earliest period in the table below for the Company, regardless of the
probability of exercise of the right by banks. The maturity analysis
of other non-derivative financial liabilities was compiled under the
agreed repayment date.

December 31, 2023

Demand
immediate
payment or less 3 months-1 More than 5
than 1 month 1-3 months year 1-5 years years

Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Non-interest-bearing

liabilities $ 171,203 $ 109,536 $ 94,003 $ 67,675 $ 1,499

Lease liabilities 9,324 11,832 53,201 216,651 90,924

Floating interest rate

instruments 211,102 452,205 440,250 36,124 61,680

Fixed interest rate

instruments - - 600,000 - -
$ 391,629 $§ 573,573 $1,187.454 § 320,450 § 154,103

Further information of maturity analysis on the lease liability is as

follows:
Within 1
year 1-5years 5-10years 10-15years 15-20 years
Lease liabilities $ 74357 $216,651 $ 90,924 § - 3 -
December 31, 2022
Demand
immediate
payment or less 3 months-1 More than 5
than 1 month 1-3 months year 1-5 years years
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Non-interest-bearing
liabilities $ 193,371 $ 136,750 $§ 29,233 $ 48,095 $ 2,757
Lease liabilities 7,017 13,919 61,857 222,265 100,561
Floating interest rate
instruments 241,500 392,999 233,496 604,072 -
Fixed interest rate
instruments 40,000 - - - -
$ 481,888 $ 543,668 $§ 324586 $ 874,432 § 103,318

Further information of maturity analysis on the lease liability is as

follows:
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Within 1

year 1-5 years 5-10years 10-15years 15-20 years
Lease liabilities $ 82,793  $222,265 §$100,561 § - -

The amount of floating interest rate instruments for the above
non-derivative financial assets and liabilities will change due to the
difference between the floating interest rate and the estimated rate on the

balance sheet date.

XXVI. Related party transaction

The transactions, account balances, as well as income and expenses between Copartner

Technology Corp. and its subsidiaries (which are related parties of Copartner

Technology Corp.) are all eliminated upon consolidation, so they are not disclosed in

this note. The transactions between the Company and other related parties are as

follows.

Q)

(I

(I11)

Name of related parties and relationship

Name of related party Relationship with the Company
HPC Technology Inc. Associate
Yingding Wire and Cable Co., Ltd. Substantive related party

Sales revenue

Related party category 2023 2022
Associate $ 6,589 $ 856
Substantive related party 20 -

$ 6,609 $ 856

The transaction price and conditions of sales between the Company and related
parties are based on reference to cost and market prices, which are comparable to

other non-related parties.

Purchases
Related party category 2023 2022
Substantive related party $ 1,705 $ 827

The transaction price and conditions of purchases between the Company and
related parties are based on reference to cost and market prices, which are

comparable to other non-related parties.
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(IV) Receivables from related parties

December 31, December 31,
Account title Related party category 2023 2022
Notes receivable due  Substantive related $ 26 $ -
from related parties party
Notes receivable due  Associate $ 1,338 $ 816

from related parties

The period for accounts receivable from related parties is equivalent to that of
other non-related parties. The outstanding receivables from related parties are not
guaranteed. No allowance for losses was provided for receivables accounts from

related parties.

(V) Payables from related parties

December 31, December 31,
Account title Related party category 2023 2022
Accounts payable due Substantive related $ 1,405 $ 137

from related parties party

The payment period for related party accounts is equivalent to that of other
non-related parties. The outstanding payables to related parties is not guaranteed.

(VI) Remuneration of key management personnel

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $ 23,114 $ 25,658
Post-employment benefits 1,141 1,150
$ 24,255 $ 26,808

The remuneration to directors and other main management is determined by the
Compensation Committee in accordance with individuals’ performance and market
trends.
XXVII. Pledged assets
The following assets of the Company have been provided as collateral for long-term
borrowings from banks, lines, issuance letters for guarantee, operating leases, and

customs duties on raw materials imported:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment $313,147 $ 60,177
Refundable deposits paid 19,651 20,632
Right-of-use assets 1,874 -
$334.672 § 80.809
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XXVIIL Significant subsequent events

XXIX.

On November 10, 2023, the Board of Directors resolved to establish a subsidiary in
Thailand, "Copartner Technology (Thailand) Co., Ltd.," in collaboration with "Thai JE
Technology Co., Ltd.," in response to customer demand and in alignment with the
long-term development strategy of the group. The total investment for this venture
amounts to USD 2.1 million, with our company contributing USD 1.68 million for an
80% stake, and "Thai JE Technology Co., Ltd." contributing USD 420 thousand for a
20% stake. The registration of the subsidiary was completed on January 3, 2024. The
primary business activities of the subsidiary include research, development,
manufacturing, and sales of wire harnesses for industrial control, medical, automotive,
and consumer electronics sectors.

Information on foreign currency assets and liabilities with significant impact

The information below is aggregated and presented in foreign currencies other than the
functional currency of each entity of the Company. The exchange rates disclosed refer
to the exchange rates of such foreign currencies to the presentation currency.
Information on foreign currency assets and liabilities with significant impact are as
follows:

Unit: Thousands of foreign currencies

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
currencies rate currencies rate
Foreign currencies
assets
Monetary items
NTD $ 213 0.23022 $ 6,238 0.22664
USD 7,311 30.76492 8,639 30.72979
HKD 9,469 3.93632 14,196 3.94136
RMB 105,186 4.34367 91,059 4.41228
Foreign currencies
liabilities
Monetary items
NTD - 0.23022 22,434 0.22664
USD 1,591 30.76492 1,448 30.72979
HKD 105 3.93632 105 3.94136
RMB 105,501 4.34367 105,470 4.41228

The Company mainly bears foreign currency exchange rate risks for NTD, USD, HKD,
and RMB. The information below is aggregated and presented in the functional

currencies of the entities holding foreign currencies, and the exchange rates disclosed
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XXX.

refer to the exchange rates of these functional currencies to the presentation currency.
The foreign currency exchange gains (losses) (realized and unrealized) with a

significant impact are as follows:

2023 2022
Net gains (losses) Net gains (losses)
Functional Functional currency to on foreign currency Functional currency to on foreign currency
currency presentation currency exchange presentation currency exchange
NTD 1 (NTD: NTD) ($ 2,062) 1 (NTD: NTD) $ 9,841
RMB 4.4240 (RMB: NTD) 4,284 4.4347 (RMB: NTD) 7,439
$ 2,222 $ 17,280

Notes to disclosures

(I)  Information on significant transactions and (II) Information on investees: nothing
else is to disclose unless the matters below. All parent companies and
subsidiaries' transactions and balances are eliminated in full upon consolidation.
1.  Loaning funds to others: Table 1.

2. Providing endorsements or guarantees for others: Table 2.

3. Marketable securities held at the end of period (excluding investment in
subsidiaries and associates): Table 3.

4. The amount of purchases and sales with related parties reaching NT$100
million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: Table 4

5. Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of
paid-in capital or more: Table 5.

6.  Information on investee: Table 6.

(ITII) Information on investment in Mainland China
1. Information on any investee in Mainland China, showing the name,

principal business activities, paid-in capital, method of investment, inward
and outward remittance of funds, ownership percentage, investment
income or loss, carrying amount of the investment at the end of the period,
repatriations of investment income, and limit on the amount of investment
in the mainland China area: Table 7.

2. Any of the following significant transactions with investees in mainland
China, either directly or indirectly through a third party, and their prices,
payment terms, and unrealized gains or losses: Table 7.

3. The Copartner Company's reinvestment in Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg
Co., Ltd. and Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. is based on
August 23, 1993, (1993) Tai-Cai (Liu) No. 01968 Letter Note 3, entrusted
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investment to investors in the mainland area, and the main contents of the
entrusted contract should be disclosed as follows:
The Copartner Company entrusts Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing
Limited to invest in Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd. and Copartner
Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. The two parties agree to abide by
the terms as follows:
The Copartner Company uses a capital of USD 913 thousand (including
USD 400 thousand in cash, machinery, equipment, and spare parts at a
price of US$ 513 thousand) and capital of USD 2,324 thousand (including
USD 512 thousand in cash, machinery, and equipment and spare parts at a
price of US$ 764 thousand and raw materials at a price of US$ 1,048
thousand) designated Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited to
invest in Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd. and Copartner Wire And
Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd., respectively.
(1)  Agreement on the outflow method of investment funds:
Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited applied to relevant
parties in mainland China to invest in Copartner Wire & Cable
Manufacturing Limited to invest in Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg
Co., Ltd. and Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd., all in
the name of Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited, and
the funds were inflow from Hong Kong to mainland China by
Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited.
(2) Agreement on the method of repatriation of funds if the investee
company distributes earnings or closes its business:
A. Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited shall transfer
all interests from Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd. and
Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. to the
Copartner Company after obtaining if they have income or
interests distribution.
B. If Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd. and Copartner Wire
And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. must return the investment
funds due to capital reduction, business closure, or other

reasons, Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited shall
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XXX.

transfer all the funds to the Copartner Company after obtaining
the funds.

Based on the above reasons, Copartner Wire & Cable
Manufacturing Limited shall notify the Copartner Company
when transferring investment funds or interests and income,
and the Copartner Company shall designate the payment
method.

(3) The agreement on the ownership of the rights and obligations of the

invested companies:

A.

Based on this entrusted investment relationship, Copartner Wire
& Cable Manufacturing Limited transfers the rights and
obligations arising from Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co.,
Ltd. and Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. to the
Copartner Company. Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing
Limited does not guarantee its income and profit or loss.

Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited shall handle
responsibly and prudently and have full authority to handle
matters such as investment, foreign exchange settlement, and

receiving interests.

(IV) The business relationship between the parent and the subsidiaries and between

V)

each subsidiary, and the circumstances and amounts of any significant
transactions between them: Table 8.

Information on major shareholders: List of all shareholders with ownership of 5
percent or greater showing the names and the number of shares and percentage of

ownership held by each shareholder: Table 9.

Department information

The information used by the Company's chief operating decision-maker to allocate

resources and evaluate departmental performance focuses on the type of product or

labor service. The measurement basis for this financial report information is the same as

this consolidated financial report. The reportable segments of the Company are the

production and sales of signal transmission wires and wire sets, the production and sales

of plastic pellets, and others.

)

Segment revenue and operating results
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The analysis of the revenue and operating results response to the reportable

segment of the Company’s continuing operations is as follows:

Segment revenue Segment income
2023 2022 2023 2022

Production and sales segment

of signal transmission wires

and wire sets $ 2,141,349 $ 2,628,930 ($ 286,244) (S 33,667)
Production and sales segment

of plastic pellets 593,186 768,180 ( 53,136) ( 5,511)
Other 908,045 769.539 ( 21.440) ( 15,143)
Total from continuing

operations $ 3,642,580 $ 4,166,649 ( 360,820) ( 54,321)
Unamortized amount

Non-operating income
and expenses 5,882 38.448

Net income (loss) before tax ($_354938) ($ 15,873)

(I

(I1)

(Iv)

The above reportable revenue generates from transactions between external
customers.

Segment profit (loss) refers to the profit earned by each segment, excluding
unamortized non-operating income and expenditures. The amounts measured are
provided to the chief operating decision maker to allocate resources to the
segment and measure its performance.

Segment total assets and liabilities

The measure amounts of assets and liabilities are not provided to the Company’s
operation decision-makers, thus, the measure amounts of segments assets are
Zero.

Revenue from main products

The analysis of the revenue main products of the Company’s continuing

operations is as follows:

2023 2022
Signal transmission line
and wire harness $ 3,049,394 $ 3,398,469
Plastic pellets 593.186 768,180
$ 3,642,580 $4.166,649

Segment by geographical location

The Company operates mainly in two regions - China and Taiwan.

The information on the revenue from the Company’s continuing operations from
external customers based on operating location and the location where

non-current assets are located is listed below:
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V)

Income from external customers Non-current assets

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022 2023 2022
Taiwan $ 283,076 $ 253,784 $ 135,297 $ 166,884
China 3,359,504 3,912,865 1,205,863 938,928

§ 3,642,580 $ 4,166.649 § 1,341,160 § 1.105.812

Non-current assets exclude financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, investments accounted for using equity method, deferred
income tax assets, refundable deposits paid, and other non-current assets.

Major customer information

No individual customer contributes to at least 10% of the Company’s total

revenue in 2023 and 2022.
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COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY CORP.

INFORMATION FOR MAIN SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Table 9

Shares
Name for main shareholders
Amount Portion
Chen, Chin-Hung 4,715,079 5.38%
Ou, Shu-Ching 4,558,000 5.20%
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V. The company's individual financial report of the most recent year verified by CPA, but does
not contain a detailed statement of important accounting items

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Copartner Technology Corporation:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Copartner Technology Corporation,
which comprise the parent company only balance sheets for the year ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, and the parent company only statements of comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the parent company only statements of changes in equity and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the parent company only notes to the financial statements
(including a summary of significant accounting policies).

In our opinion, the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, Copartner Technology Corporation’s parent company only financial position as
of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the years then ended, and its parent company only
financial performance and parent company only cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally
accepted in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors, Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,

2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our Audit of the Parent Company Only
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Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2023 are stated as follows:

As stated in Note 9 of the parent company only notes to the financial statements, the investment
of a subsidiary of Copartner Technology Corporation using the equity method on December 31,
2023, was NT$ 3,459,796 thousand, accounting for 77% of the total assets. From January 1 to
December 31, 2023, the share of the subsidiary's interest recognized using the equity method was
NT$ 259,288 thousand, accounting for (91)% of the sales revenue. Therefore, the financial
position and performance of the subsidiary company will have a significant impact on Copartner
Technology Corporation. Because its revenue recognition is listed as a key audit matter, the
explanation is as follows:

Revenue Recognition

1. Copartner Technology Corporation’s main source of income is R&D, manufacturing and
sales of signal transmission wires and wire sets for information, communication and
consumer electronics products, automobiles, medical equipment, industrial equipment,
automation equipment and servers; R&D, manufacturing and sales of plastic products. This
type of revenue recognition process is to recognize revenue when the customer controls the
goods under trade terms.

2. The revenue of Copartner Technology Corporation and it’s subsidiary decline 13% compare
to the previous year due to weak demand. However, some subsidiaries had a higher gross
profit margin. Therefore, the accountant compared the sales revenue of these subsidiaries
with the sales revenue in 2022 to identify any positive growth in sales to their customers
compared to the overall sales trend. Subsequently, any differences were considered as
potential sources of fraud risk. As a result, this assessment was deemed a critical auditing
matter.

3. The accountant performs the following procedures for the above key audit matter:

(1) Identify revenue recognition of Copartner Technology Corporation’s subsidiary, and
perform relevant control tests.

(2) Check the sales transactions where the subsidiary’s gross profit margin is higher than
the consolidated before write-off, and review documents such as customer orders,

customer receipts or freight receipts, and invoices to verify whether the transaction
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occurred, to identify whether the purchasers are consistent with the cash payers as
well.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent
Company Only Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.
Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible for
overseeing the Company’ financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing
standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
contained in the parent company only financial statements. Misstatements may be a result of
fraud or error. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
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than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’ internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’ ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the parent
company only financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence concerning the financial information of
entities within the Company, to express an opinion on the Parent Company Only Financial
Statements. We are responsible for guiding, supervising, and performing the audit and
forming an audit opinion on the Company.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial
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statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Deloitte & Touche

CPA: Tsai, Mei-Chen CPA: Huang, Yu-Feng

Financial Supervisory Commission R.O.C. Securities and Futures Commission Approval
Approval Document No. Document No.

Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No.1010028123 Tai-Cai-Zheng-Liu-Zi No.0920123784

March 13, 2024

Notice to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the parent company only
financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and
practices to audit such parent company only financial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors' report and the accompanying parent company only
financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the
Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any
difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese- language independent auditors' report and parent
company only financial statements shall prevail.
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Code
4100

5110

5900

5920

5950

6100
6200
6300
6450
6000

6900

7100
7010
7020
7050

7060

7000

COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY CORP.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for loss per share)

Sales of revenue (Notes IV, XVII &
XXIII)

Sales cost (Notes IV, VIII, XVIII &
XXIII)

Gross profit

Realized gains with subsidiaries
(Note IV)

Realized gross profit

Operating expenses (Notes X VIII &
XXIII)
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
R&D expenses
Expected credit impairment
loss (gain) (Notes IV & VII)
Total operating expenses

Net operating loss

Non-operating income and
expenses

Interest income (Note XVIII)

Other income (Note XVIII)

Other gains and losses (Notes
IV & XVIII)

Finance costs (Notes [V &
XVIII)

Share of profit on subsidiaries
and associates accounted for
using equity method (Notes
IV & IX)

Total non-operating
income and expenses

(Carried forward)

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
$ 283,389 100 $ 255,558 100
255.974 90 226,951 89
27,415 10 28,607 11
- - 315 -
27.415 10 28.922 11
38,520 13 41,200 16
79,404 28 60,707 24
1,721 1 1,669 1
( 324) - 3.156 1
119.321 42 106,732 42
( 91,906) (__32) 77.810) 31)
1,304 - 261 -
4,800 2 7,554 3
( 1,197) - 8,735 3
( 29,355) ( 10) 19,027) 7)
( 259.,288) (_91) 43.428 17
( 283.736) (_101) 40,951 16
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(Brought forward)

Code

7900

7950

8200

8310

8311

8330

8360

8361

8300

8500

9710
9810

Chairman: Ho, Chun-Hsien

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
Net loss before tax ($ 375642) ( 133) (8§ 36,859) ( 15)
Tax income (Notes IV, V & XIX) 13,133 5 14,253 6
Current net loss ( 362,509) (_128) ( 22,606) (__9)
Other comprehensive income
Items not reclassified to profit or
loss:
Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation (Notes
IV & XV) ( 347) - 2,694 1
Share of other
comprehensive income of
subsidiaries accounted for
using equity method (Note
V) 131 - ( 570) -
Components of other
comprehensive income (loss)
that will be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
financial statements
(Notes IV & XVI) ( 42,108) (__15) 45,376 18
Other comprehensive income
for the current year ( 42,324) (__15) 47,500 19
Total comprehensive income for the
current year ($_ 404,833) (_143) $ 24,894 10
Loss per share (Note XX)
Basic (% 4.14) (% 0.26)
Diluted (S 4.14) ($ 0.26)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial reports.

Manager: Liao, Wen-Hung
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Chief accountant: Cheng, Shu-Ching
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COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY CORP.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
Unit: NT$ thousand

Code 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities

A10000 Current net loss before tax ($ 375,642) ($ 36,859)
A20010 Adjustments to reconcile:
A20100 Depreciation expense 12,204 14,815
A20200 Amortization expense - 22
A20300 Expected credit impairment loss

(gain) ( 324) 3,156
A20900 Finance costs 29,355 19,027
A21200 Interest income ( 1,304) ( 261)
A22400 Share of profit and loss on

subsidiaries and associates

accounted for using equity method 259,288 ( 43,428)
A22500 Loss (gain) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 1,130 ( 365)
A24000 Realized gains with subsidiaries - ( 315)
A24100 Loss on foreign exchange, net 2,516 2,849
A29900 Lease modification actuarial gain ( 63) -
A30000 Net changes in operating assets and

liabilities

A31130 Note receivable ( 2,444) 1,027
A31140 Notes receivable due from related

parties ( 26) -
A31150 Accounts receivable ( 16,190) 14,053
A31160 Accounts receivable due from related

parties ( 528) 1,929
A31200 Inventories 6,143 4,691
A31230 Advances to suppliers 1,884 ( 4,355)
A31240 Other current assets 370 597
A32125 Contract liabilities ( 1,917) 3,638
A32150 Accounts payable ( 1,136) ( 2,339)
A32160 Accounts payable due from related

parties ( 7,547) 12,729
A32990 Accrued employees’ compensation

and directors’ remuneration - ( 4,482)
A32230 Other current liabilities ( 3,790) 2,285
A32240 Net defined benefit liabilities ( 2.490) ( 1,.991)
A33000 Net cash outflow generated from

operations ( 100,511) ( 13,577)

A33300 Interest paid ( 28,930) ( 19,631)
A33500 Income taxes paid ( 539) ( 1.323)
AAAA Net Cash outflow from operating

activities ( 129.980) ( 34,531)

(Carried forward)

- 223 -



(Brought forward)

Code
Cash flows from investing activities
B02700 Purchase of property, plant and equipment
B02800 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment
B03700 Increase in refundable deposits paid
B04300 Increase in other receivables - related
parties
B07500 Interest received
B07600 Cash dividend received
BBBB Net cash outflow from investing
activities
Cash flows from financing activities
C00100 Increase in short-term borrowings
C00200 Decrease in short-term borrowings
C00500 Increase in short-term notes payable
C00600 Decrease in short-term notes payable
C01600 New long-term borrowings
C01700 Repay long-term borrowings
C01800 Decrease in long-term notes payable
C03000 Increase in guarantee deposits and
margins received
C03700 Increase in other payables - related parties
C04020 Repayment of lease liabilities principal
C04500 Cash dividends paid
cccc Net cash inflow from financing
activities

DDDD  Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash
held

EEEE Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents for the year

E00100 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
period

E00200 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

2023 2022
($ 351) ($ 630)
17,017 1,171
698 ( 1,186)

(  22,777) ( 32,526)
1,150 237
60.715 _
56,452 (_ 32.934)
5,143,573 6,150,052
( 5,069,388) ( 6,200,052)
80,000 _

( 120,000) -
738,864 1,112,880
( 551,492) ( 751,500)
- ( 200,000)

21 18

4,382 25,464

( 3,748) ( 3,637)
(__ 43775) (__ 25.500)
178,437 107.725

( 2.655) ( 304)
102,254 39,956
107.191 67.235
$ 209,445 $ 107,191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial reports.

Chairman:
Ho, Chun-Hsien

Manager:

Liao, Wen-Hung
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Chief accountant:
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L.

II.

COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY CORP.
NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in NTD)

Company history
Copartner Technology Corporation (the “Company”) was established and registered in

April 1987 in accordance with the Company Act and other relevant laws and regulations
and started the business. The original name was Copartner Electric Wire Co., Ltd. The
Ministry of Economic Affairs approved the change of the Company name to Copartner
Technology Corporation on August 24, 2004. The Company's main operating items are
R&D, manufacturing and sales of signal transmission wires and wire sets for
information, communication and consumer electronics products, automobiles, medical
equipment, industrial equipment, automation equipment and servers; R&D,
manufacturing and sales of plastic products.

The Company's stock has been listed and traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since
November 10, 2010.

The parent company only financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, the
Company’s functional currency.

Dates and procedures for the financial statement approval
The parent company only financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board

of Directors on March 13, 2024.

III. Application of new and revised standards, amendments, and interpretations

D Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS),
[FRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) (collectively, the
“IFRSs”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory
Commission (FSC)
The application of the amendments to the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect
by the FSC will not have a material impact on the accounting policies of the
Company.

(I)y ~ IFRSs endorsed by FSC that are applicable from 2023 onwards
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Effective date by

New, Revised or Amended Standards and International Accounting

Interpretations Standards Board (IASB)

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease liability in a sale  January 1, 2024 (Note 2)
and leaseback”

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of January 1, 2024
Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current liabilities January 1, 2024
with covenants”

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 17 “Supplier January 1, 2024 (Note 3)

financing arrangements”

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Unless otherwise stated, the above new, revised or amended standards
and interpretations shall take effect for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after those dates.

The seller-lessee shall apply retrospectively the amendments to IFRS 16

for sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the initial

application of IFRS 16.

Exemptions from certain disclosure requirements upon initial application

of this amendment.

1. Amendments to IAS 1 "Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current" (2020) and "Non-current Liabilities with covenants "
(2022).

The amendment in 2020 clarifies that when determining whether a

liability should be classified as non-current, an entity should assess

whether it has the right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the end of the reporting period. If the entity has this right as

of the end of the reporting period, regardless of whether it intends to
exercise that right, the liability is classified as non-current.

Additionally, the amendment 2020 specifies that if an entity is required

to meet certain conditions to have the right to defer settlement of the

liability, the entity must have met those conditions as of the end of the
reporting period, even if the lender tests whether the entity has met those
conditions at a later date. The amendment in 2022 further clarifies that
only contractual terms existing as of the end of the reporting period affect
the classification of liabilities. While contractual terms that must be met

within 12 months after the reporting period do not affect the
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(111)

classification of liabilities, relevant information must be disclosed to
enable users of the financial statements to understand the risk that the
entity may be required to repay the liability within 12 months after the
reporting period.
For the purpose of liability classification, the amendment in 2020
defines settlement as the transfer of cash, other financial assets, or the
entity's own equity instruments to the counterparty to extinguish the
liability. However, if the terms of the liability permit settlement by the
transfer of the entity's own equity instruments at the counterparty's
discretion, and if that right to choose is required to be separately
recognized as equity under IAS 32 '"Financial Instruments:
Presentation," then those terms do not affect the classification of the
liability.
Apart from the above-mentioned impacts, as of the date the individual financial
statements were approved for release, the amendments to the above-mentioned
standards and interpretations will not have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial position and financial performance based on the assessment.

IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Effective Date Issued by
Interpretations IASB (Note 1)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or To be determined by IASB

contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture”
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 “Initial Application of January 1, 2023
IFRS 17 and IFRS 9- Comparative
Information”
Amendments to IAS 21 “Lack of January 1, 2025 (Note 2)
exchangeability”

Note 1: Unless otherwise specified, the above-mentioned new/ revised/ amended
standards or interpretations will take effect during the annual reporting
period beginning on or after each date.

Note 2: Applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2025. When first applied, the effects shall be recognized in retained
earnings as of the date of initial application. When the Company uses a

non-functional currency as the reporting currency, the effects shall adjust
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the exchange differences of foreign operations under equity as of the
date of initial application.
As of the date the parent company only financial reports were approved for
release, the Company continued to assess the possible impact of the application
of the above standards and interpretations on its financial position and financial
performance, and will disclose the relevant impact when the assessment is

completed.

IV. Summary of significant accounting policies

(M

(I

Statement of compliance

The parent company only financial reports have been prepared in accordance

with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by

Securities Issuers.

Basis of preparation

The parent company only financial reports have been prepared on the historical

cost basis except for the financial instruments at fair value and net defined

benefit liabilities recognized from the present value of defined benefit obligation
deducting defined benefit plans at fair value.

The fair value measurement is classified into three levels based on the

observability and significance of relevant inputs:

1.  Level 1 inputs: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities on the measurement date.

2. Level 2 inputs: Inputs, other than quoted market prices within level 1 that
are observable, either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices) for assets or liabilities.

3. Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities.

When the Company prepared the parent company only financial reports, it

adopted equity method to account for its investments in subsidiaries and

associates. In order to enable the amounts of the profit or loss for the year, other
comprehensive income, and equity for the year in the individual financial report
to be the same as the ones attributable to the owners of the Company in its
consolidated financial statements, regarding the differences arising from
accounting treatments between the parent company only basis and the
consolidation basis, adjustments were made to the investments accounted for

using the equity method, the share of profit or loss on subsidiaries and associates
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(111)

(IV)

using the equity method, the share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries

using the equity method, as well as relevant equity items, as appropriate, in the

individual financial reports.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

Current assets include:

1. Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;

2. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the balance sheet
date; and

3. Cash or cash equivalents (excluding assets restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date).

Current liabilities include:

1. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading;

2. Liabilities due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date;
and

3.  Liabilities with a repayment deadline that cannot be unconditionally
deferred for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are classified as

non-current.

Foreign currencies

When the parent company only financial statements of the Company are prepared,

transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (i.e.

foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing on the

transaction dates.

At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are

translated at the rates prevailing on that date. Exchange differences on monetary

items arising from settlement or translation are recognized in profit or loss for the

year in which they arise.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value that are denominated in foreign

currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value

was determined. The resulting exchange difference is recognized in profit or loss

for the year. For items whose changes in fair value are recognized in other

comprehensive income, the resulting exchange difference is recognized in other

comprehensive income.
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V)

(VI)

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the transaction
dates and are not retranslated.

When the individual financial reports are prepared, the assets and liabilities of the
Company’s foreign operations (including subsidiaries that operate in countries or
adopt the functional currencies different from the Company) are translated into
New Taiwan dollars at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting currency exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories include raw materials, goods-in-process, semi-finished goods,
finished goods, and merchandise. The value of inventories is determined based
on the cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The comparison of the
cost and the realizable value is based on individual items except for inventories
of the same category. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories is calculated
using the weighted average method.

Investment in subsidiaries

The Company adopts the equity method to treat its investment in subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries refer to entities controlled by the Company.

Under the equity method, investments in a subsidiary are initially recognized at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the subsidiary. In addition, the changes in
other equity of the Company's subsidiaries are recognized according to the
shareholding ratio.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Company losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. Any difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity.

When the Company’s share of the subsidiary’s losses equals or exceeds its equity
in the subsidiary (including the carrying amount of the subsidiary under the

equity method and other long-term equity that is substantially part of the
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(VII)

Company's net investment in the subsidiary), such loss shall continue to be
recognized in proportion to its shareholding ratio.

When the Company assesses impairment, it considers the cash-generating unit as
a whole based on the financial report and compares its recoverable amount with
the carrying amount. If the recoverable amount of the asset increases later, the
reversal of the impairment loss will be recognized as profit, but the carrying
amount of the asset after the impairment loss reversal shall not exceed the
amount of the asset that shall be deducted if no impairment loss is recognized.
The carrying amount after amortization shall be listed. An impairment loss for
goodwill is never reversed in a subsequent period.

If the Company loses control of the subsidiary, the Company measures its
retained investment in the former subsidiary at its fair value on the date of losing
control. The difference between the fair value of the retained investment and any
disposal proceed and the carrying amount of the investment on the date of losing
control is included in the current profit and loss. In addition, the Company shall
account for all amounts recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary on the same basis as would be required if the Company had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities.

The unrealized profit or loss on downstream transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries are eliminated in the parent company only financial reports.
Profit or loss on downstream and lateral transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries is recognized in the individual financial reports only to the extent
that it does not affect the Company’s interests in the subsidiaries.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity on which the Company has significant influence and is
not a subsidiary or joint venture.

The Company adopts the equity method to account for its investments in
associates.

Under the equity method, investments in an associate are initially recognized at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associates. In addition, the changes in
other equity of the associates are recognized according to the shareholding ratio.
The excess of the acquisition cost over the Company's share of the net fair value

of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates on the acquisition date is
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listed as goodwill, which is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and cannot be amortized.

When assessing impairment, the Company regards the overall carrying amount of
the investment( including goodwill) as a single asset and compares the
recoverable amount with the carrying amount for impairment testing. The
recognized impairment loss is also part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of the impairment loss is recognized to the extent of subsequent
increases in the recoverable amount of the investment.

Profit or loss on downstream, upstream, and lateral transactions between the
Company and associates is recognized in the parent company only financial
reports only to the extent that it does not affect the Company’s interests in the

associates.

(VII) Property, plant and equipment

(IX)

Except for self-owned land, which is not subject to depreciation, other property,

plant and equipment are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment loss.

Each significant component of the remaining property, plant and equipment is

depreciated separately on a straight-line basis within their useful lives. The

Company conducts at least one annual review at the end of each year to assess

the estimated useful life, residual value, and depreciation methods, and applies

the effect of changes in applicable accounting estimates prospectively.

When derecognizing property, plant and equipment, the difference between the

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset shall be recognized in

the current profit and loss.

Intangible assets

1. Acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment loss. Intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis within their useful lives. The Company
conducts at least one annual review at the end of each year to assess the
estimated useful life, residual value, and amortization methods, and applies
the effect of changes in applicable accounting estimates prospectively.

2. Derecognition
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(X)

(XI)

When investment property is derecognized, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
profit or loss.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets
The Company assesses if there are any signs of possible impairment in property,
plant, and equipment as well as right-of-use and intangible assets at each balance
sheet date. If there is any sign of impairment, an estimate is made of its
recoverable amount. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
The recoverable amount is the fair value less cost of sales or its value in use,
whichever is higher. If the recoverable amount of an individual asset or a CGU is
lower than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable
amount, and the impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.
When the impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the
asset or the CGU is increased to the revised recoverable amount, provided that
the increased carrying amount shall not exceed the carrying amount (less
amortization or depreciation) of the asset or the CGU, which was not recognized
in impairment loss in prior years. The reversal of the impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss.
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities shall be recognized in the parent
company only balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
When initially recognizing financial assets and financial liabilities, if the
financial assets or financial liabilities are not measured at fair value through
profit or loss, but measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or financial liabilities.
The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognized in profit or loss.

1. Financial assets
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Regular trading of financial assets shall be recognized and derecognized in

accordance with trade date accounting.

(1)

Measurement types

Financial assets held by the Company are those measured at
amortized cost and investments in equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

A. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

When the Company’s investments in financial assets meet the

following two conditions simultaneously, they are classified as

financial assets measured at amortized cost:

(A) Held under a certain business model, of which the
objective is to collect contractual cash flows by holding
the financial assets; and

(B) The cash flows on specific dates specified in the
contractual terms are solely payments of the principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, such assets( including cash and cash
equivalents, and notes receivable, accounts receivable at
amortized cost, accounts receivable due from related parties,
other receivables due from related parties, and refundable
deposits) are measured at the amortized cost of the total
carrying amount determined by the effective interest method
less any impairment loss, and any foreign currency exchange
gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Except for the following two cases, interest revenue is

calculated by multiplying the effective interest rate by the total

carrying amount of financial assets:

(A) For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
asset, interest revenue is calculated by multiplying the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate by the amortized
cost of the financial asset.

(B) For a financial asset that is not purchased or originated
credit-impaired but subsequently becomes credit

impaired, interest income is calculated by multiplying
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the effective interest rate from the next reporting period
after the credit impairment by the amortized cost of the
financial asset.
Credit-impaired financial assets refer to a situation in which the
issuer or debtor has experienced significant financial difficulties
or defaulted, the debtor is likely to apply for bankruptcy or
other financial restructuring, or the active market for such
financial assets disappears due to financial difficulties.
Cash equivalents include time deposits that are highly liquid
and readily convertible into a fixed amount of cash at any time
within 3 months from the date of acquisition while featuring
little risk of value changes, which are used to meet short-term
cash commitments.
Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
The Company may, upon initial recognition, make an
irrevocable election to designate as at fair value through other
comprehensive income the investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading and the ones that are not recognized
by an acquirer in a business combination or with the contingent
consideration.
Investments in an equity instrument measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value,
and any subsequent fair value changes are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in other equity. At the
time of disposal of such investments, the accumulated gains and
losses are directly reclassified to retained earnings and will not
be reclassified to profit or loss.
Dividends of investments in equity instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are recognized in
profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive dividends is
established unless such dividends clearly represent the recovery

of a part of the investment cost.

Impairment of financial assets
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The Company assesses the impairment loss of financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including accounts receivable and lease
payments receivable) based on the expected credit loss at each
balance sheet date.
Accounts receivable and lease payments receivable are both
recognized in loss allowance based on the lifetime expected credit
losses (ECLs). Other financial assets are first assessed based on
whether the credit risk has increased significantly since the initial
recognition. If there is no significant increase in the risk, a loss
allowance is recognized at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs. If
the risks have increased significantly, a loss allowance is recognized
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The ECLs refer to the weighted average credit loss with the risk of

default as the weight. The 12-month ECLs represent the ECLs from

possible defaults of a financial instrument within 12 months after the
reporting date. The lifetime ECLs represent the ECLs from all

possible defaults in a financial instrument over the expected life of a

financial instrument.

For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Company,

without considering the collateral held, determines that the following

situations represent defaults in the financial assets:

A. Internal or external information indicates that it is impossible
for the debtor to settle the debt.

B. It is overdue for more than 90 days, unless there is reasonable
and corroborative information showing that a default date
postponed is more appropriate.

Impairment losses of all financial assets are achieved by reducing

their carrying amounts through the use of an allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual

rights to the cash inflow from the financial asset expire or when it

transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.
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On derecognition of a financial asset at amortized cost in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
consideration received is recognized in profit or loss. When
derecognizing an investment in equity instrument at fair value
through other comprehensive income in its entirety, the cumulative
profit or loss is transferred directly to retained earnings and is not
reclassified to profit or loss.
2. Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of equity instruments.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of the cost of direct issue.
The repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized in
and deducted directly from equity. The purchase, sale, issuance, or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments is not recognized in
profit or loss.
3.  Financial liabilities
(1)  Subsequent measurement
The Company’s all financial liabilities are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.
(2) Derecognition of financial liabilities
When financial liabilities are derecognized, the difference between
the carrying amount and the consideration paid (including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in
profit or loss.
(XII) Revenue recognition
After the performance obligations are identified in a customer contract, the
Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation, and
recognizes it in revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied.

Sales revenue of goods

The sales of goods revenue comes from the R&D, manufacturing and sales of
signal transmission wires and wire sets for information, communication and

consumer electronics products, automobiles, medical equipment, industrial
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(XIID)

equipment, automation equipment and servers; the R&D, manufacturing and
sales of plastic products. When the products are delivered to the location
designated by customers, customers have the right to determine the price and the
way the products are used while bearing the main responsibility for resale and the
risk of obsolescence, upon which revenue and account receivable are recognized
by the Company.
When processing consigned material, the control of the ownership of the
processed products has not been transferred, so revenue is not recognized when
consigned material.
Leases
At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease.
1.  The Company as lessor
Where almost all the risks and rewards attached to the ownership of an
asset are transferred to the lessee in lease terms, such leases are classified
as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Under operating leases, lease payments less lease incentives are recognized
in income on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease terms. The
original direct cost incurred in obtaining an operating lease is added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized in expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease negotiations with the lessee
are treated as new leases from the effective date of the lease modification.
2. The Company as lessee
The Company recognizes all leases as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities on the commencement date of the lease, except for payment for
low-value asset leases and short-term leases which are exempted from
recognition and recognized as costs on a straight-line basis during the lease
term.
A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (including the initial
measured amount of lease liabilities, the amount of lease payments made to
the lessor less lease incentives received prior to the inception of a lease,
initial direct costs, and the estimated costs of restoring underlying assets),
and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease
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liabilities. Right-of-use assets are presented separately in the parent
company only balance sheets.

Depreciation is withdrawn for right-of-use assets by using straight-line
method from the commencement dates of lease to the earlier of the
expiration of the service lives or lease terms.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payment. If the interest rate implicit in a lease can be easily determined, the
lease payment is discounted at such an interest rate. If the interest rate
cannot be easily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applies.

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, with interest expense recognized over the lease
terms. If changes in the lease term lead to changes in future lease
payments, the Company remeasures the lease liabilities with a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use assets. However, if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets has been reduced to zero, the
remaining re-measurement amount is recognized in profit or loss. Lease
liabilities are presented on a separate line in the parent company only

balance sheets.

(XIV) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to an acquisition, construction, or

production of qualifying assets are added to the cost of said assets, until such

time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

For specific borrowings, if the investment income earned by making a temporary

investment before the capital expenditure that meets the requirements is incurred,

it is deducted from the borrowing costs that meet the capitalization conditions.

Other than that which is stated above, all other borrowing costs are recognized in

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(XV) Employee benefits

l.

Short-term employee benefits

Relevant liabilities for short-term employee benefits are measured by the
non-discounted amount expected to be paid in exchange for employee
services.

Post-employment benefits
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For pension under the defined contribution plan, the amount of pension
contributed is recognized in expenses during employees’ service period.
The defined benefit cost under the defined benefit pension plan (including
service cost, net interest, and re-measurement) is calculated based on the
projected unit credit method. The service cost (including the service costs
for the current period) and the net interest on the net defined benefit
liabilities are recognized in employee benefit expenses as they occur. The
re-measurement (including actuarial gains and losses, and the return on
plan assets, net of interest) is recognized in other comprehensive income
and listed in retained earnings when it occurs, and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss subsequently.

The net defined benefit liabilities are the deficit of the defined benefit

pension plan.

(XVI) Income tax

The income tax expense represents the sum of the current income tax and

deferred tax.

1.

Current income tax

The Company determines the income (loss) of the current year in
accordance with the laws and regulations in domestic and calculates the
income tax payable (recoverable) accordingly.

A surtax imposed on the undistributed earnings pursuant to the Income Tax
Act of R.O.C. is recognized in the year in which it is resolved by the
annual shareholders’ meeting.

Adjustments to income tax payable from prior years are recognized in the
income tax for the year.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated based on the temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognized when there is likely to
be taxable income to deduct temporary differences and the deduction of

losses generate income tax credit.

- 240 -



All taxable temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries and
equity in associates are recognized as deferred tax liabilities, except where
the Company is able to control the time of reversal of the temporary
differences and it is very likely that such temporary differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. The deductible temporary differences
related to said investments are recognized in deferred income tax only if it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable income against which to
utilize the benefits of the temporary differences, and they are expected to
be reversed in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferred tax asset is also
reviewed at each balance sheet date and recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable income will allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates of the
current year in which the liabilities are expected to be settled or assets
realized, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. The measurement of
deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the balance
sheet date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

3. Current and deferred income tax
Current and deferred income taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, the current and deferred taxes are recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

V. Major sources of uncertainty in significant accounting judgments, estimations, and
assumptions
When the Company adopts accounting policies, the management must make relevant

judgments, estimates, and assumptions based on historical experience and other relevant
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factors for those not easy to obtain relevant information from other sources. Actual

results may differ from estimates.

When the Company develop an accounting estimate value, we will take the inflation and

the interest rate volatility into consideration of major accounting estimates related to

cash flow estimation, growth rate, discount rate, profitability, etc., and the management

will continue to review the estimates and basic assumptions. If a change in an

accounting estimate may affect the current, it shall be recognized in the current. If a

change in an accounting estimate may affect the current and future period, it shall be

recognized in the current and future period.

Major sources of uncertainty in estimations and assumptions

(D

(1)

Income tax

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of deferred income tax
assets related to unused tax losses were NT$ 95,258 thousand and NT$ 82,125
thousand, respectively. The realizability of deferred income tax assets mainly
depends on whether there will be sufficient profits or taxable temporary
differences in the future. If the actual profit generated in the future is less than
expected, there may be a reversal of significant deferred income tax assets, and
such reversals are recognized as profit or loss during the occurrence.

Estimated impairment on receivables

The estimated impairment on notes and accounts receivable is based on the
Company's assumptions about the default probability and the loss given default.
The Company considers historical experience, current market conditions, and
forward-looking information to formulate assumptions and select inputs for
impairment assessments. Please refer to Note VII for important assumptions
adopted and input values. If the actual cash flow in the future is less than the

Company's expectation, significant impairment loss may occur.
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Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Checking accounts and demand
deposits $153,783 $107,069
Cash on hand and revolving funds 102 122
Cash equivalents (investment with
original maturities within three
months)
Bank fixed deposits 55.560 -
$209.445 $107,191
The interest rate range of bank deposits on the balance sheet date is as follows:
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Bank deposits 0%~5.30% 0%~1.05%
VII. Notes and accounts receivable, net
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Note receivable
Measured at amortized cost
Total carrying amount $ 25,650 $ 23,319
Less: Loss allowances (__21.650) (__21.883)
$ 4,000 $ 1436
Accounts receivable
Measured at amortized cost
Total carrying amount $ 63,145 $ 49,285
Less: Loss allowances (___7,002) (__7.495)
§ 56,143 $ 41,790

Accounts receivable measured at amortized cost

The Company’s average credit period for sales is 60 days to 120 days monthly
settlement No interest will be accrued for accounts receivable. In order to mitigate credit
risk, the management of the Company assigns a special team to be responsible for the
determination of credit lines, credit approval, and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that appropriate actions have been taken in the recovery of past-due accounts receivable.
In addition, the Company will review the recoverable amounts of receivables one by
one at the balance sheet date to ensure that the unrecoverable receivables have been
properly recognized in impairment losses. Accordingly, the Company’s management
believes that its credit risk has been significantly reduced.

The Company recognizes the loss allowance for accounts receivable based on the
lifetime ECLs. The lifetime ECLs are calculated using a provision matrix based on the

consideration for customers’ past default records, current financial position, and
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industrial economic situation. As the Company’s historical experience in credit loss
shows that there is no significant difference in the loss patterns among different
customer groups, the customer groups are not further differentiated in the provision
matrix, and only the ECLs based on the age of the accounts receivable are set.

If there is evidence that a counterparty is facing serious financial difficulties and the
Company cannot reasonably expect to recover the amount, for instance, the
counterparty is engaging in the settlement. The Company will directly write off the
relevant accounts receivable but will continue to try to collect the receivable. The
recovered amount is recognized in profit or loss.

The loss allowance for accounts receivable measured by the Company based on the

provision matrix as follows:

December 31, 2023
181 to 365
1t090days 91 to 180 days days Over 365 days Total
ECLs - 1% 25%~75% 100%
Total carrying amount $ 51,759 $ 4,439 $ - $ 6,947 $ 63,145
Allowance for losses (lifetime
ECLs) - 55) - 6.947) ( 7.002)
Amortized cost $§ 51,759 $ 4,384 $ - $ - § 56,143
December 31, 2022
181 to 365
1t090days 91 to 180 days days Over 365 days Total
ECLs - 1% 25%~75% 100%
Total carrying amount $ 35431 $ 6,246 $ 251 $ 7,357 $ 49,285
Allowance for losses (lifetime
ECLs) - ( 63) ( 75) ( 7.357) ( 7.495)
Amortized cost § 35431 $ 6,183 $ 176 $ - $ 41,790

The information on changes in the loss allowance for notes receivable is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the year $ 21,883 $ 19,708
Add: Impairment loss recognized
for the year - 2,175
Less: Impairment loss reversal for
the year ( 233) -
Balance at end of the year $ 21,650 $ 21,883

The information on changes in the loss allowance for accounts receivable is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the year $ 7,495 $ 6,514
Add: Impairment loss recognized
for the year - 981
Less: Impairment loss returned for
the year ( 91) -
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Less: Actual write-off for the year ( 402) -

Balance at end of the year $ 7,002 $ 7495
VIIILInventories
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Goods $ 1,589 $ 5,636

Raw material - 1,188
Goods-in-process and

semi-finished goods - 734

Finished goods - 174

$ 1589 $ 7,732

The components of operating costs related to inventories are as follows:

2023 2022
Allowance for inventory valuation
and obsolescence loss ($_6.714) $ 4738
Unamortized production
overheads $ 15,017 $ 13,037
Operating costs $255,974 $226,951
IX. Investments accounted for using equity method
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Investment in subsidiaries $ 3,418,991 $ 3,778,965
Investments in associates 40,805 42,811
$ 3.459.796 $ 3,821,776
(D Investment in subsidiaries
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Not a listed or OTC Company
Hotek Technology
Corporation $ 1,817,207 $2,056,425
Copartner Wire And Cable
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. 1,254,460 1,354,007
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg
Co., Ltd. 347,324 368,533
Sunagaru International Inc.
(Sunagaru) - -
$3.418.991 $3.778.965
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Percentage of ownership interests and

(1D

voting rights
December 31, December 31,
Name of subsidiary 2023 2022 Description

Hotek Technology Corp. 100% 100% -
Copartner Wire And Cable -

(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. 100% 100%
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., -

Ltd. 100% 100%
Sunagaru International Inc. - - Note

Note: Sunagaru Company has been liquidated in December 2022.

For details of investment in subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company, please
refer to Note XXVIIL

The Company’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
subsidiaries under the equity method in 2023 and 2022 was recognized based on
the subsidiaries’ financial statements that have been audited by CPAs for the
same period.

Investments in associates

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Associates that are not
individually material
HPC Technology Inc. $ 40,805 $ 42,811

Percentage of ownership interests and
voting rights
Company Name December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
HPC Technology Inc. 48.98% 48.98%

Aggregate information on associates that are not individually material as follows:

2023 2022
The Company’s share
Current net income
(loss) ($_2.006) § 7524

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amount of goodwill generated by the
Company's investment in HPC Technology Inc. was NT$ 14,462 thousand,
including the cost of investing in associates.

The Company’s share of profit or loss of the associates under the equity method
in 2023 and 2022 was recognized based on the associates’ financial statements

that have been audited by CPAs for the same period.
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X. Property, plant and equipment

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Owner-occupied $120,638 $146,498
Operating lease rent 13.181 13.679

$133,819 $160,177

(D Owner-occupied

Property and Machinery and  Instrument and Transport Office Other
Land building equipment equipment equipment equipment equipment Total

Cost
Balance as of January

1,2023 $ 97,644 $ 63,122 $ 40,494 $ 6,936 $ 5,753 $ 23348 $ 4,645 $ 241,942
Additions - - - - - 351 - 351
Disposals - - ( 40,036) ( 6.936) ( 618) ( 1.554)  ( 2.578) ( 51,722)
Balance as of

December 31, 2023 $ 97,644 $ 63,122 $ 458 $ - $ 5,135 $ 22,145 $ 2,067 $ 190,571
Accumulated

depreciation and

impairment
Balance as of January

1,2023 $ - $ 41,078 $ 21,245 $ 3,738 $ 4,411 $ 21,513 $ 3,459 $ 95444
Depreciation expense - 821 4,783 819 613 674 354 8,064
Disposals - - ( 25.735) ( 4.557) ( 275)  ( 1,181) ( 1.827) ( 33.575)
Balance as of

December 31, 2023 $ - $ 41,899 $ 293 $ - $ 4,749 $ 21,006 $ 1,986 $ 69933
Net amount as of

December 31, 2023 $ 97,644 $ 21,223 $ 165 $ - $ 386 $ 1,139 $ 81 $ 120,638
Cost
Balance as of January

1,2022 $ 97,644 $ 63,122 $ 40,308 $ 6,936 $ 7,248 $ 23,166 $ 4,648 $ 243,072
Additions - - 186 - - 444 - 630
Disposals - ( 1.495) ( 262) ( 3) ( 1,760)

Balance as of
December 31, 2022 $ 97,644 $ 63,122 $ 40,494 $ 6,936 $ 5,753 $ 23,348 $ 4,645 S 241,942

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
Balance as of January

1,2022 $ - $ 40,249 $ 14,498 $ 2,582 $ 4,165 $ 21,049 $ 3,050 $ 85593
Depreciation expense - 829 6,747 1,156 952 710 411 10,805
Disposals - - - ( 706) ( 246) ( 2) ( 954)
Balance as of

December 31, 2022 $ - $ 41,078 $ 21245 $ 3,738 $ 4,411 $ 21513 $ 3,459 $ 95444

Net amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 97,644 $ 22,044 $ 19,249 $ 3,198 $ 1,342 $ 1,835 $ 1,186 $ 146,498

Depreciation expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis based on the

number of useful lives below:

Property and building

Office main buildings 50 years

Renovation projects and others 2-10 years
Machinery and equipment 5 years
Instrument and equipment 5 years
Transport equipment 5 years
Office equipment 3-10 years
Other equipment 2-8 years

For the amount of owner-occupied property, plant, and equipment pledged by the

Company as collateral for borrowings, please refer to Note XXIV.
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(I)  Operating lease rent

Property and

building
Cost
Balance for the year ended December 31, 2023 $ 25,446
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2023 $ 11,767
Depreciation expense 498
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 12,265
Net amount as of December 31, 2023 $ 13,181
Cost
Balance for the year ended December 31, 2022 $ 25.446
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 11,268
Depreciation expense 499
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 11,767
Net amount as of December 31, 2022 $ 13,679

The Company rents offices by operating lease of 2 to 3 years lease term. At the
end of the lease term, the lessee will not have a bargain purchase option for the
asset.

The total amount of lease payments that will be received in the future under

operating leases is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
First year $ 3,037 $ 1,985
Second year 293 1,279
$ 3.330 $ 3264

Depreciation expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis based on the
number of useful lives below:

Property and building 50 years

XI. Lease arrangements
D Right-of-use assets
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(I1I)

Iv)

December 31, 2023

Carrying amount of
right-of-use assets

Property and building $ -
Transport equipment 1,478
$ 1478

2023

Additions to right-of-use

assets $ -
Depreciation expenses of

right-of-use assets

Property and building $ 2,600
Transport equipment 1,042
$ 3,642

December 31, 2022

$ 4,187
2,520

$ 6,707

2022

$ 4652
$ 2,903
608
3,511

Except for the additions and recognition of depreciation expenses listed above,

there was no significant sublease or impairment of the Company’s right-of-use

assets in 2023 and 2022.
Lease liabilities

December 31, 2023

Carrying amount of lease

liabilities
Current $ 1,054
Non-current $ 445

Range of discount rate for lease liabilities is as follows:

December 31, 2023
Property and building 1.80%
Transport equipment 1.80%

Material lease-in activities and terms

December 31, 2022

§ 3,993
§ 2818

December 31, 2022

1.80%
1.80%

The Company leases several buildings for plants and offices for a 2 to 5 years

lease term.

Other leasing information

2023

Expense on short-term

lease $ 466
Lease expenses of

low-value assets $ -
Variable lease payments not

included in the

measurement of lease

liabilities $ -
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2023 2022

Total cash outflow from

lease ($_4.300) ($_4.161)

The Company has leased certain office equipment which qualifies for short-term
leases and transportation equipment which qualifies for low-value asset leases.
The Group has elected to apply the recognition exemption for said equipment and,
thus, did not recognize the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of said leases.

XII. Intangible assets
Computer software costs

Cost

Balance for the year ended December 31, 2022 $ 87
Accumulated amortization

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 65
Amortization expense 22
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 87
Net amount as of December 31, 2022 $ -

Amortization expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis based on the number of

useful lives below:

Computer software costs 3 years
XIII.Borrowings
(D Short-term borrowings
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Unsecured borrowings
Credit borrowings
- Interest rate: 1.85%~
2.16% in 2023, due
before the end of
October 2024;
1.59%~2.01% in 2022,
due before the end of
June 2023 $924.,185 $850,000
(I) ~ Short-term notes payable
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Commercial paper payable $ - $ 40,000

The short-term bills payable that has not yet expired is as follows:
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December 31, 2022

Guarantee / Carrying
acceptance Discount Carrying Interest Collateral amount of
institution Face value amount amount rate range item collateral
Commercial
paper payable
Mega Bills
Finance Co.,
Ltd. § 40,000 $ - $40.000 2.10% - $ -

(II)  Long-term borrowings

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Secured borrowings (1)
Joint credit loan - interest

rate: 2.11%for 2023 and

1.80% for 2022 $160,000 $550,000
Syndication sponsor fee (__1,150) ( 1,450)

Subtotal 158,850 548,550

Unsecured borrowings
Credit borrowings-interest

rate: 0.50%~2.10%in

2023, due before the end

of December 2028;

0.48% in 2022, due

before the end of January

2027. 49,352 71,980
Less: Current portion within

one year (_172,078) (__17,995)
Long-term borrowings $ 36,124 $602,535

1. In October 2022, the Company entered into joint credit agreements of NT$
1 million thousand or equivalent US dollars with 6 banks such as Chang
Hwa Bank Chilin Branch and Land Bank and Land Bank of Taiwan
Chengdong Branch. The agreement period is 5 years, of which Item A-
medium-term loans of NT$ 1,000,000 thousand; Item B - medium-term
loans of NT$ 1,000,000 thousand equivalent in US dollars, and Item C -
guaranteed-commercial paper issuance of NT$ 600,000 thousand, make all
revolving loan facilities.
Items A and B - The relevant terms, interest rate, and amount used on

December 31, 2023, for the medium-term loans are as follows:
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December 31, 2023

Line of credit

Amount used

Credit term

Repayment method

NT$ 1,000,000 $ 160,000
thousand or
equivalent in
US dollars
December 31, 2022

Line of credit

Amount used

Five years from
the date of first
drawdown
(revolving
credit)

Credit term

The borrower shall pay

off the outstanding
principal balance of
each usage in the
currency of each
usage on the due date
of the usage

Repayment method

NT$ 1,000,000
thousand or
equivalent in
US dollars

$ 550,000

Five years from
the date of first
drawdown
(revolving
credit)

The borrower shall pay

off the outstanding
principal balance of
each usage in the
currency of each

usage on the due date
of the usage

During the duration of agreements with the Chang Hwa Bank, a syndicated
loan with a joint credit line, the current ratio, debt ratio, and EBIT in the
Copartner Company’s Q2 and annual consolidated financial statements
should meet the requirements in the agreements. As of December 31, 2022
and June 30, 2022 all financial ratios of the Copartner Company were in
compliance with the regulations, but As of December 31, 2023 and June
30, 2023, a portion of financial ratios of the Copartner Company were not
in compliance with the regulations. Therefore, as of December 31, 2023,
the borrowed and discounted funds of NT$758,850 million already utilized
were reclassified as current liabilities due within one year. However, on
November 14, 2023, the Company applied to six banks, including Chang
Hwa Bank (the syndicated credit banks), for an exemption from reviewing
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2023, for the financial covenant. Subsequently, on February 16, 2024,
the majority of the syndicated credit banks provided written consent to
exempt and revise the financial covenant ratios for the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. This
exemption and revision will not have a significant impact on the operations

or finances of Copartner Company.
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The above financial ratios and requirements should be based on the
audited/ reviewed annual and semi-annual consolidated financial
statements by the accountants. If the Company fails to meet the above
financial ratios and requirements, it shall pay compensation fees monthly.
However, if the next period's financial report, after being audited or
reviewed by the accountants, meets all the financial ratios and covenant
requirements, it shall not constitute a default under this agreement.

For the above long-term borrowings, the Company provided part of the
land, houses, and buildings in Zhonghe District, New Taipei City as
collateral for the loan (please refer to Note XXIV).

(IV) Long-term notes payable

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Joint credit
agreement-guaranteed-c
ommercial paper
issuance

Interest rate: 2.02% in
2023 $600,000 $ -

Minus: Classify a portion
of long-term notes payable
as current liabilities due
within one year. (_600,000) -

Long-term notes

payable $ - $ -

The joint credit agreement as described in (3) is Item A-2 - line of

guaranteed-commercial paper issuance.

XIV. Other current liabilities
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Salary and bonus payable $ 12,629 $ 15,020
Service fee payable 1,395 1,375
Other 6.365 7,745
$ 20,389 $ 24,140

XV. Post-employment benefits plans

(D

Determined appropriation plans

The Company has adopted a pension plan under the Labor Pension Act (LPA),
which is a state-managed defined contribution plan. Under the LPA, the
companies make monthly contributions to employees’ individual pension

accounts of the Bureau of Labor Insurance at 6% of monthly salaries and wages.
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Defined benefit plans

The pension system adopted by the Company in accordance with the Labor
Standards Act of R.O.C. is a state-managed defined benefit pension plan. The
payment for employee pensions is calculated based on the length of service and
the average salary in the 6 months prior to the approved retirement date. The
Company contributes pensions at 2% of the total monthly employee salaries,
which are deposited by the Pension Fund Monitoring Committee in the pension
account with the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the committee. Before the end of
each year, if the balance in the pension account assessed is inadequate to pay for
the retirement benefits for employees who meet the retirement requirements in
the following year, the Company will contribute an amount to make up for the
difference in a lump sum by the end of March of the following year. The pension
account is managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor; the
Company has no right to influence the investment management strategy.

The amount of defined benefit plans listed in the parent company only balance

sheet is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Present value of defined
benefit obligation $ 31,733 $ 34,273
Fair value of plan assets (__14.,573) (__14.971)
Net defined benefit
liabilities $ 17,160 $ 19,302

Changes in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit liabilities
January 1, 2022 § 35743 ($ 11.756) § 23987
Service cost
Current service cost 135 - 135
Interest (income)
expense 179 ( 65) 114
Recognized in profit or
loss 314 ( 65) 249
Remeasurement
Return on plan
asset (except for
the amount
included in the
net interest) $ - ($ 910) ($ 910)
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Actuarial gains -
changes in
financial
assumptions

Actuarial losses -
experience
adjustments

Recognized in other
comprehensive
income

Contributions from the

employer

December 31, 2022

Service cost

Current service cost

Interest (income)
expense

Recognized in profit or
loss

Remeasurement

Return on plan
asset (except for
the amount
included in the
net interest)

Actuarial gains -
changes in
financial
assumptions

Actuarial losses -
experience
adjustments

Recognized in other
comprehensive
income

Contributions from the
employer

Paid for planning asset

December 31, 2023

( 2,272)
488

( 1,784)

34,273
140
471

611

263
170

433

(___3.584)
$ 31733

( 910)
( 2.240)
(__ 14.971)
( 207)
( 207)
( 86)
(__ 86)
( 2.893)

3,584
($_ 14,573)

( 2,272)
488

( 2.694)

(___ 2.240)
19,302

140
264

404

( 86)

263
170

347

( 2.893)

$ 17160

Due to the pension plans under the Labor Standards Act, the Company is exposed

to the following risks:

1.  Investment risk: The Bureau invests labor pension funds in domestic

(foreign) equity securities, debt securities, and bank deposits on its own use

and through agencies entrusted. However, the income from the Company’s

amount allocated to plan assets is calculated based on the interest rate not

lower than the local bank’s interest rate for 2-year time deposits.
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2. Interest risk: A decrease in the interest rate in the government bonds/
corporate bonds will increase the present value of the defined benefit
obligation; however, the return on the debt investment through the plan
assets will also increase, and the increases will partially offset the effect of
the net defined benefit liability.

3. Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated
with reference to the future salaries of the participants in the plan. As such,
an increase in the salary of the participants in the plan will increase the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

The actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligation of

the Company were carried out by qualified actuaries. The critical assumptions

made on the measurement date are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Discount rate 1.25% 1.38%
Expected salary increase rate 2.00% 2.00%

If each of the critical actuarial assumptions is subject to reasonably possible
changes, when all other assumptions remain unchanged, the amounts by which

the present value of the defined benefit obligation would increase (decrease) are

as follows:
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Discount rate

Increase by 0.25% (3 522) ($ 603)

Decrease by 0.25% $ 538 $ 623
Expected salary increase rate

Increase by 0.25% $ 526 $ 610

Decrease by 0.25% (3 513) ($ 593)

As actuarial assumptions may be correlated, it is unlikely that only a single
assumption would occur in isolation of one another, so the sensitivity analysis
above may not reflect the actual changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

The expected appropriate

amount within 1 year $ 197 $ 242
The weighted average

duration of the defined

benefit obligation 6.7 years 7.2 years

Equity
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(1)

(I1T)

Ordinary shares

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Authorized shares (in
thousands) 120,000 120,000
Authorized share capital $ 1,200,000 $ 1,200,000
Issued and paid shares (in
thousands) 87,550 87,550
Issued share capital $ 875,500 $§ 875,500

The ordinary shares issued, with a par value of NT$10 per share, are entitled to
one voting right per share and to the right to receive dividends.
The change in the Company's share capital is mainly due to the distribution of
stock dividends.
Capital surplus

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

May be used to compensate
losses, distribute cash, or
replenish capital (1)
Share premium $366,770 $410,545
May only be used to
compensate losses
Recognition of changes in
ownership interests of

subsidiaries (2) 13,685 13,685
$380,455 $424.,230

1. This type of capital surplus attributed to the income derived from the
issuance of new shares at a premium can be used to make up for losses, and
can also be used to pay cash or to replenish capital when the Company
does not suffer losses, but when capital is replenished, it is limited to a
certain percentage of the paid-in capital each year.

2. This type of capital surplus is the amount of adjustments to capital surplus
of subsidiaries recognized by the Company using the equity method.

Retained earnings and dividends policy

According to the surplus distribution policy stipulated in the Company's Articles

of Incorporation before the amendment, the Company's earnings after the annual

final accounts, in addition to paying income tax according to law, shall first make
up for previous year's losses, and then withdraw 10% of the balance as a legal
reserve, and then follow relevant laws and regulations or the competent authority

stipulates that the special reserves shall be appropriated or reversed. After adding
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up the undistributed surplus of the previous years, the board of directors will
formulate a surplus distribution proposal and submit a resolution to the
shareholders meeting to distribute dividends to shareholders. For the employee
compensation and directors’ remuneration distribution policy stipulated in the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation, please refer to Note XVIII(VII) regarding
employee compensation and directors’ remuneration.

On June 29, 2022, the Company's shareholders' meeting approved a resolution to
amend the Articles of Incorporation, stipulating the distribution of dividends for
shareholders and the distribution of legal reserve and capital surplus in cash. The
board of directors is authorized, two-thirds of the board of directors shall attend,
and more than half of the directors present agree, which shall be distributed after
approval and reported to the shareholders’ meeting.

The cash and stock combination method shall be adopted as the dividend
distribution policy to improve the financial structure and protect the rights and
interests of shareholders. Cash dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total
dividends.

The legal reserve shall not be appropriated when its balance reaches the amount
of the Company’s total paid-in capital. The legal reserve may be used to make up
for losses. When the Company does not suffer losses, the part of the legal reserve
in excess of 25% of the total paid-in capital can be distributed in cash in addition
to being used to replenish the capital.

The Copartner company’s 2022 and 2021 earnings distribution proposals

respectively as follows:

2022 2021
Legal reserve $ - $ 8,135
Appropriate (reverse) ($.45.376) $ 11435
special reserves
Cash dividends $ - § 25.500
Stock dividends $ - $ 25,500
Cash dividends per share $ - $ 0.3
(in dollars)
Stock dividends per share $ - $ 0.3
(in dollars)

In addition, the Company's board of directors, on March 29, 2023, proposed to
distribute cash from capital surplus at NT$ 0.5 per share in cash, and the

distribution amount is NT$ 43,775 thousand. Other distribution item were also
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approved at the shareholders' meetings held on June 30, 2023 and June 29, 2022,
respectively.

The 2023 Deficit compensation proposal will be resolved by the board of director
on March 13, 2024 and general shareholders’ meeting held on June 14, 2024.

(IV)  Special reserve

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of the
year $298,718 $287,283
Appropriate (reverse) special
reserves
Less amount of
appropriate (reverse)
other equity items (__45.376) 11,435
Balance at end of the year $253,342 $298.718

According to the regulations of the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC),
when the company distributes distributable profits, it shall include the net amount of
other shareholders' equity deductions recorded for the current year, plus items other
than the current year's post-tax net profit, in the amount of undistributed profits for
the current year, and replenish the special surplus reserves from undistributed profits
from previous periods. However, the amount of other shareholders' equity deductions
accumulated in previous periods may not be distributed but must be replenished as
special surplus reserves from undistributed profits. Subsequently, when there is a
reversal of the amount of other shareholders' equity deductions, profits may be

distributed for the reversed portion.

(V)  Other equity interests
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements

2023 2022

Balance at beginning of the
year ($253,342) ($298,718)
Generated in the current year
Exchange differences of
foreign financial

statements (__42.108) 45,376
Balance at end of the year ($295.450) ($5253,342)
XVIL Revenue
2023 2022
Revenue from customer contracts
Revenue from sale of goods $283,389 $255,558
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(D Balance of contracts

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022 January 1, 2022

Accounts receivable

(Note VII) $ 56,143 $ 41,790 $ 57,612
Accounts receivable

due from related

parties (Note XXIII) 1,338 816 2,745
$ 57481 $ 42,606 S 60357

Contract liabilities

Merchandise sales $ 4,553 $ 6.470 $ 2,832

Changes in contract liabilities are primarily attributable to differences in the
timing of satisfaction of contract obligations and the timing of payment by
customers.

The amount of contract liabilities from the beginning of the year and
performance obligations fulfilled in the previous period recognized in revenue in

the current year is as follows:

2023 2022
Contract _liabilities from
the beginning of the
year
Merchandise sales $ 5,429 $ 2,652

(I)  Breakdown of revenue from customer contracts

Segment by geographical

location 2023 2022

Taiwan (Location of
Company) $ 68,957 $ 78,323
The Americas 124,803 107,077
Asia 55,941 35,712
Europe 24,306 23,944
Other 9.382 10,502
$283,389 $255,558

XVIII.  Net profit from continuing operations
Net profit from continuing operations includes the following items:

(D Interest income

2023 2022
Bank deposits $ 1304 § 261

(IT) ~ Other income
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Rental income (operating
lease)
Other

(IIT) ~ Other gains and losses

Gain (loss) on foreign
exchange, net
Other

(IV) Finance costs

Bank loans interest
Interest on lease liabilities

2023

$ 3,460
1,340

$ 4.800

2023

2022

($ 1,123)
(____74)
($_1,197)

2023

$ 3310
4,244

$§ 7554

2022

(V)  Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and
equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

An analysis of depreciation
expenses by function
Operating costs
Operating expenses

An analysis of
amortization expenses
by function

Costs of sales
Operating expenses

(VI) Employee benefits expenses

Post-employment benefits
Determined
appropriation plans
Defined benefit plans
(Note XV)

$ 29,269
86

$ 29,355

2023

$ 8,446
289
$§ 8735

2022

$ 8,562
3,642

$ 12,204

$ 7913
4,291

$ 12,204

2023

$ 18,915
112

$ 19,027

2022
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$ 3,259

404

$ 11,304
3,511
22

$ 14,837

$ 9,960
4.855

$ 14,815

2022

$ 2,531

217



3,663 2,748

Other employee benefits 85,630 69.941
$ 89,293 $ 72,689

An analysis by function
Operating costs $ 8,997 $ 5,931
Operating expenses 80,296 66,758
$ 89,293 § 72,689

(VII) Remuneration to the employees and directors
The Company shall allocate no less than 1% and no more than 3% of the pre-tax
income before the employee and directors’ remunerations distributed are
deducted for employee and directors’ remuneration, respectively. The Company
suffered net loss before tax in 2022 and 2023, so we did not estimate employee
and directors’ remunerations.
If there is a change in the amount after the annual parent company only financial
reports are approved for release, it shall be treated as a change in accounting
estimates and adjusted and accounted for in the next year.
There was no difference between the actual amount of employee compensation
and directors’ remuneration distributed for 2021 and the amount recognized in
the 2021 parent company only financial reports.
For information on employee compensation and directors’ remuneration decided
by the Company’s board of directors, please visit the Market Observatory Post
System (MOPS) of Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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XIX. Income tax
(D Major components of income tax benefit recognized in profit or loss

2023 2022

Current income tax
Tax on undistributed
surplus earnings $ - $ 539
Deferred income tax
Incurred in the current

year (__13.,133) (__14,792)
Income tax benefit

recognized in profit or

loss ($ 13,133) ($_14.253)

The reconciliation between the accounting income and the current income tax

benefit is as follows:

2023 2022

Net loss before tax ($375.,642) ($.36.859)
Income tax calculated

based on statutory tax

rate for net loss before

tax ($ 75,128) ($ 7,372)
Non-deductible profit and

loss 12,122 25
Tax on undistributed

surplus earnings - 539

Unrecognized loss

carryforwards and

deductible temporary

differences 49,873 (___7.445)
Income tax benefit

recognized in profit or

loss ($ 13.133) ($ 14.253)
(I) ~ Current income tax assets and liabilities
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Current income tax assets
Tax refund receivable $ 88 $ 13
Current income tax
liabilities
Income tax payable 5§ - § 539

(IIT)  Deferred income tax assets
The changes in deferred tax assets are as follows:
2023

Deferred income tax Balance at Recognized in Balance at end
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assets beginning of the  profit or loss of the year

year
Temporary differences $ 570 ($ 67) $ 503
Loss carryforward 81,555 13,200 94,755
$ 82,125 § 13,133 $ 95258

2022
Balance at

Deferred income tax ~ beginning of the ~ Recognized in Balance at end
assets year profit or loss of the year
Temporary differences $ 657 ($ 87) $ 570
Loss carryforward 66.676 14.879 81,555

$ 67333 § 14,792 $ 82,125

(IV) Unused loss carryforwards relevant information

As of December 31, 2023, the relevant information of the loss carryforwards are

as follows:
The last year
Deductible Amount not of carried
Legal basis Deductible item amount yet deducted forward
Income Tax  Loss carryforward $ 39,037 $ 13,007 2024
Act

49,140 49,140 2026

32,320 32,320 2028

61,672 61,672 2029

102,554 102,554 2030

74,534 74,534 2031

74,368 74,368 2032

66,178 66,178 2033

$499.803 $473,773

(V) Income tax examination
The profit-seeking enterprise income tax returns filed by the Company up to
2021 have been approved by the tax collection authority.

XX. Loss per share
Unit: NTS per share

2023 2022
Loss per share - basic ($_4.14) ($__0.26)
Loss per share - diluted ($__4.14) ($_0.26)

The net earnings (net losses) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
adopted to calculate the earnings (losses) per share are as follows:

Current net loss
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XXI.

2023 2022
Current net loss ($362,509) ($.22,606)

Net loss used in the computation
of the basic and diluted

earnings (losses) per share ($362,509) ($.22,606)
Number of shares Unit: thousand shares
2023 2022

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in computation

of basic losses per share 87,550 87,550
Effect of potential dilutive

common shares:

Remuneration to employees - -

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares used in the

computation of diluted earnings

(losses) per share 87,550 87,550

If the Company can settle the compensation to employees in cash or shares, the Group
assumes the entire amount of the compensation would be settled in shares and the
resulting potential shares are included in the weighted average number of shares
outstanding used in the computation of diluted earnings per share if the effect is dilutive.
Such a dilutive effect of the potential shares is included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share until the shareholders resolve the number of shares to be distributed
to employees at their meeting in the following year.

Capital risk management
The Company manages capital to ensure that it can maximize shareholder returns by

optimizing the balance of debt and equity before continuing to operate. There has been
no material change in the Company's overall strategy.

The Company's capital structure consists of net debt (ie, borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents) and equity (ie, common stock, capital surplus, retained earnings and other
interests).

The Company is not subject to other external capital requirements.

The Company’s main management reviews the capital structure regularly, the contents
of review including considering the costs of various types of capital and relevant risks.
Based on the recommendations of main management, the Company will balance its
overall capital structure by paying dividends, issuing new shares, repurchasing shares,

and issuing new debts or repaying old debts.
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XXII.

Financial instruments
(D Fair value - financial instruments not at fair value

The Company’s management believes that the carrying amount of financial assets
and financial liabilities not measured at fair value approximates their fair value.

(I)  Categories of financial instruments

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Financial assets
Measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash
equivalents $209,445 $107,191
Notes receivable, net 4,000 1,436
Notes receivable due
from related parties 26 -
Accounts receivable, net 56,143 41,790
Accounts receivable due
from related parties 1,338 816
Other receivables -
related parties 545,542 527,924
Refundable deposits paid 1,241 1,939
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortized cost
Short-term borrowings $924,185 $850,000
Short-term notes payable - 40,000
Accounts payable 4,618 5,865
Accounts payable due
from related parties 20,382 29,116
Long-term borrowings
due within one year 772,078 17,995
Long-term borrowings 36,124 602,535
Other long-term payables
- related parties 563,195 563,195

(IIT)  Financial risk management objective and policies
The Company’s main financial instruments include equity investments, Notes
and accounts receivable, accounts payable, short-term notes payable, lease
liabilities, and borrowings. The Company’s financial management department
provides services to various business units, coordinates the operations in the
domestic and international financial markets, and supervises and manages the
financial risks related to the Company’s operations through the internal reports

on risk exposure analyses based on the degree and breadth of risks. These risks
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include market risk (including exchange rate risk and interest rate risk), credit

risk, and liquidity risk.
Market risk

l.

The main financial risks borne by the Company due to its operating

activities are the fluctuation of foreign exchange rate (refer to below (1))

and interest rate (refer to below (2)).

There has been no change to the Company's exposures to financial

instrument market risk and the way it manages and measures these

exposures.

(1

Exchange rate risk

Part of the Company's main operating activities are sales and
purchases in foreign currencies, so there is a natural risk hedging
effect; the Company's exchange rate risk management is for hedging,
not profit. To avoid the value drop and future cash flow fluctuations
caused by exchange rate changes, the Company has signed a foreign
exchange hedging line with the bank and will consider the
Company's foreign currency position at any time and take hedging
measures in response to exchange rate fluctuations, to reduce the
impact of exchange rate changes on the Company's operations.
Please refer to Note XXVI for the carrying amount of the
Company’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in
non-functional currencies at the balance sheet date.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly affected by fluctuations in the exchange
rates of USD, HKD and RMB.

The sensitivity rate of 3% is used by the Company when reporting
exchange rate risk to main management and also represents
management's assessment of the range of reasonably possible
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Sensitivity analysis only
includes monetary items in foreign currencies in circulation, and the
year-end translation is adjusted by a 3% exchange rate change. The
table below shows the amount of increase or decrease in net profit
before tax when the functional currency appreciates/depreciates by

3% relative to the relevant currencies.
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Effect on USD Effect on HKD Effect on RMB
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Gains (losses) ($ 3,980) ($ 2,231) ($ 919) ($ 1,042) § 1,615 $ 3,485

2)

Management believes that the sensitivity analysis can not represent
the risk inherent in exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

Because the Company holds assets and borrowing capital by
adopting fixed and floating interest rates at the same time, thus,
interest rate risk exposure arises. The Company regularly evaluates
hedging activities to make them consistent with interest rate views
and existing risk preferences to ensure the most cost-effective
hedging strategies are adopted.

The carrying amount of the Company’s financial assets and financial
liabilities exposed to the interest rate risk at the balance sheet date is

as follows:

December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Interest rate risk at
fair value
Financial assets $ 55,560 $ -
Financial
liabilities 601,499 46,811
Cash flow interest
rate risk
Financial assets 153,606 106,693
Financial
liabilities 1,132,388 1,470,530

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is based on the interest rate exposure
of non-derivative instruments as of the balance sheet date. For
floating rate assets and liabilities, the analysis method assumes that
the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding on the balance sheet
date is outstanding during the reporting period.

If the annual interest rate increased/ decreased by 1% and all other
variables remain unchanged, the Company’s net income before tax
for 2023 and 2022 would have decreased/ increased by NT$ 9,788
thousand and NT$ 13,638 thousand, mainly because of the
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Company’s assets and liabilities at floating interest rates exposed to
the cash flow interest rate risk.
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpart will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the Company. As of the balance
sheet date, the Company's maximum credit risk exposure that may cause
financial losses due to the counterparty's failure to perform its obligations
mainly comes from the carrying amount of financial assets recognized in
the parent company only balance sheet.
In order to mitigate credit risk, the management of the company assigns a
dedicated team to be responsible for the determination of credit line, credit
approval and other monitoring procedures to ensure that appropriate
actions have been taken for the recovery of overdue receivables. In
addition, the Company will review the recoverable amounts of receivables
one by one at the balance sheet date to ensure that the unrecoverable
receivables have been properly recognized in impairment losses.
Accordingly, the Company’s management believes that its credit risk has
been significantly reduced.
The Company continuously evaluates the financial situation of accounts
receivable customers. Accounts receivable cover many customers and are
not related to each other, so the concentration of credit risk is not high.
The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit to enhance the
hedge the credit risk of financial assets.
Liquidity risk
The Company manages and maintains sufficient cash to support the
Company's operations and mitigate the impact of cash flow fluctuations.
The management of the Company supervises the use of bank financing
lines and ensures compliance with the terms of the loan agreement.
(1) Table of liquidity and interest rate risks of non-derivative financial
liabilities
The remaining contractual maturity analysis of non-derivative
financial liabilities was based on the earliest date at which the
Company might be required to repay and was compiled based on the

undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities. Therefore, the bank
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borrowings with repayment on demand clause were included in the
earliest period in the table below for the Company, regardless of the
probability of exercise of the right by banks. The maturity analysis
of other non-derivative financial liabilities was compiled under the
agreed repayment date.

December 31, 2023

Demand
immediate
payment or less 3 months-1 More than 5
than 1 month 1-3 months year 1-5 years years

Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Non-interest-bearing

liabilities $ 5,774 $ 5,797 $ 243 $ 14 $ -
Lease liabilities 89 179 804 447 -
Floating interest rate
instruments 211,102 452,205 432,956 36,124 -
Fixed interest rate
instruments - - 600,000 - -
$216,965 $458,181 $1,034,003 § 36,585 $ -
December 31, 2022
Demand
immediate
payment or less 3 months-1 More than 5
than 1 month 1-3 months year 1-5 years years

Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Non-interest-bearing

liabilities $ 8,274 $ 4,933 $ 288 $ 10 $ -
Lease liabilities 340 680 3,062 2,845 -
Floating interest rate
instruments 241,500 392,999 233,496 602,535 -
Fixed interest rate
instruments 40,000 - - - -
$290.114 $398,612 $236,846 $ 605,390 $ -

The amount of floating interest rate instruments for the above
non-derivative financial assets and liabilities will change due to the
difference between the floating interest rate and the estimated rate on
the balance sheet date.

XXIII. Related party transaction
Except for other disclosure on Notes, the transactions between the Company and related

parties are as follows:

(D Name of related parties and relationship

Relationship with the
Name of related party Company
Hotek Technology Corporation Subsidiary
Sunagaru International Inc. (Sunagaru) Subsidiary

Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. Subsidiary
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)

Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd.
Copartner Technology (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Shin Ya Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

ShenZhen Copartner Communication Co., Ltd.

Huisheng Plastic (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Wanfu Plastic (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Jia Xin Plastic(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.

Copartner Wire And Cable (KunShan) Co., Ltd.

United Electric Wire (KunShan) Co., Ltd.

Cablex Wire And Cable (KunShan) Mfg.

Jia Xin New Materials (Anfu) CO., LTD.

COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY (Anfu) Co., Ltd.

Cablex Metal Tech (Anfu) Co., Ltd.

Copartner Technology (DongTai) Co., Ltd.

HPC Technology Inc.
Yingding Wire and Cable Co., Ltd.

Sales revenue

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (Hong
Kong) Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (ShenZhen)
Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (Hong
Kong) Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (Hong
Kong) Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (Hong
Kong) Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (KunShan)
Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (KunShan)
Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (ShenZhen)
Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (KunShan)
Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (KunShan)
Subsidiary

Copartner Technology
Corporation (KunShan)
Subsidiary

Associate

Substantive related party

Related party category/name 2023 2022
Subsidiary
Jia Xin Plastic(ShenZhen)
Co., Ltd. $ - $ 1,520
Other 313 255
Associate 6,589 856
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Substantive related party 20 -

§ 6922 $ 2,631
(III)  Purchases
Related party category/name 2023 2022
Subsidiary
Cablex Wire And Cable
(KunShan) Mfg. $136,503 $ 66,871
United Electric Wire
(KunShan) Co., Ltd. 24,700 38,196
Copartner Technology
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. 14,515 11,688
ShenZhen Copartner
Communication Co.,
Ltd. 12,152 18,547
Other 1,149 986
Substantive related party 1,705 827
$190,724 $137,115

The transaction price and conditions of sales and purchases between the
Company and related parties are based on reference to cost and market prices,
which are comparable to other non-related parties.

The Company has eliminated the operating income and costs recognized by
related parties engaged in consigned material processing in accordance with
relevant regulations.

(IV) Receivables from related parties

Related party December 31, December 31,
Account title category 2023 2022
Notes receivable due Substantive related $ 26 $ -
from related party
parties
Notes receivable due Associate $ 1,338 $ 816
from related
parties

The period for accounts receivable from related parties is equivalent to that of
other non-related parties. The outstanding receivables from related parties are not
guaranteed. No allowance for losses was provided for receivables from related

parties.
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(V)  Other receivables from related parties

Related party category/name December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Subsidiary
Copartner Technology
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. $233,208 $234,700
Hotek Technology Corp. 232,953 228,878
Shin Ya Wire And Cable
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. 63,390 64,346
Copartner Technology
(DongTai) Co., Ltd. 15,991 -
$545,542 $527.924

Other receivables from related parties are mainly payments for goods on behalf

of subsidiaries, and the period for accounts receivable depends on the status of

funds.
(VD) Payables from related parties
Related party category/name December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Subsidiary
Cablex Wire And Cable
(KunShan) Mfg. $ 13,462 $ 24,508
United Electric Wire
(KunShan) Co., Ltd. 5,515 4,471
Substantive related party 1,405 137
$ 20,382 $ 29.116

The payment period for related party accounts is equivalent to that of other
non-related parties. The outstanding payables to related parties is not guaranteed.

(VII) Other payables from related parties

Related party category/name December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Subsidiary
Copartner Wire And
Cable (ShenZhen)
Co., Ltd. $ 563,195 § 563,195
Copartner Wire & Cable
Manufacturing
Limited 253,406 249,386
Huisheng Plastic
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. 166,578 169,333
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen)
Mfg Co., Ltd. 134,148 136,267
Jia Xin
Plastic(ShenZhen)
Co., Ltd. 109,288 111,926
Other 8.450 0,627
$ 1,235,065 $ 1,236,734
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Other payables to related parties are mainly to receive payments for goods on

behalf of subsidiaries, and the payment period depends on the status of funds.

(VIII) Endorsements/guarantees

(IX)

X)

(XI)

Related party category/name December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Subsidiary
Copartner Wire & Cable
Manufacturing
Limited $ 85,250 $ 83,880
Copartner Technology
(DongTai) Co., Ltd. 61,530 61,460
United Electric Wire
(KunShan) Co., Ltd. - 29,193
$146.,780 $174,533

Operating expenses

Related party category/name December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Subsidiary
Copartner Wire & Cable
Manufacturing
Limited $ 477 $ 455

Disposal of property, plant, and equipment

Disposal proceeds Gain/loss on disposal
Related party category 2023 2022 2023 2022
Subsidiary
Copartner
Technology
(DongTai) Co., Ltd. $ 16,560 § - 3 $ -

The transactions of property, plant, and equipment between the Company and
related parties are conducted based on agreed prices between the parties.

Remuneration of key management personnel

2023 2022
Short-term employee
benefits $ 15,984 $ 16,215
Post-employment benefits 829 843
$ 16,813 $ 17,058

The remuneration to directors and other main management is determined by the
Compensation Committee in accordance with individuals’ performance and

market trends.
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XXIV. Pledged assets
The following assets of the Company have been provided as collateral for long-term

borrowings from banks:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment $ 59,598 $ 60,177
Refundable deposits paid 1,241 1,939
$ 60,839 $ 62,116

XXV. Significant subsequent events

On November 10, 2023, the board of directors resolved to establish a subsidiary in
Thailand, "Copartner Technology (Thailand) Co., Ltd.," in collaboration with "Thai JE
Technology Co., Ltd.," in response to customer demand and in alignment with the
long-term development strategy of the group. The total investment amounts for this
venture to USD 2.1 million, with our company contributing USD 1.68 million for an 80%
stake, and "Thai JE Technology Co., Ltd." contributing USD 420 thousand for a 20%
stake. The registration of the subsidiary was completed on January 3, 2024. The primary
business activities of the subsidiary include research, development, manufacturing, and
sales of wire harnesses for industrial control, medical, automotive, and consumer
electronics sectors.

XXVI. Information on foreign currency assets and liabilities with significant impact
The information below is aggregated and presented in foreign currencies other than the

Company’s functional currency. The exchange rates disclosed refer to the exchange
rates of such foreign currencies to the presentation currency. Information on foreign
currency assets and liabilities with significant impact are as follows:

Unit: Thousands of foreign currencies

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
currencies rate currencies rate
Foreign currencies
assets
Monetary items
USD $ 5344 30.76492 $ 3,753 30.72979
HKD 7,786 3.93632 8,813 3.94136
RMB 82,518 4.34367 68,784 441228
Non-monetary items
RMB 79,961 4.34367 83,524 441228

Foreign currencies
liabilities
Monetary items
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USD 1,032 30.76492 1,333 30.72979
RMB 94,912 4.34367 95,110 4.41228

Unrealized foreign currency exchange gains (losses) with a significant impact are as

follows:
2023 2022
Net gains (losses) Net gains (losses)
on foreign on foreign
Foreign currencies Exchange rate currency exchange Exchange rate currency exchange
EUR 34.13778 (EUR: NTD) ($ 33) 32.75194 (EUR: NTD) $ 132
RMB 4.34367 (RMB: NTD) 790 4.41228 (RMB: NTD) ( 2,703 )
UsD 30.76492 (USD: NTD) ( 3,122) 30.72979 (USD: NTD) ( 178 )
HKD 3.93632 (HKD: NTD) ( 151) 3.94136 (HKD: NTD) ( 100 )
($_2516) ($_2849)
XXVIL Notes to disclosures

D Information on significant transactions and (II) Information on investees: nothing
else is to disclose unless the matters below.

1.  Loaning funds to others: Table 1.

2. Providing endorsements or guarantees for others: Table 2.

3. Marketable securities held at the end of period (excluding investment in
subsidiaries and partial associates): Table 3.

4.  The amount of purchases and sales with related parties reaching NT$100
million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: Table 4

5. Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of
paid-in capital or more: Table 5.

6.  Information on investee: Table 6.

(IIT)  Information on investment in Mainland China:

1. Information on any investee in mainland China, showing the name,
principal business activities, paid-in capital, method of investment, inward
and outward remittance of funds, ownership percentage, current income or
loss and investment income or loss recognized, carrying amount of the
investment at the end of the period, repatriations of investment income, and
limit on the amount of investment in the mainland China area: Table 6.

2. Any of the following significant transactions with investees in mainland
China, either directly or indirectly through a third party, and their prices,
payment terms, and unrealized gains or losses: Note XXIII.

3. The Company's reinvestment in Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd.
and Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. is based on August
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23, 1993, (1993) Tai-Cai (Liu) No. 01968 Letter Note 3, entrusted
investment to investors in the mainland area, and the main contents of the
entrusted contract should be disclosed as follows:
The Company entrusts Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited to
invest in Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd. and Copartner Wire And
Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. The two parties agree to abide by the terms as
follows:
The Company uses a capital of USD 913 thousand (including USD 400
thousand in cash, machinery, equipment, and spare parts at a price of US$
513 thousand) and capital of USD 2,324 thousand (including USD 512
thousand in cash, machinery, and equipment and spare parts at a price of
USS$ 764 thousand and raw materials at a price of US$ 1,048 thousand)
designated Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited to invest in
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd. and Copartner Wire And Cable
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd., respectively.
(1)  Agreement on the outflow method of investment funds:
Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited applied to relevant
parties in mainland China to invest in Copartner Wire & Cable
Manufacturing Limited to invest in Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg
Co., Ltd. and Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd., all in
the name of Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited, and
the funds were inflow from Hong Kong to mainland China by
Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited.
(2) Agreement on the method of repatriation of funds if the investee
company distributes earnings or closes its business:
A. Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited shall transfer
all interests from Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd. and
Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. to the
Company after obtaining if they have income or interests
distribution.
B. If Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd. and Copartner Wire
And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. must return the investment

funds due to capital reduction, business closure, or other
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reasons, Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited shall
transfer all the funds to the Company after obtaining the funds.

C. Based on the above reasons, Copartner Wire & Cable
Manufacturing Limited shall notify the Company when
transferring investment funds or interests and income, and the
Company shall designate the payment method.

(3)  The agreement on the ownership of the rights and obligations of the
invested companies:

A. Based on this entrusted investment relationship, Copartner Wire
& Cable Manufacturing Limited transfers the rights and
obligations arising from Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Co., Ltd.
and Copartner Wire And Cable (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. to the
Company. Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited
does not guarantee its income and profit or loss.

B. Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing Limited shall handle
responsibly and prudently and have full authority to handle
matters such as investment, foreign exchange settlement, and
receiving interests.

(IV) Information on major shareholders: List of all shareholders with ownership of 5
percent or greater showing the names and the number of shares and percentage of

ownership held by each shareholder: Table 8.

- 278 -



[endeo PY1 0D PIT 0D
Suryrom (re13uo() (ueyguny)
OLT'LL GNY) | (9LTLL IINY) s,Aueduro) %SEY (00071 GNY)| (00071 GNY) (00071 GNY) so[qeArddal | AZojouyoor 1M
099°6€€ 099°S€€ oYy 104 4 ~%S¥'€ | 11809 11809 118°09 SO EElitle) Towredod| oOd[Y panun| 9
endes Rl
Sunpiom 0D (nJuy)
(se€'ce amd) | (seece aNd) s, Auedwio) (000°L @) |(000°L €NA)|(000'L ENA) S9[qeAI90a1 [eLIorR I
910°L6 910°L6 oy 104 4 %01°T | 90¥°0€ 90°0¢€ 90%°0€ SOk Yo MON UL elf|
[ended PYT 0D
Suryzom (uayzuays)
(seece aNd) | (se€ce aNd) s, Auedwo) (000°s  dNd) |(000°s  dNA)|(000°S  INY) S9[qeAIdda1 | AF0[ouyda],
910°L6 910°L6 oy 104 4 %01'T | 8ILIT 8IL°1T Y65°TT SOA PO Towpredo)
[endes
Sunjiom P10
(see'ze am) |(se€'ce an) s,Auedwo) (000°€ &) So[qeA1adal | (yuy) yoaL
910°L6 910°L6 - QUON - ayy 10| - 4 - - - €se'el SOA Reliile} [E19N X9[qe)
_mtamu Pr1 rOU
Fuppiom (uayzuays) PYT0D
(see'ce amd) |(se€ce and) s,Aueduro) (0008 €INY) SO[qEALRDAI onseld (uayzuays)
@ 1 Onbm O —O.hm - v:OZ - mzu Ho.u— - T - - - 0S1 @m mm> uurﬁo Mﬁmr—mwﬂm oﬁwm_& :u:wg S
[endeo
Supjiom PYT0D | PYT 0D SN
(196'6L aNY) [ (196°6L €INT) s,Aueduio) (0009¢  dNd) | (0009€ dINA) | (000°Ly HINY) S9[qeAIRDAI | (nJuy) Yo (udyZusys)
STE'LYE STELYE - SuoN - oy iog| - 4 %01°C | TLE9SI TLE9ST 8LETIT SO EEliife) [e1N X3[qe) M XR[QED| ¥
[endes PYT 0D
Suryrom (nuy) AD
(gsLise1 aNT) | (€SL°SET dNY) s, Auedwo) (00s'9¢ ) | (00S°9¢ AN | (00S°9¢ INY) S9]qeAlRdal | O'TONHOHL
L99°68S L99°68$ - auoN - oy 104 - 4 %01'T | bS8l PPS 8SI PPS8ST SOK Yo WANLIVAOD
[endeo PY10D pry o) uo
Suryrom (uayzuays) TeOIUNWWO))
(esL°s€1 GNY) | (€SL°SET AN s, Auedwio) (000°ce dNd) |(000TE dNA)|(000°TE HINY) S9[qeAIdda1 | AFo[ouyd3], Joupredo)
L99°68S L99°68S - auoN - ay Ioyg| - 4 %01'T | L668ET L66°8€1 009°t¥1 SOA LYo Touredo) uayzuys| ¢
endes P11 00
Sunpom (e 3uoq)
(£90°TLT GNY) [ (L90°TLT EINY) s, Auedwo) %Sey [(00L°s  dNd)[(00L's  dNY) |(00L°€T dINYE) so[qeAtddar | ASojouyoor,
10¥'LyL 10¥°L¥L - auoN - oy 104 - 4 ~%St'E | 6SLYT 6SLYT LO6'T9 SOK EETe) JTowredo)
Auedwo)
[endeo poywy PIT 0D
Sunpom onserd (ueyguny|)
(Lz8'89 aNY) | (€17 pE ENY) s, Auedwo) (0007  €NY) S9[qeA12a1 Suaguesy 9[qe) puy
196°86C 08671 - auoN - oy 104 - 4 - - - Y08°LI SO LYo A Suetlpgy| - oxp tounedod| ¢
[endeo PY1 0D PIT 0D
Supjiom (uayzuays) (uayzuays)
s, Aueduio) (00091 gNd) | (00091 dINA)|(000°9T INY) so[qeAradal | ASojouyoor, d1qe) puy
09%'bSTT  $ | 09'bSTT  § |- §| ouoN - N oy log| - S 4 %01'C | 66v°69 $ | 66v°69 S | 9L0°IL $ | SA LYo Towredop| oxm soupedon| |
(z 210N)
Ammwwwﬂv 1om0110q 9[3urs anpes oweN o_M”H%w%MQ: Suroueury (1 210N) (S 210N) Jou 10
© 01 popruiad - WI9}-110ys Surpen amjeu | oSuer gjer (4 90N) (¢ 910N) pouad juoumo | Aued | junoooe spuny uueo] .
meww%mwcw ou:“_M wSWS ons HAW«%“W%MME 10J posu Jo junowry spuny 1SOIO] | UMEIp JUnOWy | doue[eq Surpuy | oy) J0J 9due[eq |Poje[dl| JuALIN) femoriog ey} Auedwo) ON
sy ugto@mi JO JUNOLIE 3t 1o [e121R1[0D oreudordde oy |° 1 1% SUOSEOR Burueo wnwirxep v
S| 9QLIDSAIJ
PolyIoads 9SIMISNIO SSO[UN ‘AOUAIIND UFI0I0F pue puesnoy) §IN U
1 979VL

€207 ‘1€ Y4NEDHA AIANT ¥VIA dHL Y04
SYFHLO OL SANNA ONINVOT
‘dd0D ADOTONHOAL YANLIVAOD

-279 -




‘porad JuoLmd oy ur doue[eq JSayYSIY Sy} YIIM YIUOU Ay} JO PUd ) U0 Paseq (I LN O} el Fueyoxa judLn))

16 910N
"€T0T ‘1€ 19quIedd Uo L9¢H¢ y SIN=1 $HINY U0 paseq (LN O 21l AFUBYOXD JUALINY) :f, AON
‘oM jau s Kuedwo)) ueoy oY) paedxd
jou [[eys spunj Surueo| ur pae3ud saruedwod uSia10 Jo sareys Sunoa ay) Jo 9,001 Jo Surpjoy joa1rpur pue joa1p s Auedwo)) ay ], ‘yrom jau s Lueduwio)) ueo Ay JO 9%, PAIX2 JOU [[BYS SIAYIO 0} SUBO[ YINS JO Junowe )e3a133e oY) U0 SHWI| 9qLIOSAI € 9JON
‘ypuom jou s Auedwro)) ueoy
) Pa20Xa J0U [[eys spunj Surueo] ur pagesud soruedwioo uSIa10) Jo sareys SUNOA A} JO %00 JO SUIpjoy 101Ipul pue 10a11p s,Auedwo) Ay L, “Yrom jou s,Lueduwio) ueoy Ay} Jo 9,0z PIIIXS J0U [[BYS ULO] oY) ‘SUIOURUL] ULId)-LIOYS SPasu jey) dnoln) e 10 17 910N

“SuroueUly WIL)-1I0YS J0J PAAU 7 1 AION

endes P

Sunpiom “0D (yuy) PIT 0D

(z98'cL aNY) |(T98°€L dN) s, Auedwio) (000  dNd)|(000% dNA)|(000F dINY) S9[qEAIS00I [eLIRe N (udyzueys)

re8°0TE v€8°0CE - auoN - ayy 104| - 4 %01'T | SLELI SLELY SLO81 o YO MON UIX Elf|  ouse[d UIX elf| 8
[endes PY1 0D BN
Sunyiom (e 3uoq) (ueyguny|)

($59°cc ) [ (L€ 1T GND) s,Aueduro) (000c g |(000T €NA)|(000T ENI) so[qeAtddar | ASojouyoor, a[qe) puy

00786 00T'6 - §| ouoN - S oy 10| - $ 4 %SY'E | L89°8 L89°8 8€0°6 SOA opo JTowredo) QUM XO[qED| L

- 280 -



sareys 3unoa ay)
J0 (%0¢) vorad
K313 uey) a1ow
sploy Apoaxpur
10 Appoautp PY1 0D Pl
(9910N) (9210N) (9210N) (L9ON) Kuedwo) (re18uo(q) 00 (ueySUNY|)
(TIN) (0007s @) |(00T%T  gNT) (000 €N [ (0007S  GND) | (€ION) ay yomm | A3ojouyoa, 2198
10¥°LyL 13 85SVET 089°19 85SVET €107k 10¥"LyL ur Kuedwod v Toupredo))| puy ampm seupedop| ¢
soxeys SunoA o
30 (%0¢) yueorad
K31 ueyy s1ow
spjoy Apooxipur
10 Appoaxp Prico)
(9910N) (9910N) (LON) Auedwo) (re13uo() PryoD
(T0N) (6L9°T @y [(000'0€  &NY) [(000'0E &) | (TION) oy yorym | ASojouyosl,  |(ueygunzy) UM
Sox - Sox 099°5€€ 6¢ - Y6T'L or1¢oc! €95°5€1 099°s€€ ut Auedwod v/ Joupredod|  oLoo[y panun)| |
sareys Surjoa ay)
30 (%0¢) yuoa1ad
Ayj1y ueyy a1ow
sproy Apoaxpur
10 Appoa11p PY1e0)
(S0N) (L30ON) Kuedwo) (rep3uoQ)
(T310N) (000z  asn)|(ooo'c asn)| (I99ON) g yomym | A3ojouyoa,
9K - 9K vT1Tee'e 14 - - 0519 0L8Y9 91 181 ut Kuedwiod v/ Jouredo)
sareys Sunoa oy
30 (%0¢) 1uoa1ad
K313 uey) a1ow
spjoy Appoa1iput
10 ApoaIp PrT 0D
(LAON) Auedwo) (ueygunyy)
(T310N) (0s6 asn)| (12°N) ) YoM anpm
SOA — SOX AN aaad - - - - S0£°0€ TP 18P 1 ur Auedwod y| o1od[g pajun
sareys SurjoA ay)
J0 (%0¢) 1uva10d
A1y uey) d1ow
sploy Apoaxpur payry Su
10 Appoaxip LmoRINUBIA
Auedwo) dqeD +dio)
(Te10N) (¥910N) (T210N) ) yoryM % AIM ABojouroay,
- - SOX ve1'zeee  $ 9 - $ |- § | 0ST's8 § | 0ST's8 $ | 9IFISH' T § ur Kuedwod v Toumedo) Toupedop| o
(%) syudware)s
[eroueuLy Jsore|
'UIYD Auedwoo | Arerpisqns soojuerens AU} Ul Se YoM _Mww,ﬂw%m%wﬂmm 1o pu MMM\MMHQ@% QQ:MMM MMM _(.__Mwﬂw:w mmhew.MHMMMME uoney sweu Kuedwo) dojuerens .
puerurely | juored o) | 0) Kuedwoo | /sjpuowosIopusd | Jou 0} sedjueIENS : UMEBIP JUNOWY /MUSWASIOPUD oN
ur Anus of, | Areipisqng juared uo | 1oddn /SIUSIASIOPUD /SIUUIISIOPUD /uomIasIOpUS fuouiasIopua /uewIasIOpUS Jo swreu Auedwio))
J—— Jo junoury Jo oouereqg WINWITXEA] Jo yuur|
;Hm oney pasjueIen3/pasiopud Ajred
parg1oads as1mIay)o ssopun Kouarind usoIo0) pue puesnoyy $IN Hun
¢d14vL

€202 ‘1€ YHINEDIA AIANd YVEA GHL 404
SYTHLO YO SHALNVIVND YO SINFNASYOANT DNIAIAOAL
‘dd0D ADOTONHOHL YANLIVAOD

- 281 -



8¢

‘poriad JuaLIMD dY} UT doUL[eq ISAYSIY Y YPIM [HUOW O} JO PUD O} U0 PAseq (J LN 0} el 9FUBYOXA JUdLN))

€70T ‘1€ QU U0 £9¢H€ Y SIN=] $TINY 0} Surproooe (LN 0} el 95UBYOXd JUdLN))

€70T ‘1€ QU0 U0 76+9.°0€ $LN=] $SN 0} Surpiodoe (JIN 03 dre1 d§ueyoxd JuoLn))

"payIuI] Sunmjorjnuely 9[qe)) 2 1A Jouwredo) pue Auedwo)) oYy Aq pareys puesnoy) (0Szs8 $ILN JO 9ueIenS JUSWISIOPUD dY) SIPNJOUL OS[& ddUL[Rq FUIPUD dY ],
“Yuom 1au s Aueduwiod oy Jo 9,00 PIIIXA Jou [[eys astidIa)uo

9[3uls © I10j ] d9jueIenS JUSWASIOPUD dY ], Yom Jou s Auedwiod ay) Jo 9%,00] SuIpaadXad jou 0) pawi| ‘sonted [euIdIXd 01 AJI[IQRI] 99juLIENS JUSWASIOPUD JANB[NWND [B)0) B Sey Py <o) (ueysuny]) 9|qe) puy i\ Jouwiedo)

‘oM Jou s,Auedwod oY) JO 2400 ] PISOXd J0U
[1eys osuidioyud o[3uls e 10 jrul] odjueIensS JUSWASIOPUS Y], “YHIom Jou s,Auedwod oy Jo 9,00 | Surpasoxa jou o peyrul] ‘sonted [euId)Xo 0} AJ[Iqel] 99)uLIenS JUSWASIOPUS dANRINIUND [BJ0) € Sty Py “0)) (UBYSUNY) SIA\ OLIOJ[H Payu)

‘poriad oy Jo pud ayy Je yrom Jou s Auedwo) Ay Jo 9,00 UBY) 210w ou 0) pajrul| si astdiojuod d[Suls € 0)
papiaoid sadjueIen3;/sHudWASIOpUd (€10} dy) pue ‘porrdd ayy Jo pus dy) 1B yuom jau s Auedwo)) ay) Jo 9%,0S| UeY) 210w ou 0} payrwl| dre Auedwo)) ay) Aq papiaoid s9

1q1su0dsal so9JuLIENS/SIUSUWASIOPUD [BUIDIXD [EJ0) PAJRNIINIIE Y,

1L 9ION

19 9JON

16 9JON

i} 9JON

1€ AJON

17 90N

1 9ON

- 282 -



pooiSe se s1osn pajoLIsal 10710 J0 ‘sueo] padpard ‘soojuerens opraoid 10U pIp 9A0QE PAISI] SANLINAS AY) ‘€77 IOGUIAII(T JO PUD Y} 1Y T 9ION
‘porerrdoadde usaq sey ssof juounreduwr ‘OnjeA 9]qQRIOA0IAI JO JUIWISSISSE YY) 0} FUIPIOIOY ] JON
JUSLIND-UOU - QUWIOJUT py1 ©0D (uen33uoQq)
aArsuayeIdwod 19Y30 y3noIyy JUSWINISU] PT 0D (uayZusys)
— 190°€ 61 190°€ - onjeA Irej Je sjosse [eIoURUL] oNJeA ITeJ 1 S99)SIAU] uoIsIoolg ousix|  ASojouypa], oupredo)
JUQLIND-UOU - JWUOJUT
dA1suayaIdwos 1930 y3noay juls| *d10)
1 90N - $ 61 - $ 091y ON[eBA I1B] J© S)OSSE [eIouRUI] an[eA I1ej Je $991s0AU]| 0D AZ0o[ouyda], jurod v A3ojouyoa], 1owredo)
onyeA Ieg (%) Sutproyareys junowe Juikire) (soxeys puesnoys) onsst SONLINDAS J[qeION e
Sreway : Jo oney : Knueng) o313 JUNOJOY sonLINods Yy diysuonejor o SLE DUE odk Kuedwo) ay Jo spjoH
pouad jo pug SONILINOIS J[qEIONIBIN J p L
Pay10ads osIMIAYI0 sSaun ‘puesnoyy §IN U

€202 ‘1€ Y49WNADdd
dorddad gHL 40 dNd dHL LV SHILIINDIS 4TdVLAMIVIN 40 ODNIA'TOH

€ d71dVL
‘dd0OD ADOTONHIAL YIANLIVAOD

- 283 -



‘Junoure (a1qeAed) 2]qeAISIaI SHUNOOIE [€10) A1) Jo Auedwos Surpen a1 Jo Junowre (seseyoind) safes 1810} ) UO Paseq PAJB[NIE)) : € AON

"JJO-9)11M 910JOq JUNOWIE [£0) A} UO PIseq PAje[nofe)) : g AON
'saned pajejoIun 19y30 Jo jey) 0} Jeqrwis si porrad (91qeded) o]qeAI001 SHUNOOIL A, : | AON
“BJN (wegSuNy) 'diop
Areipisqns dqeD A3ojouyoa],
- %6¢ ( 609°€1$ ) 1 90N 1 90N s&ep 001 1oN %09 €05°9€1 § soseyond PIoy Appoauipuf|  puv MM X21qe) Toupredo)

(€210N)

(o1qeked)

9[qBAI0AT . (€ 310N) d
nod2oE [£)0} (T20N) (soseqoind) saseyoind
B pouad 1par) doud yrun pouad 3pa1) So[es [e10} syjunoury
01 (o1qeAed) Qouereg d PUE So[ES uonoBSuLI
910N | 9jqeAredar 03 (saseyoxnd) uoney B L Auedwo)
: S9[es JO onjel A |, : JOo aweN
SJUN0oJE
Joonerayy
‘suonoesuel) Jen3al woij JYIP suonipuod
(919eAed) 9]qeAIIQI SJUNOIOY SuIpex; o 213 SUOSER! PUE SUOTENS uonenIs uonoBsuLI],
poyIoads oSIMIdY)O Sso[un ‘puesnoyy §IN HUN ¥ 919VL
€20 ‘1€ YAIWADIA AIANA YVHA FHL Y04
HIOW ¥O TVLIdVD NI-AIVd 40 %07 4O NOI'TTIW 00I$LN DNIHOVIAY SHILYVd ddLVI1dd HLIM SHTVS ANV SHSVHDYNd 40 LNNOWV dHL
SHIIVIAISENS ANV dd0D ADOTONHOHL JIANLIVIOD

- 284 -



‘spunj jo snjejs oy} uo spuadop porrad (sjudwiAed) S9[qRAISII Y} PUB ‘SALIBIPISANS JO J[BY2q U0 spood 10J syudwiAed SuiA10031 10 juowked Ajurew are sonted pajerar wolj (sjudwhed) SO[qeAIIAI 1Y) T AION

"JJO-9JLIM 2I0J3q JUNOWIE [}0} AU} UO PAsEq Paje[nofe)) 1 90N

SaLIBIpISqNS
- - — T 90N €56°7€T oy Jo spioy Ap3oaai| uonerodio) AZojouyod] ya1oH| -dio) ASojouyod] roupredo)
SLIBIPISqNS PIT 0D (UoyZusys)

- - — T 910N 611°9€C oy} Jo sploy AppoaIpuy KSojouyoa] 1oupedo)| -dio) A3ojouyos] touredo)
Auedwoo Py oD P¥T 0D UOTIBIIUNWIWO))

T 910N STY'SLT juored oyewnn ym owes|  (nyuy) £Sojouyoa], ouwredo)) Jomredo)) ueyzuoys
Auedwoo ‘Pr7 0D (uayzuays) P¥T 0D UOnEIIUNWIWO))

- - — T 90N L80°6€1 juared arewmn|n Ym swes A3ojouyda], 1owaedo) Ioupredo)) uayZuys
Auedwoo juls| Py1 0D

- - - TN LLT'6S1 Juared afewnin yim auwres| 0D (YY) YL [eI9N X2[qe)| SFA (UYZUSYS) 1M XdIqe)
P¥1 0D

- - — T 910N SYIPEl Kuedwoo juored|  -dio) ASojouyoa] 1oupedo)| SHA (UOyZULYS) JIA\ XO[qED
P

- - — 7 910N 761601 Auedwos juared syewn|n *d10) A3ojouyoa] 1owaedo)| o) (usyzuays)onseld ury eif
paywr Sulmjorynuei

- - — 7 910N 90¥°€ST Auedwos juared arewn|n *d10) A3ojourda] 1ouaedo) J1qe) 29 1A JPuaedo)
Pr10D

- - — 7 90N 816991 Kuedwoo juored oyewnn *d10) ASojouyoa] Joupedo)| (uoyzuoys) onse[d Suoysinyg
PIT 0D (ueyzueys)

- $ - $ — T 910N S61°€9S  § Kuedwoo juored|  -dio) ASojouyda] 1ouedo) J1qeD puy A Jouedo)
Soned paje[or Wwoxy

S3[qEATO0AT JOJO PIZIUZ0day

SIUN0dOJE 9Jep 109S doue[eq
a[quo9[[0ouUn oy Ioye pa1oa0oal | Poydw Surjpuey junoury mo%ﬁmmﬁoww. o SOTqEATS00]
10J 90UBMO[[B sonaed pajelar oAouIng, ned paje] uoney Kuedioyuno) 1qeA!
WOIJ SA[qBAISIAT JO Junodoe oy} Jopun Auedwo))
J0 junowe WOIJ SAIQBALOIT 1y 1pd poje|or WOLJ SOIqRAII9SI SNPIGAQ 10 ooue[Rg
geudoidde oy, Jo junowry

puesnoy $IN un

€202 ‘1€ Y49NADdd

HIOW ¥O TVLIdVD NI-AIVd 40 %0C 4O NOI'TTIN 00T$LN ONIHOVHY SHILYVd ALV I1Hd WO¥d SHTIVAIHOHY

¢ d1dvL

‘ddOD ADOTONHIAL JIANLIVIOD

- 285 -



"BUIY) PUB[UTRA] UT SO9)SOAUT U0 UOTBULIOJUT JUBAS[QI O] / 9[qE] 0} IOJOI ased[d € 9JON

*€20T ‘1€ 1oquIaoad uo 76$9.°0€ $IN=I $SN 03 Surp1oode N 0} el 95uBYoXa JUALIND 7 AJON

*porrod swes oy} I0Y SJUBUNOIIE Aq PAJIPNE SJUSLISIE)S [EIOUBUIY OY) UO PISEQ POIR[NI[Ed dIe JedA A1) J0F sso] pue 3ijoxd paziugooor oy :[ 9JON

ssauisnq
JUQUISIAUL paynwry
SoLIBIpISqns (Z 210N) (z 210N) [e1ouas pue open Surmyorjnue
oY1 Jo spjoy (zerer asn) | (zerer asn) [euoneuIaIUL BlCLe) uonerodio)
Apoaxipuy| (TH€°Ly1 )| (IpeLpT )| 966°990°C 001 - $90°LTS $90°LTS [e1oudD)|  Suoy Suoy 29 onp 1owredo)|  ASojouyoa] }ol0H
*019 ‘syjuouodurod
OIU0J}I3[d
Quowdinba
pue Arournyoewr
pogrewx UOIBOIUNWIWO)
Nﬁzmo SSI[AIIM
w:_m: 10} pue panm Amn:n—.mo
pajunodde nwo‘—_amo Trejar
SO9)SAAUT pue dresajoym “ouy
SuRId| (900°C ) | (#6017 )| sosor 86'8Y LSOT 009°0€ 009°0€ ‘emoegnueN| A1) todre], moN|  ASofouyoor, DdH
(z 210N) (z 210N)
( 0000z asn) | (ooo‘oz asn) uoneiodio) | -dio) A3ojouyaa],
Arepisqng| (420161 $) | (+20°IST ~ $)| LOT'LIST § 001 000°0T 86T°S19  $ 86TS19  § WWAUNSIAU]|  VONV'S ASojouyaa], }aI0H; JToupredon
(1 210N) W1} (1 210N) wrid) (%) (sareys puesnotyj) pouod
NTewoy 1Y) pazIuSooarx SI) S0 Jo/put | junowre Fuikie) omS:Mohom Amuen) 162k 35e] JO pug Eutso.oﬁ Jopug SomAnoe uonedo| Auedwoo pajsoau] | Aueduros jusur)soAu]
: : yyoid s Aueduroo : ssoursnq urejA :
S$SO[ 10/pue 1JoIJ
paisaAu] potiad a1 Jo pud a3 je SuIpjoH JUNOWE JUSUNSIAUL [eNTU]

Pa1j10ads 9SIMIAY)O sSAfuN ‘Aoudlnod uFro1o0j pue puesnoy) §IN HUN

£20T ‘1€ YHINTDId dAANd IVHA FHL Y04
HHLSHANI NO NOLLVINIOANI

94d714dVL

‘dI0D ADOTONHIHIL JINIIVIOD

- 286 -



$10)oNpU0d
10ddoo pue sajqed

saruedwoo UOISSTWISURI)
PaysIqeIsd Teusis
JUSUI)SIAUT UOT)EOTUNUITIOD Pr1
uoI3a1-paIy) yInoay) puo-y3iy 0D (rep3uoQ)
saruedwod pueurew (9 910N) JO soes pue A3ojouyoa],
- €091 (Ly161 )| o001 (L¥1°61 )| - - - UL JUSUDSIAUL JOIPUL|  606°GL1 ‘uononpoxd ‘q¥y Toupredo)
saruedwod
paystqelss
JUSUISIAUT SSoUIRY oIIM
(L 910N) uoI13a1-pary ysnoayy 19)ndwoo pue SIN
(00s‘c TN ) soruedwoo puejurew (9 210N) ‘SO[qED ‘sellm JO  |(ueySUN) dqE)
YTL'6S 999°5+C 8€8°SYy 00T 89LSy - - - UL JUSUISIAUT JIIPU]| )G/ H9 SI[es pue Uononpold| Ppuy alp Xo|qe)
saruedwod
paystqelsa
JUSUI)SIAUT Pr1
uo1321-paIy) y3noayy 0D (ueysunyy)
(oo asn) (00v @sn) | somuedwoo pueurew (9 010N) a1qeD puy
- 10¥L¥L (sp1y1 )| oo1 €348 4! ) | 90gTl - 90€°C1 UI JUSUIISOAUL I2IIPU]|  €Z[“p6] juounsoAuf|  aup Jeupredo)
saruedwod
paystqelss
JUOUI)SAAUT s9[qed
uo13a1-pa1y) y3noayy 19)ndwoo pue PI1 0D
sorueduwos pueyurew (9 910N) ‘s91qe0 ‘solm Jo | (ueySuny) oI
- 869°7€€ (9921 ) 001 (981°1 )| - - - UL JUSUSIAUT JIIPU]|  908°9G SI[es pue uononpold OLBOI[H pantun)
(L5 210N) I
(000°9¢ GNY Auedwo) oy £q 00 (udyZuoys)
®195°1asN) (z1s asn) (z1s @sn) | Iseauro)pajsnnua a1qeD puy
18L%0T 097" %ST'1 (g6%°06 )| 001 (€606 ) | zsLst - TSLST Aueduwios puejurewr oy | 006‘€9 juounsoAuf) i Jounredop)
Kuedwo) ay) Aq PIT 0D
(oo asn) (00y @sn) | 3soAur o} pajsnnud (9 210N) saxm 1addoo jo | SN (UayZuLys)
- $ veeLye § | (s9Ls1 $) 00T (s9's1 $) | 90Tt § $ - 90€’c1 ¢ |Auedwoo puejurew 3yl 610°9s  § | SO[ES pue uonONpoig SIIM X3[qeD)
0,
pourad juormnd owﬁA :\Mvﬁo d 20T (1 210N)
ay o seuemie], | (ZI0N) TTOT (z210N) Surpjoy s} ‘1€ 1Pquddeq Moy mopnQ | TTOT ‘T Arenuer
o) pojernjedor | ‘1 ¢ Joquiodd( Jo wio) : SIY) SSO[ JO/pue | JO Sk uemie], Jo se uemrie], endeo SONIAIOR
0911pUl POUIDIA JUSUISIAU] Q9)SOAUI JO OWEN
QWOOUT JUSUIISIAUL [SB SJUSUISIAUL JO| SIY) PIZIUS0091 10 o1 1go1d s Auedwod | woly JUSUISIAUL WOLJ JUSUNSIAUL saIeys ul-pred ssouIsnq urejA
Jo junowre Junowe Sutk1ie)) ($SO[ 10/PUe IJOId| ¢ c1v o ) pajsaAuf Jo mormo Jo mopno
aAnRINWIND ¢ syl Ppaje[NUINOOY SMO[J JuaUNSIAUL PpajR[UINIOY

Ppayy12ads oSIMIBN}0 SsA[uUN ‘Koudrmo uSioloy pue puesnoy) $IN UN

€202 ‘1€ JAINIDIA IANT YVAA FHL JOd
VNIHD ANV INIVIA NI INFINLSFANI NO NOILLVINIOANI
‘dd0D ADOTONHIAL YANLIVAOD

L4d714dVL

- 287 -



saruedwod

paysIqess
JUSUI)SIAUT
uo13a1-pary) ySnoayy Rl
soruedwod puejurew (9 9q10N) syorfed opserd jo | “0) (uoyzuays)
7€8°0T€ (61C¥ ) | ool (997t ) UL JUSUISIAUL J0JTIPU] | $88°6T S9[es pue UOHONpPOLJ onse|d ury eif
saruedwod
paysrqeiss
JUSUIISIAUL Auedwo)
uo1321-pary) y3noayy paywI
soruedwod puejurewt (9 910N) syor1od onseyd jo onseld Suojuep
€TSSy (097 )| ves (8ss ) Ul JUOUISIAUT JORIIPUL|  g]°LT SO[ES pUE UONINPOL] Anp Suerfny
saruedwod
paystqeiss
JUSUI)SIAUT s9[qed Pl
uo1321-paIy) y3noayy 19dwoo pue | “0) (UAYZUdYS)
sorueduwos pueyurew (9 910N) ‘S9[qeO ‘SaIm JO 21qeD
981°6€1 L66°€ $ 00T L66°E $ UT JUSUNSOAUT I2IIPU]|  §/[°9€  § | SO[ES PUE UOKRONPOIJ| PUV M BA UIYS
sarueduwod
paysrqeiss
JUSW)SIAUL S9[qed Pr1 0D
uo0130I-paryy ySnoIyy 10indwoo pue UOTJROTUNTIIO))
soruedwos pueyurew (9 910N) ‘S9[qeO ‘saIm JO tomredo)
08¢°L8S (L¥9°501 ) 001 (19€°€01 ) UT JUSUISIAUL JO2IIPU]| 661 ST S3[es pue uononpold uayzZuays
sarueduwod
Ppagstqelsa
JUSUISIAUT so[qed Pl
uo01301-pary ySnoIyy 1dwoo pue | “0) (UAYZUdYS)
soruedwos pueyurew (9 910N) ‘S9[qO ‘SsaIMm JO A3ojouyoo],
869°18¢ (16909 ) 001 (169°09 ) UT JUSUISIAUL JO2IIPUT|  709°90€ S9[es pue uononpold JTouedoy
sorueduwod
Ppaystqelss
JUOUI)SIAUT
u0130I-pIryy ySnoIyy juls]
soruedwod pueurew (9 910N) syored onserd jo | “0) (woyZzuays)
201°66C (g9¢g'eT ) 00T (1712 ) UI JUSUSIAUL J02UIPU]|  [78°08 $9S pUE UONONPOLJ|  Ouse|d SudysiE]
saruedwod
pagstqelsa
JUOUI)SAAUT
uoI3aI-pay) y3noyy Pl
soruedwod pueurew (9 910N) syored onserd jo | “0) (uoyzuays)
910°L6 (900°L )| oot (900°L ) UL JUSUISIAUL JOIPUL|  G6°TL SO[ES pue UORINPoIJ onseld nyueA

- 288 -



00¥2F v SIN=1 $INY 2181 9TueydXd 3FeIdAR 70T Y} UO Paseq (LN O3 el ULYIXd JUdLIND 1/ AON
"€20T ‘1€ 10quIaoo( U0 £9¢H€ v $LN=1 $INY 261 95ueyoxa oy 03 SuIpI00de (J LN 0} )l IFULYIXS JUSLIN) 19 AJON.
08¥ST 1€ $IN=1 $SN e o3ueydxa o3eIdAe ¢7(g Ay} 0} SuIpI0ooe (J LN O} o1kl dJUeYoXd JUALINY) G AON

*020T ‘0€ 19qUI90(] UO SIIBJJY OIUOUOIH JO ANSIUIIA AU} JO UOISSTULIO)) JUSUISIAU] dY) Aq PUBIUIRIA

ur uoneradooy) [EOTUYII], JO JUSUNSIAU] JO UONBUIWEXF A} Suruioon) suonensay oy 10y jesodoid Juswpuatwe oy} YA 9OUBPIOIIE UT ANJBA JOU PAUIQUIOD Y} JO 9,09 IO oNnjeA Jou dy) Jo JYSIY Y} U0 Paseq PIJE[NI[ed ST I i AJON

*SOLIBIPISNS JO JUSUI)SOAUT J0A1IP JO junouwe pasordde oty sopnjout 3] ¢ 210N

‘porzod dures 9y SuLMp s)ULBIUNOIOEL Aq PAIPNE SJUSWA)E)S [RIOURUIJ OYf) U0 PIseq PI)e[no[ed d1e poriad JusLno dY) 10J OSSO Pue SUTES JUSUNSOAUT POZIUT0I YL, 7 AON

"€70T ‘1€ 19quIa09( Uo Z6$9L°0€ $IN=I $SN Jo d1e1 agueyoxo ay) 0) Surp100oe (N 0 el o5uLyoXd JUsLIN) ] AON

(¥ 20N 0SS°v68 $

(€ 20N) (puesnoy 1Z0°9T ASN)

(1 20N) $8T°T6Y $

(puesnoy) Z1¢°T ASN)
(1 20N) #9¢°0F $

UOISSTUIWO)) JUAUNSIAU] Y} Aq pasoduur
BUIYD) PUBJUIRIA] UI SJUSUIISIAU] UO JIWI]

VHOIA ‘UOISSIWWO)) JUSUWISIAU]
Aq pazLIOyINe SUNOUIL JUIWISIAU]

TTOT ‘1€ 19quia0s( Jo se
BUIYD) PUBJUIBIA] UI JUSWISIAUT PAJE[NWINDIIY

- 069°L8

(60109

)

001

(66909

)

sarueduwod
Ppagstqelsa
JUSUISIAUT
uo01301-pary ySnoIyy
soruedwos pueyurew
Ul JUSUISOAUT J02IIPU]

(9 930N)
0FESLL

S3[qed

10indwoo pue

‘S91qeO ‘SAIIM JO
So[es pUe UONINPOIJ

P 0D (yuy)
ADOTONHOAL
YANLIVAOD

- 998°65

908°8

00T

€16

sorueduwod
paysIqesa
JUSUSAUL
u0130I-pIryy ySnoIyy
soruedwod puejurewt
UT JUQUI)SOAUT JORIIPU]

(9 910N)
LOTTY

sanm 1ddoo jo
So[es pue uonoNpoIy

P 0D (Juy)
YOI [BIRIN X9[qBD

- 16€°LST

(€196

)

00T

(€19°6

)

saruedwod
pagstqelsa
JUOUI)SAAUT
uoI3aI-pay) y3noyy
soruedwos pueyurew
Ul JUOUISOAUT 1021PU]

(9 910N)
895891

s1o110d onserd jo
So[es pue uonoNpPoIy

‘drl10o
(nJuy) S[eLIeN
MIN UIX Bl

- 289 -



COPARTNER TECHNOLOGY CORP.

INFORMATION FOR MAIN SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Table 8
Shares
Name for main shareholders
Amount Portion
Chen, Chin-Hung 4,715,079 5.38%
Ou, Shu-Ching 4,558,000 5.20%

VI. If the Company and its affiliates have financial turnover difficulties in the most recent year and
up to the date of publication of the annual report, they shall list that they have no impact on the
financial status of the Company: None.
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Chapter VII

1.  Financial status:

(I) Main reasons and impacts of major movements in assets, liabilities, and equity during the

last two years

Financial status and performance review analysis and risks

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year Difference

Analysis item 2023 2022 Amount %

Current assets 2,736,368 3,193,018 (456,650) (14.30)

Long-term investment 40,805 42,811 (2,006) (4.69)

Property, plant and 964,076 701,327 262,749 37.46

equipment

Other assets 495,034 512,068 (17,034) (3.33)

Total assets 4,236,283 4,449,224 (212,941) (4.79)

Current liabilities 2,341,467 1,585,921 755,546 47.64

Long-term liabilities 97,804 604,072 (506,268) (83.81)

Other liabilities 306,095 319,458 (13,363) (4.18)

Total liabilities 2,745,366 2,509,451 235,915 9.40

Share capital 875,500 875,500 - -

Capital surplus 380,455 424,230 (43,775) (10.32)

Retained earnings 520,911 883,636 (362,725) (41.05)

Other equity interests (295,450) (253,342) (42,108) (16.62)

Non-controlling interests 9,501 9,749 (248) (2.54)

Total amount of

shareholder’s equity 1,490,917 1,939,773 (448,856) (23.14)

Please state the reason for the movements during the last years (if the movement (increase or

decrease) does not reach 20%, an analysis is not required)

1. Property, plant and equipment increase:Mainly caused by the construction of the two
plants in Jiangxi and Dongtai, China in 2023.

2. Increase in current liabilities, decrease in long-term liabilities: The classification of
long-term borrowings for 2023 syndicated loan as current liabilities.

3. Decrease in retained earnings: The main reason for the pre-tax loss in 2023, and the
significant one-time relocation and severance expenses incurred due to the ongoing
consolidation of production bases across various subsidiaries within the group, resulting
in a considerable decline in profits compared to the previous fiscal year.

(IT) Impacts of major movements in assets, liabilities, and equity during the last two years:

There is no significant impact on the Company’s financial position.

(IIT) Future response plan: N/A.
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IL.

Financial performance:

before tax in the last two years

() Main reasons for major movements in operating revenue, operating income, and net income

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year Increase/ Change
Item 2023 2022 Decrease in percentage (%)
amount

Operating revenue - net 3,642,580 | 4,166,649 (524,069) (12.58)
Operating costs 3,279,021 | 3,549,042 (270,021) (7.61)
Gross profit 363,559 617,607 (254,048) (41.13)
Operating expenses 724,379 671,928 52,451 7.81
Net operating income

(360,820) (54,321) (306,499) (564.24)
(loss)
Non-operating income

5,882 38,448 (32,566) (84.70)
and expenses
Net income (loss) before
rax (354,938) (15,873) (339,065) (2,136.11)
Income tax expenses 7,669 8,761 (1,092) (12.46)
Net income (loss) after
. (362,607) (24,634) (337,973) (1,371.98)
ax

Please state the reason for the movements during the last years (if the movement (increase

or decrease) does not reach 20%, an analysis is not required)

1. Increase in operating net loss: Mainly due to the impact of the war between Ukraine

and Russia and high inflation in 2023, Despite the gradual stabilization of raw

material prices, high customer inventories remained uncleared, leading to a

slowdown in demand. Additionally, significant one-time relocation and severance

expenses were incurred due to the ongoing consolidation of production bases across

various subsidiaries within the group, resulting in a significant increase in losses

compared to the previous year.

2. Decrease in non-operating income and expenses: Mainly due to the borrowings

increase in 2023, Financial cost increased compared to 2022. The smaller

appreciation of the US dollar exchange rate this year compared to last year led to

lower foreign exchange gains.

(IT) Estimated sales and the basis: The Company did not prepare and publish financial forecasts,

so it does not apply.

(IIT) Potential impact on the Company’s future financial business and response plans: No

significant impact was caused on finance and business.
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III. Cash flow: An analysis of cash flow movements in the last year, an improvement plan for

insufficient liquidity, and a liquidity analysis for the coming year

() An analysis of movements in consolidated cash flows during 2023:

Unit: NT$ thousand

IV.

Net cash flo Countermeasure for cash
Opening from opera ti1\1V Cash outflow | Cash surplus deficits
cash ac tivilzies in g throughout (deficit) Investment Wealth
+(2)-
balance (1) the year (2) the year (3) (H+(2)-(3) plans management
plans
1,264,821 71,898 261,043 1,075,676 - -
1. Net cash inflow from operating activities in 2023 is NT$ 71,898 thousand, mainly
due to decrease in accounts receivable and revenue.
2. Net cash outflow from investment activities in 2023 is NT$ 376,590 thousand,
mainly due to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
3. Net cash inflow from financing activities in 2023 is NT$ 161,511 thousand, mainly
due to the increase in short-term and long-term borrowings.
4. The impact of exchange rate changes on cash in 2023 is NT$ (45,964) thousand.

(I) Remedial measures for cash flow deficit and liquidity analysis: There was no cash flow

deficit occurring.

(IIT) A liquidity analysis for the coming year:

Net cash flo Countermeasure for cash
Opening from opera tir\iv Cash outflow | Cash surplus deficits
cash ac tiViI‘Zies n g throughout (deficit) Investment Wealth
balance (1) the year (2) the year (3) (H+(2)-(3) plans management
plans
1,075,676 199,066 96,354 1,178,388 - -
1. The net cash inflow of operating activities, mainly due to the increased demand for

2.

3.

consumer electronics and automotive, medical, industrial control and other lines in
2024, the substantial growth of revenue and profit, resulting in the net cash inflow
of operating activities.

Net cash outflow from investing activities, mainly due to the acquisition of real
estate, plant and equipment, etc.

Net cash inflow from financing activities, mainly due to the estimated borrowings of
loans.

The impact of the significant capital expenditure in the last year upon the financial

performance: None.

The outward investment policies in the last year. The key reasons leading to the profit or loss,

the corrective plans and the investment plan in one year ahead: None.
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(I) The outward investment policies in the latest year: We mainly invested in upstream and
downstream industries in line with the Company’s long-term development plan to reduce

production costs and increasing profits.

(II) The main reason for reinvestment loss: NT$ 2,006 thousand in loss in 2023. The main
reason for the decline in revenue and profits compared to previous year is due to the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic, which has led to lockdowns affecting market demand and
delays in the depletion of customer inventories, particularly among our invested companies'

European and American customers.

(IIT) The investment plan in one year ahead: To meet the needs for continuous development, the
Company will carry out investment plans in the following year depending on the business

operations and the development situation.

An analysis and evaluation of risks in the last year and up to the publication date of this annual

report

(I) The impact incurred by change in interest rate, exchange rate, inflation upon the

Company’s profit and/or loss and the future countermeasures

Changes in interest rates: The interest expense and interest income of the Company and
our subsidiaries accounted for 1.29% and 0.46% of the Group’s consolidated revenue
for 2023, respectively. The percentages are not large, and the Company has obtained
short-term loans with preferential terms and medium- and long-term syndicated loans to
support our operations and Capital movement, and we have obtained a loan under the
Action Plan for Post-pandemic recovery project in Taiwan. It was estimated that
changes in interest rates would not have a significant impact on the Company.

Changes in exchange rates: Part of the main sales and purchases by the Company and
our subsidiaries is in foreign currencies. By offsetting foreign-currency assets and
liabilities, the exchange rate risks have been greatly reduced. Exchange gain for 2023
accounted for 0.06% of the consolidated revenue, which is not a large percentage, so the
impact of exchange rate fluctuations on the Company was limited. The Company and
our subsidiaries will pay close attention to information on exchange rate fluctuations
and keep abreast of the exchange rate trends in real time to avoid the risk of exchange
rate changes depending on the global macro economy, exchange rates, and future capital
needs, thereby alleviating the impact of exchange rate changes on the Company’s and
subsidiaries’ profit or loss.

Inflation: The Company pays attention to market price fluctuations at any time and
maintains positive interactive relations with suppliers and clients to avoid major impacts

of inflation on the Company.

(IT) The major causes for engaging in high-risk, high-leverage investment, lending of funds to
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others, endorsements/guarantees and derivative financial instruments, the profits or loss and

the future countermeasures.

Risk Implementation Policy and countermeasures
High-risk and | Our investments are mainly made to establish | The Company focuses on the core
highly domestic and overseas production sites, most | business and does not engage in
leveraged of which are wholly owned and are not highly | high-risk or highly leveraged
investment leveraged or high-risk investments. investments.

Loaning As of the publication date, except for loans If the Company needs to engage
Funds to between affiliates in the Group, we do not in financing due to business needs
Others lend loans to external entities. in the future, the Operating
Procedures for Loaning of Funds
to Others formulated by the
Company will apply, and we will
accurately announce the
information on the loans to others
in real time in accordance with
laws and regulations.
Endorsements | The Company has endorsed guarantees of If there is a need to provide
/guarantees NT$85,250 thousand for its subsidiaries endorsements/guarantees to others
Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing in the future, we will handle it in
Limited and NT$ 61,530 thousand for accordance with the Operating
Copartner Technology (Dongtai) Co., Ltd., as | Procedures for Endorsements and
of December 31, 2023. The maximum value | Guarantees formulated by the
of the endorsement guarantee is NT$ Company and will accurately
2,709,272 thousand. announce the information on the
The Company has endorsed guarantees of endorsements/guarantees provided
NT$ 85,250 thousand for its subsidiaries to others in real time in
Copartner Wire & Cable Manufacturing accordance with laws and
Limited and NT$ 65,160 thousand for regulations.
Copartner Technology (Dongtai) Co., Ltd., as
of April 30, 2024. The maximum value of the
endorsement guarantee is NT$2,222,124
thousand. We handle all
endorsements/guarantees in accordance with
the Operating Procedures for Endorsements
and Guarantees formulated by the Company.
Derivatives The Company did not engage in derivatives If there is a need to engage in
Trading trading during the last year and up to the derivatives trading due to business

publication date of this annual report.

needs in the future, we will handle
it in accordance with the
Procedures for Asset Acquisition
and Disposal formulated by the
Company and will accurately
announce the information on
trading in real time in accordance
with laws and regulations.
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(III) The future research & development plans and the expenses anticipated to be invested into
research & development

The Company’s R&D projects in recent years have focused the attention on the
development of cables and wire harness with high added values, and we will still focus
on this and meet clients’ new product design needs in our future R&D projects. The
Company’s R&D aims to proactively develop low-loss coaxial cables for 5G base
stations and relevant cables and wire harness for automobiles, industrial automation, and
medical care. It is estimated that the Group will invest more than 3% of its annual
revenue in R&D in the future. Please refer to (4) R&D Status under Report to
Shareholders on page 1 of this annual report for more information.

(IV) The possible impacts by government policies and laws at home and abroad upon the

Company’s financial conditions and the Company’s countermeasures

In the countries or regions where the Company operates business, if the existing tax laws
and regulations are amended or new tax laws take effect, it may have an adverse impact
on the Company’s profits. Our main operations and manufacturing activities are in
Taiwan and mainland China, so the Company is mainly regulated by the tax laws of the
Republic of China and China’s tax laws. Any adverse changes in tax laws and regulations
will have an adverse impact on the Company’s operating performance. To control this tax
risk, the Company always pays close attention to any important domestic and overseas
policy development and changes in laws and regulations that may affect the Company’s
finance, consults attorneys and accountants about the impacts, and collects relevant
information as a reference for the management team to make decisions to adjust the
Company’s business strategies.

Furthermore, as the Company’s revenue mainly comes from sales outside of Taiwan,
changes in various regional economies’ trade policies may directly or indirectly affect the
sales of the Company or our clients, thereby affecting the Company’s operating
performance. Therefore, the Company continues to pay attention to the recent
development of trade policies of relevant major economies and will take countermeasures

accordingly.

(V) The impact of technological changes and industrial changes on the Company’s financial

performance and countermeasures

The Company pays close attention to technological changes and technological
development in the industry, in which the business is operated, continues to improve
product quality and manufacturing processes, quickly keeps abreast of industry trends
and competitors’ information, and adopts a stable financial management strategy to
maintain our market competitiveness. In the future, the Company will continue to pay

attention to the technological changes in the industry, in which the business is operated,
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evaluates such an impact on the operations, and makes corresponding adjustments to
improve the business development and financial position. Therefore, technological

changes and industrial changes currently cause no significant impact on the Company.

(VI) The impacts created by a change in corporate image upon the management over crisis,

and the Company’s countermeasures

Since the Company was established, we have adhered to the principles of integrity and
professionalism, proactively reinforced internal management, improved management
quality and efficiency, attached importance to corporate image and risk control, and
complied with applicable laws and regulations. So far, there has been no incident
occurring that would affect our corporate image. In the future, while maximizing

shareholders’ equity, the Company will fulfill our corporate social responsibility.

(VII) Estimated benefits and potential risks of M&A and countermeasures: So far, the
Company has no M&A plan in place, so this does not apply.

(VIII) The risks anticipated from the expansion of the plant buildings, and the Company’s

countermeasures:

The Company carefully plans the capital expenditure for the expansion of production
capacity and plants depending on the industrial development and market needs to
increase production capacity and revenue. As the expansion of production capacity and
plants will result in an increase in operating costs, and when the business cycle in the
industry is not as expected, idle production capacity will occur. The Company will pay
close attention to market changes and work closely with clients to adjust expansion

plans in a timely manner to reduce and avoid risks.

(IX) The risks anticipated from the centralized input or output undertakings and the

Company’s countermeasures

The Company’s clients are located in different places around the world. The top ten
clients for 2023 accounted for lower than 10% of the Company’s net operating revenue,
without a risk of client concentration. Also, most of our other raw material suppliers are
companies with great quality reputation in the industry and have been worked with the
Company stably for many years, so there should be no risk of supplier concentration to

the Company.

(X) The impacts and risks anticipated from the massive transfer of shareholding by directors
or key shareholders who hold more than 10% in shareholding and the Company’s

countermeasures: None.

(XI) The impacts and risks anticipated from the change in the managerial powers and the
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Company’s countermeasures:

The Company did not have a change in the management right during the last year and

up to the publication date of this annual report, so this does not apply.

(XII) In the case of a court case or a non-contentious case, specify the Company or the
Company’s directors, President, de facto responsible person, or shareholders, each
holding more than 10% of all company shares, with final ruling made or still in major
legal proceedings, non-contentious matters, or administrative disputes, and where the
result thereof may significantly affect shareholders’ equity or stock price, the fact of the
contentions, the amount involved, the commencement date of the proceedings, the major
litigants in the proceedings, and the status as of the publication date of this report shall be
disclosed: None.

VIIL Other important disclosures: None.
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Chapter VIII

Special disclosure

<
«
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I.  Relevant information of affiliated enterprises
(I) Consolidated business reports teaming up with affiliated enterprises
1. Organizational chart of affiliates
Copartner Technology
Corp.
100% 100% 100%
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen)| |[Copartner Wire And Cable|
Hotek Technology Corp. Mfg Co., Ltd. (ShenZhen) Co., Ltd.
100%
Copartner Wire & Cable
Mfg. Ltd.
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Note: The names of the companies in the organizational chart is abbreviated. For the full names,

please refer to 2. Fundamental particulars of affiliated enterprises below.
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2. Fundamental particulars of affiliated enterprises: OK

. Establishment Paid-in Main business
Name of enterprise Address shares .
Date . items
Capital
Hotek Technology July 8,2003 [P.O.Box 1225,Apia,Samoa. 615,298|Investment
Corporation
Copartner Wire & Cable September 10, |A3, 3F, Block A, Hongli 331,443|General
Mfg. Ltd. 1992 Industrial Center, 6 Wang international trade
Guan Road, Kowloon Bay, and general
Kowloon, Hong Kong investment
business
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg | September 3, [1F-B, No. 52-5 and No. 56,019(Production and
Co., Ltd. 1997 52-6, Fengtang Boulevard, sales of copper
Xintian Community, wires
Fuyong Street, Bao’an
District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong, China
Copartner Wire And Cable August 19, [No.52-7, 52-9, Fengtang 63,900|Investment
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. 1997 Avenue , Xintian Village,
Fuyong Town, Bao’an
District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong, China
United Electric Wire February 20, |No.168, Bin jiang South 56,806(Production and
(KunShan) Co., Ltd. 2003 Road, Zhangpu Town, sales of wires,
Kunshan City, Jiangsu, cables, and
China computer cables
Copartner Wire And Cable February 4, [No.168, Bin jiang South 194,123|Investment
(KunShan) Co., Ltd. 1998 Road, Zhangpu Town,
Kunshan City, Jiangsu,
China
Cablex Wire And Cable November 26, |No.168, Bin jiang South 64,750(Production and
(KunShan) Mfg. 2004 Road, Zhangpu Town, sales of wires,
Kunshan City, Jiangsu, cables, and
China computer wire
harness
Wanfu Plastic (ShenZhen) Co.,| February 20, [South side of the first floor, 72,495|Production and
Ltd. 2003 No. 9, Jiyjiu Industrial sales of plastic
Road, West Industrial Park, pellets
Shatou community, Shajing
street, Bao’an District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong,
China
Huisheng Plastic (ShenZhen) | November 26, (1 & 2F., No.2, Ninety-nine 80,821|Production and
Co., Ltd. 2004 Industrial Area Minzhu sales of plastic

Village, Shajing Town,
Baoan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong, China

pellets

- 300 -




Paid-in

Name of enterprise Establishment Address shares Malr} business
Date . items
Capital
Copartner Technology November 26, [No.52-7, 52-9, Fengtang 306,602 |Production and
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. 2004 Avenue , Xintian Village, sales of wires,
Fuyong Town, Bao’an cables, and
District, Shenzhen, computer cables
Guangdong, China
ShenZhen Copartner February 20, |No.8-9, Dayangtian 254,499|Production and
Communication Co., Ltd. 2003 Industrial Area, Wanfeng sales of wires,
Village, Shajing Town, cables, and
Baoan District, Shenzhen, computer cables
Guangdong, China
Shin Ya Wire And Cable December 16, |2F., No.52-5,Fengtang 36,178|Production and
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. 2005 Avenue , Xintian Village, sales of wires,
Fuyong Town, Baoan cables, and
District, Shenzhen, computer cables
Guangdong, China
Wuyjiang Wanfeng Plastic April 26, 2010 [No.44 Tongxin East Road, 27,148|Production and
Cement Co., Ltd. Wan jiang District, sales of plastic
Songling Town, Wujiang pellets
District, Suzhou, Jiangsu,
China
Jia Xin Plastic(ShenZhen) Co.,| September 16, [3TH industrial zone, Bitou 29,884(Production and
Ltd. 1993 Village, Songgang Town, sales of plastic
Baoan District, Shenzhen, pellets
Guangdong, China
Copartner Technology January 7, [North Side of Haiyang 175,909|R&D, production,
(DongTai) Co., Ltd. 2019 West Road, Precision and sales of
Machinery Manufacturing high-end
Industrial Park, Dongtai communication
City signal transmission
cables and copper
conductors
Jia Xin New Materials (Anfu) October 9, [Next to Electromechanical 168,568(Production and
CO., LTD. 2020 Avenue, High-tech sales of plastic
Industrial Park, Anfu pellets
County, Ji’an City, Jiangxi
Province, China
Cablex Metal Material (Anfu) | January 25, |Advanced Equipment 42,207|Production and
Co., Ltd. 2021 Manufacturing Industrial sales of copper
Park, High-tech Industrial wires
Park, Anfu County, Ji’an
City, Jiangxi Province,
China
Copartner Technology (Anfu) | January 25, |Advanced Equipment 175,340(Production and
Co., Ltd. 2021 Manufacturing Industrial sales of wires,

Park, High-tech Industrial
Park, Anfu County, Ji’an
City, Jiangxi Province,
China

cables, and
computer cables
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2. Information on the shareholders presumed to have a relationship of control and

subordination: None.

3. Industries to which the affiliates belong: See (2) for details.

4. Information and to data of directors and supervisors, general managers of affiliated

enterprises:

Shareholding
Name of enterprise Title Name o the - -
representative person| ~ Quantity Ratio of
Shareholding

Hotek Technology Director Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Corporation Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Copartner Wire & Cable Mfg. Director Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Cablex Wire (ShenZhen) Mfg Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Co., Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
President Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Copartner Wire And Cable Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. President Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
United Electric Wire (KunShan) Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Co., Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Supervisor Ho, Po-Kai — —
President Shih, Hsiao-Kuang — —
Copartner Wire And Cable Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
(KunShan) Co., Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Supervisor Ho, Po-Kai — —
President Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Cablex Wire And Cable Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
(KunShan) Mfg. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Supervisor Ho, Po-Kai — —

President Ho, Chun-Hsien
Wanfu Plastic (ShenZhen) Co., Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Ltd. Vice Chairman | Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Supervisor Ho, Po-Kai — —
President Kuo, Shao-Ping — —
Huisheng Plastic (ShenZhen) Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Co., Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —

- 302 -




Shareholding

Name of enterprise Title Name 9r the . .
representative person| ~ Quantity Ratio of
Shareholding
Copartner Technology Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
President Yen, Chia-Fa — —
ShenZhen Copartner Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Communication Co., Ltd. Vice Chairman | Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
President Li, Hsiao-Lien — —
Shin Ya Wire And Cable Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Supervisor Ho, Po-Kai — —
President Yen, Chia-Chun — —
Wujiang Wanfeng Plastic Executive Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Cement Co., Ltd. Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Supervisor Y1, Chien-Chun — 9.6%
President
Jia Xin Plastic(ShenZhen) Co., Executive Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Director Ho, Po-Kai — —
Supervisor Li, Yi-Ta — —
President
Copartner Technology (DongTai)|  Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Co., Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Supervisor Ho, Po-Kai — —
Jia Xin New Materials (Anfu) Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
CO., LTD. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Supervisor Ho, Po-Kai — —
President Li, Yi-Ta — —
Cablex Metal Material (Anfu) Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Co., Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Supervisor Ho, Po-Kai — —
President Chen, Chun-Mei — —
Copartner Technology (Anfu) Chairman Ho, Chun-Hsien — —
Co., Ltd. Director Wang, Shih-Tsung — —
Director Chen, Hung-Yao — —
Supervisor Ho, Po-Kai — —
President Chou, Kuo-Chun — —
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(I) Consolidated financial statements of affiliates (see pages 124 -213)

The affiliates that are required to be included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, under the Criteria Governing
the Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated
Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as those included in the
consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with the IFRS 10. In addition,
the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements of affiliates
is included in said consolidated financial statements. Consequently, a separate set of

combined financial statements of affiliates will not be prepared.

(III) Affiliation report: N/A.

II.  Where the company has carried out a private placement of securities in the last year and up to

the publication date of the annual report: None.

III. Holding or disposal of the company’s shares by its subsidiaries in the last year and up to the

publication date of the annual report: None.

IV. Other necessary supplementary information: None.

Chapter [X Occurrences of events defined under Subparagraph 2,
Paragraph 3, Article 36 of the Securities Exchange Act in
the last year and up to the publication date of the annual
report that significantly impacted shareholders’ equity or

security prices: None.
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